
 

Page 1 of 463 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, MAY 04, 2020 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 

 

 
 
To protect against the spread of the COVID-19, the meeting will be held via Videoconference. The public 
may access/participate in the meeting in the following ways: 
 
a) By dialing the phone number +13126266799 or +19292056099 or +12532158782 or +13017158592 or 
+13462487799 or +16699006833 and when prompted, enter the meeting ID (access code) 962 7287 1738. 
b) iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,96272871738#  or +19292056099,,96272871738# 
c) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://zoom.us/j/96272871738.   
d) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://youtu.be/mz_pH81EjBQ  (view only).  
e) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only). 
 
To request to speak when allowed on the agenda, participants must click “Raise Hand” if connected by 
smartphone or computer, or press *9 if connected by telephone. All participants will be muted by the presiding 
officer when not actually speaking. 
 

Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of April 20, 2020. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on the proposed rezoning from A-1, Agricultural, to R-1, Residential and M-1, P, 
Planned Light Industrial, of recently annexed property located south of West Viking Road and east of 
South Union Road, and also on an associated amendment to the Future Land Use Map by changing 
the designation from undesignated to Industrial, Low Density Residential, and Public and Utilities. 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published April 24, 2020) 

b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 

c) Staff comments. 

d) Public comments. 

3. Pass an ordinance amending Section 26-121 of the Code of Ordinances by rezoning from A-1, 
Agricultural, to R-1, Residential and M-1, P, Planned Light Industrial, of recently annexed property 
located south of West Viking Road and east of South Union Road, upon its first consideration. 

4. Resolution amending the Future Land Use Map, by changing the designation from undesignated to 
Industrial, Low Density Residential, and Public and Utilities, for recently annexed property located 
south of West Viking Road and east of South Union Road. 

5. Public hearing on proposed amendments to the City’s FY2020 Budget.  

1



 

Page 2 of 463 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published April 21, 2020) 

b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 

c) Staff comments. 

d) Public comments. 

6. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to the City's FY20 Budget. 

Old Business 

7. Pass Ordinance #2963, amending the boundaries for wards and precincts within the City of Cedar 
Falls to incorporate recently annexed territory, upon its second consideration. 

8. Pass Ordinance #2964, amending Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code 
of Ordinances relative to prohibiting loitering, upon its second consideration. 

9. Pass Ordinance #2965, amending Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to noxious weeds, upon its second consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

10. Receive and file a proclamation recognizing May 2020 as Bike Month and May 20th as Ride of 
Silence Day. 

11. Receive and file a proclamation recognizing May 2020 as Neurofibromatosis Awareness Month and 
May 17th as World Fibromatosis Awareness Day. 

12. Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Lisa R. Thomas, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2022. 

13. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of March 2020. 

14. Receive and file the Bi-Annual Report of Community Main Street relative to FY20 Self-Supported 
Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) Funds and an FY20 Economic Development Grant. 

15. Receive and file the Bi-Annual Report of College Hill Partnership relative to FY20 Self-Supported 
Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) Funds and an FY20 Economic Development Grant. 

16. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
a) Casey's General Store #1887, 2425 Center Street 
b) Casey's General Store #2630, 5226 University Avenue 
c) Casey's General Store #2865, 5908 Nordic Drive 
d) Casey's General Store #3045, 601 Main Street 
e) Casey's General Store #3610, 1225 Fountains Way 
f) Five Corner Liquor and Wine, 809 E 18th Street 
g) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue 
h) Hill Street News & Tobacco, 2217 College Street 
i) King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street 
j) Music Station, 1420 W. 1st Street 
k) The Landmark, 107 Main Street 
l) Up In Smoke, 2218 College Street 

17. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Tobacco Outlet Plus, 4116 University Avenue, Class C beer - renewal. 
b) Berk's Main Street Pub, 207 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

2



 

Page 3 of 463 

c) Suds & Suds Circle Pizza, 2223 1/2 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
d) Casey's General Store, 5226 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

18. Resolution approving and adopting an Amendment to Implement Over-the-Counter Medications for 
the City's Cafeteria Plan relative to implementing provisions of the CARES Act of 2020. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Wrecker/Towing/Storage 
Service with L&M Transmission. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Wrecker/Towing/Storage 
Service with Rasmusson Towing, Inc. 

21. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Failor Hurley 
Construction, Inc., in the amount of $209,800, for the Cedar Falls Recreation Center – Locker 
Rooms Renovation Project. 

22. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Failor Hurley Construction, Inc. for the 
Cedar Falls Recreation Center – Locker Rooms Renovation Project. 

23. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of an application for Traffic Safety Improvement 
Program (TSIP) funding with the Iowa Department of Transportation relative to the Greenhill Road 
and South Main Street Intersection Improvements. 

24. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting May 18, 2020 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill 
Project. 

25. Resolution setting May 18, 2020 as the date of public hearing on authorization of a Loan Agreement 
and the proposed issuance of not to exceed $700,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (for 
general corporate purposes). 

26. Resolution setting May 18, 2020 as the date of public hearing on authorization of a Loan Agreement 
and the proposed issuance of not to exceed $2,800,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (for 
essential corporate purposes). 

27. Resolution setting May 18, 2020 as the date of public hearing on the proposed adoption of the Multi-
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan for Black Hawk County. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

Executive Session 

28. Executive Session Executive Session to discuss Collective Bargaining per Iowa Code Section 
20.17(3), following Public Forum. 

Public Forum (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 
business.) 

Adjournment 

  

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, APRIL 20, 2020 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. The Mayor opened the meeting and 
announced that the meeting was an electronic meeting being conducted in 
conformance with the Governor’s Proclamation of Disaster Emergency dated 
March 19, 2020. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, an in-person meeting was 
impractical. Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Taiber. Absent: None. 

 
52755 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Darrah that the minutes of the 

Regular Meeting of April 6, 2020 be approved as presented and ordered of 
record. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52756 - Mayor Green announced the continuation of the public hearing on the proposed 

vacation and dedication of a storm sewer easement on the northeast corner of 
the property located at 312 West 1st Street. Community Services Manager 
Howard provided a brief summary.  There being no one else present to speak 
about the proposed vacation and dedication, the Mayor declared the hearing 
closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52757 -    It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,932, 

approving and authorizing vacation and dedication of a storm sewer easement 
on the northeast corner of the property located at 312 West 1st Street, be 
adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,932 duly passed and 
adopted. 

 
52758 - (Lost connection with Councilmember Sires.) Mayor Green announced that in 

accordance with the public notice of April 10, 2020, this was the time and place 
for a public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & 
estimate of cost for the Cedar Falls Recreation Center – Locker Rooms 
Renovation Project. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by deBuhr that 
the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52759 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Building 
Official Castle provided a brief summary of the proposed project. There being no 
one else present wishing to speak about the proposed plans, etc., the Mayor 
declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52760 -    It was moved by Taiber and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,933, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

cost for the Cedar Falls Recreation Center – Locker Rooms Renovation Project, 
be adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers Taiber and Darrah, and 
responses by Building Official Castle, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Taiber. Nay: None. Absent: Sires. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,933 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52761 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 10, 

2020, this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposed ordinance 
amending the boundaries for wards and precincts within the City of Cedar Falls 
to incorporate recently annexed territory. It was then moved by deBuhr and 
seconded by Kruse that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received 
and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52762 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed amendment. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. City 
Administrator Gaines provided a brief summary. There being no one else present 
wishing to speak about the proposed amendment, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52763 - It was moved by Taiber and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2963, 

amending the boundaries for wards and precincts within the City of Cedar Falls 
to incorporate recently annexed territory, be passed upon its first consideration. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Taiber. Nay: None. Absent: Sires. 
Motion carried. 

 
52764 - (Councilmember Sires now present at 7:13 P.M.) It was moved by Kruse and 

seconded by Miller that the following items and recommendations on the 
Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 

 
Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of members to Boards and Commissions:  
a) Chris Martin, Board of Rental Housing Appeals, term ending 05/01/2024.  
b) Cindy Wiles, Board of Rental Housing Appeals, term ending 05/01/2024. 

 
Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a 
certified list for the position of Administrative Assistant. 

 
 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  

a) Hy-Vee Clubroom, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 
b) The Horny Toad American Bar & Grille, 204 Main Street, Class C liquor - 

renewal.  
c) ZSAVOOZ, 206 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 

renewal.  
d) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class E liquor - renewal.  
e) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 
52765 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by deBuhr to receive and file a 

communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a certified list for 
the position of Assistant Public Safety Director/Police Chief. 

 
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Harding, Sires, Taiber, 
Darrah, Kruse and Miller, Mayor Green, Thomas (T.J.) Frein, 1319 Austin Way, 
Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, and Jeremy Sulentic, 1008 Rocklyn Street, and 
responses by City Administrator Gaines, Finance and Business Operations 
Director Rodenbeck, Public Safety Services Director Olson, Mayor Green and 
City Attorney Rogers, the motion carried 6-1 with Councilmember Sires voting 
nay. 

 
52766 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Taiber that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,934, authorizing the redemption of outstanding General 
Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2009A, of the City of Cedar Falls, dated 
December 23, 2009, and directing notice be given. 
 
Resolution #21,935, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the University Avenue Reconstruction 
Project - Phase 2. 
 
Resolution #21,936, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. relative to the Union Road Recreational Trail Project – 12th 
Street to 27th Street. 
 
Resolution #21,937, approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment to 
Agreement with River Place Properties, LC and State Street Mixed Use II, LC 
relative to conveyance of certain real estate to the City, and approving and 
authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Agreement affecting a Second 
Amendment to Agreement for Private Development with River Place Properties, 
LC and State Street Mixed Use II, LC. 
 
Resolution #21,938, approving a College Hill Neighborhood (CHN) Overlay 
Zoning District site plan for temporary wheat paste murals in the College Hill 
Business District. 
 
Resolution #21,939, setting May 4, 2020, as the date of public hearing on 
amendments to the City’s FY2020 Budget. 
 
Resolution #21,940, setting May 4, 2020 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning from A-1, Agricultural, to R-1, Residential and M-1, P, 
Planned Light Industrial of recently annexed property located south of West 
Viking Road and east of South Union Road, and also on an associated 
amendment to the Future Land Use Map by changing the designation from being 
undesignated to Industrial, Low Density Residential, and Public and Utilities. 
 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,934 through #21,940 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52767 -   It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,941, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Second Amendment to Loan 
Agreement with Sturgis Falls Celebration, Inc., be adopted. Following a question 
by Thomas (T.J.) Frein, 1319 Austin Way, and responses by Finance and 
Business Operations Director Rodenbeck and Councilmember Sires, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,941 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52768 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding that Resolution #21,942, 

approving and authorizing execution of a contract with Laser Line Striping 
relative to 2020 pavement marking services, be adopted. Following questions 
and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr and Kruse, and Kelly Dunn, 915 
Royal Drive, and responses by Public Works Director Schrage, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,942 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52769 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,943, 

approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. for 
acquisition services relative to the Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement Project, 
be adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers Harding and Darrah, and 
responses by City Administrator Gaines and Public Works Director Schrage, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, 
Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#21,943 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52770 -   It was moved by Miller and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,944, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with 
Snyder & Associates, Inc. relative to the Island Park Improvements Project, be 
adopted. Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Miller and 
Taiber, and responses by Public Works Director Schrage, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,944 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52771 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,945, 

approving a Highway Corridor and Greenbelt (HCG) Overlay Zoning District site 
plan for construction of a financial institution at 126 Brandilynn Boulevard, be 
adopted. Following questions and comments by Councilmember Harding, Mayor 
Green, and Joseph Abraham, 221 ½ Main Street, Readlyn, and responses by 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Community Services Manager Howard, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #21,945 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52772 -  It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #2964, 

amending Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to prohibiting loitering, be passed upon its first consideration. 
Following questions by Councilmembers Harding, Taiber and Darrah, Thomas 
(T.J.) Frein, 1319 Austin Way, and Jeremy Sulentic, 1008 Rocklyn Street, and 
responses by Public Safety Services Director Olson and City Attorney Rogers, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, 
Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52773 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #2965, 

amending Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to noxious weeds, be passed upon its first consideration. Following questions by 
Councilmembers Kruse, Darrah, Sires and Harding, and Jeremy Sulentic, 1008 
Rocklyn Street, and responses by Building Official Castle and Community 
Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Taiber. Nay: Sires. Motion carried. 

 
52774 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that the bills and payroll of April 

20, 2020 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. 

 
52775 -    Mayor Green, Public Safety Services Director Olson, City Administrator Gaines 

and City Attorney Rogers responded to questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Kruse, Darrah and Taiber regarding the timeline of the 
appointment process for the Assistant Public Safety Director/Police Chief 
position. 

 
      It was then moved by Taiber and seconded by Darrah to refer to Committee of 

the Whole a discussion on stormwater collection strategies. Following comments 
by City Administrator Gaines and Councilmember deBuhr, the motion by Taiber 
and second by Darrah were withdrawn.  

 
52776 -    Northern Iowa Student Government Liaison Rebecca Aberle announced that the 

University of Northern Iowa Spring graduation was cancelled, summer courses 
will be held on-line, and student volunteers have been collecting Personal 
Protection Equipment (PPE) to help those in need.  

 
   Councilmember Sires expressed appreciation to the Lions Club for their clean-up 

efforts along Union Road, and to the Public Works and City Staff for their 
continued efforts during this time. 

 
8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

52777 -    Councilmember Kruse expressed opposition to closing the City transfer station. 
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Taiber, Harding, Kruse, 
Darrah and Miller, and Mayor Green, and responses by City Administrator 
Gaines, Public Safety Services Director Olson, Public Works Director Schrage 
and Mayor Green, there was consensus to keep the transfer station and pickle 
ball courts open, and to close the restrooms in parks during the COVID-19 
pandemic.  

 
 City Administrator Gaines provided additional updates on the COVID-19, 

precautions city staff continue to take, and how future projects may be pushed 
back due to funding sources being affected by the pandemic. 

 
 Community Development Director Sheetz responded to a question by Mayor 

Green regarding allowable use of campers and RV’s on private property in 
residential areas for up to 30 days. 

 
 Mayor Green responded to a question by Councilmember Miller regarding the 

authorities of Mayor and City Administrator, and for allowing a current city 
employee to speak earlier in the meeting about an employment matter. 

 
 Mayor Green recognized this week as ‘Administrative Professionals Week’ and 

he and Councilmember Darrah thanked City administrative staff. The Mayor then 
recognized Fire Chief Bostwick for his 40 years of service.  

 
52778 - Thomas (T.J.) Frein, 1319 Austin Way, suggested involving outside agencies in 

the police chief selection process, spoke about the importance of pavement 
markings and expressed appreciation for trash cans on the trails. 

 
 Mayor Green responded to a question by Mr. Frein about a recent proclamation 

he signed regarding COVID-19 cases at the Tyson Fresh Meats plant. Public 
Safety Services Director Olson, Finance and Business Operations Director 
Rodenbeck and Councilmember deBuhr responded to questions and comments 
by Councilmember Kruse and Mr. Frein, regarding the Police Chief selection 
process. 

 
 Finance and Business Operations Director Rodenbeck responded to a question 

by Jeremy Sulentic, 1008 Rocklyn Street, regarding access to older City Council 
meeting videos. 

 
 Kelly Dunn, 915 Royal Drive, expressed appreciation for the COVID-19 

discussion and pavement markings, and encouraged use of patience and 
science as the city starts to reopen. 

 
 Manette Bell Anderson, 2508 Union Road, commented on the electronic city 

council meetings and encouraged the City to hold off on making decisions during 
this time. 

 
 Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, congratulated Fire Chief Bostwick on 40 years of 

service, and suggested that the City look into withdrawing from TIF accounts to 
fund declines in revenue. Mayor Green responded to Mr. Sharp’s request for the 
City to work with Cedar Falls High School to recognize local graduating seniors. 

9

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 7 - 

 

 
 Penny Popp, 4805 South Main Street, expressed appreciation to the Cedar Trails 

Partnership for providing a grant for a bike repair station at Eldorado Park, and to 
the City for their assistance in installing it.  

 
52779 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Miller that the meeting be adjourned 

at 10:04 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
     _________________________________ 

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

10

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 
 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: April 27, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request 
 
 

REQUEST: 
 

Rezone property from A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Residential and M-1,P Planned 
Light Industrial District (Case #RZ20-003) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

City of Cedar Falls 

LOCATION: 
 

Approximately 224 acres of land located along the south side of West Viking 
Road and the east side of South Union Road 
 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
On February 12, 2020, the 
State of Iowa City 
Development Board approved 
the City’s request to annex 
approximately 244 acres of 
land located adjacent to the 
city limits near the Cedar Falls 
Industrial Park into Cedar 
Falls. Per the Cedar Falls City 
Code (Section 26-121), once 
land is annexed into the city 
limits, the property 
automatically becomes zoned 
as A-1 Agricultural. The City is 
therefore requesting to rezone 
approximately 224 of the 244 
acres of land included in the 
annexation area from A-1 
Agricultural to R-1 Residential and M-1,P Planned Light Industrial District. One property included 
within the annexation area that is approximately 20 acres in size will remain zoned A-1 and is 
not part of this rezoning request, as the current use of that property as a home and wildlife 
sanctuary would necessitate an A-1 zoning designation. The rezoning of the properties will allow 
for the proposed expansion of the Cedar Falls Industrial Park, and the continued use of six lots 

11

Item 2.



for residential purposes. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City of Cedar Falls acquired approximately 200 acres of farm ground in 2019, with the intent 
of continuing the expansion and development of the city’s industrial park, which is located 
adjacent to the east within the city limits. Since the property was located outside of the city 
limits, an annexation request was filed with the State of Iowa. The annexation area not only 
included the 200 acres that the city purchased, but also included 6 residential properties located 
along the south side of West Viking Road, a residential/agricultural property located at the 
corner of South Union Road and West Viking Road, and an electrical substation operated by 
Cedar Falls Utilities located along South Union Road. All of the property owners included in the 
annexation signed the annexation application, making it a 100% voluntary annexation request. 
The annexation request was approved by the State of Iowa City Development Board on 
February 12, 2020, and is in the process of being finalized and recorded with the Black Hawk 
County Recorder’s Office. Once the area is annexed into the City of Cedar Falls, unless the 
property is going to remain zoned A-1 Agricultural per City Code, the property must be rezoned 
if it is to be used for other than agricultural uses.     
 
ANALYSIS 
The property to be rezoned is surrounded by a handful of residential acreages to the north, 
mainly agricultural uses to the west and south, and the existing Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
located to the east. The city conducted a phase I environmental report for the 200 acres of farm 
ground that was purchased, and there were no sensitive areas found within this area, making 
this area suitable for the continued development of the city’s industrial park. 
 
Zoning considerations normally involve evaluation of three main criteria: 
 

1) Is the rezoning request consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan? 
This area is currently not designated on the future land use map as it was just annexed into 
the city. Therefore, an amendment to the map will need to be approved in order to 
designate this area on the future land use map, which will be outlined in a separate staff 
report. The area to the east within the city limits is designated as industrial, as that is where 
the Cedar Falls Industrial Park is located. The area to the north is designated as low 
density residential. It would be anticipated that the City-owned properties would be 
designated as industrial, while the residential uses would be designated as low density 
residential. These proposed designations would appear to be compatible with the 
surrounding designations. The Comprehensive Plan specifically calls for future annexation 
of territory to the City of Cedar Falls to be located in an area adjacent to the City’s western 
corporate boundaries which include the area that was recently annexed, so the annexation 
of this land is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
2) Is the property readily accessible to sanitary sewer service?  

Yes, sanitary sewer is readily available to the site. 18” and 12” sanitary sewer mains are 
located adjacent to the property within Technology Parkway and Venture Way within the 
existing industrial park. As you can see from the map below, these sanitary sewer lines 
were constructed with the anticipation that they would be extended to this property in the 
future. The City has already hired an engineering consultant to design the extension of the 
sanitary sewer throughout the property.  
 

12

Item 2.



For the 6 residential properties 
located along W. Viking Road, 
there is a sanitary sewer main 
located within W. Viking Road 
that will be extended in front of 
the properties. For the one 
additional residential/agricultural 
property located at the corner of 
S. Union Road and W. Viking 
Road, sanitary sewer will be 
extended from the city’s property 
to this property. For the 
residential properties, it was 
agreed during the annexation 
process that those properties 
would not be required to hook 
onto the city sanitary sewer 
system if they choose not to, as 
they have existing septic 
systems, but the City will still 
provide the sanitary sewer to the 
properties so that they can connect if they so choose. 
 

3) Does the property have adequate roadway access?  
The property is adjacent to W. Viking Road and S. Union Road. For the land that the City 
owns that will be developed as an extension to the existing industrial park, both 
Technology Parkway and Venture Way abut to this property, with those roads being shown 
as connecting into this property. As you can see on the concept map, which is attached in 
the packet, a connection to W. Viking Road and S. Union Road is shown, which will 
provide 4 different access points to the property. Also, two future road connections are 
shown going to the south, which is currently privately owned. 
 
Currently, the two roads within the industrial park that would be extended to the west are 
industrial-grade, two lane roads with curb and gutter. W. Viking Road is currently an 
asphalt road with ditch drainage. The city is already working on plans to upgrade the 
section of W. Viking Road from just west of Production Drive all the way to the intersection 
of S. Union Road. This would bring this road to an urban section road with curb and gutter. 
This is anticipated to be completed in 2022-2023. S. Union Road is currently a gravel road 
that is maintained by Black Hawk County. There are no current plans to upgrade that road 
at this time, but if it becomes warranted, the City will work with the County to address this 
road.  
   

As part of the technical review of this proposal, Cedar Falls Utilities personnel have no concerns 
with the proposed rezoning request. Water, electric, gas, and communication utilities are all 
adjacent to the site or are available to be extended to the area.  
 
A notice was mailed to the adjoining property owners on March 31, 2020 regarding this request.  
 
 
 

13

Item 2.



STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the request to rezone 
property from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 One and Two Family Residence District and M-1,P 
Planned Light Industrial District. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
03/11/20 

Mr. Graham provided background information regarding the request. He 
explained that the City is annexing about 244 acres at the southeast corner of 
Viking Road and South Union Road. Once property is annexed it is 
automatically zoned A-1, Agriculture. From there rezoning occurs when 
needed. It is proposed to rezone the proposed Industrial Park ground and the 
CFU electrical substation to M-1, P and the six existing residential lots located 
along Viking Road to R-1. The property located at the corner of S. Union Road 
will not be rezoned as the existing use fits within the A-1 District. He discussed 
sanitary sewer and water main extensions, roadway access and the 
development concept plan. Staff recommends gathering comments from the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and the public relating to the request and 
bringing it back to the Commission at the next meeting. 

Mr. Leeper commended the City on planning for the future. Mr. Wingert asked 
if the detention basins will be wet or dry. Mr. Graham stated that the one along 
Viking Road would be wet, as well as the one next to the substation. 

   
Vote 
4/8/2020 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Graham provided background 
information, explaining that the property at the southeast corner of Viking 
Road and South Union Road will need to be rezoned now that the annexation 
is complete. He provided renderings of the areas to be rezoned and explained 
the proposed rezoning. He also discussed the roadway access and 
development concept plan. Staff recommends approval. 
 
Mr. Hartley made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Larson seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Hartley, Holst, 
Larson, Leeper, Lynch and Prideaux), and 0 nays. 

  

14

Item 2.



W Viking
Industrial

Park Capital Way

Venture Way

Technology Pkwy

Te
ch

no
log

yP
l

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

Production DrS U
nio

n R
d

W Ridgeway Ave

W Viking RdS U
nio

n R
d

M-1-P

RP

A-1

Cedar Falls City Council
May 4, 2020

Rezoning of Property from A-1 Agriculture
to R-1 One and Two Family Residential and
M-1,P Planned Light Industrial

W Viking
Industrial Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

CenterS t

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Ma
in

St

W 12th St

W 1st St

E Vik ing

Rd
W Viking Rd

Waterloo Rd

Un
ion

 R
d

W 27th St

E Greenhill Rd

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

rse
e R

d

W
Green hill Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

15

Item 2.



Rezoning Request A-1 to R-1:
N 550' of the W 1083' NW NE

Sec. 34 Twp. 89 Rng. 14
12.85 +/- Ac

Rezoning Request A-1 to M-1-P:
NW Sec. 34 Twp. 89 Rng. 14
Except N 1,200' of the W 800'

And
N 1/2 SW Sec. 34 Twp. 89 Rng. 14
Except W 231' S 660' & Parcel A

P.O.S. Doc. #2017-02916
211 +/- Ac

300' Limit
Timber Cove Dr

Venture Way

Technology Pkwy

W Viking Rd

De
vel

op
me

nt 
Dr

Capital Way

S U
nio

n R
d

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Owner's Listing for Rezoning Request
A-1 to M-1-P & A-1 to R-1 I

Date: 2/10/2020

16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO._____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 26-118,  

DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I GENERALLY  

OF ARTICLE III DISTRICT AND DISTRICT  

REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER TWENTY-SIX (26), ZONING,  

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

AND RE-ENACTING SAID SECTION 26-118 OF SAID ORDINANCE, AS 

AMENDED, SO AS TO APPLY AND INCLUDE TO THE  

CHANGE IN THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF  

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PROVIDED BY THIS ORDINANCE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

finds that the rezoning is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan of the City of Cedar Falls 

and therefore has recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that all that area 

described as follows shall be removed from the A-1 Agricultural Zoning District and placed in the R-

1 Residence Zoning District and M-1, P Planned Light Industrial Zoning District, as follows: 

 

Legal description for land to be rezoned from A-1 to M-1, P: 

 

The Northwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, except the North 1,200 feet of the West 800 feet thereof, and also the North one-half 

of the Southwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, except the West 231 feet of the South 660 feet thereof and further except Parcel ‘A’ of 

Plat of Survey Doc. # 2017-02916. Area containing 211+/- acres. 

 

Legal description for land to be rezoned from A-1 to R-1: 

 

The North 550 feet of the West 1083 feet of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of 

Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. Area 

containing 12.85+/- acres; 

 

And 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to the best interests 

of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article 

III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 18

Item 2.



 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment; now, therefore, 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

 Section 1.  That the following described real estate: 

 

Legal description for land to be rezoned from A-1 to M-1, P: 

 

The Northwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, except the North 1,200 feet of the West 800 feet thereof, and also the North one-half 

of the Southwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, except the West 231 feet of the South 660 feet thereof and further except Parcel ‘A’ of 

Plat of Survey Doc. # 2017-02916. Area containing 211+/- acres. 

 

Legal description for land to be rezoned from A-1 to R-1: 

 

The North 550 feet of the West 1083 feet of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of 

Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. Area 

containing 12.85+/- acres 

 

Be and the same is hereby removed from the A-1 Agricultural District and added to the R-1 

Residence District and M-1, P Planned Light Industrial District. 

 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby 

amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the R-1 Residence 

District and M-1, P Planned Light Industrial District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be 

the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 

 

 Section 3. That said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article 

III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby repealed and hereby re-

enacted in the identical language as the same now is, in order that the same shall apply to and include 

the change hereby made in the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

INTRODUCED:    May 4, 2020    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 

         _________________________ 

ATTEST:        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
19

Item 2.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 
 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: April 27, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Land Use Map Amendment 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Land Use Map Amendment to designate new areas of land within the City of 
Cedar Falls (Case #LU20-001) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

City of Cedar Falls 

LOCATION: 
 

Approximately 244 acres of land located along the south side of W. Viking 
Road and the east side of S. Union Road 
 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The City of Cedar Falls has submitted a request to rezone approximately 224 of the 244 acres 
of land included within a recently annexed area of land from A-1 Agricultural to R-1 Residential 
and M-1,P Planned Light Industrial District. The rezoning of the properties will allow for the 
proposed expansion of the Cedar Falls Industrial Park, and the continued use of six lots for 
residential purposes. Zoning considerations normally involve evaluation of three main criteria: 
 

1. Is the rezoning request consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan? 

2. Is the property readily accessible to sanitary sewer service?  
3. Does the property have adequate roadway access? 

 
This staff report will focus on the first criteria, the Future Land Use Map and Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City of Cedar Falls acquired approximately 200 acres of farm ground in 2019, with the intent 
of continuing the expansion and development of the city’s industrial park, which is located 
adjacent to the east within the city limits. Since the property was located outside of the city 
limits, an annexation request was filed with the State of Iowa. The annexation area not only 
included the 200 acres that the city purchased, but also included 6 residential properties located 
along the south side of West Viking Road, a residential/agricultural property located at the 

20

Item 4.



corner of South Union Road and West Viking Road, and an electrical substation operated by 
Cedar Falls Utilities located along South Union Road. In total, the annexation area comprises of 
approximately 244 acres of land. The annexation request was approved by the State of Iowa 
City Development Board on February 12, 2020, and is in the process of being finalized and 
recorded with the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office. Now that the area has been approved 
to be annexed into the City of Cedar Falls, this area must be shown on the Future Land Use 
Map, as it is not currently designated on the map.    
 
ANALYSIS 
As stated in the Comprehensive Plan, land use is the central element of the Plan because it 
establishes the overall physical configuration of the city, including the mix and location of uses 
and community systems (utilities).  
 
The land use analysis is the first step in the rezoning process. The residential properties and the 
electrical substation property are existing uses with no future changes in use anticipated, so 
these properties are being proposed to be designated as “Low Density Residential” and “Public 
and Utilities” on the Future Land Use Map respectively. The property that the City owns is 
currently being utilized as farm ground, but is anticipated to be used for industrial uses, so this 
area is being proposed to be designated as “Industrial” on the Future Land Use Map.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The proposed designation on the Future Land Use Map corresponds to the proposed rezoning 
from A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Low Density Residential and M-1,P Planned Light Industrial 
District.  
 
A notice was mailed to the adjoining property owners on March 31, 2020 regarding this request.  
 
 

Proposed Land Use Map with Categories 

21

Item 4.



STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the land use map 
amendment to designate new areas of land within Cedar Falls as Low Density Residential, 
Industrial, and Public and Utilities. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
03/11/20 

Mr. Graham provided background information on the request. He explained 
that the City purchased approximately 200 acres of farm ground west of the 
City limits for the continued expansion of the Industrial Park. The City is 
annexing about 244 acres and wants to designate this on the future land use 
map. The City will also want to rezone the property as well. Mr. Graham 
explained the proposed designation and displayed where they are located. 
Staff recommends gathering comments from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and the public relating to the request and bringing it back to the 
Commission at the next meeting.  

Mr. Holst asked about the level of support from the neighborhood. Mr. Graham 
stated that the response has been good and that the neighbors signed the 
voluntary annexation. Staff is keeping them informed and involved. 

Mr. Wingert asked about plans for improvements to the roads. Mr. Graham 
stated that Viking Road is in the CIP for improvement, but there are currently 
no plans for Union Road. 

  

Vote 
4/8/2020 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Graham provided background 
information. He explained that the City purchased approximately 200 acres of 
property at the southeast corner of Viking Road and South Union Road. 
Annexation for the area has been approved by the State and completed, 
requiring the addition of the property to the Land Use Map. Mr. Graham 
displayed the proposed updates to the map and noted that staff has not 
received any comments from surrounding property owners. Staff recommends 
approval of the Land Use Map Amendment. 

Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Lynch seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Hartley, Holst, 
Larson, Leeper, Lynch and Prideaux), and 0 nays. 

 

22

Item 4.



W Viking
Industrial

Park
Capital Way

Venture Way

Technology Pkwy

Pro duc tio n DrDe
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

S U
nio

n R
d

W Ridgeway Ave

W Viking Rd

S U
nio

n R
d

Future Land Use Map Amendment:
Designate New Property in Cedar Falls
as Low Density Residential, Industrial,
and Public and Utilities

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls
University Ave

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

CenterS t

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ma
in

St

W 12th St

W 1st St

E Viking Rd

W Viking Rd

Waterloo Rd

Un
ion

 R
d

W 27th St

E Greenhill Rd

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

rse
e R

d

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

Location
Map

Cedar Falls City Council
May 4, 2020

23

Item 4.



24

Item 5.



25

Item 5.



26

Item 5.



27

Item 5.



28

Item 5.



29

Item 5.



30

Item 5.



31

Item 5.



32

Item 5.



33

Item 5.



34

Item 5.



Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2963 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING THE SUBSECTION OF SECTION 8-1, WARDS AND 
PRECINCTS, DEALING WITH THE DESCRIPTION OF THE TERRITORY INCLUDED 
IN THE SECOND WARD OF THE CITY, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW 
SUBSECTION OF SECTION 8-1, WARDS AND PRECINCTS, DEALING WITH THE 
SECOND WARD OF THE CITY, ALL CONTAINED IN CHAPTER 8, ELECTIONS, OF 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  The subsection of Section 8-1, Wards and precincts, dealing with the Second Ward 
of the City, contained in Chapter 8, Elections, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new subsection of Section 8-1, Wards and precincts, 
dealing with the Second Ward of the City, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 
 

THE SECOND WARD 
 

The Second Ward shall embrace all of the territory within the City Limits described as 
follows: 

 
Beginning at the centerline of Greenhill Road and a north-south leg of the City Limits or the east City 
Limits line; thence southerly along the said east City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits; 
thence westerly along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence 
southerly along said north-south City Limits line to the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue; thence 
westerly along the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue to a north-south leg of the City Limits line; 
thence southerly along said north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the south City Limits 
line; thence westerly along said south City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence 
northerly along said north-south City Limits line to the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue; thence 
easterly along the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence 
northerly along said north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits; thence westerly 
along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence northerly along said 
north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City limits; thence easterly along said east-west 
City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City limits; thence northerly along said north-south City 
Limits line to the centerline of Viking Road; thence westerly along the centerline of Viking Road to a 
north-south leg of the City Limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits line to an east-
west leg of the City Limits; thence westerly along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of 
the City Limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits to the centerline of W. 27th Street; 
thence easterly along the centerline of W. 27th Street to the centerline of Hudson Road; thence 
southerly along the centerline of Hudson Road to the centerline of University Avenue; thence 
northeasterly along the centerline of University Avenue to the centerline of College Street; thence 
northerly along the centerline of College Street to the centerline of Seerley Boulevard; thence easterly 
along the centerline of Seerley Boulevard to the centerline of Grove Street; thence southerly along the 
centerline of Grove Street to the centerline of University Avenue; thence easterly along the centerline 
of University Avenue to the centerline of Boulder Drive; thence southerly along the centerline of 
Boulder Drive to the centerline of Idaho Road; thence westerly along the centerline of Idaho Road to 
the centerline of Tucson Drive; thence southerly along the centerline of Tucson Drive to the centerline 
of Utah Drive; thence westerly along the centerline of Utah Drive to the centerline of Dallas Drive; 

35

Item 7.



 2 

thence southerly along the centerline of Dallas Drive to the centerline of Oregon Road; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Oregon Road to the centerline of South Main Street; thence southerly 
along the centerline of South Main Street to the centerline of Greenhill Road; thence easterly along 
the centerline of Greenhill Road to the point of beginning. 
 
Also, Cedar Falls Ward 2 shall consist of all Cedar Falls Township, or bounded by a line beginning at 
the intersection of North Butler Road and Westbrook Road and proceeding east along Westbrook 
Road until it intersects the corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls, thence proceeding south and 
then west and then south and then east and then south and then east and then south and the west 
and then south and then west and then south and then east and then south along the corporate limits 
of the City of Cedar Falls until it intersects W. Ridgeway Avenue, thence proceeding west along W. 
Ridgeway Avenue to its intersection with University Avenue, thence proceeding west on University 
Avenue until it intersects North Butler Road, thence proceeding north along North Butler Road to the 
point of beginning. 
 
Also, Cedar Falls Ward 2 shall consist of the Northwest Corner and North one-half of the Southwest 
Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, 
except the West 231 feet of the South 660 feet thereof and further except Parcel ‘A’ of Plat of Survey 
Doc. # 2017-02916, and also the North 550 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the Northeast Corner 
Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 
 

 
PRECINCT 1 OF THE SECOND WARD 
 
Precinct 1 of the Second Ward shall consist of all the area described as follows: 

 
Beginning at the centerlines of Hudson Road and W. 27th Street; thence southerly along the centerline 
of Hudson Road to the intersection of University Avenue; thence southwesterly along the centerline of 
University Avenue to an east-west leg of the City Limits; thence westerly along said east-west City 
Limits line  to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits 
line to the centerline of W. 27th Street; thence easterly along the centerline of W. 27th Street to the 
point of beginning. 

 
PRECINCT 2 OF THE SECOND WARD 
 
Precinct 2 of the Second Ward shall consist of all the area described as follows: 

 
Beginning at the centerlines of University Avenue and Hudson Road; thence northeasterly along the 
centerline of University Avenue to the centerline of College Street; thence northerly along the 
centerline of College Street to the centerline of Seerley Boulevard; thence easterly along the 
centerline of Seerley Boulevard to the centerline of Tremont Street; thence southerly along the 
centerline of Tremont Street to the centerline of University Avenue; thence easterly along the 
centerline of University Avenue to the centerline of Main Street; thence southerly along the centerline 
of S. Main Street to where it intersects with the centerline of U.S. Highway 58; thence southwesterly 
and southerly along the centerline of U.S. Highway 58 to the centerline of Greenhill Road; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Greenhill Road to the centerline of Hudson Road; thence southerly 
along the centerline of Hudson Road to an east-west leg of the City Limits or the south City Limits line; 
thence westerly along said south City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence 
northerly along said north-south City Limits line to the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue; thence 
easterly along the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence 
northerly along said north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits; thence westerly 

36

Item 7.



 3 

along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City limits; thence northerly along said 
north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits; thence easterly along said east-west 
City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City limits; thence northerly along said north-south City 
Limits line to the centerline of Viking Road; thence westerly along the centerline of Viking Road to a 
north-south leg of the City Limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits line to an east-
west leg of the City Limits; thence westerly along said east-west City Limits line to  the centerline of 
University Avenue; thence northeasterly along the centerline of University Avenue to the point of 
beginning. 
 
Also, Cedar Falls Ward 2 precinct 2 shall consist of all Cedar Falls Township, or bounded by a line 
beginning at the intersection of North Butler Road and Westbrook Road and proceeding east along 
Westbrook Road until it intersects the corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls, thence proceeding 
south and then west and then south and then east and then south and then east and then south and 
the west and then south and then west and then south and then east and then south along the 
corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls until it intersects W. Ridgeway Avenue, thence proceeding 
west along W. Ridgeway Avenue to its intersection with University Avenue, thence proceeding west 
on University Avenue until it intersects North Butler Road, thence proceeding north along North Butler 
Road to the point of beginning. 
 
Also, Cedar Falls Ward 2 precinct 2 shall consist of the Northwest Corner and North one-half of the 
Southwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, 
Iowa, except the West 231 feet of the South 660 feet thereof and further except Parcel ‘A’ of Plat of 
Survey Doc. # 2017-02916, and also the North 550 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the Northeast 
Corner Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, 
Iowa. 
 

 
PRECINCT 3 OF THE SECOND WARD 
 
Precinct 3 of the Second Ward shall consist of all the area described as follows: 
 

Beginning at the centerlines of Greenhill Road and Hudson Road; thence easterly along the centerline 
of Greenhill Road to the centerline of U.S. Highway 58; thence northerly and northeasterly along the 
centerline of U.S. Highway 58 to where it intersects with the centerline of S. Main Street; thence 
northerly along the centerline of S. Main Street to the centerline of University Avenue; thence westerly 
along the centerline of University Avenue to the centerline of Tremont Street; thence northerly along 
the centerline of Tremont Street to the centerline of Seerley Boulevard; thence easterly along the 
centerline of Seerley Boulevard to the centerline of Grove Street; thence southerly along the 
centerline of Grove Street to the centerline of University Avenue; thence easterly along the centerline 
of University Avenue to the centerline of Boulder Drive; thence southerly along the centerline of 
Boulder Drive to the centerline of Idaho Road; thence westerly along the centerline of Idaho Road to 
the centerline of Tucson Drive; thence southerly along the centerline of Tucson Drive to the centerline 
of Utah Drive; thence westerly along the centerline of Utah Drive to the centerline of Dallas Drive; 
thence southerly along the centerline of Dallas Drive to the centerline of Oregon Road; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Oregon Road to the centerline of South Main Street; thence southerly 
along the centerline of South Main Street to the centerline of Greenhill Road; thence easterly along 
the centerline of Greenhill Road to a north-south leg of the City Limits or the east City Limits; thence 
southerly along the said east City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits; thence westerly 
along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence southerly along said 
north-south City Limits line to the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue; thence westerly along the 
centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence southerly along said 

37

Item 7.



 4 

north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits or the south City Limits line; thence 
westerly along said south City Limits line to the centerline of Hudson Road; thence northerly along the 
centerline of Hudson Road to the point of beginning.  
 
 
INTRODUCED:    April 20, 2020    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  April 20, 2020    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 
 
 

__________________________________ 
      Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

38

Item 7.



1 
 

 

Preparer: Kevin Rogers, Cedar Falls City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613 (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2964 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 16, 

OFFENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY (1) REPEALING 

SECTION 16-39, PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF CHAPTER, AND (2) ADDING A 

NEW SECTION 16-39, LOITERING PROHIBITED, AND ADDING A NEW SECTION 

16-40, PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF CHAPTER. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

               Section 1.  Section 16-39, Penalty for Violation of Chapter, of Article I, In General, of 

Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety. 

               Section 2.  Article I, In General, of Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous 

Provisions, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended by 

adding new Section 16-39, Loitering Prohibited, and by adding new Section 16-40, Penalty for 

Violation of Chapter, as follows:  

Sec. 16-39. – Loitering Prohibited. 

     (a)  It shall be unlawful for a person to engage in any of the following activities in the city: 

               (1)  Congregate, stand, loaf or loiter upon any public property or public right-of-way so 

as to obstruct, hinder or prevent other persons from passing or attempting or 

desiring to pass from, by or through such location.  This shall include other persons 

passing or attempting or desiring to pass using any means of transportation. 

               (2)  Congregate, stand, loaf or loiter in front of, beside, or near any building or property 

that is open to the public so as to disrupt the normal functions carried on at such 

place, or to obstruct, hinder or prevent persons attempting or desiring to pass along, 

into or out of, such place. 

                           (b)  A violation of this section shall constitute a municipal infraction punishable as provided 

in section 1-9. 

      (c)  Nothing in this section shall be held to prohibit peaceful picketing, public speaking or 

other lawful expression, or activities under a properly issued license or permit, or the ordinary 

conduct of legitimate business. 

 

39

Item 8.



2 
 

Sec. 16-40. – Penalty for violation of chapter. 

     Unless an offense is declared a municipal infraction in this chapter or unless a specific 

penalty is provided for an offense in this chapter, any person who violates any of the provisions 

of this chapter shall be deemed to have committed a simple misdemeanor and shall be subject 

to punishment as provided in section 1-8. 

  

INTRODUCED:    April 20, 2020    
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:  April 20, 2020    
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:      
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:      
 
ADOPTED:         
 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

40

Item 8.



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2965 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 17-247, FAILURE TO DESTROY 

NOXIOUS WEEDS; RIGHT TO HEARING; DESTRUCTION BY CITY, OF ARTICLE 

VI, TREES AND SHRUBS, OF CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND RECREATION, OF THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 Section 1.  Section 17-247, Failure to destroy noxious weeds; right to hearing; 

destruction by city, of Article VI, Trees and Shrubs, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, is 

hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 17-247, Failure to destroy noxious weeds; 

right to hearing; destruction by city, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 17-247. - Failure to destroy noxious weeds; right to hearing; destruction by city.  

(a)  If the owner or person in the possession or control of any land within the city fails or 

refuses to cut or otherwise destroy the grass, vines, bushes or weeds declared a 

nuisance as provided in section 17-246 within seven days after notice in writing has 

been given to such owner and person in possession or control of land within the city, 

the owner or the person in possession or control of such land shall be deemed guilty of 

a violation of this article and punished accordingly. Such written notice to cut or 

otherwise destroy the vegetation declared a nuisance in this article shall be sent by 

ordinary mail to the owner of record and to the person in possession or control of the 

land in question. Such seven-day period to cut or otherwise destroy shall be deemed to 

commence on the date of mailing of the written notice.  

(b)  Each owner and each person in possession or control of any land within the city may 

request a hearing with the department of Community Development of the city to 

consider any objections and protests to the proposed cutting or otherwise destroying of 

the vegetation declared in this article to be a nuisance. The Inspection Services 

Manager, Code Enforcement Officer or their designee, shall have full power and 

authority to enter upon any land within the city for the purpose of destroying a 

nuisance. The Inspection Services Manager, Code Enforcement Officer or their 

designee shall coordinate the removal of the nuisance with the community 

development director if necessary. Such entry may be made without the consent of the 

landowner or person in possession or control of the land.  

(c)  The actual cost and expense of cutting or otherwise destroying the vegetation, together 

with the cost of serving of notice, the cost of special meetings or proceedings, if any, 

41

Item 9.



and the cost of supervision and administration, shall be recovered by an assessment 

against the tract of land on which the vegetation was growing. 

(d)  Once a nuisance has been abated after notice as provided in this section has been 

given, each subsequent violation of this section within a single calendar year shall 

constitute a separate, subsequent offense under section 1-9. 

 

INTRODUCED:     April 20, 2020    

PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   April 20, 2020    

PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 

       _____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

42

Item 9.



43

Item 10.



44

Item 11.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 DATE: April 27, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Nomination of Ms. Lori Thomas for Human Rights Commission Appointment 

 REF: Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §12-27: Human Rights Commission 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), I hereby 

nominate Ms. Lori Thomas for appointment to the Human Rights Commission to fill an 

existing vacancy with a term expiring July 1, 2022. 

 

2. Ms. Thomas’s application has been reviewed by the Mayor Pro Tem, Commission Chair, 

and Staff Liaison; after interview by me, I have determined Ms. Thomas to be the most 

qualified citizen for this appointment. Her General Application and Candidate 

Questionnaire are attached for your consideration. 

 

# 

 

Encl:  (1)  Ms. Lori Thomas – General Application and Candidate Questionnaire 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

45

Item 12.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 
The City of Cedar Falls appreciates your interest in serving the community and welcomes your application. 
Please complete all sections of this application. If you have any questions, please contact City Hall at (319) 
273-8600. The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen involvement. 
 
 
Name: ___________________________________________ Gender: ______ Date: __________________ 
              First                             MI                             Last     

Home Address: ______________________________________________   Phone:  __________________ 

Work Address: ______________________________________________    Phone: ___________________ 

Email Address: _______________________________________________   Cell: ____________________ 

Employer:  _______________________________   Position/Occupation: ___________________________   

If Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: _____________________________ Ward: ______________ 

NOMINEE FOR: _______________________________________________________ Board/Commission 

 
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT:  Please describe your present and past community involvement including 
voluntary, social, city, church, school, business and professional that are applicable. (Include dates of 
involvement, and any offices or leadership positions held.) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SPECIAL QUALIFICATIONS:  Please list any special qualifications for serving on a board, including skills, 
training, licenses and certificates that are applicable.  
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
List reasons why you would like to be appointed and what contributions you believe you can make. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Are you aware of any conflict of interest, or potential conflict of interest, that may prevent you from carrying 
out your responsibilities on this Board/Commission in the best interest of the City of Cedar Falls? If so, 
please describe. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Please mail completed application to:  City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  
50613 or email to boards@cedarfalls.com.  
 

Lisa R Thomas F 02-07-2019

2801 Ohio St, Cedar Falls, IA 50613
2700 Campus St, Cedar Falls, IA 50613

(423) 557-3161
(319) 273-2841

(423) 557-3161lisa.thomas@uni.edu

University of Northern Iowa Equal Opportunity Specialist

7 Months
Human Rights Commission

ATIXA (Association for Title IX) Civil Rights Investigator Level 2 Certification Discrimination, Harassment, and Sexual Misconduct Training - UNI

Skills: Maintaining confidential documents and records, conducting interviews and investigations related to discrimination, harassment, and sexual misconduct; facilitating

training on policies and procedures, designing and implementing strategic prevention plans

I am passionate about diversity and inclusion. In my current role, I serve as an investigator for UNI for civil rights. I also serve as 

the main contact for equal opportunity issues related to all job searches and personnell issues. I believe I would bring a unique 

perspective to the commission with my training and skill set, and would love to broaden my current work in to the community.

No

Master's in HR 

University of Northern Iowa - Equal Opportunity Specialist 09/2016 - Present

University Diversity Common Read (Sept 2017-Jan 2018), Disability Advisory and Advocacy Committee (Sept 2016 - Present), 

LGBT Advocacy Committee (Sept 2016 - May 2017), Diversity Advisory Committee (Sept 2016 - May 2018)

4

46

Item 12.



City of Cedar Falls 
 

HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION 
Nominee’s Questionnaire 

 
 

1. Please explain your knowledge of human/civil rights laws and regulations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. What interests you in becoming a member of the Human Rights Commission? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. What availability and commitment will you have for attending committee and commission 

meetings (i.e. late afternoons, evenings, etc.)? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Please share your experience with community diversity groups, study circles and/or human 

rights education outreach. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Please share any experience you may have with discrimination case review and/or 

investigation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________   __________________________ 
  Signature       Date      
 

I have been training by the Association of Title IX Administrators on policies related to civil rights including 
Title VII, Title IX, and VAWA. I also have extensive knowledge of regulations related to Affirmative Action 
such as Executive Order 11246. I work with these laws, regulations, and policies on a daily basis 
and have done so for the last 3 1/2 years. 

I have a personal and professional committment to preventing and eliminating discrimination, harassment, and 
sexual misconduct in our community. I have always been passionate about working to promote and establish
positive environments for individuals to work, learn, and live. My current role allows me to work with the UNI
community in these endeavors and I believe I would be a great asset for the overall community of Cedar Falls with
my experience and skill set. I want to make to someone who helps improve the lives of those in our community and make
sure that everyone feels valued. I know this is not an easy task, but I am up to the challenge and I believe working with the
Human Rights Commission will allow me to help our community as well as grow personally and professionally.

I currently provide new hire employee training on topics of discrimination, harassment, and sexual misconduct here at UNI. 
I have also served on the campus's Disability Advisory and Advocacy Committee, Diversity Advisory Committee, and the LGBT
Advocacy Committee. I also work with the Resident Assistants in my husband's building committee to provide educational 
programming on topics of discrimination, harassment, and sexual misconduct to the residents of the building. I have also given
presentations to other campus community groups on these topics.

For the past 2 1/2 years, I have served as a civil rights investigator at the University of Northern Iowa. In our office, we
handle all complaints of discrimination, harassment, and sexual misconduct involving faculty, staff, students, and visitors 
to our campus. I conduct all interviews for cases assigned to me, with an emphasis on employee issues. I serve as a 
neutral fact-finder, gathering all the evidence and information related to the case, and conduct credibility assessments for the
complainant, respondent, and witnesses, compiling a final report that is reviewed by the Title IX Officer for decisions. I also 
work to provide informal resolution when the complainant does not wish to go through the formal process. 

Evenings work best for me; however, I can do late afternoon as well sometimes.

02/07/2019

47

Item 12.



48

Item 13.



49

Item 13.



50

Item 13.



51

Item 13.



52

Item 13.



53

Item 13.



54

Item 13.



55

Item 13.



56

Item 13.



57

Item 13.



58

Item 13.



59

Item 13.



60

Item 13.



61

Item 13.



62

Item 13.



63

Item 13.



64

Item 13.



65

Item 13.



66

Item 13.



67

Item 13.



68

Item 13.



69

Item 13.



70

Item 13.



71

Item 13.



72

Item 13.



73

Item 13.



74

Item 13.



75

Item 13.



76

Item 13.



77

Item 13.



78

Item 13.



79

Item 13.



80

Item 13.



81

Item 13.



82

Item 13.



83

Item 13.



84

Item 13.



85

Item 13.



86

Item 13.



87

Item 13.



88

Item 13.



89

Item 13.



90

Item 13.



91

Item 13.



92

Item 13.



93

Item 13.



94

Item 13.



95

Item 13.



96

Item 13.



97

Item 13.



98

Item 13.



99

Item 13.



100

Item 13.



101

Item 13.



102

Item 13.



103

Item 13.



104

Item 13.



105

Item 13.



106

Item 13.



107

Item 13.



108

Item 13.



109

Item 13.



110

Item 13.



111

Item 13.



112

Item 13.



113

Item 13.



114

Item 13.



115

Item 13.



116

Item 13.



117

Item 13.



118

Item 13.



119

Item 13.



120

Item 13.



121

Item 13.



122

Item 13.



123

Item 13.



124

Item 13.



125

Item 13.



     ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: April 27, 2020 

SUBJECT:      FY20 Report by Community Main Street 
    
 
As you may recall, starting in FY09 we signed formal agreements with those outside 
agencies that receive funding from the City of Cedar Falls. As part of those agreements, 
these agencies were required to submit reports and documentation on how those funds 
were used. 
 
Attached is the bi-annual report for FY20 filed by Community Main Street. The second 
½ payment for their SSMID funding and the second ½ payment for their economic 
development grant are therefore listed on the council bills to be processed. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 
      

126

Item 14.



310 East 4th Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Phone: 319-277-0213
www.communitymainstreet.org

Monday, April 13, 2020

Mayor Green and Council Members
City of Cedar Falls, IA 
Cedar Falls City Hall
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

RE: SSMID and Economic Betterment Funding

Attached please find the Bi-annual Report from Community Main Street delineating the 
current status and recent progress of the organization’s pursuit of “economic vitality in the 
context of historic preservation.” 

In this report you will find a summary of the activities outlined in the grant contract(s). 
These activities are in the areas of:
•      Design and historic preservation
•      Business development and retention
•      Promotion and marketing
•      Member development, training and communication
•      Summary of investments
•      FY2021 program of work
•      Streetscape/cleanliness project information 

The following required attachments are also included:
•     Board Roster
•     Financial Statements
•     Support documents

We are grateful for the support that the City of Cedar Falls has provided over the years and 
the collaborative effort by many groups and individuals in creating a downtown district 
with appreciated real estate values, a reputation as a great destination and as a source of 
community pride. We do anticipate our next Bi-Annual report submission to look different 
in light of the COVID-19 pandemic but we will continue to do our part to help move the 
Cedar Falls Downtown District forward in a positive light.

With submission of this report, we respectfully request the disbursement of funds to 
Community Main Street of collected SSMID monies and of the previously awarded 
Economic Betterment Grant for the continuation of this pivotal community program. We 
would be pleased to provide any additional information that you may require to process 
the release of funds. 

Sincerely,

Kim Bear
Community Main Street

2019-2020
Board of Directors:

Amy Mohr - Chair
Natalie Brown
Matt Dunning
Crystal Ford
Wynette Froehner
Lexie Heath
Ty Kimble
Audrey Kittrell
Dan Lynch
Jessica Marsh
Clark Rickard
Stephanie Sheetz
Julie Shimek
Mark Showalter
Brad Strouse

127

Item 14.



Contents 
 

1. Month by Month Reporting (October 2019 – March 2020) 
- Reports to Main Street Iowa 
- Board Meeting Minutes 
- Staff Reports 
- OneSheets  
 

2. Summary of New Investment and Job Creation/Retention 
 

3. Documentation Regarding Account of Expenditure of City Funds 
-Monthly financials for October 2019 – March 2020 
 

4. Project Results 
-Design and historic preservation: Summary can be found in each Monthly Report – 
Commentary Section and Staff Reports 
 
-Business Development and retention: Information can be found in each Monthly Report 
– Economic Vitality Section 
 
-Promotion and marketing: Summaries can be found in each Monthly Report in 
Promotion – Events Section, Commentary Section, and Staff Reports  
 
-Economic Development Projects Taking Place: Information can be found in Economic 
Development column in OneSheets  
 

5. Streetscape Improvement and Cleanliness Project  
 

 

128

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1572969687007 1/11

Status Report

 1987-MS-001-Cedar Falls
 
 Downtown Resource Center

 

Award Year: 1987

Contract Number: 1987-MS-001

Status Report
Number: 70

Submitted By: Community Main Street Inc

Submitted Date: 11/20/2019

Last Submitted
Date: 11/22/2019

Status Report
Type: Monthly

Title October 2019 

Report Period 10/01/2019 10/31/2019 
From Date To Date 

Status: Approved

 

 Primary Contact and Organization
 

 

Primary Contact

AnA User Id CAROL.LILLY@IOWAID 

First Name* Community Main Street Inc 
First Name Middle Name Last Name 

Title: Executive Director 

Email:* director@communitymainstreet.org 

Address:* 310 E 4th St 

   

   

City* Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone:* 319-429-0468  
Phone Ext. 

Program
Area of
Interest* 

Downtown Resource Center

Fax:  

Organization Information

Organization
Name:* Community Main Street, Inc. 

Organization
Type:* Non-Profit Organization 

DUNS:  

Organization
Website: communitymainstreet.org 

Address: Community Main Street 

  206 Main Street, Suite B 

   

 Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone: 319-277-0213  
 Ext. 

Fax:  

 
 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress
 129

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1572969687007 2/11

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 1
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Hurts Donuts 
Address 100 E 2nd Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $239,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $239,000.00 
Comments In-fill 3200 sq ft bakery  

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 2
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name River Place MU2  
Address 100 E 2nd Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $49,500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $49,500.00 
Comments Floor infill, metal beams, steel deck, concrete 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 3
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Jam City 
Address 100 E 2nd Street Suite 201 
Status Completed 
Private Amount Invested $71,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $71,000.00 
Comments Build out of 4 rooms and 4 doors 

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 4
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Formerly Saint Vincent de Paul 
Address 203 Main Street  
Status Completed 
Private Amount Invested $40,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested 

 130

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1572969687007 3/11

Total Amount Invested $40,000.00 
Comments Construct interior set of stairs 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 5
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Dahlstrom Real Estate, Inc 
Address 200 W. 1st Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $5,991,099.00 
Source of Funds private 
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $5,991,099.00 
Comments Mixed use-50 apts.+ 6800 ft commercial+parking 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 6
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Accel Group 
Address 100 E 2nd Street Ste 205 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $58,331.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $58,331.00 
Comments Tenant build out for 3 offices and 1 training room 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 7
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name River Place MU2 
Address 122 E 2nd Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $8,000,000.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $8,000,000.00 
Comments  

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 8
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Roxxy 
Address 314 Main Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $12,000.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  

131

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1572969687007 4/11

Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $12,000.00 
Comments Remodel interior of existing building for bar 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 9
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Jacobson Financial Services  
Address 411 Clay Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $5,959.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $5,959.00 
Comments Exterior waterproofing at rear & new front stoop 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 10
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Prestige WW LLC 
Address 203 Main Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $460,038.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $460,038.00 
Comments Remodel exterior facade, 1st floor, and new roof 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 11
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Arabella  
Address 200 W. 1st Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $500.00 
Comments Finish 1st flr common area, rooftop deck, basement 

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 12
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Freese Frame 
Address 116 W. 4th Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $2,920.00 

132

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1572969687007 5/11

Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $2,920.00 
Comments Replace shingles w/ black steel roof and soffit 

 
 

DESIGN - Building Sold
 

 

Building/Business Name Address Current Use Future Use Amount of Sale
Jennifer's on Main 303 Main Street  Vacant Retail $550,000.00 
 323 W 2nd Street  Unknown Unknown $175,000.00 

 
 

ECONOMIC VITALITY- Business
 

 

Business Name Address Business Status Business Type # of FT
Jobs

# of PT
Jobs

The Stuffed
Olive/Roxxy  314 Main Street  New Food

Establishment 4 16 

Mack + Mav  602 State Street  New Retail 1  

Your CBD Store  100 E. 2nd Street
Ste. 107 New Retail 3  

GlassTech 510 State Street Relocated Out of Main Street
District Service 6 1 

 
 

ECONOMIC VITALITY - New Housing
 

 Address Housing Type # of Units Monthly Rent or Purchase Price Purchase/Rent?

 
 

PROMOTION - Events
 
 PROMOTION - Events 1

Promotion Name* Girls' Night Out  
Description Grab your gals and hit up the Cedar Falls Downtown District for our fall Girls Night Out 

Thursday, October 3rd from 5-9pm.  
 
First stop - meet us in the vacant lot at 4th and Main Streets to purchase your coupon 
card offering exclusive in store discounts at all participating retailers. Coupon cards are 
valid for the entire month of October so don't worry if you don't hit them all that night. 
 
Coupon cards are $10. Each card will come with a FREE gift (to the first 300) you are 
sure to love and 100% of the proceeds from the coupon cards are donated to the only 
local breast cancer coalition the Beyond Pink TEAM to support those fighting breast 
cancer and working towards finding a cure!  

Date 10/3/2019 
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Retail 

133

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1572969687007 6/11

Sponsor(s) Basket of Daisies, LBL, Fig & Frolic, The Runner's Flat, Here's What's Poppin, Purse-N-
Ality, Spotlight, Twirl, Stam, Driftless Style, and Hatchlings & Hens 

Achievement 

 

PROMOTION - Events 2
Promotion Name* Trick or Treat in the District 
Description Join us in the Cedar Falls Downtown District for Trick or Treating, the merchants will be 

set up outside their stores, ready to hand out candy and see all the awesome costumes 
that will be sure to take over the District.

Date 10/31/19 
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Special Event 
Sponsor(s) 
Achievement 

 
 

ORGANIZATION - Activities
 

 

ORGANIZATION - Activities 1
Activity Name* Sip & Savor in Naked Spaces  
Description Community Main Street invites you on a behind the scenes tour of available working 

spaces in the Cedar Falls Downtown District. Imagine the possibilities, get creative, and 
share your ideas to fill downtown vacancies and improve our merchant mix! You?ll have 
special access to both finished and unfinished office and retail spaces. Included in the 
tour is a sampling of our district restaurant?s finest soups and beverages.

Date 10/8/19 
Status Completed 
Activity Type Fundraising 
Achievement 

 
 

OTHER - Training Sessions
 

 

Who Attended Main Street Position Training Date Topic
Kim Bear Events & Promotions Coordinator 10/22/2019 Iowa Events Festival  
Carol Lilly Executive Director 10/22/2019 Fall MSI Workshop  

 
 

OTHER - Volunteer Hours Invested in Main Street
 

 
Volunteer
Hours

Design Economic
Vitality

Organization Promotion Board of
Directors

Program
Volunteer

Total Volunteer
Hours

Yes 11.5 86.5 94.5 220.0 27.5 4.0 444.0 

 
 

Commentary
 
 Design

Commentary/Updates 
Community Main Street  
 
DESIGN COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA  
 
Friday, October 18, 2019  
 134

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1572969687007 7/11

Noon at CMS Office  
 
  
 
Committee Members:  Dave Schachterle, Julie Shimek, Thomas Connors, Tom Nagle, 
Mary Taylor, Don Blau, Dawn Wilson, Andrew Bell, Kara Shugar-Davis, Julie Etheredge, 
Iris Lehmann, Sally Timmer, Cody Heckenlaible, Jeremy Zehr, Jacob Bauer  
 
  
 
  
 
Design Reviews  
 
Main Street Exchange  
 
Roxxy  
 
Community Bank and Trust (will be electronic sometime this month)  
 
  
 
Visioning Report Review  
 
  
 
Accreditation checklist  
 
  
 
Holiday decorating   
 
  
 
One sheet review  
 
Fall clean up recap  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
Anticipated Meeting Outcomes  
 
Attendees will ?  
 
Review and provide feedback on proposed projects using the checklist, if applicable  
 
Review the Visioning Report and provide feedback   
 
Discuss holiday decorating   
 
Review the one sheet   
 
 Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image 
and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  

Economic
Vitality/Business
Improvement
Commentary/Updates 

Economic Development Agenda  
 
Wednesday, October 2nd, 2019  
 
CMS Office @ Noon  
 
  
 
Committee Members: Lexie Heath (chair), Amy Dutton, Seth Engelbrecht, Dustin Halter, 
Ty Kimble, Mark Kittrell, Danny Laudick, Sydney Lundgren, Lea Ann Saul, Lisa Rivera 
Skubal, Seth Chadwick, Pam Taylor  

135

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1572969687007 8/11

 
Welcome/ Introductions   
 
  
 
New Businesses  
 
Your CBD Store  
 
tata yaya  
 
  
 
Sip & Savor in Naked Spaces  
 
  
 
One Sheet/Other  
 
  
 
Business Visits   
 
  
 
  
 
Anticipated Outcomes ? Committee members will:  
 
Identify new businesses in the district  
 
Discuss the Naked Spaces fundraiser  
 
Discuss the One Sheet and projects   
 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image 
and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  
 

Promotion
Commentary/Updates 

Community Main Street  
 
PROMOTIONS MEETING AGENDA  
 
Wednesday, October 2, 2019  
 
8:45am in the CMS Office  
 
  
 
Committee Members: Gretchen Behm, Vicki Collum, Beth LaVelle, Mike Reyhons, Kirsten 
Jegsen, Ashley Ungs, Dianne Harms, Kayla Toale, Nicole Knebel  
 
  
 
  
 
Event Recaps  
 
FondoFest/Gran Fondo  
 
Panther Pawty  
 
ARTapalooza  
 
Movies Under the Moon  
 
Restaurant Week  
 
  
 

136

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1572969687007 9/11

Event Updates  
 
Holiday Hoopla   
 
Fall Retail Calendar   
 
  
 
  
 
Main Street Iowa training ? transformational strategies structure  
 
  
 
  
 
Anticipated Meeting Outcomes:  
 
Attendees will:  
 
Receive updates all the summer events through September   
 
Receive updates regarding Holiday Hoopla  
 
Receive updates on the fall calendar  
 
Determine committee transformational strategies plan  
 
  
 
  
 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image 
and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  
 
 

Organization
Commentary/Updates 

Community Main Street  
 
ORGANIZATION & DEVELOPMENT MEETING AGENDA  
 
Monday, October 14th, 2019  
 
Noon in the CMS Office  
 
  
 
  
 
Committee Members: Cinde Haskins, Tara Eisele, Jim Miller, Amy Mohr, Sarah Foster, 
Karen Oltman, Amber Munchoff, Phyllis Carter, Shay Caley, Sydney Lundgren  
 
  
 
  
 
Sip & Savor recap  
 
  
 
  
 
Partner Thank You update  
 
You are O?Fishally the Best options provided by Cinde  
 
Updated partner list  
 
  
 

137

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1572969687007 10/11

  
 
Volunteer Appreciation ? February   
 
  
 
  
 
Main Street Iowa conference - March  
 
  
 
  
 
One Sheet/Other  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
Anticipated Outcomes ? Committee members will:  
 
Discuss the recap of the Fall Fundraiser  
 
Finalize Partner Thank You plans  
 
Discuss committee structure for MSI conference in March  
 
Review the One Sheet  
 
  
 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image 
and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  
 
 

Program
Commentary/Updates 

List suggestions & questions on services, training topics, (for MSI communities and/or local needs) new resources, speakers you would
recommend, etc.

Suggestions for state
staff: 

Do you have board
president changes? No 

Board President

If there is a board president change, please complete the following:

Salutation/First/Last
Name:    

Salutation First Name Last Name 

Title  

Company  

Address  

Address 2  

City/State/County/Zip     
City State County Zip 

E-mail:  

Phone/Extension/Fax    
138

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1572969687007 11/11

Phone Ext. Fax 

 

139

Item 14.



 

 

Minutes, Community Main Street, Inc. 
Board of Director Meeting 

Tuesday, October 8, 2019 @ 12:00 p.m. 
Community Main Street Office 

 
In Attendance: Amy Mohr-President; Lexie Heath–Secretary; Dan Lynch-Treasurer; Ty Kimble–Past 
President; Matt Dunning; Wynette Froehner; Audrey Kittrell; Jessica Marsh; Clark Rickard; Stephanie 
Sheetz; Mark Showalter Liaisons: Craig Berte; Cary Darrah; Kim Manning; Jessica Rucker; Kathryn 
Sogard Guest: Karen Howard 
Staff: Carol Lilly, Kim Bear, Maribel Barry  

 
1. Welcome, Call to Order – Mohr 

 
2. Visioning and City Updates – Howard/Sheetz 

a. Karen Howard provided information about the Visioning project and encouraged the 
board to provide feedback.  Feedback can be given through the City’s website, P&Z 
meeting, or directly to her.  The consultant will return on 11/4 and will hopefully move 
forward to Council on 11/23.    

b. Stephanie informed us that Public Works will work on hubs on State & Washington in 
the next couple of weeks.  There will be a meeting on 11/7 at 5:30pm at City Hall for 
the 100 & 200 block business owners regarding construction next summer.  The 
meeting is open to the public, but business owners are urged to join to ask any 
questions they may have.  

 
3. Approval of Minutes (for August & September)– Lynch moved for approval, Kimble 

seconded, all approved.  
 

4. Financial Report (for August & September)– Lynch 
a. We should see grant and SSMID income in October & November.  
b. Froehner moved for approval, Sheetz seconded, all approved.  

 
5. 990 Review-  

a. Carol informed the board that the 990 would be available at the CMS office, if anyone 
would like to review it.  If there are no concerns, she will proceed to send and post it.  

b. Kimble moved for approval, Lynch seconded, all approved. 
 

6. Main Street Iowa contracts – Lilly 
a. Contracts are signed every two years.  The CMS Resolution and City Resolution 

contracts were included in the board packets.   
b. Froehner moved for approval, Kittrell seconded, all approved.  

 
7. President’s Report – Mohr 

a. Capital Improvement list was e-mailed with board packets.  Please fill out the survey 
that will be sent out soon.  

b. Amy reported the feedback given from the Main Street Exchange Visit.  The Ames 
group thought highly of our Downtown District overall.  Some opportunities they 
found was in regard to wayfinding signage, parking signage, the gateway into our 
district, and the lack of downtown information found in the stores.  
 

8. Committee Reports/ Program of Work Review 
a. Economic Development 

i. Welcome visit to Andy’s Bike Shop was made. Hurling Hatchet and CBD 
store will be done soon as well.  

b. Design 
i. Flowerpots are now gone.  We have scheduled a fall cleanup day on October 

15 to prep for UNI Family Weekend.  We are gearing up to decorate for 
Holiday Hoopla.  New banners are now up and more information to come on 

140

Item 14.



 

 

UNI using our internal poles for football season.  
c. Organization & Development 

i. Sip & Savor in Naked Spaces is tonight!  There are 9 stops with business 
resources and UNI pop-up shops to show what could be in the vacant 
spaces. We sent out sixty tickets to businesses within two hours from us to 
check out our district should they be interested in expanding.  

d. Promotions 
i. The committee has decided to focus on the strategic side and meet less with 

longer meetings.   
e. Retail Promotion/Nightlife 

i. We raised $1,570 from Girls’ Night Out to donate to the Beyond Pink Team.  
ii. Based on the financial trends of Fondo, we have decided not to do this event 

again.  Cedar Valley Sports Commission will not be doing the bike ride either.  
We are thinking of having another event instead and are open to 
suggestions.  

 
9. Staff Report – Lilly 

a. Carol will be working on the Bi-annual Report 
b. Irv Henderson’s visit was positive.  He had good feedback and was impressed.   
c. CMS will be hosting the Spring Main Street Iowa mandatory training conference next 

March.  There will be around 54 people plus any guests they may bring.   
 

10. Liaison Reports 
a. Main Street Waterloo will be hosting their educational workshop, Cheers to Small 

Business: Tools for a successful Business.  It will take place on 10/15 from 5-7pm.  
They will also have trick or treating downtown on Saturday, 10/26 from 10am-12pm.   

b. Cedar Falls Tourism is in the design phase for their 2020 tour guide.  Kim announced 
that the Holiday Inn Event center is now open! 

c. CF Police Department is getting cameras installed in the trees.  Cameras are getting 
improved with better quality to help in identifying vehicles and people.   

d. Wheat pastings are up on The Hill, so check them out!  
 

11. Good of the Order –  
a. October 8: Sip & Savor in Naked Spaces 
b. October 14: Org & Development Committee Meeting 
c. October 22 & 23: Fall Main Street Iowa Workshop, Jefferson 
d. November 7-9: Holiday Shop Hop 

 
12. Adjourn 

 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization established to foster economic 

vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of 

life in Cedar Falls.  

141

Item 14.



Community Main Street 
Director’s Staff Report for October 2019: 

 
Staff Activities: 

• Planned and facilitated all committee meetings and sub-committee meetings (see 
one sheet) 

• Event planning, facilitation, support and oversight of the following completed events 

o Girls Night Out 

o Halloween Trick or Treating 

• Holiday Hoopla event planning meetings, sub-committee meetings, etc. 

• Met with Cedar Valley Symphony ED Rich Fevert to hear proposal to partner on 

potential partnership opportunities 

• Met with several media representatives about Holiday Hoopla advertising 

• Met with new business, Mac & Mav, owner Ashely Reynolds 

• Removed flower-pots from the sidewalk 

• Secured Neighborhood Champion status for Small Business Saturday 

• Grow Cedar Valley Affiliate meeting 

• Attended Hurling Hatchet ribbon cutting 

• Hosted Happy Haunts 5K packet pickup and assisted during the event 

• Hosted a walking tour for a UNI tourism class 

• Facilitated CMS review of visioning document; compiled recommendations and 

presented it to P&Z 

• Continued to learn how to use the new shared file system, new calendar and new 
email  

• Created CIP survey, compiled data and submitted to city staff and council for use 
during capital improvement planning 

• Met with Jan Anderson to review ARTapalooza discuss 15th anniversary of the event 
in 2020 

• Coordinated Governor Volunteer Award for Holiday Hoopla planning committee 

• Met with planning team on 3rd & Main project 

• Met with Live to 9 and Sturgis Falls representatives to discuss a potential new event 
during Sturgis weekend 

• Direct mail postcard preparation 

• 2020 event calendar planning 

• Assisted merchant with hotel outreach coupon card  

• Met with Dave Deaver on various projects related to downtown 

• Partnered with UNI on shuttle service during Family Weekend 

• Assisted Cedar Falls Food Co-op with grant information and reviewed benefits 
available through main street for businesses located in our boundaries 

• UNI Service-Learning project class visit (x3 sections) - Cost Accounting classes are 
reviewing Holiday Hoopla financials to report opportunities for event improvement 
from a financial standpoint 

• Attended Fall MSI workshop 

• Kim attended Iowa Events Festival training 

142

Item 14.



• Met with new HH sponsor – Cohesive to learn about their digital raffle box concept 
for the event 

• Followed up with city staff on streetscape hub status 

• Wrote and submitted bi-annual report  

• Monthly meeting with Ron Gaines 

• Parking Technical Committee participation and projects 

• Promoted downtown shuttle; rode shuttle  

• KWWL noon news live interview 

• Completed and submitted monthly reporting to Main Street Iowa 
 
Community Event Representation: CBT Economic Update Luncheon; Parking 
Committee (x1); Park & Rec.; P & Z (x1); City Council meeting (x1); Cedar Falls 
Tourism & Visitor Bureau board meeting;  
 
Staff Priorities for November: 

• Holiday Hoopla 

• Partner Thank You 

• Open container research 

• Cultural District Renewal report 

• Accreditation checklist 

 

143

Item 14.



 CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET  
FY20 STRATEGIC GOALS ONE-SHEET 

Activities through October 
 

July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020 
Printed 10/28/19 

Collaborative 
effort with 
business owners, 
property owners, 
& city to achieve 
goals 

DISTRICT 
AESTHETIC 
Positive look and 
feel of the district 

BUSINESS 
FRIENDLY 
ENVIRONMENT 
Supportive business 
community and 
strong business mix 

CONVENIENCE 
District accessibility, 
functional side of 
district aesthetics 

PARKING 
Positive impact on 
the parking 
experience 
downtown 

ANNUAL TASKS 
Ongoing operational 
activities 

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

• Review and 
implement MSI 
exchange visit 
recommendations  

 

 
• Deliberate business 

visitation program 

  • MSI annual 
checklist 

• ✓Budget 
• ✓October bi-

annual report 
• City grant requests 
• April bi-annual 

report 
• Staff review 
• Attend city council 

meetings 
• Review/update 

program policies & 
procedures 
 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 
 

• ✓Challenge Grant 
submission FY20 

 

• New business visits 
(x7) 

• Open 4 Business 
2020  

• Plan & execute 2 
deliberate actions 
to help fill vacant 
storefronts (✓Naked 
Spaces Tour with Org.) 

• Establish Founder 
Peer Groups (with 
Red Cedar) 

• Co-starter new 
business training 
(with Red Cedar)  

 

• Promote store 
accessibility during 
construction 

• Promote shuttle 
bus use 
✓Street signs 

✓Prizes 

✓Social media 

• MSI annual 
checklist 

• Track/collect 
business stats 

• Update business 
welcome packet 

 

DESIGN • Façade review (x9)  
• ✓Fall clean up day 
• Spring clean up day  
• ✓Banner (1 new 

set) 
• Seasonal 

beautification 
(Flowers, Funtober, 
Holiday) 

• Façade grant 
program (3 approved) 

• ✓Update review 
checklist 

• ✓Overlay 
awareness 
brochure 

• Historic 
preservation 
education 

 

• Wayfinding within 
district 

 

• Parking lot 
cleanliness & 
maintenance 
program 

• ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

ORGANIZATION 
& 
DEVELOPMENT 

• Flower fundraiser 
(Hops with Promo)  

• Partner thank you 
• Volunteer 

recognition party 
• Main Street Iowa 

award nominations  
• ✓Annual fundraiser 

(Naked Spaces Tour with 
ED) 

  • MSI annual 
checklist 

• Build local program 
awareness through 
community 
outreach 

• Friends campaign  
(100% board 
participation) 

• Annual meeting 
• Update “About 

CMS” packet 

144

Item 14.



 CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET  
FY20 STRATEGIC GOALS ONE-SHEET 

Activities through October 
 

July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020 
Printed 10/28/19 

 

Collaborative 
effort with 
business owners, 
property owners, 
& city to achieve 
goals 

DISTRICT 
AESTHETIC 
Positive look and 
feel of the district 

BUSINESS 
FRIENDLY 
ENVIRONMENT 
Supportive business 
community and 
strong business mix 

CONVENIENCE 
District accessibility, 
functional side of 
district aesthetics 

PARKING 
Positive impact on 
the parking 
experience 
downtown 

ANNUAL TASKS 
Ongoing operational 
activities 

PROMOTIONS  • Hops (Flower 
fundraiser) 

• Calendar of Event 
mailing (x2) 

• Update 
ARTapalooza event 

• ✓Evaluate Fondo; 
repeat or drop 

• Show & Shine 
• Movies Under the 

Moon (FY20) 
• Holiday Hoopla 

Kick off    
Small Bus. Sat. 
Breakfast with Santa 
Jingle & Mingle 
Hoopla Cheer 
Frosty 5K 
Baby It’s Cold  
Movie Magic 
Coloring Contest 
Window Contest 
Trolley Rides 
Letters to Santa 

• Promote 
ShopWhereILive.com  

• Positive, consistent 
message (new 
parking brochure) 
 

• MSI annual 
checklist 

• ✓Visitor Guide ad 
• ✓GBPAC ad 
• Tourism co-op ads 
• ✓Shop/Dine like a 

local maps 
• Kiosk map 
• Kiosk flyers 

(weekly) 
• Evaluate brochure 

for possible updates 
• ✓Little Village co-

op ads with the 
Hearst (x2) 

• Newsletter (x11) 

PROMOTIONS: 
Retail & 
Nightlife 

 • ✓Sidewalk Sales  
• ✓Panther PAWty 
• Funtober promo 

Trick or Treating 

• ✓Fall Girls Night 
Out 

• Holiday Shop Hop 
• Small Business 

Saturday 
• Downtown Delights 
• Spring Shop Hop 
• Spring Girls Night 

Out 
• St. Patrick’s Day 

event  
• Love Rocks 
 

• Business hours 
• Activate Sidewalks 
 
 

 • Cooperative 
advertising 
opportunities (TV, 
coupons, etc) 

 

145

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1576097816604 1/11

Status Report

 1987-MS-001-Cedar Falls
 
 Downtown Resource Center

 

Award Year: 1987

Contract Number: 1987-MS-001

Status Report
Number: 71

Submitted By: Community Main Street Inc

Submitted Date: 12/17/2019

Status Report
Type: Monthly

Title November 2019 

Report Period 11/01/2019 11/30/2019 
From Date To Date 

Status: Approved

 

 Primary Contact and Organization
 

 

Primary Contact

AnA User Id CAROL.LILLY@IOWAID 

First Name* Community Main Street Inc 
First Name Middle Name Last Name 

Title: Executive Director 

Email:* director@communitymainstreet.org 

Address:* 310 E 4th St 

   

   

City* Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone:* 319-429-0468  
Phone Ext. 

Program
Area of
Interest* 

Downtown Resource Center

Fax:  

Organization Information

Organization
Name:* Community Main Street, Inc. 

Organization
Type:* Non-Profit Organization 

DUNS:  

Organization
Website: communitymainstreet.org 

Address: Community Main Street 

  206 Main Street, Suite B 

   

 Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone: 319-277-0213  
 Ext. 

Fax:  

 
 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress
 
 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 1

Project Type* New Construction 146

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1576097816604 2/11

Building/Business Name Hurts Donuts 
Address 100 E 2nd Street  
Status Completed 
Private Amount Invested $239,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $239,000.00 
Comments In-fill 3200 sq ft bakery  

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 2
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name River Place MU2  
Address 100 E 2nd Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $49,500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $49,500.00 
Comments Floor infill, metal beams, steel deck, concrete 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 3
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Blue Room Lounge 
Address 201 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $18,800.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $18,800.00 
Comments Remove & replace roof 

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 4
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Dahlstrom Real Estate, Inc 
Address 200 W. 1st Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $5,991,099.00 
Source of Funds private 
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $5,991,099.00 
Comments Mixed use-50 apts.+ 6800 ft commercial+parking 

147

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1576097816604 3/11

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 5
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Accel Group 
Address 100 E 2nd Street Ste 205 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $58,331.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $58,331.00 
Comments Tenant build out for 3 offices and 1 training room 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 6
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name River Place MU2 
Address 122 E 2nd Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $8,000,000.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $8,000,000.00 
Comments  

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 7
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Roxxy 
Address 314 Main Street  
Status Completed 
Private Amount Invested $12,000.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $12,000.00 
Comments Remodel interior of existing building for bar 

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 8
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Jacobson Financial Services  
Address 411 Clay Street  
Status Completed 
Private Amount Invested $5,959.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds  

148

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1576097816604 4/11

Invested 
Total Amount Invested $5,959.00 
Comments Exterior waterproofing at rear & new front stoop 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 9
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Prestige WW LLC 
Address 203 Main Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $460,038.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $460,038.00 
Comments Remodel exterior facade, 1st floor, and new roof 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 10
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Arabella  
Address 200 W. 1st Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $500.00 
Comments Finish 1st flr common area, rooftop deck, basement 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 11
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Freese Frame 
Address 116 W. 4th Street 
Status Completed 
Private Amount Invested $2,920.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $2,920.00 
Comments Replace shingles w/ black steel roof and soffit 

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 12
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Caboose Stop Hobbies 
Address 301 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $5,500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 

149

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1576097816604 5/11

Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $5,500.00 
Comments Repair siding at bay window bump out 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 13
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Formerly Wells Fargo 
Address 302 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $5,400,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $5,400,000.00 
Comments Foundation only for new office bldg 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 14
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Snap Fitness 
Address 401 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $3,500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $3,500.00 
Comments Install 10'x19' wall for gym Shakery business  

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 15
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Jacobson Financial Services 
Address 411 Clay Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $9,988.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $9,988.00 
Comments Breakroom remodel 

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 16
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Icon Donuts 
Address 200 W 1st Street Ste 103 
Status In-progress 150

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1576097816604 6/11

Private Amount Invested $85,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $85,000.00 
Comments Buildout of 1610 SF w/ shared bathrooms 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 17
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Oster Regent Theatre 
Address 103 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $65,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $65,000.00 
Comments Replace doors & windows in front 1st floor 

 
 

DESIGN - Building Sold
 

 Building/Business Name Address Current Use Future Use Amount of Sale

 
 

ECONOMIC VITALITY- Business
 

 

Business Name Address Business Status Business Type # of FT Jobs # of PT Jobs
Vine Real Estate  200 State Street Ste 202-R New Service 5  
Hurts Donuts  100 E. 2nd Street Ste. 108 New Food Establishment 10 80 
Jam City  100 E. 2nd Street Ste. 201 New Service 9  

 
 

ECONOMIC VITALITY - New Housing
 

 Address Housing Type # of Units Monthly Rent or Purchase Price Purchase/Rent?

 
 

PROMOTION - Events
 
 PROMOTION - Events 1

Promotion Name* Window Wonderland Contest 
Description Window Wonderland is a window decorating contest between downtown businesses.  A 

panel of judges carefully review each of the window displays and give out awards in the 
five categories: Wow, Best Use of Theme, Glass Only, Most Nostalgic, and Best use of 

151

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1576097816604 7/11

Product. Winners are announced during the Holiday Hoopla Kickoff.  The general public is 
invited to participate by selecting a people's choice.  Voting starts the night of the kick-off 
and ends Wednesday, Dec. 18th

Date 11/29/19-12/18/19 
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Special Event 
Sponsor(s) Holiday Hoopla Committee 

Lamar Advertising  
ICAN Television Advertising

Achievement The window contest is a way to get all businesses involved in Holiday Hoopla.  The 
decorated windows create a festive atmosphere throughout the district.  The people's 
choice award encourages the public to "window shop" and notice businesses they may 
not be aware of. This year all participants were eligible to win one of two randomly drawn 
media packages offered by ICAN television advertising and Lamar Adverting. 

 

PROMOTION - Events 2
Promotion Name* Downtown Ingredients Shop Hop  
Description The retailers kicked off the holiday season with "all the right ingredients" by hosting a 

shop hop! Each merchant created a festive atmosphere, served delicious holiday 
samples, and showcased the perfect seasonal fashions and home décor. Guests were 
invited to shop the weekend of November 7th, 8th and 9th, and while shopping each 
received a recipe card from participating merchants.  By the end of the holiday shopping 
experience guests would have collected recipe cards and materials to create a Downtown 
Cedar Falls cookbook. 

Date 11/7/19-11/9/19 
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Retail 
Sponsor(s) Vintage Iron Co 

Driftless Style 
Hatchlings & Hens 
Peekaboo Baby & Gifts 
Basket Of Daisies 
The Runner's Flat 
Chocolaterie Stam 
Little Prairie Girl 
Pepper Boutique 
Kitchen Essentials and Gifts 
World's Window 
Miss Wonderful 
Here's What's Poppin-Cedar Falls 
Jiva Salonspa 
Spotlight Style Boutique & Salon 
Main Street Exchange 
Pump Haus 
Scratch Cupcakery 
Twirl Boutique 
Mountain Man Nut & Fruit Co. 
LBL 
LR Jewelers 
Purse~N~ality  
Fig & Frolic 
Lotus + Lou Interiors 
Mack + Mav Boutique 
The Brass Tap 

Achievement 

 PROMOTION - Events 3
Promotion Name* Holiday Hoopla Kick-Off 
Description The highly anticipated arrival of Santa Clause was a huge success again this year.  Street 

vendors, strolling characters, and music from the stage show entertained guests while 
waiting for Santa. As the crowd got into the Christmas spirit by singing, Santa arrived on 
skis with his penguins! The crowd paraded down Main along with Santa and Mrs. Claus 
and everyone viewed a fantastic firework display over the Cedar River. 

Date 11/29/19 
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Special Event 

152

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1576097816604 8/11

Sponsor(s) Viking Pump, PIPAC, CFU, Cohesive, The Mix, Bike Tech, Penny Sund, City of CF Cable 
Television, Signs & Designs, Lamar, Magee Construction, Western Home, Veridian, 
Hidden Valley, Mudd Advertising, Oakridge Realtors, An Elegant Affair, Cardinal 
Construction, Stickfort Electric, TSA Properties, Sundancer Paso Finos, Matthias 
Landscaping, Correll, Sheerer, Benson, Engels, Galles & Demro, Farmers State Bank, 
Richardson Funeral Home, GreenState Credit Union (see attachment for full list)

Achievement 

 

PROMOTION - Events 4
Promotion Name* Small Business Saturday  
Description Cedar Falls Community Main Street hosted Small Business Saturday.  Social media 

videos were posted to highlight different downtown businesses and press releases were 
used in advance to remind shoppers to shop local this holiday season. Shop small bags 
were distributed throughout the day by participating stores, which contained shop small 
items and some with gift certificates.  

Date 11/30/19 
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Retail 
Sponsor(s) Vintage Iron 

Driftless Style 
Hatchlings & Hens 
Peek-a-boo 
Basket of Daisies 
Runner's Flat 
Chocolaterie Stam 
Little Prairie Girl 
Pepper Boutique 
Kitchen Essentials 
Miss Wonderful 
Here's What's Poppin' 
Jiva Salonspa 
Spotlight 
Main Street Exchange 
Pump Haus 
Scratch 
Twirl 
Mountain Man Fruit & Nut 
LBL 
LR Jewelers 
PurseNality 
Fig & Frolic 
Lotus and Lou 
Your CBD Store 
Mack & Mav

Achievement 

 
 

ORGANIZATION - Activities
 

 

ORGANIZATION - Activities 1
Activity Name* Partner Thank You  
Description Committee members and staff make homemade goodies to give to our Cedar Valley 

partners to thank them for all their efforts to support our organization throughout the year.  
Trays of goodies are hand delivered by a committee member to all city departments, city 
utilities, gift certificate sale sites, and other significant groups who support CMS 
throughout the year.

Date 11/26/19 
Status Completed 
Activity Type Volunteer Development 
Achievement 

 
 153

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1576097816604 9/11

OTHER - Training Sessions
 

 Who Attended Main Street Position Training Date Topic

 
 

OTHER - Volunteer Hours Invested in Main Street
 

 
Volunteer
Hours

Design Economic
Vitality

Organization Promotion Board of
Directors

Program
Volunteer

Total Volunteer
Hours

Yes 228.0 24.0 90.0 1045.0 24.0 2.0 1413.0 

 
 

Commentary
 
 Design

Commentary/Updates 
Community Main Street  
 
DESIGN COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA  
 
Tuesday, November 19, 2019  
 
Noon at CMS Office  
 
  
 
Committee Members:  Dave Schachterle, Julie Shimek, Thomas Connors, Tom Nagle, 
Mary Taylor, Don Blau, Dawn Wilson, Andrew Bell, Kara Shugar-Davis, Julie Etheredge, 
Iris Lehmann, Sally Timmer, Cody Heckenlaible, Jeremy Zehr, Jacob Bauer  
 
  
 
  
 
Deck the Falls- Holiday Decorating 
 
  
 
Anticipated Meeting Outcomes  
 
Attendees will ?  
 
Assist with decorating downtown 
 
Review the one sheet   
 
 Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image 
and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  

Economic
Vitality/Business
Improvement
Commentary/Updates 

Economic Development Agenda  
 
Wednesday, November 6th, 2019  
 
CMS Office @ Noon  
 
  
 
Committee Members: Lexie Heath (chair), Amy Dutton, Seth Engelbrecht, Dustin Halter, 
Ty Kimble, Mark Kittrell, Danny Laudick, Sydney Lundgren, Lea Ann Saul, Lisa Rivera 
Skubal, Seth Chadwick, Pam Taylor CMS Staff: Carol Lilly, Maribel Barry   
 
Welcome/ Introductions   
 
  

154

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1576097816604 10/11

 
New Businesses  
 
Hurts Donuts   
 
Jam City   
 
  
 
Accreditation Checklist   
 
  
 
One Sheet/Other  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
Anticipated Outcomes ? Committee members will:  
 
Identify new businesses in the district  
 
Complete the 2019 National Accreditation Checklist  
 
Discuss the One Sheet and projects  

Promotion
Commentary/Updates 

Community Main Street   
 
Promo Meeting Agenda 
 
Tuesday, November 12, 2019  
 
8:45am at CMS   
 
Janell, Barb, Betsy, Nicole, Miranda, Ranee, Becky, Emilee, Ann, Jenny Nelson, Jenny 
Popcorn, Lisa, Leah, Katie, Cindy, Lisa  
 
   
 
Event recap  
 
Trick or Treat  
 
Downtown Ingredients   
  
 
 
Upcoming events  
 
Shop Small  
 
All things Hoopla  
 
Holiday Hoopla Door Prize  
 
Parking   
 
 
  
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image 
and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  
 
 

Organization
Commentary/Updates 

Community Main Street  
 
ORGANIZATION & DEVELOPMENT MEETING AGENDA  

155

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1576097816604 11/11

 
Tuesday, November 26th, 2019  
 
Noon in the CMS Office  
 
  
Committee Members: Cinde Haskins, Tara Eisele, Jim Miller, Amy Mohr, Sarah Foster, 
Karen Oltman, Amber Munchoff, Phyllis Carter, Shay Caley, Sydney Lundgren  
 
  
 
Partner Thank You 
-Collect baked goods 
-Assemble trays at the CMS office 
-Distribute trays to all our partners  
  
 
Anticipated Outcomes ? Committee members will:  
 
Assist with baking and distributing Partner Thank You trays  
 
  
 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image 
and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  
 
 

Program
Commentary/Updates 

List suggestions & questions on services, training topics, (for MSI communities and/or local needs) new resources, speakers you would
recommend, etc.

Suggestions for state
staff: 

Do you have board
president changes? No 

Board President

If there is a board president change, please complete the following:

Salutation/First/Last
Name:    

Salutation First Name Last Name 

Title  

Company  

Address  

Address 2  

City/State/County/Zip     
City State County Zip 

E-mail:  

Phone/Extension/Fax    
Phone Ext. Fax 

 

156

Item 14.



 

 

Minutes, Community Main Street, Inc. 
Board of Director Meeting 

Tuesday, November 12, 2019 @ 12:00 p.m. 
Community Main Street Office 

 
In Attendance: Amy Mohr-President; Lexie Heath–Secretary; Ty Kimble–Past President; Natalie Brown; 
Matt Dunning; Wynette Froehner; Clark Rickard; Stephanie Sheetz; Julie Shimek; Mark Showalter 
Liaisons: Carrie Eilderts; John Luzaich; Kim Manning; Jessica Rucker; Kelly Stern; Kathryn Sogard Staff: 
Carol Lilly, Kim Bear, Maribel Barry 

 
 
1. Welcome, Call to Order – Mohr 

 
2. Approval of Minutes – Froehner moved for approval, Kimble seconded, all approved 
 
3. Financial Report – Lilly 

a. We are still in good shape financially. Our SSMID check arrived in October as well.  
Expenses this past month were for events like Girls Night Out and Sip & Savor in 
Naked Spaces. 

b. Froehner moved for approval, Heath seconded, all approved.  
 

4. President’s Report – Mohr 
a. The Board of Directors went through the Accreditation checklist as a group.  CMS 

staff will answer the remaining questions.  Once it is complete, CMS will e-mail the 
checklist to the group for approval.   

b. The Employee handbook was sent to the group along with November’s board packet.  
Please take a moment to review it and let us know of any questions or revision 
recommendations you may have.  

c. Live to 9 is thinking of moving their event to the Plaza next year.  Their thought is to 
have music playing on Fridays from 3pm-midnight and Saturdays from 6pm-midnight.  
They would have a food vendor area (we advised that they go through downtown 
restaurants first) and they would be requesting road closures for those days during 
their summer event dates.  There was no opposition from the board.   

d. The MSI training in CF will be on 3/10 & 3/11 next year.  We would need a committee 
to assist in planning this event!  We want to make a good impression and showcase 
Cedar Falls, so we need your help.  Please let Carol know if you are interested in 
joining!  
 

5. Committee Program of Work Report - 
a. Economic Development 

i. Jam City and Hurts Donut are new businesses.  The committee discussed 
building relationships with property owners.  

b. Design 

i. The committee will not have a meeting this month because they will be 
helping at Deck the Falls next week! 

c. Org & Development 
i. The committee is gearing up for Partner Thank You.  If you would like to 

make some baked items, please let us know!  
d. Promotion 

i. We will be providing an interactive game experience for the public during 
Holiday Hoopla this year.  The app is called Door Prize and with the app, 
individuals will go to participating stores and scan a picture (which is a QR 
code).  Once they take a picture at that store, it will automatically enter them 
into a drawing for a prize.  CMS is putting together a list for those businesses 
who want to participate.  It is not limited to retailers!     

 
6. Staff Report – Lilly 

157

Item 14.



 

 

a. The Bi-annual report was submitted last month and was included in the e-mail with 
the board packet.  

b. The Challenge Grant awards took place on 11/7 and the Leepers were awarded 
$75,000 for their project at 203 & 205 Main Street.  

c. MSI Training update/National Conference Scholarship opportunity- the conference 
will be in Dallas, TX.   

d. Main Street Iowa Awards submissions are due in January.  
 

7. Liaison Updates – 

a. CF Tourism’s Visitor Guide will be release in January.  They will also be recruiting 
volunteers on Tuesday, 1/14 and will be distributing community betterment grants.  

b. The CF Historical Society will be showcasing Daily Life in the Industrial US1870-
1900 on 11/16 and Holiday Homes of Hope on 12/8.   

c. The Oster Regent Theatre is halfway through replacing their doors and windows.  
Holiday Inn beginning 12/6 and the Brazilian Twins on 12/21. 

d. The Library will be making cocoa and giving out cookies during trolley rides.  Kelly 
also mentioned that they have a special announcement that will be made on 1/1! 

e. Shop Downtown Loo started on 11/9 takes place every Saturday from 11am-5pm 
until 12/21.   

 
8. Good of the Order was given 

 
9. Adjourn 

 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization established to foster economic 

vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of 

life in Cedar Falls.  

158

Item 14.



Community Main Street 
Director’s Staff Report for November 2019: 

 
Staff Activities: 

• Planned and facilitated all committee meetings and sub-committee meetings (see 
one sheet) 

• Event planning, facilitation, support and oversight of the following completed events 

o Deck the Falls 

o Partner Thank You 

o HH Kick Off 

o Window Contest judging  

o Small Business Saturday 

o Sculpture Tree installation 

• Holiday Hoopla event planning meetings, sub-committee meetings, etc. 

• Met with Ron Gaines 

• Attended Challenge Grant award ceremony in Des Moines 

• Attended Driftless Style Grant opening and ribbon cutting 

• Attended public meeting for streetscape project 

• Impact of tourism related activities sub-committee participation 

• Met with Stephane Sheetz 

• Reviewed employee handbook made recommendation to exec to update 

• Planning meeting for Draft Day 

• Wrote and submitted Economic Development Grant application 

• Wrote and submitted Façade Grant application  

• Met with property owner about a potential major renovation project; planned Main 

Street Iowa Design Consult meeting in Dec. 

• Attended Your CBD Store ribbon cutting 

• Met with Institute of Decision Making reps on a research project for CMS/Tourism 

• Attended meeting with Main Street Waterloo, Main Street Waverly on regional topics 

• Attended VIP soft opening of ROXXY 

• Met with two property owners on downtown related items 

• Attended Grow Cedar Valley/Debi Durham IEDA presentation 

• Met with Hampton Inn ownership group and Mark Kittrell to discuss the River 

Enhancement project and other downtown topics 

• Attended Jam City grand opening 

• Attended 100 E 2nd Street building open house 

• Hosted dining and nightlife merchant meeting 

• Attended Kate & Company 25th Anniversary event 

• Met with Christian Gray about a new downtown event he is organizing 

• Met with Kevin Cross on streetscape project – bench plaque update 

• Coordinated sculpture tree set up planning with city staff; Nagle Signs; HH team 

• Met with several media representatives about Holiday Hoopla advertising 

159

Item 14.



• Facilitated CMS review of visioning document; compiled recommendations and 

presented it to city staff prior to council; Attended council meeting to voice CMS 

support 

• Finalized direct mail postcard design 

• Monthly meeting with Ron Gaines 

• Parking Technical Committee participation and projects 

• Promoted downtown shuttle  

• KWWL noon news live interview 

• Completed and submitted monthly reporting to Main Street Iowa 
 
Community Event Representation: Parking Committee (x1); Park & Rec.; City Council 
meeting (x1); Cedar Falls Tourism & Visitor Bureau board meeting;  
 
Staff Priorities for December: 

• Holiday Hoopla 

• Continue open container research 

• Cultural District Renewal report 

• Accreditation checklist 

 

160

Item 14.



 CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET  
FY20 STRATEGIC GOALS ONE-SHEET 

Activities through November 

 

July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020 
Printed 12/5/19 

Collaborative 
effort with 
business owners, 
property owners, 
& city to achieve 
goals 

DISTRICT 
AESTHETIC 

Positive look and 
feel of the district 

BUSINESS 
FRIENDLY 
ENVIRONMENT 
Supportive business 
community and 
strong business mix 

CONVENIENCE 
District accessibility, 
functional side of 
district aesthetics 

PARKING 
Positive impact on 
the parking 
experience 
downtown 

ANNUAL TASKS 
Ongoing operational 
activities 

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

• Review and 
implement MSI 
exchange visit 
recommendations  

 

 

• Deliberate business 
visitation program 

  • MSI annual 
checklist 

•  Budget 

•  October bi-annual 
report 

• City grant requests 

• April bi-annual 
report 

• Staff review 

• Attend city council 
meetings 

• Review/update 
program policies & 
procedures 
 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 
 

• ✓Challenge Grant 
submission FY20 

 

• New business visits 
(x9) 

• Open 4 Business 
2020  

• Plan & execute 2 
deliberate actions 
to help fill vacant 
storefronts ( Naked 

Spaces Tour with Org.) 

• Establish Founder 
Peer Groups (with 

Red Cedar) 

• ✓Co-starter new 

business training 
(with Red Cedar)  

 

• Promote store 
accessibility during 
construction 

• Promote shuttle 
bus use 

 Street signs 

 Prizes 

 Social media 

• MSI annual 
checklist 

• Track/collect 
business stats 

• Update business 
welcome packet 

 

DESIGN • Façade review (x9)  

•  Fall clean up day 

• Spring clean up day  

•  Banner (1 new 
set) 

• Seasonal 
beautification 
(Flowers, Funtober, 

✓Holiday) 

• Façade grant 
program (3 approved) 

•  Update review 
checklist 

•  Overlay 
awareness 
brochure 

• Historic 
preservation 
education 

 

• Wayfinding within 
district 

 

• Parking lot 
cleanliness & 
maintenance 
program 

•  MSI annual 
checklist 

ORGANIZATION 
& 
DEVELOPMENT 

• Flower fundraiser 
(Hops with Promo)  

• ✓Partner thank you 

• Volunteer 
recognition party 

• Main Street Iowa 
award nominations  

•  Annual fundraiser 
(Naked Spaces Tour with 
ED) 

  • MSI annual 
checklist 

• Build local program 
awareness through 
community 
outreach 

• Friends campaign  
(100% board 
participation) 

• Annual meeting 

• Update “About 
CMS” packet 

161

Item 14.



 CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET  
FY20 STRATEGIC GOALS ONE-SHEET 

Activities through November 

 

July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020 
Printed 12/5/19 

 

Collaborative 
effort with 
business owners, 
property owners, 
& city to achieve 
goals 

DISTRICT 
AESTHETIC 

Positive look and 
feel of the district 

BUSINESS 
FRIENDLY 
ENVIRONMENT 
Supportive business 
community and 
strong business mix 

CONVENIENCE 
District accessibility, 
functional side of 
district aesthetics 

PARKING 
Positive impact on 
the parking 
experience 
downtown 

ANNUAL TASKS 
Ongoing operational 
activities 

PROMOTIONS  • Hops (Flower 

fundraiser) 
• Calendar of Event 

mailing (x2)  
✓Winter & Spring 

• Update 
ARTapalooza event 

• ✓Evaluate Fondo; 
repeat or drop 

• Show & Shine 

• Movies Under the 
Moon (FY20) 

• Holiday Hoopla 
✓Kick off    

✓Small Bus. Sat. 
Breakfast with Santa 
Jingle & Mingle 
Hoopla Cheer 
Frosty 5K 
Baby It’s Cold  
Movie Magic 
Coloring Contest 
Window Contest 
Trolley Rides 
Letters to Santa 

• Promote 
ShopWhereILive.com  

• Positive, consistent 
message (new 
parking brochure) 
 

• MSI annual 
checklist 

• ✓Visitor Guide ad 

• ✓GBPAC ad 

• Tourism co-op ads 

• ✓Shop/Dine like a 
local maps 

• ✓Kiosk map 

• Kiosk flyers 
(weekly) 

• Evaluate brochure 
for possible updates 

• ✓Little Village co-
op ads with the 
Hearst (x2) 

• Newsletter (x11) 

PROMOTIONS: 
Retail & 
Nightlife 

 •  Sidewalk Sales  

• ✓Panther PAWty 

• Funtober promo 
Trick or Treating 

• ✓Fall Girls Night 
Out 

• ✓Holiday Shop Hop 

• ✓Small Business 
Saturday 

• Downtown Delights 

• Spring Shop Hop 

• Spring Girls Night 
Out 

• St. Patrick’s Day 
event  

• Love Rocks 
 

• Business hours 

• Activate Sidewalks 
 

 

 • Cooperative 
advertising 
opportunities (TV, 
coupons, etc) 

 

162

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1578590496456 1/11

Status Report

 1987-MS-001-Cedar Falls
 
 Downtown Resource Center

 

Award Year: 1987

Contract Number: 1987-MS-001

Status Report
Number: 72

Submitted By: Community Main Street Inc

Submitted Date: 01/13/2020

Status Report
Type: Monthly

Title December 2019 

Report Period 12/01/2019 12/31/2019 
From Date To Date 

Status: Approved

 

 Primary Contact and Organization
 

 

Primary Contact

AnA User Id CAROL.LILLY@IOWAID 

First Name* Community Main Street Inc 
First Name Middle Name Last Name 

Title: Executive Director 

Email:* director@communitymainstreet.org 

Address:* 310 E 4th St 

   

   

City* Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone:* 319-429-0468  
Phone Ext. 

Program
Area of
Interest* 

Downtown Resource Center

Fax:  

Organization Information

Organization
Name:* Community Main Street, Inc. 

Organization
Type:* Non-Profit Organization 

DUNS:  

Organization
Website: communitymainstreet.org 

Address: Community Main Street 

  206 Main Street, Suite B 

   

 Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone: 319-277-0213  
 Ext. 

Fax:  

 
 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress
 
 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 1

Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 163

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1578590496456 2/11

Building/Business Name Icon Donuts 
Address 200 W 1st Street Ste 103 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $85,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $85,000.00 
Comments Buildout of 1610 SF w/ shared bathrooms 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 2
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Oster Regent Theatre 
Address 103 Main Street 
Status Completed 
Private Amount Invested $65,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $65,000.00 
Comments Replace doors & windows in front 1st floor 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 3
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Jacobson Financial Services 
Address 411 Clay Street 
Status Completed 
Private Amount Invested $9,988.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $9,988.00 
Comments Breakroom remodel 

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 4
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Formerly Wells Fargo 
Address 302 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $5,400,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $5,400,000.00 
Comments Foundation only for new office bldg 

164

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1578590496456 3/11

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 5
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Snap Fitness 
Address 401 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $3,500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $3,500.00 
Comments Install 10'x19' wall for gym Shakery business  

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 6
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Caboose Stop Hobbies 
Address 301 Main Street 
Status Completed 
Private Amount Invested $5,500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $5,500.00 
Comments Repair siding at bay window bump out 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 7
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Prestige WW LLC 
Address 203 Main Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $460,038.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $460,038.00 
Comments Remodel exterior facade, 1st floor, and new roof 

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 8
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Arabella  
Address 200 W. 1st Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds  

165

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1578590496456 4/11

Invested 
Total Amount Invested $500.00 
Comments Finish 1st flr common area, rooftop deck, basement 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 9
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name River Place MU2 
Address 122 E 2nd Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $8,000,000.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $8,000,000.00 
Comments  

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 10
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Accel Group 
Address 100 E 2nd Street Ste 205 
Status Completed 
Private Amount Invested $58,331.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $58,331.00 
Comments Tenant build out for 3 offices and 1 training room 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 11
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Dahlstrom Real Estate, Inc 
Address 200 W. 1st Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $5,991,099.00 
Source of Funds private 
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $5,991,099.00 
Comments Mixed use-50 apts.+ 6800 ft commercial+parking 

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 12
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name River Place MU2  
Address 100 E 2nd Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $49,500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 

166

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1578590496456 5/11

Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $49,500.00 
Comments Floor infill, metal beams, steel deck, concrete 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 13
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Blue Room Lounge 
Address 201 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $18,800.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $18,800.00 
Comments Remove & replace roof 

 
 

DESIGN - Building Sold
 

 Building/Business Name Address Current Use Future Use Amount of Sale

 
 

ECONOMIC VITALITY- Business
 

 
Business Name Address Business Status Business Type # of FT Jobs # of PT Jobs
tata yaya 111 Main Street New Food Establishment 2 2 

 
 

ECONOMIC VITALITY - New Housing
 

 Address Housing Type # of Units Monthly Rent or Purchase Price Purchase/Rent?

 
 

PROMOTION - Events
 

 

PROMOTION - Events 1
Promotion Name* Jingle & Mingle  
Description Jingle & Mingle provides our downtown merchants the ability to showcase their stores for 

the holiday season.  There are also other activities that take place such as visiting Santa 
at his workshop, pictures with different characters, and trolley rides.  

Date 12/5/19 
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Retail 
Sponsor(s) Veridian and Coldwell Banker, Trapp Realtors for trolley rides. 
Achievement 

167

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1578590496456 6/11

 PROMOTION - Events 2
Promotion Name* Breakfast at the North Pole 
Description The public was invited to attend a pancake breakfast at the Cedar Falls Community 

Center. Santa and many costumed characters were there to interact with the children. 
Date 12/7/2019 
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Special Event 
Sponsor(s) Varney & Associates, Veridian Credit Union, Martin Brothers
Achievement 

 

PROMOTION - Events 3
Promotion Name* Holiday Hoopla ongoing events  
Description Ongoing events included: 

People's Choice window contest voting 
Santa's workshop/Visit Santa 
Horse drawn trolley rides 
Holly Trolley rides 
Coloring contest 
Santa 50613 (volunteers respond to letters dropped in Santa's mailbox with a 
handwritten, personal reply) 
Salvation Army toy drive 
Nightly light show at Santa's workshop 
Caroler and costume character appearances

Date All of December  
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Special Event 
Sponsor(s) See support documents 
Achievement 

 

PROMOTION - Events 4
Promotion Name* Hoopla Cheer  
Description The bars and restaurants created specialty holiday beverages. Guests voted for their 

favorite.
Date 12/12/19 
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Special Event 
Sponsor(s) The Landmark, Bar Winslow, Wilbo Burgers Brats & Beers, The Horny Toad American 

Bar and Grill, Cypress Lounge, Berk's Main St Pub, Urban Pie, Pump Haus, Tony's La 
Pizzeria, The Brass Tap - Cedar Falls, Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, SingleSpeed 
Brewing Co., Roxxy Cedar Falls, The Stuffed Olive Cedar Falls

Achievement 

 

PROMOTION - Events 5
Promotion Name* Santa's Beard Contest 
Description A contest was held to determine winners in a variety of categories such as Best Santa 

Beard, Best mustache, and longest beard.
Date 12/12/19 
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Special Event 
Sponsor(s) Kate & Co. 
Achievement 

 PROMOTION - Events 6
Promotion Name* Movie Magic 
Description A free family movie, Happy Feet, was shown at the Oster Regent Theatre. The winners of 

the coloring contest were announced at this event. 
Date 12/21/19 
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Special Event 
Sponsor(s) Mudd Advertising 

168

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1578590496456 7/11

Achievement 

 

PROMOTION - Events 7
Promotion Name* Ugly Sweater Contest  
Description The public was invited to show off their ugliest holiday attire and visit the Cedar Falls 

Downtown District.  This event took place at a bar downtown, Berk's.  
Date 12/12/19 
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Special Event 
Sponsor(s) Berk's & downtown bars 
Achievement 

 

PROMOTION - Events 8
Promotion Name* Frosty 5K 
Description A 5K run/walk was held downtown. Participants were encouraged to dress in holiday 

costumes
Date 12/14/19 
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Special Event 
Sponsor(s) Threshold Pace Timing 
Achievement 

 

PROMOTION - Events 9
Promotion Name* Baby, It's Cold Outside 
Description Ice sculptors create delicate works of art with their chainsaws. This is an amazing sight to 

see as large chunks of ice become recognizable right before your eyes. In addition to the 
ice sculptors, the public was invited to enjoy free s'mores and reindeer games for the 
whole family.

Date 12/19/19 
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Special Event 
Sponsor(s) Dalton, Hidden Valley Property, Vintage Iron, Scratch Cupcakery, Hatchling & Hens, 

Purse-N-ality, Main Street Sweets, Pump Haus, The Runners Flat. 
Achievement 

 
 

ORGANIZATION - Activities
 

 

ORGANIZATION - Activities 1
Activity Name* Volunteer Appreciation Planning  
Description Our Organization & Development committee met to plan our Volunteer Appreciation event 

that will take place in February.   
 

Date 12/9/19 
Status Completed 
Activity Type Volunteer Development 
Achievement 

 
 

OTHER - Training Sessions
 

 

Who Attended Main Street Position Training Date Topic
Carol Lilly Executive Director 12/03/2019 MSI Executive Director Training 
Kim Bear Events & Promotions Coordinator 12/04/2019 Cedar Valley Leadership Institute  

 169

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1578590496456 8/11

 

OTHER - Volunteer Hours Invested in Main Street
 

 
Volunteer
Hours

Design Economic
Vitality

Organization Promotion Board of
Directors

Program
Volunteer

Total Volunteer
Hours

Yes 15.5 19.0 7.0 1353.0 24.0 4.5 1423.0 

 
 

Commentary
 
 Design

Commentary/Updates 
Community Main Street  
 
DESIGN COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA  
 
Friday, December 20, 2019  
 
Noon at CMS Office  
 
  
 
Committee Members:  Dave Schachterle, Julie Shimek, Thomas Connors, Tom Nagle, 
Mary Taylor, Don Blau, Dawn Wilson, Andrew Bell, Kara Shugar-Davis, Julie Etheredge, 
Sally Timmer, Cody Heckenlaible, Jeremy Zehr, Jacob Bauer, JD Atodaria  
 
  
 
  
 
One Sheet Review  
 
Banners ? Dave  
 
Holiday decorations tear down date   
 
  
 
Design Reviews  
 
  
 
Historic Preservation Training ? Main Street Iowa  
 
Training Topic   
 
Date Options  
 
  
 
Façade Program  
 
Simplified Market Piece  
 
Outreach  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
Anticipated Meeting Outcomes  
 
Attendees will ?  
 
Review the One Sheet  

170

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1578590496456 9/11

 
Review and provide feedback on proposed projects using the checklist, if applicable  
 
Choose Historic Preservation Training Topic & dates  
 
Discuss the façade program  
 Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image 
and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  

Economic
Vitality/Business
Improvement
Commentary/Updates 

Economic Development Agenda  
 
Wednesday, December 4th, 2019  
 
CMS Office @ Noon  
 
  
 
Committee Members: Lexie Heath (chair), Amy Dutton, Seth Engelbrecht, Dustin Halter, 
Ty Kimble, Mark Kittrell, Danny Laudick, Lea Ann Saul, Lisa Rivera Skubal, Seth 
Chadwick, Pam Taylor CMS Staff: Carol Lilly, Maribel Barry   
 
Welcome/ Introductions   
 
  
 
Review of Strategic Goals - One Sheet   
 
  
 
Business changes   
 
Roxxy (open)  
 
Accel (location change)  
 
Others?   
 
  
 
IDM Update  
 
  
 
Other  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
Anticipated Outcomes ? Committee members will:  
 
Identify new businesses in the district  
 
Identify action items to advance strategic goals/one sheet items  
 
Determine committee lead for each identified activity  
 
Review business changes and plan welcome visit(s) 

Promotion
Commentary/Updates 

Community Main Street  
 
PROMOTIONS MEETING AGENDA  
 
Wednesday, December 4, 2019  
 
8:00am in the CMS Office  
 
 

171

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1578590496456 10/11

Committee Members: Gretchen Behm, Vicki Collum, Beth LaVelle, Mike Reyhons, Kirsten 
Jegsen, Ashley Ungs, Dianne Harms, Kayla Toale, Nicole Knebel  
 
  
Review Strategic Goals  
 
Shop Where I Live 
 
Update and Redesign of pamphlets 
 
Promotions of CMS as an entity  
 
 
  
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image 
and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  
 
 

Organization
Commentary/Updates 

Community Main Street  
 
ORGANIZATION & DEVELOPMENT MEETING AGENDA  
 
Monday, December 9th, 2019  
 
Noon in the CMS Office  
 
  
 
  
 
Committee Members: Cinde Haskins, Tara Eisele, Jim Miller, Amy Mohr, Sarah Foster, 
Karen Oltman, Amber Munchoff, Phyllis Carter, Shay Caley  
 
  
 
  
 
One Sheet Review  
 
  
 
Main Street Iowa Awards   
 
  
 
Main Street Iowa conference ? March  
 
Evening prior to day one  
 
Conference hospitality (food)  
 
Welcome bags for attendees  
 
Evening #1 hospitality hour, activity, networking dinner  
 
Local presentation  
 
Local tour(s)  
 
  
 
Volunteer Appreciation ? February   
 
  
 
Other  
 
  
 

172

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1578590496456 11/11

  
 
  
 
Anticipated Outcomes ? Committee members will:  
 
Evaluate committee workplan for ½ of fiscal year and determine priorities for the last ½ of 
the year  
 
Determine MSI award nominations  
 
Assign sub-chairs for MSI conference in March  
 
Set volunteer appreciation date and theme   
 
  
 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image 
and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  
 
 

Program
Commentary/Updates 

CMS Staff began to prepare for the Main Street Iowa Spring Conference by recruiting 
volunteers.  

List suggestions & questions on services, training topics, (for MSI communities and/or local needs) new resources, speakers you would
recommend, etc.

Suggestions for state
staff: 

Do you have board
president changes? No 

Board President

If there is a board president change, please complete the following:

Salutation/First/Last
Name:    

Salutation First Name Last Name 

Title  

Company  

Address  

Address 2  

City/State/County/Zip     
City State County Zip 

E-mail:  

Phone/Extension/Fax    
Phone Ext. Fax 

 

173

Item 14.



 

 

Minutes, Community Main Street, Inc. 
Board of Director Meeting 

Tuesday, December 10, 2019 @ 12:00 p.m. 
Community Main Street Office 

 
In Attendance: Crystal Ford- President Elect; Lexie Heath–Secretary; Dan Lynch-Treasurer; Ty Kimble–Past 
President; Natalie Brown; Matt Dunning; Wynette Froehner; Audrey Kittrell; Stephanie Sheetz; Julie Shimek; Mark 
Showalter Liaisons: Craig Berte; Cary Darrah; Carrie Eilderts; Jessica Rucker; Kelly Stern Staff: Carol Lilly, Kim Bear, 
Maribel Barry, Larry Wessels 

 
 
1. Welcome, Call to Order – Ford 

 
2. Approval of Minutes – Froehner moved for approval, Kimble seconded, all approved 
 
3. Financial Report – Lynch 

a. We are still on track and doing well.  Income for November consisted of retail co-op 
payments, streetscape installments, and sponsorships for Holiday Hoopla. Expenses 
consisted of the printing of new downtown maps, winter postcard mailer, and Holiday 
Hoopla expenses.  

b. Froehner moved for approval, Shimek seconded, all approved 
 

4. President’s Report – Ford 
a. Employee handbook update – The benefits section will now state that employees 

that have earned $5,000 in any two preceding calendar years and that are expected 
to earn $5,000 or more in the following year are eligible to participate in a retirement 
plan with up to a 3% organizational match.  

i. Kimble moved for approval, Sheetz seconded, all approved.  
b. Mission Statement/Vision Statement – In vision statement, it was suggested that we 

look into revising the fifth paragraph.  
c. Accreditation checklist is due on January 6th.  

 
5. Committee Program of Work Report - 

a. Economic Development 
i. CMS is partnering with Red Cedar for Co-Starter Training.  We plan to have 

an informational meeting on January 15th.  
b. Design 

i. We decorated for Holiday Hoopla in November.  New hubs, light poles, and 
bench plaques have been installed.   

c. Org & Development 
i. We will be holding our Friends campaign in February and will have volunteer 

appreciation on February 19.  The committee will be assisting in the Spring 
MSI Conference that will be hosted by Cedar Falls.  

d. Promotion 
i. The committee will be transition to four meetings a year.  They will focus on 

promoting Shop Where I live and evaluate how to promote CMS as an entity.  
 

6. Staff Report – Lilly 
a. A bar/restaurant meeting was held at the CMS office with Mark Miller to discuss 

concerns with parking.   
b. MSI will be in town December 11 for two design consults.  
c. Annual report due date has been moved to February 1st 

 
7. Liaison Updates – 

a. Grow Cedar Valley will be hosting a Pre-Legislative Reception at Isle Casino with 
Cedar Valley representatives.  Leadercast women was very successful and will be 
hosting it again next fall.  

b. Main Street Waterloo is planning to replace two bridges. Mayors from across the 
country recently visited Waterloo.  

174

Item 14.



 

 

c. The CF Library will be fine-free beginning in the new year.  This includes everything 
except the Library of Things.  

d. The CF Historical Society will be holding the Ice Harvest Festival on February 1st.  
e. CF Police Department: Cameras are continuing to be installed and improved on 

College Hill and downtown.   
 

8. Good of the Order was given. 
 
9. Adjourn 
 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization established to foster economic 

vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of 

life in Cedar Falls.  

175

Item 14.



Community Main Street 
Director’s Staff Report for December 2019: 

 
Staff Activities: 

• Planned and facilitated all committee meetings and sub-committee meetings (see 
one sheet) 

• Event planning, facilitation, support and oversight of the following completed events 
o Holly Trolley prep 

o Jingle & Mingle 

o Breakfast with Santa 

o Hoopla Cheer 

o Frosty 5K 

o Baby It’s Cold Outside 

o Movie Magic 

o Trolley rides 

o Letters to Santa 

o Workshop corner 

o Characters and Carolers 

• Attended Main Street Iowa optional training for directors (co-starter) 

• Facilitated open container discussion with Iowa City Downtown Partners and Iowa 

City assistant city administrator 

• Assisted Hearst Center with RFP draft 

• Met with Darlene Strachen from Main Street Iowa to review host city requirments for 

conference planning 

• Impact of tourism related activities sub-committee participation 

• Met with Stephane Sheetz 

• Planning meeting for Volunteers on Tap 

• Facilitated Main Street Iowa Design Consult meeting for two property owners 

• Presented to Cedar Valley Rotary club 

• Met with Jenny Leeper to enhance relationship UNI Admissions Department  

• Worked with tourism to host event planning guide meeting 

• Met with Carson Wirtz regarding a proposed Eagle Scout project for exterior 

improvements to the office property (trail connections) 

• Attended All Dolled Up Grand Re-opening 

• Met with Dave Deaver on parking items 

• Met with Kelly Murphy, Hawkeye Hotels  

• Met with Accel Group representatives to review partnership and volunteer options 

• Met with restaurant owner who owns multiple businesses to learn about business 

trends in the Cedar Valley (other meetings scheduled)  

• Hosted dining and nightlife merchant meeting with council rep Mark Miller 

• Coordinated Exec and Mayor Green introductory meeting 

• Hosted meeting for possible new downtown event (2021) 

• Finished accreditation paperwork  

176

Item 14.



• Parking Technical Committee participation and projects 

• Promoted downtown shuttle  

• KWWL noon news live interview 

• Completed and submitted monthly reporting to Main Street Iowa 
 
Community Event Representation: Tim Reinders and Terry Poe Bushkamp’s 
retirement gathering; Pre-legislative Reception; Grow Cedar Valley Affiliates meeting; 
Parking Committee (x1); Park & Rec.; City Council meeting (x1); Cedar Falls Tourism & 
Visitor Bureau board meeting;  
 
Staff Priorities for January: 

• Main Street Iowa Award nominations 

• Volunteer appreciation event 

• Cultural District Renewal report 
 

177

Item 14.



 CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET  
FY20 STRATEGIC GOALS ONE-SHEET 

Activities through December 
 

July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020 
Printed 1/4/20 

Collaborative 
effort with 
business owners, 
property owners, 
& city to achieve 
goals 

DISTRICT 
AESTHETIC 
Positive look and 
feel of the district 

BUSINESS 
FRIENDLY 
ENVIRONMENT 
Supportive business 
community and 
strong business mix 

CONVENIENCE 
District accessibility, 
functional side of 
district aesthetics 

PARKING 
Positive impact on 
the parking 
experience 
downtown 

ANNUAL TASKS 
Ongoing operational 
activities 

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

• Review and 
implement MSI 
exchange visit 
recommendations  

 

 
• Deliberate business 

visitation program 

  • ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

• ✓Budget 
• ✓October bi-

annual report 
• ✓City grant 

requests 
• April bi-annual 

report 
• Staff review 
• Attend city council 

meetings 
• Review/update 

program policies & 
procedures 
 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 
 

• ✓Challenge Grant 
submission FY20 

 

• New business visits 
(x9) 

• Open 4 Business 
2020  

• Plan & execute 2 
deliberate actions 
to help fill vacant 
storefronts (✓Naked 
Spaces Tour with Org.) 

• Establish Founder 
Peer Groups (with 
Red Cedar) 

• ✓Co-starter new 
business training 
(with Red Cedar)  

 

• Promote store 
accessibility during 
construction 

• Promote shuttle 
bus use 
✓Street signs 

✓Prizes 

✓Social media 

• ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

• Track/collect 
business stats 

• Update business 
welcome packet 

 

DESIGN • Façade review (x10)  
• ✓Fall clean up day 
• Spring clean up day  
• ✓Banner (1 new 

set) 
• Seasonal 

beautification 
(Flowers, Funtober, 
✓Holiday) 

• Façade grant 
program (3 approved) 

• ✓Update review 
checklist 

• ✓Overlay 
awareness 
brochure 

• Historic 
preservation 
education 

 

• Wayfinding within 
district 

 

• Parking lot 
cleanliness & 
maintenance 
program 

• ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

ORGANIZATION 
& 
DEVELOPMENT 

• Flower fundraiser 
(Hops with Promo)  

• ✓Partner thank you 
• Volunteer 

recognition party 
• Main Street Iowa 

award nominations  
• ✓Annual fundraiser 

(Naked Spaces Tour with 
ED) 

  • ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

• Build local program 
awareness through 
community 
outreach 

• Friends campaign  
(100% board 
participation) 

• Annual meeting 
• Update “About 

178

Item 14.



 CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET  
FY20 STRATEGIC GOALS ONE-SHEET 

Activities through December 
 

July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020 
Printed 1/4/20 

 

CMS” packet 

Collaborative 
effort with 
business owners, 
property owners, 
& city to achieve 
goals 

DISTRICT 
AESTHETIC 
Positive look and 
feel of the district 

BUSINESS 
FRIENDLY 
ENVIRONMENT 
Supportive business 
community and 
strong business mix 

CONVENIENCE 
District accessibility, 
functional side of 
district aesthetics 

PARKING 
Positive impact on 
the parking 
experience 
downtown 

ANNUAL TASKS 
Ongoing operational 
activities 

PROMOTIONS  • Hops (Flower 
fundraiser) 

• Calendar of Event 
mailing (x2)  
✓Winter & Spring 

• Update 
ARTapalooza event 

• ✓Evaluate Fondo; 
repeat or drop 

• Show & Shine 
• Movies Under the 

Moon (FY20) 
• ✓Holiday Hoopla 

✓Kick off    
✓Small Bus. Sat. 
✓Breakfast with Santa 
✓Jingle & Mingle 
✓Hoopla Cheer 
✓Frosty 5K 
✓Baby It’s Cold  
✓Movie Magic 
✓Coloring Contest 
✓Window Contest 
✓Trolley Rides 
✓Letters to Santa 

• Promote 
ShopWhereILive.com  

• Positive, consistent 
message (new 
parking brochure) 
 

• ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

• ✓Visitor Guide ad 
• ✓GBPAC ad 
• Tourism co-op ads 
• ✓Shop/Dine like a 

local maps 
• ✓Kiosk map 
• Kiosk flyers 

(weekly) 
• Evaluate brochure 

for possible updates 
• ✓Little Village co-

op ads with the 
Hearst (x2) 

• Newsletter (x11) 

PROMOTIONS: 
Retail & 
Nightlife 

 • ✓Sidewalk Sales  
• ✓Panther PAWty 
• Funtober promo 

Trick or Treating 

• ✓Fall Girls Night 
Out 

• ✓Holiday Shop Hop 
• ✓Small Business 

Saturday 
• Downtown Delights 
• Spring Shop Hop 
• Spring Girls Night 

Out 
• St. Patrick’s Day 

event  
• Love Rocks 
 

• Business hours 
• Activate Sidewalks 
 
 

 • Cooperative 
advertising 
opportunities (TV, 
coupons, etc) 

 

179

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1580406005257 1/8

Status Report

 1987-MS-001-Cedar Falls
 
 Downtown Resource Center

 

Award Year: 1987

Contract Number: 1987-MS-001

Status Report
Number: 73

Submitted By: Kim Bear

Submitted Date: 02/19/2020

Status Report
Type: Monthly

Title January 2020 

Report Period 01/01/2020 01/31/2020 
From Date To Date 

Status: Approved

 

 Primary Contact and Organization
 

 

Primary Contact

AnA User Id CAROL.LILLY@IOWAID 

First Name* Community Main Street Inc 
First Name Middle Name Last Name 

Title: Executive Director 

Email:* director@communitymainstreet.org 

Address:* 310 E 4th St 

   

   

City* Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone:* 319-429-0468  
Phone Ext. 

Program
Area of
Interest* 

Downtown Resource Center

Fax:  

Organization Information

Organization
Name:* Community Main Street, Inc. 

Organization
Type:* Non-Profit Organization 

DUNS:  

Organization
Website: communitymainstreet.org 

Address: Community Main Street 

  206 Main Street, Suite B 

   

 Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone: 319-277-0213  
 Ext. 

Fax:  

 
 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress
 
 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 1

Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 180

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1580406005257 2/8

Building/Business Name Blue Room Lounge 
Address 201 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $18,800.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $18,800.00 
Comments Remove & replace roof 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 2
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name River Place MU2  
Address 100 E 2nd Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $49,500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $49,500.00 
Comments Floor infill, metal beams, steel deck, concrete 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 3
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Dahlstrom Real Estate, Inc 
Address 200 W. 1st Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $5,991,099.00 
Source of Funds private 
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $5,991,099.00 
Comments Mixed use-50 apts.+ 6800 ft commercial+parking 

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 4
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name River Place MU2 
Address 122 E 2nd Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $8,000,000.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $8,000,000.00 
Comments  

181

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1580406005257 3/8

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 5
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Arabella  
Address 200 W. 1st Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $500.00 
Comments Finish 1st flr common area, rooftop deck, basement 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 6
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Prestige WW LLC 
Address 203 Main Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $460,038.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $460,038.00 
Comments Remodel exterior facade, 1st floor, and new roof 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 7
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Snap Fitness 
Address 401 Main Street 
Status Completed 
Private Amount Invested $3,500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $3,500.00 
Comments Install 10'x19' wall for gym Shakery business  

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 8
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Formerly Wells Fargo 
Address 302 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $5,400,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds  

182

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1580406005257 4/8

Invested 
Total Amount Invested $5,400,000.00 
Comments Foundation only for new office bldg 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 9
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Icon Donuts 
Address 200 W 1st Street Ste 103 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $85,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $85,000.00 
Comments Buildout of 1610 SF w/ shared bathrooms 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 10
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Viking Pump 
Address 406 State Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $87,500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $87,500.00 
Comments Construct new quality control room inside building 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 11
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Double Tap Arcade 
Address 312 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $46,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $46,000.00 
Comments 2 ADA baths, new bar, ramp, raised floor, hip roof 

 
 

DESIGN - Building Sold
 

 Building/Business Name Address Current Use Future Use Amount of Sale

 
 

183

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1580406005257 5/8

ECONOMIC VITALITY- Business
 

 

Business Name Address Business Status Business Type # of FT Jobs # of PT Jobs
The Shakery Smoothie Bar 401 Main Street New Food Establishment 1 3 
West Quality Air Systems 124 W. 4th Street New Retail 2  
In Form Creations 604 Clay Street  New Service 9  

 
 

ECONOMIC VITALITY - New Housing
 

 Address Housing Type # of Units Monthly Rent or Purchase Price Purchase/Rent?

 
 

PROMOTION - Events
 
 
 

ORGANIZATION - Activities
 

 

ORGANIZATION - Activities 1
Activity Name* Volunteers On Tap  
Description Volunteers on Tap is a chance for Cedar Valley professionals - people at every level - to 

connect with representatives from local festivals, events, attractions, and organizations to 
learn about long-term volunteer leadership roles. 
 
These community organizations and events are looking for new talent to support their 
projects. Volunteers could serve on board of directors and committees to help facilitate 
organizational mission, plan and execute events, and assist with management of the 
organization's events!

Date 1/14/2020 
Status Completed 
Activity Type Volunteer Development 
Achievement 

 
 

OTHER - Training Sessions
 

 

Who Attended Main Street Position Training Date Topic
Carol Lilly Executive Director 01/23/2020 Design Lunch & Learn 
Kim Bear Events & Promotions Coordinator 01/14/2020 Volunteers 2.0 Training 
Carol Lilly Executive Director 01/14/2020 Volunteers 2.0 Training 
Kim Bear Events & Promotions Coordinator 01/08/2020 Cedar Valley Leadership Institute  

 
 

OTHER - Volunteer Hours Invested in Main Street
 

 
Volunteer
Hours

Design Economic
Vitality

Organization Promotion Board of
Directors

Program
Volunteer

Total Volunteer
Hours

Yes 50.0 12.0 7.0 48.0 23.0 29.0 169.0 

 
184

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1580406005257 6/8

 

Commentary
 
 Design

Commentary/Updates 
Community Main Street  
 
DESIGN COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA  
 
Friday, January 17, 2020 
 
Noon at CMS Office  
 
Committee Members:  Dave Schachterle, Julie Shimek, Thomas Connors, Tom Nagle, 
Mary Taylor, Don Blau, Dawn Wilson, Andrew Bell, Kara Shugar-Davis, Julie Etheredge, 
Sally Timmer, Cody Heckenlaible, Jeremy Zehr, Jacob Bauer, JD Atodaria  
 
  
 
  
 
One Sheet Review  
 
Spring cleanup plan  
 
Historic Preservation training ? Signs & Awnings?Dave? Tom?   
 
Early April ? set date and time  
 
  
 
Design Reviews  
 
  
 
Façade program marketing piece (Mary Taylor)  
 
  
 
Beautification plan for additional streetscape areas  
 
Summer baskets & flower-pots  
 
Holiday décor  
 
  
 
Other  
 
Volunteer appreciation party ? mark your calendar Feb. 19  
 
Main Street Iowa conference  
 
 

Economic
Vitality/Business
Improvement
Commentary/Updates 

Economic Development Agenda  
 
Wednesday, January 1st, 2020 
 
CMS Office @ Noon  
 
Committee Members: Lexie Heath (chair), Amy Dutton, Seth Engelbrecht, Dustin Halter, 
Ty Kimble, Mark Kittrell, Danny Laudick, Lea Ann Saul, Lisa Rivera Skubal, Seth 
Chadwick, Pam Taylor CMS Staff: Carol Lilly, Maribel Barry   
 
In January, the Economic Development committee reached out to all the businesses in 
the downtown district about Co-Starter training.   
 
 
 
  

185

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1580406005257 7/8

 
Other  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
Anticipated Outcomes ? Committee members will:  
 
Identify new businesses in the district  
 
Identify action items to advance strategic goals/one sheet items  
 
Determine committee lead for each identified activity  
 
Review business changes and plan welcome visit(s) 

Promotion
Commentary/Updates 

Community Main Street   
 
Merchant PROMOTIONS Minutes  
 
Tuesday, January 14th at 8:45 am    
 
The Hampton Inn  
 
Julie, LeaAnn, Terry, Jenna, Janell, Barb, Gretchen, Betsy, Emilee, Ann, Lisa, Mary, Mark, 
Katie, Lisa  
 
Events recap  
 
Small Business Saturday - thoughts  
 
Holiday Hoopla  
 
Upcoming events  
 
Downtown Delights, February 8th 
 
March Main Street Iowa Conference  
 
Engaging with the Downtown District hotels ? Kelly Murphy 
 
Other  
 
Workplans for events that are far out  
  
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image 
and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  

Organization
Commentary/Updates 

Community Main Street  

ORGANIZATION & DEVELOPMENT MEETING AGENDA  

Monday, January 13, 2020  

Noon in the CMS Office  

Committee Members: Karen Oltman, Cinde Haskins, Jim Miller, Tara Eisele, Phyllis Carter 

Volunteer Appreciation Party - February 19th from 5:00-7:00  

Maid Rites  

Picnic theme  

Food in the kitchen  

High top rounds in the entryway  
186

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1580406005257 8/8

Program
Commentary/Updates 

CMS Staff and committee members met throughout January for the Main Street Iowa 
Spring Conference.

List suggestions & questions on services, training topics, (for MSI communities and/or local needs) new resources, speakers you would
recommend, etc.

Suggestions for state
staff: 

Do you have board
president changes? No 

Board President

If there is a board president change, please complete the following:

Salutation/First/Last
Name:    

Salutation First Name Last Name 

Title  

Company  

Address  

Address 2  

City/State/County/Zip     
City State County Zip 

E-mail:  

Phone/Extension/Fax    
Phone Ext. Fax 

 

We are Main Street, why do you volunteer?  

Volunteer of the year!  

March Main Street Iowa Conference ? March 9-11 ?It?s all about Service?  

Subcommittees 

Main Street Iowa Award Nominations Update  

Friends Campaign   

Email the mailing list to the committee for them to look over addresses, have they moved, 
passed or we shouldn?t send it to them due to health.  

Other/Review One-Sheet  

Annual Meeting will be May 12th   

The exec liked that we went somewhere different last year for lunch  

Updating the CMS Packet with a communications class at UNI if they pick our project.   

  

  

  

Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image 
and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  

 

187

Item 14.



 

 

Minutes, Community Main Street, Inc. 
Board of Director Meeting 

Tuesday, January 14, 2020 @ 12:00 p.m. 
Community Main Street Office 

 
In Attendance: Crystal Ford- President Elect; Lexie Heath–Secretary; Dan Lynch-Treasurer; Natalie Brown; Wynette 
Froehner; Audrey Kittrell; Clark Rickard; Stephanie Sheetz; Julie Shimek; Mark Showalter; Liaisons: Craig Berte; 
Carrie Eilderts; Kim Manning; Jessica Rucker; Kelly Stern; Kathryn Sogard 
Staff: Carol Lilly, Kim Bear, Maribel Barry 

 
 
1. Welcome, Call to Order – Ford  

 
2. Approval of Minutes – Sheetz moved for approval, Froehner seconded, all approved. 
 
3. Financial Report – Lynch 

a. We are a bit behind due to Holiday Hoopla expenses, but the finances will smoothen 
out as SSMID and other income comes in. We are also a bit short in our Reserve 
Fund.  Dan recommended that we move money into this account so that we have a 
three months' worth of operating expenses. 

b. Lexie moved for approval, Froehner seconded, all approved. 
 

4. Parking Limit Enforcement Discussion – Ford/Showalter 
a. The dining and nightlife group met with Mark Miller in December to discuss parking.  

Mark indicated that the group is collectively feeling a negative financial impact.  Lots 
of customers have been complaining to them and numbers are down, especially on 
Saturdays.  The group would like to request for the support of CMS to change 
parking enforcement hours on weekdays and on Saturdays.  

b. Carol mentioned that she spoke with dining/nightlife business owners with other 
locations and they have not seen much of a difference in business at their other 
restaurants.  She also indicated that CMS asked The City’s Parking Tech Committee 
if we can add a representative from the bars or retail to get their input.     

c. The board decided that they would like to gather more information from the 
restaurants and bars before our February meeting.  They would like more information 
such as numbers of complaints, numbers of Saturday tickets being issued, and P & L 
numbers from businesses to move forward with their request.  
 

5. President’s Report – Ford 
a. Accreditation checklist submitted 

b. ED Grant of $16,500 was awarded to CMS, which was a 10% increase. 
c. Main Street Iowa conference will start on the night of 3/9 until 3/11.  There will be lots 

of people walking around downtown during this time, so let’s make the district shine!  
Let’s leverage our partnerships for possible sponsorships.  
 

6. Committee Program of Work Report - 
a. Economic Development- Co-Starter info sessions will be held this Wednesday.  It is a 

program that will help new or existing business owners work on their business 
instead of working in their business.  

b. Design- The committee took down all the Holiday Hoopla decorations in 2 hours!  
c. Org & Development- Our Volunteer Appreciation party will be on 2/19 from 5pm-7pm 

at the CMS office.  The committee will also be assisting with the conference.  
d. Retail- The meeting was hosted by the Hampton Inn.  Our next event will be 

Downtown Delights with 26 businesses participating. 
 

7. Staff Report – Lilly 

188

Item 14.



 

 

a. Light poles have been installed on Washington and State Street.  We are working 
with the City on communicating Streetscape updates and improvements.  Our gift 
certificate sales for last quarter was great-  
 

8. Liaison Updates  
a. Main Street Waterloo: Waterloo City Council approved new management for the 

Convention Center, so Waterloo will continue to have the convention center and 
hotel.  

b. CF Police Department: Acting Chief Berte provided an update on the downtown 
Cedar Falls shooting case.  

c. CF Library: The library went fine free starting on 1/1 and will provide an updated door 
count in the future.  

d. CF Tourism: Kim has been working with Group Tour Planners for Cedar Falls.  The 
new Waterloo Cedar Falls Tourism guide is now available!  

e. Historical Society: Ice Harvest Festival on 2/1 at Big Woods and they are preparing 
for their open house on 2/20 showcasing The Fight for the Right: Women and the 
Vote.  

f. College Hill: Preparing for their Visioning, which is not just limited to the College Hill, 
but a larger study area. Please come out and support their Visioning Project!  

 
9. Good of the Order was given. 

 
10. Adjourn 

 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization established to foster economic 

vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of 

life in Cedar Falls.  

189

Item 14.



Community Main Street 
Director’s Staff Report for January 2020: 

 
Staff Activities: 

• Planned and facilitated all committee meetings and sub-committee meetings (see 
one sheet) 

• Event planning, facilitation, support and oversight of the following completed events 

o Un-deck the Falls 

o Volunteer Appreciation Party planning 

o Downtown Delights planning 

• MSI Spring Conference Planning Committee 

o Established committee and sub committees – Welcome bags, Pre-conference 

gathering, Conference Facilities and Food, Conference Evening Reception, 

Tours/Presentation Panel 

o Secured location 

o Worked with MSI to develop agenda 

• Monthly meeting with Stephanie Sheetz 

• Met with Mark Kittrell and Dee Nelson on plaza project/partnership (x2) 

• Staff Christmas lunch 

• Monthly Exec meeting with Ron Gaines 

• Reviewed Eric Lee’s cost accounting classes’ financial analysis of the past 5 years 

of Holiday Hoopla. Secured relationship for spring semester, adding 2019 data 

• Met with Kelly Murphy to discuss Hampton Inn/Business outreach 

• Worked on event guide project (partnership with tourism, CHP)   

• Monthly meeting with Mayor Green 

• Attended and helped host Volunteers on Tap; 20 participants chose CMS as an 

entity they would like to become involved in 

• Passport for the Arts 2020 planning meeting 

• Assisted Holly Hudson with a Cedar Falls article in the Waterloo Courier’s Progress 

edition 

• Coordinated ED committee/Mill Race Roadmap partnership info sessions 

• Met with Eric Braley, Around the Corner Productions, on the Telling Downtown’s 

Story project 

• Attended Volunteers on Tap follow up training 

• Provided Chad Wonderlich, Viking Pump, with welcome materials for 2020 vendor 

guests; coordinated coupon card from retailers/restaurants to be part of the packet 

• Downtown Design Webinar 

• Met with Darin Beck to gather information for Main Street Iowa award nomination 

• Began working on MSI award nominations 

• ARTaplooza planning meeting 

• Downtown Delights planning (Kim) 

• Assisted business interested in relocating downtown (x2) 

190

Item 14.



• Met with Mo Collins regarding Red Cedar grant project 

• Completed and submitted Cultural and Entertainment District Annual Report (Iowa 

Department of Cultural Affairs) 

• Cleaned the basement 

• Parking Technical Committee participation and projects 

• KWWL noon news live interview 

• Completed and submitted monthly reporting to Main Street Iowa 
 
Community Event Representation: One Million Cups; GCV Friday Legislative Forum; 
City Council meeting (x1); Cedar Falls Tourism & Visitor Bureau board meeting;  
 
Staff Priorities for February: 

• Main Street Iowa Award nominations 

• Volunteer appreciation event 

• MSI Conference planning 

• Director secession prep 
 

191

Item 14.



 CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET  
FY20 STRATEGIC GOALS ONE-SHEET 

Activities through January 
 

July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020 
Printed 2/2/20 

Collaborative 
effort with 
business owners, 
property owners, 
& city to achieve 
goals 

DISTRICT 
AESTHETIC 
Positive look and 
feel of the district 

BUSINESS 
FRIENDLY 
ENVIRONMENT 
Supportive business 
community and 
strong business mix 

CONVENIENCE 
District accessibility, 
functional side of 
district aesthetics 

PARKING 
Positive impact on 
the parking 
experience 
downtown 

ANNUAL TASKS 
Ongoing operational 
activities 

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

• Review and 
implement MSI 
exchange visit 
recommendations  

 

 
• Deliberate business 

visitation program 

  • ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

• ✓Budget 
• ✓October bi-

annual report 
• ✓City grant 

requests 
• April bi-annual 

report 
• Staff review 
• Attend city council 

meetings 
• Review/update 

program policies & 
procedures 
 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 
 

• ✓Challenge Grant 
submission FY20 

 

• New business visits 
(x10) 

• Open 4 Business 
2020  

• Plan & execute 2 
deliberate actions 
to help fill vacant 
storefronts (✓Naked 
Spaces Tour with Org.) 

• ✓Establish Founder 
Peer Groups 
(30/60/90 roadmap with 
Red Cedar) 

• ✓Co-starter new 
business training 
(with Red Cedar)  

 

• Promote store 
accessibility during 
construction 

• Promote shuttle 
bus use 
✓Street signs 

✓Prizes 

✓Social media 

• ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

• ✓Track/collect 
business stats 

• Update business 
welcome packet 

 

DESIGN • Façade review (x10)  
• ✓Fall clean up day 
• Spring clean up day  
• ✓Banner (1 new 

set) 
• Seasonal 

beautification 
(Flowers, Funtober, 
✓Holiday) 

• Façade grant 
program (3 approved) 

• ✓Update review 
checklist 

• ✓Overlay 
awareness 
brochure 

• Historic 
preservation 
education 

• Wayfinding within 
district 

 

• Parking lot 
cleanliness & 
maintenance 
program 

• ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

ORGANIZATION 
& 
DEVELOPMENT 

• Flower fundraiser 
(Hops with Promo)  

• ✓Partner thank you 
• Volunteer 

recognition party 
• Main Street Iowa 

award nominations  
• ✓Annual fundraiser 

(Naked Spaces Tour with 
ED) 

  • ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

• Build local program 
awareness through 
community 
outreach 

• Friends campaign  
(100% board 
participation) 

• Annual meeting 
• Update “About 

CMS” packet 

192

Item 14.



 CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET  
FY20 STRATEGIC GOALS ONE-SHEET 

Activities through January 
 

July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020 
Printed 2/2/20 

 

Collaborative 
effort with 
business owners, 
property owners, 
& city to achieve 
goals 

DISTRICT 
AESTHETIC 
Positive look and 
feel of the district 

BUSINESS 
FRIENDLY 
ENVIRONMENT 
Supportive business 
community and 
strong business mix 

CONVENIENCE 
District accessibility, 
functional side of 
district aesthetics 

PARKING 
Positive impact on 
the parking 
experience 
downtown 

ANNUAL TASKS 
Ongoing operational 
activities 

PROMOTIONS  • Hops (Flower 
fundraiser) 

• Calendar of Event 
mailing (x2)  
✓Winter & Spring 

• Update 
ARTapalooza event 

• ✓Evaluate Fondo; 
repeat or drop 

• Show & Shine 
• Movies Under the 

Moon (FY20) 
• ✓Holiday Hoopla 
✓Kick off    
✓Small Bus. Sat. 
✓Breakfast with Santa 
✓Jingle & Mingle 
✓Hoopla Cheer 
✓Frosty 5K 
✓Baby It’s Cold  
✓Movie Magic 
✓Coloring Contest 
✓Window Contest 
✓Trolley Rides 
✓Letters to Santa 

• ✓Promote 
ShopWhereILive.com  

• Positive, consistent 
message (new 
parking brochure) 
 

• ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

• ✓Visitor Guide ad 
• ✓GBPAC ad 
• Tourism co-op ads 
• ✓Shop/Dine like a 

local maps 
• ✓Kiosk map 
• Kiosk flyers 

(weekly) 
• Evaluate brochure 

for possible updates 
• ✓Little Village co-

op ads with the 
Hearst (x2) 

• Newsletter (x11) 

PROMOTIONS: 
Retail & 
Nightlife 

 • ✓Sidewalk Sales  
• ✓Panther PAWty 
• Funtober promo 

Trick or Treating 

• ✓Fall Girls Night 
Out 

• ✓Holiday Shop Hop 
• ✓Small Business 

Saturday 
• Downtown Delights 
• Spring Shop Hop 
• Spring Girls Night 

Out 
• St. Patrick’s Day 

event  
• Love Rocks 
 

• Business hours 
• Activate Sidewalks 
 
 

 • Cooperative 
advertising 
opportunities (TV, 
coupons, etc) 

 

193

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1584379511253 1/8

Status Report

 1987-MS-001-Cedar Falls
 
 Downtown Resource Center

 

Award Year: 1987

Contract Number: 1987-MS-001

Status Report
Number: 74

Submitted By: Kim Bear

Submitted Date: 03/18/2020

Status Report
Type: Monthly

Title February 2020 

Report Period 02/01/2020 02/29/2020 
From Date To Date 

Status: Approved

 

 Primary Contact and Organization
 

 

Primary Contact

AnA User Id CAROL.LILLY@IOWAID 

First Name* Community Main Street Inc 
First Name Middle Name Last Name 

Title: Executive Director 

Email:* director@communitymainstreet.org 

Address:* 310 E 4th St 

   

   

City* Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone:* 319-429-0468  
Phone Ext. 

Program
Area of
Interest* 

Downtown Resource Center

Fax:  

Organization Information

Organization
Name:* Community Main Street, Inc. 

Organization
Type:* Non-Profit Organization 

DUNS:  

Organization
Website: communitymainstreet.org 

Address: Community Main Street 

  206 Main Street, Suite B 

   

 Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone: 319-277-0213  
 Ext. 

Fax:  

 
 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress
 
 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 1

Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 194

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1584379511253 2/8

Building/Business Name Blue Room Lounge 
Address 201 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $18,800.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $18,800.00 
Comments Remove & replace roof 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 2
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name River Place MU2  
Address 100 E 2nd Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $49,500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $49,500.00 
Comments Floor infill, metal beams, steel deck, concrete 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 3
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Dahlstrom Real Estate, Inc 
Address 200 W. 1st Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $5,991,099.00 
Source of Funds private 
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $5,991,099.00 
Comments Mixed use-50 apts.+ 6800 ft commercial+parking 

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 4
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name River Place MU2 
Address 122 E 2nd Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $8,000,000.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $8,000,000.00 
Comments  

195

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1584379511253 3/8

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 5
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Arabella  
Address 200 W. 1st Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $500.00 
Comments Finish 1st flr common area, rooftop deck, basement 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 6
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Prestige WW LLC 
Address 203 Main Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $460,038.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $460,038.00 
Comments Remodel exterior facade, 1st floor, and new roof 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 7
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Formerly Wells Fargo 
Address 302 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $5,400,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $5,400,000.00 
Comments Foundation only for new office bldg 

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 8
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Icon Donuts 
Address 200 W 1st Street Ste 103 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $85,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds  

196

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1584379511253 4/8

Invested 
Total Amount Invested $85,000.00 
Comments Buildout of 1610 SF w/ shared bathrooms 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 9
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Viking Pump 
Address 406 State Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $87,500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $87,500.00 
Comments Construct new quality control room inside building 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 10
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Double Tap Arcade 
Address 312 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $46,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $46,000.00 
Comments 2 ADA baths, new bar, ramp, raised floor, hip roof 

 
 

DESIGN - Building Sold
 

 Building/Business Name Address Current Use Future Use Amount of Sale

 
 

ECONOMIC VITALITY- Business
 

 Business Name Address Business Status Business Type # of FT Jobs # of PT Jobs

 
 

ECONOMIC VITALITY - New Housing
 

 Address Housing Type # of Units Monthly Rent or Purchase Price Purchase/Rent?

 
 

PROMOTION - Events 197

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1584379511253 5/8

 

 

PROMOTION - Events 1
Promotion Name* Downtown Delights 
Description Downtown Delights is an annual wine and chocolate shopping event where participating 

retail businesses offered samples of wine and chocolate to attendees while they shopped.  
Participants received cards with names of the participating businesses.  If they visited ten 
or more stops, they were eligible to win one of two Downtown staycation packages. 

Date 2/8/2020 
Status Completed 
Promotion Type Retail 
Sponsor(s) Retail Co-op participants
Achievement 

 
 

ORGANIZATION - Activities
 

 

ORGANIZATION - Activities 1
Activity Name* Volunteer Appreciation 
Description This activity was hosted by the Organization & Development Committee where 

volunteers, new volunteers, and Friends of CMS were invited to an open house 
celebration at the CMS office.  The volunteer of the year was also announced.  This was 
sponsored by Lincoln Savings Bank. 

Date 2/19/2020 
Status Completed 
Activity Type Volunteer Development 
Achievement 

 
 

OTHER - Training Sessions
 

 
Who Attended Main Street Position Training Date Topic
Kim Bear Events & Promotions Coordinator 02/05/2020 Cedar Valley Leadership Institute  

 
 

OTHER - Volunteer Hours Invested in Main Street
 

 
Volunteer
Hours

Design Economic
Vitality

Organization Promotion Board of
Directors

Program
Volunteer

Total Volunteer
Hours

Yes 6.0 6.0 18.0 60.0 29.5 29.0 148.5 

 
 

Commentary
 
 Design

Commentary/Updates 
Community Main Street  
 
DESIGN COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA  
 
Friday, February 21, 2019  
 
Noon at CMS Office  
 
  
 

198

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1584379511253 6/8

Committee Members:  Dave Schachterle, Julie Shimek, Thomas Connors, Tom Nagle, 
Mary Taylor, Don Blau, Dawn Wilson, Andrew Bell, Kara Shugar-Davis, Julie Etheredge, 
Sally Timmer, Jeremy Zehr, Jacob Bauer, JD Atodaria  
 
 One Sheet Review  
 
 Design Reviews  
 
Community Bank & Trust - JD  
 
Update on hanging baskets   
 
Façade grant program outreach  
 
Historical preservation education  
  
Cleanliness Brochure - table for future meeting  
 
 
REMINDERS ?   
 
MSI Spring Workshop is on March 10 & 11!   
 
Spring clean-up day is May 2  
 
  
 
Anticipated Meeting Outcomes  
 
Attendees will ?  
 
Understand the status of strategic plan based upon One Sheet review   
 
Review Community Bank & Trust project and provide feedback on proposed project using 
the checklist, if applicable  
 
Plan for 2020 summer hanging baskets  
 
Develop façade grant promotional plan  
 
Learn status of awning presentation 

Economic
Vitality/Business
Improvement
Commentary/Updates 

Economic Development Agenda  
 
Wednesday, February 5th, 2020  
 
CMS Office @ Noon  
 
 
Committee Members: Lexie Heath (chair), Amy Dutton, Seth Engelbrecht, Dustin Halter, 
Ty Kimble, Mark Kittrell, Danny Laudick, Lea Ann Saul, Lisa Rivera Skubal, Seth 
Chadwick, Pam Taylor CMS Staff: Carol Lilly, Maribel Barry   
 
Welcome/ Introductions   
 
Review of Strategic Goals - One Sheet   
 
Business changes   
 
The Shakery  
 
West Quality Air Systems  
 
IFC    
 
MSI Spring Conference   
 
Ready 2 Recruit  
 
$100M Benchmark   
 

199

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1584379511253 7/8

Open 4 Business  
 
Other  
  
Anticipated Outcomes ? Committee members will:  
 
Identify action items to advance strategic goals/one sheet items  
 
Identify new businesses in the district  
 
Review business changes and plan welcome visit(s)  
 
Sign-up for a session to attend at the MSI Spring Conference  
 
Receive an update regarding Ready 2 Recruit and Cedar Falls? new milestone  
 
Discuss Open 4 Business  

Promotion
Commentary/Updates 

Community Main Street  
 
PROMOTIONS MEETING AGENDA  
 
Wednesday, February 5th, 2019  
 
8:00am in the CMS Office  
 
  
 
Committee Members: Gretchen Behm, Vicki Collum, Beth LaVelle, Mike Reyhons, Kirsten 
Jegsen, Ashley Ungs, Dianne Harms, Kayla Toale, Nicole Knebel  
 
One Sheet Review  
 
Event Updates  
 
Hops  
 
ARTapalooza  
 
Show & Shine  
 
CMS Brochure Update  
  
 
Streetscape Construction Timeline & Communication  
  
 
Anticipated Meeting Outcomes:  
 
Attendees will:  
 
Receive updates on upcoming events  
 
Discuss revision of the CMS brochure  
 
Receive an update on Streetscape and determine how to communicate it to the public  
  
 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image 
and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  
 
 

Organization
Commentary/Updates 

Community Main Street  

ORGANIZATION & DEVELOPMENT MEETING AGENDA  

Monday, February 10th, 2020 

Noon in the CMS Office  
200

Item 14.



4/7/2020 IowaGrants

https://www.iowagrants.gov/getStatusReportPrintPreview.do?documentPk=1584379511253 8/8

Program
Commentary/Updates 

CMS Staff and committee members met throughout February for the Main Street Iowa 
Spring Conference.

List suggestions & questions on services, training topics, (for MSI communities and/or local needs) new resources, speakers you would
recommend, etc.

Suggestions for state
staff: 

Do you have board
president changes? No 

Board President

If there is a board president change, please complete the following:

Salutation/First/Last
Name:    

Salutation First Name Last Name 

Title  

Company  

Address  

Address 2  

City/State/County/Zip     
City State County Zip 

E-mail:  

Phone/Extension/Fax    
Phone Ext. Fax 

 

Committee Members: Karen Oltman, Cinde Haskins, Jim Miller, Tara Eisele, Phyllis Carter 

Due to the Volunteer Appreciation Party, we will not be having a meeting this month.   
Volunteer Appreciation Party - February 19th from 5:00-7:00  

Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization 
established to foster economic vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image 
and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of life in Cedar Falls.  

 

201

Item 14.



 

 

Minutes, Community Main Street, Inc. 
Board of Director Meeting 

Tuesday, February 11, 2020 @ 12:00 p.m. 
Community Main Street Office 

 
In Attendance: Amy Mohr-President; Lexie Heath–Secretary; Dan Lynch-Treasurer; Ty Kimble–Past President; 

Wynette Froehner; Audrey Kittrell; Clark Rickard; Stephanie Sheetz; Julie Shimek; Mark Showalter;  Liaisons: Kim 

Manning; Jessica Rucker Staff: Carol Lilly, Kim Bear, Maribel Barry, Larry Wessels 

 
 
1. Welcome, Call to Order – Mohr 

 
2. Terra Ray went over the Smart Parking Payment Option that will be installed in all the 

parking lots.  Users will be able to pay at the kiosk or through the app.  The key thing to 
remember is to know your license plate number! The go-live date will be announced on the 
parking page of the City’s website.  Please sign up to get updates so that you can get 
notified when the information becomes available.  

 
3. Approval of Minutes – Lynch moved for approval, Kimble seconded, all approved. 
 
4. Financial Report – Froehner moved for approval, Shimek seconded, all approved. 

 
5. Parking  

a. Stephanie brought in the City’s financial reports on how the parking budget is being 
utilized. She also addressed that there is an average of 18 citations on Saturdays 
that are $10.  As an FYI, Carol indicated that Johna and Bruce from Pump Haus are 
working on their own to take their concerns to Council.  Carol also stated that the City 
would like to wait for results to come in before they make any changes to parking.  

b. The bar/nightlife group would like to request for CMS to send a letter to Council 
supporting the elimination of Saturday enforcement. Showalter moved for approval, 
Shimek seconded, 1 abstained, all approved.  Carol will draft a letter and will get 
approved by exec before submitting.    

c. Live to 9 will be moving to the Plaza and would like to request street closures for 6 
Fridays during the summer and are asking for the written support of CMS.  The 
Board came to the agreement that they support Live to 9’s new location but would 
like to urge them to use private parking, as the road closure would lead to the 
elimination of around 40 parking spots.  Mohr moved for approval, Lynch seconded, 
1 abstained, all approved.  
 

6. President’s Report – Mohr 
a. CMS achieved Accreditation once again 
b. Main Street Iowa conference is coming up in March and we will not have a board 

meeting.  Instead, we ask that everyone takes part by sitting in on a session or 
volunteer.  
 

7. Time did not permit for Committee Program of Work Reports 
 
8. This was Carol’s last board meeting.  She thanked everyone for their partnership and wished 

everyone the best of luck. 
 

9. Time did not permit for liaison updates 
 

10. Good of the Order was given. 
 

11. Adjourn 
 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization established to foster economic 

vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of 

life in Cedar Falls.  

202

Item 14.



 CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET  
FY20 STRATEGIC GOALS ONE-SHEET 

Activities through February 
 

July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020 
Printed 2/20/20 

Collaborative 
effort with 
business owners, 
property owners, 
& city to achieve 
goals 

DISTRICT 
AESTHETIC 
Positive look and 
feel of the district 

BUSINESS 
FRIENDLY 
ENVIRONMENT 
Supportive business 
community and 
strong business mix 

CONVENIENCE 
District accessibility, 
functional side of 
district aesthetics 

PARKING 
Positive impact on 
the parking 
experience 
downtown 

ANNUAL TASKS 
Ongoing operational 
activities 

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

• Review and 
implement MSI 
exchange visit 
recommendations  

 

 
• Deliberate business 

visitation program 

  • ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

• ✓Budget 
• ✓October bi-

annual report 
• ✓City grant 

requests 
• April bi-annual 

report 
• Staff review 
• Attend city council 

meetings 
• ✓Review/update 

program policies & 
procedures 
 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 
 

• ✓Challenge Grant 
submission FY20 

 

• New business visits 
(x10) 

• Open 4 Business 
2020  

• Plan & execute 2 
deliberate actions 
to help fill vacant 
storefronts (✓Naked 
Spaces Tour with Org.) 

• ✓Establish Founder 
Peer Groups 
(30/60/90 roadmap with 
Red Cedar) 

• ✓Co-starter new 
business training 
(with Red Cedar)  

 

• Promote store 
accessibility during 
construction 

• Promote shuttle 
bus use 
✓Street signs 

✓Prizes 

✓Social media 

• ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

• ✓Track/collect 
business stats 

• Update business 
welcome packet 

 

DESIGN • Façade review (x10)  
• ✓Fall clean up day 
• Spring clean up day  
• ✓Banner (1 new 

set) 
• Seasonal 

beautification 
(Flowers, Funtober, 
✓Holiday) 

• Façade grant 
program (3 approved) 

• ✓Update review 
checklist 

• ✓Overlay 
awareness 
brochure 

• Historic 
preservation 
education 

• Wayfinding within 
district 

 

• Parking lot 
cleanliness & 
maintenance 
program 

• ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

ORGANIZATION 
& 
DEVELOPMENT 

• Flower fundraiser 
(Hops with Promo)  

• ✓Partner thank you 
• ✓Volunteer 

recognition party 
• ✓Main Street Iowa 

award nominations  
• ✓Annual fundraiser 

(Naked Spaces Tour with 
ED) 

  • ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

• Build local program 
awareness through 
community 
outreach 

• Friends campaign  
(100% board participation) 

• Annual meeting 
• Update “About 

CMS” packet 

203

Item 14.



 CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET  
FY20 STRATEGIC GOALS ONE-SHEET 

Activities through February 
 

July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020 
Printed 2/20/20 

 

Collaborative 
effort with 
business owners, 
property owners, 
& city to achieve 
goals 

DISTRICT 
AESTHETIC 
Positive look and 
feel of the district 

BUSINESS 
FRIENDLY 
ENVIRONMENT 
Supportive business 
community and 
strong business mix 

CONVENIENCE 
District accessibility, 
functional side of 
district aesthetics 

PARKING 
Positive impact on 
the parking 
experience 
downtown 

ANNUAL TASKS 
Ongoing operational 
activities 

PROMOTIONS  • Hops (Flower 
fundraiser) 

• Calendar of Event 
mailing (x2)  
✓Winter & Spring 

• Update 
ARTapalooza event 

• ✓Evaluate Fondo; 
repeat or drop 

• Show & Shine 
• Movies Under the 

Moon (FY20) 
• ✓Holiday Hoopla 
✓Kick off    
✓Small Bus. Sat. 
✓Breakfast with Santa 
✓Jingle & Mingle 
✓Hoopla Cheer 
✓Frosty 5K 
✓Baby It’s Cold  
✓Movie Magic 
✓Coloring Contest 
✓Window Contest 
✓Trolley Rides 
✓Letters to Santa 

• ✓Promote 
ShopWhereILive.com  

• Positive, consistent 
message (new 
parking brochure) 
 

• ✓MSI annual 
checklist 

• ✓Visitor Guide ad 
• ✓GBPAC ad 
• Tourism co-op ads 
• ✓Shop/Dine like a 

local maps 
• ✓Kiosk map 
• Kiosk flyers 

(weekly) 
• ✓Evaluate 

brochure for 
possible updates 

• ✓Little Village co-
op ads with the 
Hearst (x2) 

• Newsletter (x11) 

PROMOTIONS: 
Retail & 
Nightlife 

 • ✓Sidewalk Sales  
• ✓Panther PAWty 
• Funtober promo 

Trick or Treating 

• ✓Fall Girls Night 
Out 

• ✓Holiday Shop Hop 
• ✓Small Business 

Saturday 
• ✓Downtown 

Delights 
• Spring Shop Hop 
• Spring Girls Night 

Out 
• St. Patrick’s Day 

event  
• Love Rocks 
 

• Business hours 
• Activate Sidewalks 
 
 

 • Cooperative 
advertising 
opportunities (TV, 
coupons, etc) 

 

204

Item 14.



Status Report

 1987-MS-001-Cedar Falls
 
 Downtown Resource Center

 

Award Year: 1987

Contract Number: 1987-MS-001

Status Report
Number: 75

Submitted By: Kim Bear

Submitted Date: 04/16/2020

Status Report
Type: Monthly

Title March 2020 

Report Period 03/01/2020 03/31/2020 
From Date To Date 

Status: Submitted

 

 Primary Contact and Organization
 

 

Primary Contact

AnA User Id CAROL.LILLY@IOWAID 

First Name* Community Main Street Inc 
First Name Middle Name Last Name 

Title: Executive Director 

Email:* director@communitymainstreet.org 

Address:* 310 E 4th St 

   

   

City* Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone:* 319-429-0468  
Phone Ext. 

Program
Area of
Interest* 

Downtown Resource Center

Fax:  

Organization Information

Organization
Name:* Community Main Street, Inc. 

Organization
Type:* Non-Profit Organization 

DUNS:  

Organization
Website: communitymainstreet.org 

Address: Community Main Street 

  206 Main Street, Suite B 

   

 Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone: 319-277-0213  
 Ext. 

Fax:  

 
 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress
 
 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 1

Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 205

Item 14.



Building/Business Name Blue Room Lounge 
Address 201 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $18,800.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $18,800.00 
Comments Remove & replace roof 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 2
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name River Place MU2  
Address 100 E 2nd Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $49,500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $49,500.00 
Comments Floor infill, metal beams, steel deck, concrete 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 3
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Dahlstrom Real Estate, Inc 
Address 200 W. 1st Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $5,991,099.00 
Source of Funds private 
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $5,991,099.00 
Comments Mixed use-50 apts.+ 6800 ft commercial+parking 

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 4
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name River Place MU2 
Address 122 E 2nd Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $8,000,000.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $8,000,000.00 
Comments  

206

Item 14.



 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 5
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Arabella  
Address 200 W. 1st Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $500.00 
Comments Finish 1st flr common area, rooftop deck, basement 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 6
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Prestige WW LLC 
Address 203 Main Street  
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $460,038.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $460,038.00 
Comments Remodel exterior facade, 1st floor, and new roof 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 7
Project Type* New Construction 
Building/Business Name Formerly Wells Fargo 
Address 302 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $5,400,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $5,400,000.00 
Comments Foundation only for new office bldg 

 DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 8
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Icon Donuts 
Address 200 W 1st Street Ste 103 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $85,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds  

207

Item 14.



Invested 
Total Amount Invested $85,000.00 
Comments Buildout of 1610 SF w/ shared bathrooms 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 9
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Viking Pump 
Address 406 State Street 
Status Completed 
Private Amount Invested $87,500.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $87,500.00 
Comments Construct new quality control room inside building 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 10
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Double Tap Arcade 
Address 312 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $46,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $46,000.00 
Comments 2 ADA baths, new bar, ramp, raised floor, hip roof 

 

DESIGN - Projects Completed / In-Progress 11
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name MMC Properties 
Address 112 Main Street 
Status In-progress 
Private Amount Invested $30,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $30,000.00 
Comments Gut units to studs with open layout and loft 

 
 

DESIGN - Building Sold
 

 Building/Business Name Address Current Use Future Use Amount of Sale

 
 

208

Item 14.



ECONOMIC VITALITY- Business
 

 
Business Name Address Business Status Business Type # of FT Jobs # of PT Jobs
Subculture Skateboards 510 State Street Ste. B New Retail 1 1 

 
 

ECONOMIC VITALITY - New Housing
 

 Address Housing Type # of Units Monthly Rent or Purchase Price Purchase/Rent?

 
 

PROMOTION - Events
 
 
 

ORGANIZATION - Activities
 

 

ORGANIZATION - Activities 1
Activity Name* 2020 MSI Spring Workshop 
Description Cedar Falls received the honor of hosting the MSI Spring Workshop where several 

programs come together.  This was truly a collaborative effort between our committees to 
showcase our community.  Volunteers reached out to vendors and merchants for 
involvement, worked on decorations together, and giveaway bags. 

Date 2/19/2020 
Status Completed 
Activity Type Marketing of Program 
Achievement 

 
 

OTHER - Training Sessions
 

 

Who Attended Main Street Position Training Date Topic
Kim Bear Events & Promotions Coordinator 03/10/2020 MSI Spring Workshop 
Maribel Barry Office Coordinator 03/10/2020 MSI Spring Workshop 
Kim Bear Events & Promotions Coordinator 03/25/2020 Iowa City Webinar - Grants 
Kim Bear Events & Promotions Coordinator 03/26/2020 Supporting Local Safely 
Kim Bear Events & Promotions Coordinator 03/27/2020 The Importance of Digital Donor Communication  

 
 

OTHER - Volunteer Hours Invested in Main Street
 

 
Volunteer
Hours

Design Economic
Vitality

Organization Promotion Board of
Directors

Program
Volunteer

Total Volunteer
Hours

Yes 5.0 8.0 64.0 10.0 17.0 114.0 218.0 

 
 

Commentary
 

209

Item 14.



 Design
Commentary/Updates 

A Design Committee meeting was not held this month.  Instead, members were 
encouraged to attend or volunteer for the MSI Spring Workshop.

Economic
Vitality/Business
Improvement
Commentary/Updates 

An Economic Development Committee meeting was not held this month.  Instead, 
members were encouraged to attend or volunteer for the MSI Spring Workshop.

Promotion
Commentary/Updates 

A Promotions meeting was not held this month.  Instead, members were encouraged to 
attend or volunteer for the MSI Spring Workshop.

Organization
Commentary/Updates 

An Organization & Development meeting was not held this month.  Instead, members 
were encouraged to attend or volunteer for the MSI Spring Workshop.

Program
Commentary/Updates 

CMS staff and committee members continued to meet leading up to the 2020 MSI Spring 
Workshop.  

List suggestions & questions on services, training topics, (for MSI communities and/or local needs) new resources, speakers you would
recommend, etc.

Suggestions for state
staff: 

Do you have board
president changes? No 

Board President

If there is a board president change, please complete the following:

Salutation/First/Last
Name:    

Salutation First Name Last Name 

Title  

Company  

Address  

Address 2  

City/State/County/Zip     
City State County Zip 

E-mail:  

Phone/Extension/Fax    
Phone Ext. Fax 

 

210

Item 14.



  
  

Rehabilitation, Renovation & New Construction   
October 2019 through March 2020  

  Projects  Investment Value  
October 2019 2  $111,000  
November 2019  4 $259,879  
December 2019  4  $138,819  
January 2020  1  $3,500  
February 2020  0  $0  
March 2020  1 $30,000 

Net    12 $543,198 

  
  
  

Buildings Sold  
October 2019 through March 2020   

  Quantity  Investment  
October 2019 2  $725,000  
November 2019  0  $0  
December 2019  0  $0  
January 2020  0  $0  
February 2020  0  $0  
March 2020  0  $0  
Total   2  $725,000  
  
  
  

Volunteer Hours   
October 2019 through March 2020  

October 2019 444 

November 2019  1413 

December 2019    1423 

January 2020  169  
February 2020  148  

March 2020  218  
Total   3815 
  

  

  

 

211

Item 14.



Accrual Basis  Friday, November 1, 2019 08:31 AM GMT-7   1/2

Community Main Street Inc
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of October 31, 2019

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

CMS Capital Improvement Fund #7034754 14,240.36

CMS Main Checking #13920 122,768.32

CMS Money Market Operating Reserve #7004070 80,611.42

Collins Community CU Savings 115.19

Facebook Donations #700476 0.00

Paypal 0.00

Petty Cash 50.00

Total Bank Accounts $217,785.29

Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable 8,074.00

Total Accounts Receivable $8,074.00

Other Current Assets

Inventory Asset 0.00

Payroll Corrections 0.00

Undeposited Funds 0.00

Total Other Current Assets $0.00

Total Current Assets $225,859.29

Fixed Assets

310 E 4th Street (CMS Office) 429,143.58

310 E 4th Street Land 47,232.00

Building Accum. Depreciation -13,337.00

Equipment 67,967.08

Equipment Accum. Depreciation -55,838.00

Total Fixed Assets $475,167.66

Other Assets

Investment in SSMU 0.00

Investment in SSMU-Contra 0.00

Prepaid Rent 0.00

Total Other Assets $0.00

TOTAL ASSETS $701,026.95

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable 0.00

Total Accounts Payable $0.00

Other Current Liabilities

Accrued Sales Expense 0.00

Deferred Income 0.00

212

Item 14.



Accrual Basis  Friday, November 1, 2019 08:31 AM GMT-7   2/2

TOTAL

Direct Deposit Payable 0.00

FICA/Federal W/H 0.00

Gift Certificates 62,412.01

Iowa Department of Revenue Payable 0.00

Loan - First National Bank CPLTD 0.00

Payroll Liabilities 2,988.58

Sales Tax Payable 0.00

Simple IRA payable 0.00

State W/H 0.00

Total Other Current Liabilities $65,400.59

Total Current Liabilities $65,400.59

Long-Term Liabilities

Loan - First National Bank 195,839.94

Total Long-Term Liabilities $195,839.94

Total Liabilities $261,240.53

Equity

Board Designated Reserve Fund 0.00

Opening Bal Equity 0.00

Retained Earnings 431,925.81

Unrestricted Fund Balance 0.00

Net Revenue 7,860.61

Total Equity $439,786.42

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $701,026.95

213

Item 14.



COMMUNITY MAIN STREET
Income Statement

OCTOBER 2019

MONTH 
ACTUAL

MONTH 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

Revenue

   Board Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,440.00 1,560.00 -120.00 92.31% 1,440.00 1,560.00 -120.00 92.31%
   City Funding 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 12,500.00 -5,000.00 60.00%
   Event Income 5,055.00 28,000.00 -22,945.00 18.05% 42,786.44 53,320.00 -10,533.56 80.24% 42,786.44 115,000.00 -72,213.56 37.21%
   Friends/Streetscape 177.64 1,250.00 -1,072.36 14.21% 664.50 1,250.00 -585.50 53.16% 664.50 9,500.00 -8,835.50 6.99%
   Grant & other Income 2,534.41 0.00 2,534.41 3,240.05 18,000.00 -14,759.95 18.00% 3,240.05 18,000.00 -14,759.95 18.00%
   SSMID 58,965.99 50,000.00 8,965.99 117.93% 58,965.99 50,000.00 8,965.99 117.93% 58,965.99 200,000.00 -141,034.01 29.48%
Total Revenue 74,233.04 $       79,250.00 $   5,016.96 -$      93.67% 114,596.98 $   124,130.00 $   9,533.02 -$        92.32% 114,596.98 $  356,560.00 $    241,963.02 -$   32.14%
Gross Profit 74,233.04 $       79,250.00 $   5,016.96 -$      93.67% 114,596.98 $   124,130.00 $   9,533.02 -$        92.32% 114,596.98 $  356,560.00 $    241,963.02 -$   32.14%
Expenditures

   Board Lunch Expense 131.51 130.00 1.51 101.16% 531.46 520.00 11.46 102.20% 531.46 1,560.00 -1,028.54 34.07%
   Committee Expense 734.51 600.00 134.51 122.42% 4,206.49 2,000.00 2,206.49 210.32% 4,206.49 28,000.00 -23,793.51 15.02%
   Depreciation Expense 1,435.00 1,435.00 0.00 100.00% 5,740.00 5,740.00 0.00 100.00% 5,740.00 17,220.00 -11,480.00 33.33%
   Dues and Subscriptions 1,130.36 600.00 530.36 188.39% 3,588.17 3,050.00 538.17 117.64% 3,588.17 7,600.00 -4,011.83 47.21%
   Event Expense 2,515.56 14,300.00 -11,784.44 17.59% 34,057.35 37,000.00 -2,942.65 92.05% 34,057.35 86,000.00 -51,942.65 39.60%
   Grant Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18,000.00 -18,000.00 0.00%
   Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,500.00 -5,500.00 0.00%
   Miscellaneous 604.25 150.00 454.25 402.83% 1,146.63 650.00 496.63 176.40% 1,146.63 2,000.00 -853.37 57.33%
   Office Supplies 99.44 625.00 -525.56 15.91% 994.49 2,500.00 -1,505.51 39.78% 994.49 7,500.00 -6,505.51 13.26%
   Payroll Expenses 10,935.22 12,080.00 -1,144.78 90.52% 44,148.48 48,320.00 -4,171.52 91.37% 45,046.82 145,000.00 -99,953.18 31.07%
   Postage and Delivery 55.00 100.00 -45.00 55.00% 172.89 400.00 -227.11 43.22% 172.89 2,200.00 -2,027.11 7.86%
   Professional Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,875.00 4,000.00 -1,125.00 71.88% 2,875.00 7,000.00 -4,125.00 41.07%
   Repairs 0.00 375.00 -375.00 0.00% 421.01 750.00 -328.99 56.13% 421.01 1,500.00 -1,078.99 28.07%
   Snow Removal & Lawn Care 50.00 500.00 -450.00 10.00% 198.15 1,100.00 -901.85 18.01% 198.15 3,000.00 -2,801.85 6.61%
   Streetscape Expense 0.00 1,250.00 -1,250.00 0.00% 96.30 1,250.00 -1,153.70 7.70% 96.30 2,500.00 -2,403.70 3.85%
   Telephone 243.47 207.00 36.47 117.62% 653.08 828.00 -174.92 78.87% 653.08 2,488.00 -1,834.92 26.25%
   Travel & Training 1,880.81 150.00 1,730.81 1253.87% 2,598.03 600.00 1,998.03 433.01% 2,598.03 5,000.00 -2,401.97 51.96%
   Utilities 300.00 300.00 0.00 100.00% 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00 100.00% 1,200.00 4,000.00 -2,800.00 30.00%
Total Expenditures 20,115.13 $       32,802.00 $   12,686.87 -$    61.32% 102,627.53 $   109,908.00 $   7,280.47 -$        93.38% 103,525.87 $  346,068.00 $    242,542.13 -$   29.91%
Net Operating Revenue 54,117.91 $       46,448.00 $   7,669.91 $       116.51% 11,969.45 $     14,222.00 $     2,252.55 -$        84.16% 11,071.11 $    10,492.00 $      579.11 $            105.52%
Other Expenditures

   Interest Expense 1,014.71 1,014.75 -0.04 100.00% 4,058.84 4,059.00 -0.16 100.00% 4,058.84 12,177.00 -8,118.16 33.33%
Total Other Expenditures 1,014.71 $         1,014.75 $     0.04 -$             100.00% 4,058.84 $       4,059.00 $       0.16 -$               100.00% 4,058.84 $      12,177.00 $      8,118.16 -$       33.33%
Net Other Revenue 1,014.71 -$       1,014.75 -$    0.04 $              100.00% 4,058.84 -$      4,059.00 -$     0.16 $                100.00% 4,058.84 -$     12,177.00 -$     8,118.16 $         33.33%
Net Revenue 53,103.20 $       45,433.25 $   7,669.95 $       116.88% 7,910.61 $       10,163.00 $     2,252.39 -$        77.84% 7,012.27 $      1,685.00 -$       8,697.27 $         -416.16%

MONTHLY BUDGET - OCTOBER MONTHLY BUDGET - JULY TO OCTOBER ANNUAL BUDGET

214

Item 14.



Accrual Basis  Monday, December 2, 2019 08:29 AM GMT-8   1/2

Community Main Street Inc
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of November 30, 2019

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

CMS Capital Improvement Fund #7034754 14,243.87

CMS Main Checking #13920 137,000.63

CMS Money Market Operating Reserve #7004070 80,641.22

Collins Community CU Savings 115.19

Facebook Donations #700476 0.00

Paypal 0.00

Petty Cash 50.00

Total Bank Accounts $232,050.91

Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable 4,739.00

Total Accounts Receivable $4,739.00

Other Current Assets

Inventory Asset 0.00

Payroll Corrections 0.00

Undeposited Funds 0.00

Total Other Current Assets $0.00

Total Current Assets $236,789.91

Fixed Assets

310 E 4th Street (CMS Office) 429,143.58

310 E 4th Street Land 47,232.00

Building Accum. Depreciation -14,417.00

Equipment 67,967.08

Equipment Accum. Depreciation -56,193.00

Total Fixed Assets $473,732.66

Other Assets

Investment in SSMU 0.00

Investment in SSMU-Contra 0.00

Prepaid Rent 0.00

Total Other Assets $0.00

TOTAL ASSETS $710,522.57

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable 0.00

Total Accounts Payable $0.00

Other Current Liabilities

Accrued Sales Expense 0.00

Deferred Income 0.00

215

Item 14.



Accrual Basis  Monday, December 2, 2019 08:29 AM GMT-8   2/2

TOTAL

Direct Deposit Payable 0.00

FICA/Federal W/H 0.00

Gift Certificates 62,367.01

Iowa Department of Revenue Payable 0.00

Loan - First National Bank CPLTD 0.00

Payroll Liabilities 3,778.50

Sales Tax Payable 0.00

Simple IRA payable 0.00

State W/H 0.00

Total Other Current Liabilities $66,145.51

Total Current Liabilities $66,145.51

Long-Term Liabilities

Loan - First National Bank 195,777.39

Total Long-Term Liabilities $195,777.39

Total Liabilities $261,922.90

Equity

Board Designated Reserve Fund 0.00

Opening Bal Equity 0.00

Retained Earnings 431,925.81

Unrestricted Fund Balance 0.00

Net Revenue 16,673.86

Total Equity $448,599.67

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $710,522.57

216

Item 14.



COMMUNITY MAIN STREET
Income Statement

NOVEMBER 2019

MONTH 
ACTUAL

MONTH 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

Revenue

   Board Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,440.00 1,560.00 -120.00 92.31% 1,440.00 1,560.00 -120.00 92.31%
   City Funding 0.00 6,250.00 -6,250.00 0.00% 7,500.00 6,250.00 1,250.00 120.00% 7,500.00 12,500.00 -5,000.00 60.00%
   Event Income 17,670.00 25,000.00 -7,330.00 70.68% 60,456.44 78,320.00 -17,863.56 77.19% 60,456.44 115,000.00 -54,543.56 52.57%
   Friends/Streetscape 1,538.82 0.00 1,538.82 2,203.32 1,250.00 953.32 176.27% 2,203.32 9,500.00 -7,296.68 23.19%
   Grant & other Income 279.29 0.00 279.29 3,519.34 18,000.00 -14,480.66 19.55% 3,519.34 18,000.00 -14,480.66 19.55%
   SSMID 20,702.95 50,000.00 -29,297.05 41.41% 79,668.94 100,000.00 -20,331.06 79.67% 79,668.94 200,000.00 -120,331.06 39.83%
Total Revenue 40,191.06 $       81,250.00 $   41,058.94 -$    49.47% 154,788.04 $   205,380.00 $   50,591.96 -$      75.37% 154,788.04 $  356,560.00 $    201,771.96 -$   43.41%
Gross Profit 40,191.06 $       81,250.00 $   41,058.94 -$    49.47% 154,788.04 $   205,380.00 $   50,591.96 -$      75.37% 154,788.04 $  356,560.00 $    201,771.96 -$   43.41%
Expenditures

   Board Lunch Expense 162.18 130.00 32.18 124.75% 693.64 650.00 43.64 106.71% 693.64 1,560.00 -866.36 44.46%
   Committee Expense 3,352.79 5,000.00 -1,647.21 67.06% 7,559.28 7,000.00 559.28 107.99% 7,559.28 28,000.00 -20,440.72 27.00%
   Depreciation Expense 1,435.00 1,435.00 0.00 100.00% 7,175.00 7,175.00 0.00 100.00% 7,175.00 17,220.00 -10,045.00 41.67%
   Dues and Subscriptions 538.99 600.00 -61.01 89.83% 4,127.16 3,650.00 477.16 113.07% 4,127.16 7,600.00 -3,472.84 54.30%
   Event Expense 9,154.24 25,000.00 -15,845.76 36.62% 43,211.59 62,000.00 -18,788.41 69.70% 43,637.59 86,000.00 -42,362.41 50.74%
   Grant Expense 0.00 9,000.00 -9,000.00 0.00% 0.00 9,000.00 -9,000.00 0.00% 0.00 18,000.00 -18,000.00 0.00%
   Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,500.00 -5,500.00 0.00%
   Miscellaneous 252.90 150.00 102.90 168.60% 1,399.53 800.00 599.53 174.94% 1,399.53 2,000.00 -600.47 69.98%
   Office Supplies 101.05 625.00 -523.95 16.17% 1,095.54 3,125.00 -2,029.46 35.06% 1,095.54 7,500.00 -6,404.46 14.61%
   Payroll Expenses 12,682.14 12,080.00 602.14 104.98% 56,830.62 60,400.00 -3,569.38 94.09% 56,830.62 145,000.00 -88,169.38 39.19%
   Postage and Delivery 1,420.32 500.00 920.32 284.06% 1,593.21 900.00 693.21 177.02% 1,593.21 2,200.00 -606.79 72.42%
   Professional Fees 515.00 0.00 515.00 3,390.00 4,000.00 -610.00 84.75% 3,390.00 7,000.00 -3,610.00 48.43%
   Repairs 0.00 0.00 0.00 421.01 750.00 -328.99 56.13% 421.01 1,500.00 -1,078.99 28.07%
   Snow Removal & Lawn Care 98.15 125.00 -26.85 78.52% 296.30 1,225.00 -928.70 24.19% 296.30 3,000.00 -2,703.70 9.88%
   Streetscape Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 96.30 1,250.00 -1,153.70 7.70% 96.30 2,500.00 -2,403.70 3.85%
   Telephone 123.47 207.00 -83.53 59.65% 776.55 1,035.00 -258.45 75.03% 776.55 2,488.00 -1,711.45 31.21%
   Travel & Training 276.87 50.00 226.87 553.74% 2,874.90 650.00 2,224.90 442.29% 2,874.90 5,000.00 -2,125.10 57.50%
   Utilities 300.00 350.00 -50.00 85.71% 1,500.00 1,550.00 -50.00 96.77% 1,500.00 4,000.00 -2,500.00 37.50%
Total Expenditures 30,413.10 $       55,252.00 $   24,838.90 -$    55.04% 133,040.63 $   165,160.00 $   32,119.37 -$      80.55% 133,466.63 $  346,068.00 $    212,601.37 -$   38.57%
Net Operating Revenue 9,777.96 $         25,998.00 $   16,220.04 -$    37.61% 21,747.41 $     40,220.00 $     18,472.59 -$      54.07% 21,321.41 $    10,492.00 $      10,829.41 $       203.22%
Other Expenditures

   Interest Expense 1,014.71 1,014.75 -0.04 100.00% 5,073.55 5,073.75 -0.20 100.00% 5,073.55 12,177.00 -7,103.45 41.67%
Total Other Expenditures 1,014.71 $         1,014.75 $     0.04 -$             100.00% 5,073.55 $       5,073.75 $       0.20 -$               100.00% 5,073.55 $      12,177.00 $      7,103.45 -$       41.67%
Net Other Revenue 1,014.71 -$       1,014.75 -$    0.04 $              100.00% 5,073.55 -$      5,073.75 -$     0.20 $                100.00% 5,073.55 -$     12,177.00 -$     7,103.45 $         41.67%
Net Revenue 8,763.25 $         24,983.25 $   16,220.00 -$    35.08% 16,673.86 $     35,146.25 $     18,472.39 -$      47.44% 16,247.86 $    1,685.00 -$       17,932.86 $       -964.26%

MONTHLY BUDGET - NOVEMBER MONTHLY BUDGET - JULY TO NOVEMBER ANNUAL BUDGET

217

Item 14.



Accrual Basis  Thursday, January 2, 2020 10:32 AM GMT-06:00   1/2

Community Main Street Inc
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of December 31, 2019

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

CMS Capital Improvement Fund #7034754 14,247.50

CMS Main Checking #13920 130,063.77

CMS Money Market Operating Reserve #7004070 80,672.02

Collins Community CU Savings 115.19

Facebook Donations #700476 0.00

Paypal 0.00

Petty Cash 50.00

Total Bank Accounts $225,148.48

Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable 4,614.50

Total Accounts Receivable $4,614.50

Other Current Assets

Inventory Asset 0.00

Payroll Corrections 0.00

Undeposited Funds 0.00

Total Other Current Assets $0.00

Total Current Assets $229,762.98

Fixed Assets

310 E 4th Street (CMS Office) 429,143.58

310 E 4th Street Land 47,232.00

Building Accum. Depreciation -15,497.00

Equipment 67,967.08

Equipment Accum. Depreciation -56,548.00

Total Fixed Assets $472,297.66

Other Assets

Investment in SSMU 0.00

Investment in SSMU-Contra 0.00

Prepaid Rent 0.00

Total Other Assets $0.00

TOTAL ASSETS $702,060.64

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable 0.00

Total Accounts Payable $0.00

Other Current Liabilities

Accrued Sales Expense 0.00

Deferred Income 0.00

218

Item 14.



Accrual Basis  Thursday, January 2, 2020 10:32 AM GMT-06:00   2/2

TOTAL

Direct Deposit Payable 0.00

FICA/Federal W/H 0.00

Gift Certificates 85,775.34

Iowa Department of Revenue Payable 0.00

Loan - First National Bank CPLTD 0.00

Payroll Liabilities 664.57

Sales Tax Payable 0.00

Simple IRA payable 0.00

State W/H 0.00

Total Other Current Liabilities $86,439.91

Total Current Liabilities $86,439.91

Long-Term Liabilities

Loan - First National Bank 195,714.84

Total Long-Term Liabilities $195,714.84

Total Liabilities $282,154.75

Equity

Board Designated Reserve Fund 0.00

Opening Bal Equity 0.00

Retained Earnings 431,925.81

Unrestricted Fund Balance 0.00

Net Revenue -12,019.92

Total Equity $419,905.89

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $702,060.64

219

Item 14.



COMMUNITY MAIN STREET
Income Statement

DECEMBER 2019

MONTH 
ACTUAL

MONTH 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

Revenue

   Board Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,440.00 1,560.00 -120.00 92.31% 1,440.00 1,560.00 -120.00 92.31%
   City Funding 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 6,250.00 1,250.00 120.00% 7,500.00 12,500.00 -5,000.00 60.00%
   Event Income 9,479.59 10,000.00 -520.41 94.80% 69,936.03 88,320.00 -18,383.97 79.18% 69,936.03 115,000.00 -45,063.97 60.81%
   Friends/Streetscape 894.12 0.00 894.12 3,097.44 1,250.00 1,847.44 247.80% 3,097.44 9,500.00 -6,402.56 32.60%
   Grant & other Income 34.43 0.00 34.43 3,553.77 18,000.00 -14,446.23 19.74% 3,553.77 18,000.00 -14,446.23 19.74%
   SSMID 0.00 0.00 0.00 79,668.94 100,000.00 -20,331.06 79.67% 79,668.94 200,000.00 -120,331.06 39.83%
Total Revenue 10,408.14 $       10,000.00 $   408.14 $          104.08% 165,196.18 $   215,380.00 $   50,183.82 -$      76.70% 165,196.18 $  356,560.00 $    191,363.82 -$   46.33%
Gross Profit 10,408.14 $       10,000.00 $   408.14 $          104.08% 165,196.18 $   215,380.00 $   50,183.82 -$      76.70% 165,196.18 $  356,560.00 $    191,363.82 -$   46.33%
Expenditures

   Board Lunch Expense 11.98 130.00 -118.02 9.22% 705.62 780.00 -74.38 90.46% 705.62 1,560.00 -854.38 45.23%
   Committee Expense 813.25 3,500.00 -2,686.75 23.24% 8,372.53 10,500.00 -2,127.47 79.74% 8,372.53 28,000.00 -19,627.47 29.90%
   Depreciation Expense 1,435.00 1,435.00 0.00 100.00% 8,610.00 8,610.00 0.00 100.00% 8,610.00 17,220.00 -8,610.00 50.00%
   Dues and Subscriptions 594.49 600.00 -5.51 99.08% 4,721.65 4,250.00 471.65 111.10% 4,721.65 7,600.00 -2,878.35 62.13%
   Event Expense 21,796.27 11,000.00 10,796.27 198.15% 65,007.86 73,000.00 -7,992.14 89.05% 65,007.86 86,000.00 -20,992.14 75.59%
   Grant Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,000.00 -9,000.00 0.00% 0.00 18,000.00 -18,000.00 0.00%
   Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,500.00 -5,500.00 0.00%
   Miscellaneous 61.98 200.00 -138.02 30.99% 1,461.51 1,000.00 461.51 146.15% 1,461.51 2,000.00 -538.49 73.08%
   Office Supplies 640.35 625.00 15.35 102.46% 1,735.89 3,750.00 -2,014.11 46.29% 1,735.89 7,500.00 -5,764.11 23.15%
   Payroll Expenses 12,108.12 12,080.00 28.12 100.23% 68,938.74 72,480.00 -3,541.26 95.11% 68,938.74 145,000.00 -76,061.26 47.54%
   Postage and Delivery 0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.00% 1,593.21 1,000.00 593.21 159.32% 1,593.21 2,200.00 -606.79 72.42%
   Professional Fees 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.00% 3,390.00 5,000.00 -1,610.00 67.80% 3,390.00 7,000.00 -3,610.00 48.43%
   Repairs 0.00 0.00 0.00 421.01 750.00 -328.99 56.13% 421.01 1,500.00 -1,078.99 28.07%
   Snow Removal & Lawn Care 0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.00% 296.30 1,425.00 -1,128.70 20.79% 296.30 3,000.00 -2,703.70 9.88%
   Streetscape Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 96.30 1,250.00 -1,153.70 7.70% 96.30 2,500.00 -2,403.70 3.85%
   Telephone 204.65 207.00 -2.35 98.86% 981.20 1,242.00 -260.80 79.00% 981.20 2,488.00 -1,506.80 39.44%
   Travel & Training 121.12 1,000.00 -878.88 12.11% 2,996.02 1,650.00 1,346.02 181.58% 2,996.02 5,000.00 -2,003.98 59.92%
   Utilities 300.00 350.00 -50.00 85.71% 1,800.00 1,900.00 -100.00 94.74% 1,800.00 4,000.00 -2,200.00 45.00%
Total Expenditures 38,087.21 $       32,427.00 $   5,660.21 $       117.46% 171,127.84 $   197,587.00 $   26,459.16 -$      86.61% 171,127.84 $  346,068.00 $    174,940.16 -$   49.45%
Net Operating Revenue 27,679.07 -$     22,427.00 -$  5,252.07 -$      123.42% 5,931.66 -$      17,793.00 $     23,724.66 -$      -33.34% 5,931.66 -$     10,492.00 $      16,423.66 -$     -56.54%
Other Expenditures

   Interest Expense 1,014.71 1,014.75 -0.04 100.00% 6,088.26 6,088.50 -0.24 100.00% 6,088.26 12,177.00 -6,088.74 50.00%
Total Other Expenditures 1,014.71 $         1,014.75 $     0.04 -$             100.00% 6,088.26 $       6,088.50 $       0.24 -$               100.00% 6,088.26 $      12,177.00 $      6,088.74 -$       50.00%
Net Other Revenue 1,014.71 -$       1,014.75 -$    0.04 $              100.00% 6,088.26 -$      6,088.50 -$     0.24 $                100.00% 6,088.26 -$     12,177.00 -$     6,088.74 $         50.00%
Net Revenue 28,693.78 -$     23,441.75 -$  5,252.03 -$      122.40% 12,019.92 -$    11,704.50 $     23,724.42 -$      -102.69% 12,019.92 -$   1,685.00 -$       10,334.92 -$     713.35%

MONTHLY BUDGET - DECEMBER MONTHLY BUDGET - JULY TO DECEMBER ANNUAL BUDGET

220

Item 14.



Accrual Basis  Monday, February 3, 2020 10:33 AM GMT-06:00   1/2

Community Main Street Inc
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of January 31, 2020

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

CMS Capital Improvement Fund #7034754 14,251.13

CMS Main Checking #13920 117,643.27

CMS Money Market Operating Reserve #7004070 80,702.83

Collins Community CU Savings 115.19

Facebook Donations #700476 0.00

Paypal 0.00

Petty Cash 50.00

Total Bank Accounts $212,762.42

Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable 3,395.00

Total Accounts Receivable $3,395.00

Other Current Assets

Inventory Asset 0.00

Payroll Corrections 0.00

Undeposited Funds 0.00

Total Other Current Assets $0.00

Total Current Assets $216,157.42

Fixed Assets

310 E 4th Street (CMS Office) 429,143.58

310 E 4th Street Land 47,232.00

Building Accum. Depreciation -16,577.00

Equipment 67,967.08

Equipment Accum. Depreciation -56,903.00

Total Fixed Assets $470,862.66

Other Assets

Investment in SSMU 0.00

Investment in SSMU-Contra 0.00

Prepaid Rent 0.00

Total Other Assets $0.00

TOTAL ASSETS $687,020.08

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable 0.00

Total Accounts Payable $0.00

Other Current Liabilities

Accrued Sales Expense 0.00

Deferred Income 0.00

221

Item 14.



Accrual Basis  Monday, February 3, 2020 10:33 AM GMT-06:00   2/2

TOTAL

Direct Deposit Payable 0.00

FICA/Federal W/H 0.00

Gift Certificates 87,612.80

Iowa Department of Revenue Payable 0.00

Loan - First National Bank CPLTD 0.00

Payroll Liabilities -387.65

Sales Tax Payable 0.00

Simple IRA payable 0.00

State W/H 0.00

Total Other Current Liabilities $87,225.15

Total Current Liabilities $87,225.15

Long-Term Liabilities

Loan - First National Bank 195,652.29

Total Long-Term Liabilities $195,652.29

Total Liabilities $282,877.44

Equity

Board Designated Reserve Fund 0.00

Opening Bal Equity 0.00

Retained Earnings 431,925.81

Unrestricted Fund Balance 0.00

Net Revenue -27,783.17

Total Equity $404,142.64

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $687,020.08

222

Item 14.



COMMUNITY MAIN STREET
Income Statement

JANUARY 2020

MONTH 
ACTUAL

MONTH 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

Revenue

   Board Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 1,440.00 1,560.00 -120.00 92.31% 1,440.00 1,560.00 -120.00 92.31%
   City Funding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 7,500.00 6,250.00 1,250.00 120.00% 7,500.00 12,500.00 -5,000.00 60.00%
   Event Income 2,300.00 2,400.00 -100.00 95.83% 73,086.03 90,720.00 -17,633.97 80.56% 73,086.03 115,000.00 -41,913.97 63.55%
   Friends/Streetscape 1,538.82 0.00 1,538.82 0.00% 4,636.26 1,250.00 3,386.26 370.90% 4,636.26 9,500.00 -4,863.74 48.80%
   Grant & other Income 48.44 0.00 48.44 0.00% 3,602.21 18,000.00 -14,397.79 20.01% 3,602.21 18,000.00 -14,397.79 20.01%
   SSMID 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 79,668.94 100,000.00 -20,331.06 79.67% 79,668.94 200,000.00 -120,331.06 39.83%
Total Revenue 3,887.26 $         2,400.00 $     1,487.26 $       161.97% 169,933.44 $   217,780.00 $   47,846.56 -$      78.03% 169,933.44 $  356,560.00 $    186,626.56 -$   47.66%
Gross Profit 3,887.26 $         2,400.00 $     1,487.26 $       161.97% 169,933.44 $   217,780.00 $   47,846.56 -$      78.03% 169,933.44 $  356,560.00 $    186,626.56 -$   47.66%
Expenditures

   Board Lunch Expense 0.00 130.00 -130.00 0.00% 705.62 910.00 -204.38 77.54% 705.62 1,560.00 -854.38 45.23%
   Committee Expense 121.26 2,500.00 -2,378.74 4.85% 8,785.53 13,000.00 -4,214.47 67.58% 8,785.53 28,000.00 -19,214.47 31.38%
   Depreciation Expense 1,435.00 1,435.00 0.00 100.00% 10,045.00 10,045.00 0.00 100.00% 10,045.00 17,220.00 -7,175.00 58.33%
   Dues and Subscriptions 651.39 550.00 101.39 118.43% 5,373.04 4,800.00 573.04 111.94% 5,373.04 7,600.00 -2,226.96 70.70%
   Event Expense 4,917.71 8,000.00 -3,082.29 61.47% 69,933.83 81,000.00 -11,066.17 86.34% 69,933.83 86,000.00 -16,066.17 81.32%
   Grant Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 9,000.00 -9,000.00 0.00% 0.00 18,000.00 -18,000.00 0.00%
   Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 5,500.00 -5,500.00 0.00%
   Miscellaneous 195.81 150.00 45.81 130.54% 1,657.32 1,150.00 507.32 144.11% 1,657.32 2,000.00 -342.68 82.87%
   Office Supplies 59.74 625.00 -565.26 9.56% 1,795.63 4,375.00 -2,579.37 41.04% 1,795.63 7,500.00 -5,704.37 23.94%
   Payroll Expenses 10,984.50 12,080.00 -1,095.50 90.93% 79,923.24 84,560.00 -4,636.76 94.52% 79,923.24 145,000.00 -65,076.76 55.12%
   Postage and Delivery 0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.00% 1,593.21 1,100.00 493.21 144.84% 1,593.21 2,200.00 -606.79 72.42%
   Professional Fees 291.50 0.00 291.50 0.00% 3,681.50 5,000.00 -1,318.50 73.63% 3,681.50 7,000.00 -3,318.50 52.59%
   Repairs 0.00 375.00 -375.00 0.00% 421.01 1,125.00 -703.99 37.42% 421.01 1,500.00 -1,078.99 28.07%
   Snow Removal & Lawn Care 30.00 200.00 -170.00 15.00% 326.30 1,625.00 -1,298.70 20.08% 326.30 3,000.00 -2,673.70 10.88%
   Streetscape Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 96.30 1,250.00 -1,153.70 7.70% 96.30 2,500.00 -2,403.70 3.85%
   Telephone 124.39 207.00 -82.61 60.09% 1,105.59 1,449.00 -343.41 76.30% 1,105.59 2,488.00 -1,382.41 44.44%
   Travel & Training 0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.00% 2,996.02 1,750.00 1,246.02 171.20% 2,996.02 5,000.00 -2,003.98 59.92%
   Utilities 374.50 350.00 24.50 107.00% 2,174.50 2,250.00 -75.50 96.64% 2,174.50 4,000.00 -1,825.50 54.36%
Total Expenditures 19,185.80 $       26,802.00 $   7,616.20 -$      71.58% 190,613.64 $   224,389.00 $   33,775.36 -$      84.95% 190,613.64 $  346,068.00 $    155,454.36 -$   55.08%
Net Operating Revenue 15,298.54 -$     24,402.00 -$  9,103.46 $       62.69% 20,680.20 -$    6,609.00 -$     14,071.20 -$      312.91% 20,680.20 -$   10,492.00 $      31,172.20 -$     -197.10%
Other Expenditures

   Interest Expense 1,014.71 1,014.75 -0.04 100.00% 7,102.97 7,103.25 -0.28 100.00% 7,102.97 12,177.00 -5,074.03 58.33%
Total Other Expenditures 1,014.71 $         1,014.75 $     0.04 -$             100.00% 7,102.97 $       7,103.25 $       0.28 -$               100.00% 7,102.97 $      12,177.00 $      5,074.03 -$       58.33%
Net Other Revenue 1,014.71 -$       1,014.75 -$    0.04 $              100.00% 7,102.97 -$      7,103.25 -$     0.28 $                100.00% 7,102.97 -$     12,177.00 -$     5,074.03 $         58.33%
Net Revenue 16,313.25 -$     25,416.75 -$  9,103.50 $       64.18% 27,783.17 -$    13,712.25 -$   14,070.92 -$      202.62% 27,783.17 -$   1,685.00 -$       26,098.17 -$     1648.85%

MONTHLY BUDGET - JANUARY MONTHLY BUDGET - JULY TO JANUARY ANNUAL BUDGET

223

Item 14.



Accrual Basis  Monday, March 2, 2020 11:36 AM GMT-06:00   1/2

Community Main Street Inc
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of February 29, 2020

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

CMS Capital Improvement Fund #7034754 14,254.52

CMS Main Checking #13920 76,909.13

CMS Money Market Operating Reserve #7004070 98,882.03

Collins Community CU Savings 115.19

Facebook Donations #700476 0.00

Paypal 0.00

Petty Cash 50.00

Total Bank Accounts $190,210.87

Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable 1,800.00

Total Accounts Receivable $1,800.00

Other Current Assets

Inventory Asset 0.00

Payroll Corrections 0.00

Undeposited Funds 0.00

Total Other Current Assets $0.00

Total Current Assets $192,010.87

Fixed Assets

310 E 4th Street (CMS Office) 429,143.58

310 E 4th Street Land 47,232.00

Building Accum. Depreciation -17,657.00

Equipment 67,967.08

Equipment Accum. Depreciation -57,258.00

Total Fixed Assets $469,427.66

Other Assets

Investment in SSMU 0.00

Investment in SSMU-Contra 0.00

Prepaid Rent 0.00

Total Other Assets $0.00

TOTAL ASSETS $661,438.53

224

Item 14.



Accrual Basis  Monday, March 2, 2020 11:36 AM GMT-06:00   2/2

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable 0.00

Total Accounts Payable $0.00

Other Current Liabilities

Accrued Sales Expense 0.00

Deferred Income 0.00

Direct Deposit Payable 0.00

FICA/Federal W/H 0.00

Gift Certificates 84,862.80

Iowa Department of Revenue Payable 0.00

Loan - First National Bank CPLTD 0.00

Payroll Liabilities -87.63

Sales Tax Payable 0.00

Simple IRA payable 0.00

State W/H 0.00

Total Other Current Liabilities $84,775.17

Total Current Liabilities $84,775.17

Long-Term Liabilities

Loan - First National Bank 195,589.74

Total Long-Term Liabilities $195,589.74

Total Liabilities $280,364.91

Equity

Board Designated Reserve Fund 0.00

Opening Bal Equity 0.00

Retained Earnings 431,925.81

Unrestricted Fund Balance 0.00

Net Revenue -50,852.19

Total Equity $381,073.62

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $661,438.53

225

Item 14.



COMMUNITY MAIN STREET
Income Statement

FEBRUARY 2020

MONTH 
ACTUAL

MONTH 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

Revenue

   Board Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 1,440.00 1,560.00 -120.00 92.31% 1,440.00 1,560.00 -120.00 92.31%
   City Funding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 7,500.00 6,250.00 1,250.00 120.00% 7,500.00 12,500.00 -5,000.00 60.00%
   Event Income 412.82 0.00 412.82 0.00% 73,498.85 90,720.00 -17,221.15 81.02% 73,498.85 115,000.00 -41,501.15 63.91%
   Friends/Streetscape -406.98 3,500.00 -3,906.98 -11.63% 4,229.28 4,750.00 -520.72 89.04% 4,229.28 9,500.00 -5,270.72 44.52%
   Grant & other Income 37.59 0.00 37.59 0.00% 3,639.80 18,000.00 -14,360.20 20.22% 3,639.80 18,000.00 -14,360.20 20.22%
   SSMID 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 79,668.94 100,000.00 -20,331.06 79.67% 79,668.94 200,000.00 -120,331.06 39.83%
Total Revenue 43.43 $              3,500.00 $     3,456.57 -$      1.24% 169,976.87 $   221,280.00 $   51,303.13 -$      76.82% 169,976.87 $  356,560.00 $    186,583.13 -$   47.67%
Gross Profit 43.43 $              3,500.00 $     3,456.57 -$      1.24% 169,976.87 $   221,280.00 $   51,303.13 -$      76.82% 169,976.87 $  356,560.00 $    186,583.13 -$   47.67%
Expenditures

   Board Lunch Expense 174.20 130.00 44.20 134.00% 879.82 1,040.00 -160.18 84.60% 879.82 1,560.00 -680.18 56.40%
   Committee Expense 3,899.31 4,000.00 -100.69 97.48% 12,684.84 17,000.00 -4,315.16 74.62% 12,684.84 28,000.00 -15,315.16 45.30%
   Depreciation Expense 1,435.00 1,435.00 0.00 100.00% 11,480.00 11,480.00 0.00 100.00% 11,480.00 17,220.00 -5,740.00 66.67%
   Dues and Subscriptions 746.77 550.00 196.77 135.78% 6,119.81 5,350.00 769.81 114.39% 6,119.81 7,600.00 -1,480.19 80.52%
   Event Expense 1,365.55 500.00 865.55 273.11% 71,149.38 81,500.00 -10,350.62 87.30% 71,149.38 86,000.00 -14,850.62 82.73%
   Grant Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 9,000.00 -9,000.00 0.00% 0.00 18,000.00 -18,000.00 0.00%
   Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,500.00 -5,500.00 0.00%
   Miscellaneous 84.00 150.00 -66.00 56.00% 1,741.32 1,300.00 441.32 133.95% 1,741.32 2,000.00 -258.68 87.07%
   Office Supplies 266.53 625.00 -358.47 42.64% 2,062.16 5,000.00 -2,937.84 41.24% 2,062.16 7,500.00 -5,437.84 27.50%
   Payroll Expenses 10,745.52 12,080.00 -1,334.48 88.95% 90,668.76 96,640.00 -5,971.24 93.82% 90,668.76 145,000.00 -54,331.24 62.53%
   Postage and Delivery 176.18 300.00 -123.82 58.73% 1,769.39 1,400.00 369.39 126.39% 1,769.39 2,200.00 -430.61 80.43%
   Professional Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 3,681.50 5,000.00 -1,318.50 73.63% 3,681.50 7,000.00 -3,318.50 52.59%
   Repairs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 421.01 1,125.00 -703.99 37.42% 421.01 1,500.00 -1,078.99 28.07%
   Snow Removal & Lawn Care 80.00 200.00 -120.00 40.00% 406.30 1,825.00 -1,418.70 22.26% 406.30 3,000.00 -2,593.70 13.54%
   Streetscape Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 96.30 1,250.00 -1,153.70 7.70% 96.30 2,500.00 -2,403.70 3.85%
   Telephone 204.39 207.00 -2.61 98.74% 1,309.98 1,656.00 -346.02 79.11% 1,309.98 2,488.00 -1,178.02 52.65%
   Travel & Training 85.00 100.00 -15.00 85.00% 3,081.02 1,850.00 1,231.02 166.54% 3,081.02 5,000.00 -1,918.98 61.62%
   Utilities 343.42 350.00 -6.58 98.12% 2,517.92 2,600.00 -82.08 96.84% 2,517.92 4,000.00 -1,482.08 62.95%
Total Expenditures 19,605.87 $       20,627.00 $   1,021.13 -$      95.05% 210,069.51 $   245,016.00 $   34,946.49 -$      85.74% 210,069.51 $  346,068.00 $    135,998.49 -$   60.70%
Net Operating Revenue 19,562.44 -$     17,127.00 -$  2,435.44 -$      114.22% 40,092.64 -$    23,736.00 -$   16,356.64 -$      168.91% 40,092.64 -$   10,492.00 $      50,584.64 -$     -382.13%
Other Expenditures

   Interest Expense 1,014.71 1,014.75 -0.04 100.00% 8,117.68 8,118.00 -0.32 100.00% 8,117.68 12,177.00 -4,059.32 66.66%
Other Expenses 2,641.87 0.00 2,641.87 2,641.87 0.00 2,641.87 2,641.87 0.00 2,641.87 
Total Other Expenditures 3,656.58 $         1,014.75 $     2,641.83 $       360.34% 10,759.55 $     8,118.00 $       2,641.55 $         132.54% 10,759.55 $    12,177.00 $      1,417.45 -$       88.36%
Net Other Revenue 3,656.58 -$       1,014.75 -$    2,641.83 -$      360.34% 10,759.55 -$    8,118.00 -$     2,641.55 -$        132.54% 10,759.55 -$   12,177.00 -$     1,417.45 $         88.36%
Net Revenue 23,219.02 -$     18,141.75 -$  5,077.27 -$      127.99% 50,852.19 -$    31,854.00 -$   18,998.19 -$      159.64% 50,852.19 -$   1,685.00 -$       49,167.19 -$     3017.93%

MONTHLY BUDGET - FEBRUARY MONTHLY BUDGET - JULY TO FEBRUARY ANNUAL BUDGET

226

Item 14.



Community Main Street Inc
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of March 31, 2020

Accrual Basis  Wednesday, April 1, 2020 10:55 AM GMT-05:00   1/2

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

CMS Capital Improvement Fund #7034754 14,258.12

CMS Main Checking #13920 60,197.86

CMS Money Market Operating Reserve #7004070 98,913.30

Collins Community CU Savings 115.19

Facebook Donations #700476 0.00

Paypal 0.00

Petty Cash 50.00

Total Bank Accounts $173,534.47

Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable 2,230.00

Total Accounts Receivable $2,230.00

Other Current Assets

Inventory Asset 0.00

Payroll Corrections 0.00

Undeposited Funds 0.00

Total Other Current Assets $0.00

Total Current Assets $175,764.47

Fixed Assets

310 E 4th Street (CMS Office) 429,143.58

310 E 4th Street Land 47,232.00

Building Accum. Depreciation -18,737.00

Equipment 67,967.08

Equipment Accum. Depreciation -57,613.00

Total Fixed Assets $467,992.66

Other Assets

Investment in SSMU 0.00

Investment in SSMU-Contra 0.00

Prepaid Rent 0.00

Total Other Assets $0.00

TOTAL ASSETS $643,757.13

227

Item 14.



Community Main Street Inc
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of March 31, 2020

Accrual Basis  Wednesday, April 1, 2020 10:55 AM GMT-05:00   2/2

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable 0.00

Total Accounts Payable $0.00

Other Current Liabilities

Accrued Sales Expense 0.00

Deferred Income 0.00

Direct Deposit Payable 0.00

FICA/Federal W/H 0.00

Gift Certificates 80,732.80

Iowa Department of Revenue Payable 0.00

Loan - First National Bank CPLTD 0.00

Payroll Liabilities -1,055.46

Sales Tax Payable 0.00

Simple IRA payable 0.00

State W/H 0.00

Total Other Current Liabilities $79,677.34

Total Current Liabilities $79,677.34

Long-Term Liabilities

Loan - First National Bank 195,527.19

Total Long-Term Liabilities $195,527.19

Total Liabilities $275,204.53

Equity

Board Designated Reserve Fund 0.00

Opening Bal Equity 0.00

Retained Earnings 431,925.81

Unrestricted Fund Balance 0.00

Net Revenue -63,373.21

Total Equity $368,552.60

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $643,757.13

228

Item 14.



COMMUNITY MAIN STREET
Income Statement

MARCH 2020

MONTH 
ACTUAL

MONTH 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

Revenue

   Board Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 1,440.00 1,560.00 -120.00 92.31% 1,440.00 1,560.00 -120.00 92.31%
   City Funding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 7,500.00 6,250.00 1,250.00 120.00% 7,500.00 12,500.00 -5,000.00 60.00%
   Event Income 1,265.00 0.00 1,265.00 0.00% 74,763.85 90,720.00 -15,956.15 82.41% 74,763.85 115,000.00 -40,236.15 65.01%
   Friends/Streetscape 3,109.25 3,500.00 -390.75 88.84% 7,338.53 8,250.00 -911.47 88.95% 7,338.53 9,500.00 -2,161.47 77.25%
   Grant & other Income 34.87 0.00 34.87 0.00% 3,674.67 18,000.00 -14,325.33 20.41% 3,674.67 18,000.00 -14,325.33 20.41%
   SSMID 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 79,668.94 100,000.00 -20,331.06 79.67% 79,668.94 200,000.00 -120,331.06 39.83%
Total Revenue 4,409.12 $         3,500.00 $     909.12 $          125.97% 174,385.99 $   224,780.00 $   50,394.01 -$      77.58% 174,385.99 $  356,560.00 $    182,174.01 -$   48.91%
Gross Profit 4,409.12 $         3,500.00 $     909.12 $          125.97% 174,385.99 $   224,780.00 $   50,394.01 -$      77.58% 174,385.99 $  356,560.00 $    182,174.01 -$   48.91%
Expenditures

   Board Lunch Expense 0.00 130.00 -130.00 0.00% 879.82 1,170.00 -290.18 75.20% 879.82 1,560.00 -680.18 56.40%
   Committee Expense 342.79 1,000.00 -657.21 34.28% 13,027.63 18,000.00 -4,972.37 72.38% 13,027.63 28,000.00 -14,972.37 46.53%
   Depreciation Expense 1,435.00 1,435.00 0.00 100.00% 12,915.00 12,915.00 0.00 100.00% 12,915.00 17,220.00 -4,305.00 75.00%
   Dues and Subscriptions 551.77 550.00 1.77 100.32% 6,671.58 5,900.00 771.58 113.08% 6,671.58 7,600.00 -928.42 87.78%
   Event Expense 5,425.27 500.00 4,925.27 1085.05% 76,724.65 82,000.00 -5,275.35 93.57% 76,724.65 86,000.00 -9,275.35 89.21%
   Grant Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 9,000.00 -9,000.00 0.00% 0.00 18,000.00 -18,000.00 0.00%
   Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,500.00 -5,500.00 0.00%
   Miscellaneous 440.92 200.00 240.92 220.46% 2,182.24 1,500.00 682.24 145.48% 2,182.24 2,000.00 182.24 109.11%
   Office Supplies 66.05 625.00 -558.95 10.57% 2,128.21 5,625.00 -3,496.79 37.83% 2,128.21 7,500.00 -5,371.79 28.38%
   Payroll Expenses 6,998.97 12,090.00 -5,091.03 57.89% 97,667.73 108,730.00 -11,062.27 89.83% 97,667.73 145,000.00 -47,332.27 67.36%
   Postage and Delivery 0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.00% 1,769.39 1,500.00 269.39 117.96% 1,769.39 2,200.00 -430.61 80.43%
   Professional Fees 110.00 1,000.00 -890.00 11.00% 3,791.50 6,000.00 -2,208.50 63.19% 3,791.50 7,000.00 -3,208.50 54.16%
   Repairs 0.00 0.00 0.00 421.01 1,125.00 -703.99 37.42% 421.01 1,500.00 -1,078.99 28.07%
   Snow Removal & Lawn Care 0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.00% 406.30 2,025.00 -1,618.70 20.06% 406.30 3,000.00 -2,593.70 13.54%
   Streetscape Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 96.30 1,250.00 -1,153.70 7.70% 96.30 2,500.00 -2,403.70 3.85%
   Telephone 72.82 207.00 -134.18 35.18% 1,382.80 1,863.00 -480.20 74.22% 1,382.80 2,488.00 -1,105.20 55.58%
   Travel & Training 30.00 500.00 -470.00 6.00% 3,111.02 2,350.00 761.02 132.38% 3,111.02 5,000.00 -1,888.98 62.22%
   Utilities 351.84 350.00 1.84 100.53% 2,869.76 2,950.00 -80.24 97.28% 2,869.76 4,000.00 -1,130.24 71.74%
Total Expenditures 15,825.43 $       18,887.00 $   3,061.57 -$      83.79% 226,044.94 $   263,903.00 $   37,858.06 -$      85.65% 226,044.94 $  346,068.00 $    120,023.06 -$   65.32%
Net Operating Revenue 11,416.31 -$     15,387.00 -$  3,970.69 $       74.19% 51,658.95 -$    39,123.00 -$   12,535.95 -$      132.04% 51,658.95 -$   10,492.00 $      62,150.95 -$     -492.37%
Other Expenditures

   Interest Expense 1,014.71 1,014.75 -0.04 100.00% 9,132.39 9,132.75 -0.36 100.00% 9,132.39 12,177.00 -3,044.61 75.00%
Other Expenses 0.00 $                0.00 $            0.00 $              0.00% 2,641.87 0.00 2,641.87 0.00% 2,641.87 0.00 2,641.87 0.00%
Total Other Expenditures 1,014.71 $         1,014.75 $     0.04 -$             100.00% 11,774.26 $     9,132.75 $       2,641.51 $         128.92% 11,774.26 $    12,177.00 $      402.74 -$          96.69%
Net Other Revenue 1,014.71 -$       1,014.75 -$    0.04 $              100.00% 11,774.26 -$    9,132.75 -$     2,641.51 -$        128.92% 11,774.26 -$   12,177.00 -$     402.74 $            96.69%
Net Revenue 12,431.02 -$     16,401.75 -$  3,970.73 $       75.79% 63,433.21 -$    48,255.75 -$   15,177.46 -$      131.45% 63,433.21 -$   1,685.00 -$       61,748.21 -$     3764.58%

MONTHLY BUDGET - MARCH MONTHLY BUDGET - JULY TO MARCH ANNUAL BUDGET

229

Item 14.



 
 
Streetscape Improvement and Cleanliness project 
 
The improvement project has the power to transform our downtown, generate pride and 
create a sense of belonging in areas off Main Street. It will improve assessed values of 
the properties off Main which translates into sustainability, economic development, and 
increased quality of life.  
 
During the past six months CMS (October -April): 

• Deposited $11,749 to the Streetscape Fund held by the Cedar Falls Community 
Foundation. 

• Worked with Kevin Cross from Public Works to get the plaques created from the 
Details of the District campaign for all the benches and light poles. 

• Ordered the new hanging baskets for the newly installed light poles on State and 
Washington.  

• Worked with CFU on the new light poles to ensure the banner arms would 
accommodate existing banners.   

• All hanging baskets were planted with flowers for their summer debut.  
 

230

Item 14.



     ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: April 27, 2020 

SUBJECT:      FY20 Report by College Hill Partnership 
    
 
As you may recall, starting in FY09 we signed formal agreements with those outside 
agencies that receive funding from the City of Cedar Falls. As part of those agreements, 
these agencies were required to submit reports and documentation on how those funds 
were used. 
 
Attached is the bi-annual report for FY20 filed by College Hill Partnership. The second 
½ payment for their SSMID funding and the second ½ payment for their economic 
development grant are therefore listed on the council bills to be processed. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 
      

231

Item 15.



 

 
 

College Hill Partnership 

2304 College Street 

Po Box 974 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 

Phone: 319-273-6228 

collegehillpartnership@gmail.com 

www.collegehillpartnership.org 

 

 

2019-2020 

Board of Directors 

Dave Deibler, President 

Chris Martin, Vice President 

Becky Hawbaker, Secretary 

Doug Johnson, Treasurer 

Andrea Geary 

Andy Fuchtman 

Barb Schilf 

Brent Dahlstrom 

Jacob Levang 

Kyle Dehmlow 

Ryan Kriener 

 

 

15 April 2020 

Mayor Green & Members of Cedar Falls City Council 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 

RE: SSMID, Economic Development, Façade Grant 

 

Attached please find the Biannual Report form College Hill Partnership 

detailing our organization’s current status and progress in promoting 

and revitalizing the College Hill.   

 

In this report you will find the following information: 

- Accomplishments of the last 6 Months 

- List of Current Board of Directors  

- Financial Statements 

- 2019-2020 Budget (included on Financial Statement) 

 

We are thankful for the support that the City of Cedar Falls has given 

our organization over the year and the collaboration that we have had.   

 

With the submission of this report, we respectfully ask for the 

disbursement of the SSMID Funds, Façade Grant Funds and Economic 

Development Funds to the College Hill Partnership.  Please notify us if 

there is any additional information as needed as we would be happy to 

provide it.   

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

Kathryn Sogard, Executive Director 

On behalf of the College                            

Hill Partnership Board Of 

Directors 

 

232

Item 15.



April 15th, 2020 UPDATE 

  
  

  

Economic Development Fund/SSMID 

Community Development Fund 

EVALUATION FY20 

  

  

  

  

Project Completion and Evaluation Form 
                          
 

To assist the Economic Development Review Board in evaluating the impact your organization/project 

had on contributing to or promoting economic development and the creation of quality employment 

opportunities in Cedar Falls, please complete the following (use additional paper if necessary): 

 

  
Project Completion and Evaluation Form 
  
Name of Organization:   College Hill Partnership 
Project Description: 
-         The College Hill Partnership received approval of our business district as a Self-Supported 

Municipal Improvement District. 

-         The objective of the College Hill Partnership SSMID is to help further our organization by 

representing and advocating for the interests of the College Hill.  We have worked to do this through 

economic development, tourism, and quality of life in the College Hill area. We have also worked to 

improve the performance of the administration, redevelopment, and revitalization of the district. These 

funds specifically have helped to pay to further our mission of revival and promotion of the College Hill 

area.  

233

Item 15.



April 15th, 2020 UPDATE 

- The College Hill Partnership received approval of an Economic Development Grant.  

- The objective of the Economic Development grant is to further our mission to remain a leader in 

revitalization and promotion of the College Hill Overlay District. Funds for the specific grant were to 

supply monies to support efforts of aesthetic caretaking and to support efforts to research the economic 

atmosphere on College Hill. 

-          The College Hill Partnership received approval of the Facade Improvement Grant.  

-          The objective of the Façade Improvement grant is to further our mission to remain a leader in 

revitalization and promotion of the College Hill Overlay District. Funds are being used to supply the CHP 

and the College Hill Businesses to improve the facades of their buildings.    

 

  
What is the mission of your organization?: 
-          College Hill Partnership (CHP) is a non-profit organization that serves as the leader in the 

revitalization and promotion of the College Hill area, an urban neighborhood community.  The scope of 

its mission includes promoting healthy neighborhood businesses and housing enhancement, strengthening 

collaboration and pride; developing public/private partnerships; and serving as an advocate for addressing 

area concerns. 
 
Grant Amount: SSMID $25,000.00+    Economic Development Grant $3,000.00  Façade Improvement 

Grant $6,000 

 

 

Address of Organization or person completing this application: 
Street: P.O. Box 974 
City: Cedar Falls                                State: Iowa         Zip: 50613 
Phone: 319-273-6228      Email: collegehillpartnership@gmail.com 
  

  

  
1. Do you consider your organization/project a success April 2019 2018 through October 2019? 

Why? 
 

 Our organization has made advancements over the last six months. The CHP focused its 

efforts in the previous six months on creating programming that supports our mission 

supporting economic development. The College Hill Partnership has helped facilitated 

several forums for stakeholders. These forums have helped constituents voice concerns 

on upcoming changes to the overlay district.  

 Our Executive Director has worked hard to be a voice for the College Hill. Without 

SSMID funding, the CHP would run solely on volunteer hours. 

 We have installed new banners throughout our district. They include a mix of banners 

along W 23rd Street and College Street and neighborhood banners along Seerley Blvd.  

 We are encouraged four new businesses have located to the Hill and opened their doors. 

We are looking forward to seeing new entrepreneurs head to the Hill to open a business.   

 We have been a part of several collaborative projects, as well. Such as: 

 Street Farmers Markets 

 Pear Fair 

 UNI Gradfest 

 UNINOW Event: Panther Block Pawty 

234

Item 15.



April 15th, 2020 UPDATE 

 Fortepan Wheat Pasting Mural Project 

  
2. Does the outcome of this grant funding to your operation/project align with the Economic 

Development Fund/SSMID goals of complementing Cedar Falls economic development 

efforts?  Explain. 
  

The College Hill Partnership use of SSMID funding aligns with the efforts of the city in several 

ways: 

- We have seen an increase in investment in our district. This investment has resulted in a steady 

job growth. College Hill has seen the opening of Buzz Smoke and Vapor, Oh My Grill, and soon 

to open a new hookah bar located on College Street.  

- The College Hill Partnership is unique with its connection to not only the business district but 

to the University (through a Staff Liaison and Student Board member). By funding the CHP, a 

multifaceted organization, with a diverse demographic, the City of Cedar Falls is ensuring that 

customers are connected to businesses, and vice-versa. Through this connection, College Hill 

companies can supply offerings that are in demand. A study supported by the CHP several years 

ago helped neighbors voice their support for a coffee shop on the Hill. Because of this study, the 

College Hill Business District was able to gain Sidecar Coffee, now a staple of the Hill. We have 

made additional efforts to study the desires of not only the patrons of College Hill but also the 

nearby residents. We have partnered with a group of university students to promote a survey 

determining the desired offerings the Partnership could offer in Seerley Park. This group of 

students is using some base data collected by our Neighborhood Services Committee. It has 

created and revised a survey to include students at UNI. This partnership is vital to ensuring a 

large sample is taken from a broad spectrum of users. We hope to use their data collected to 

create a plan to improve the Seerley Park. We have utilized Seerley Park for many of our events 

to promote community on College Hill.  

- Over the past six months, we have also partnered with another group from UNI. This group is 

made up of UNI Presidential Scholars who are working to implement a Sexual Assault 

Prevention Bystander Training Program in the Cedar Valley. They chose College Hill to test out 

their curriculum with the hopes they will be able to implement the program in other popular 

nightlife areas in the Cedar Valley. According to BJS.gov, the Midwest region has the highest 

rate of sexual assaults in the nation. Many attacks happen when alcohol is involved. Having a 

program offered on College Hill is a benefit not only to businesses, but to the patrons, and the 

overall safety of our broader community. Programs such as these support economic development 

and help to ensure successful business on the Hill. We are currently working on a similar project 

to implement mirror prompts. These prompts can be found on mirrors around campus, and the 

NISG is working on displaying the same prompts on mirrors throughout College Hill.  

- These outcomes and efforts show that the economic environment in the College Hill and City 

of Cedar Falls is a positive one that encourages businesses to locate and expand here. 

  

3. Did receipt of an Economic Development Fund, Community Betterment grant, and 

SSMID enable your organization/project to provide a new service to promote economic 

development or the creation of quality employment opportunities in Cedar Falls? How? 
  

The nature of the College Hill is an ever-changing. It is a developing area which requires that our 

organization continual focus on renewal and community engagement. The SSMID funding helps 

the College Hill Partnership provide numerous services that promote economic development and 

235

Item 15.



April 15th, 2020 UPDATE 

improve quality employment opportunities. This past year the College Hill Partnership has been 

able to maintain a part-time Executive Director. SSMID monies helped further our mission. It 

helped us create consistency on our board and in each of our committees. Our services fall into 

four key areas. 

 Encouraging cooperative business strategies 

 Developing awareness of the neighborhood and business district through digital media  

 Including several collaborative opportunities for marketing through events and 

partnerships 

 Improving the physical appearance of the College Hill 

 Promoting the District 

 Sponsoring and Fostering Cultural Events 

 See specific examples in the following answer 

  
4. Please provide a summary of activities complete from October 2019 through April 2020 by your 

organization/project. 
 

The College Hill Partnership has many services aimed at promoting economic development. 

Through the receipt of funds, we were able to undertake many new projects during the year. 

Summarization of our organization's activities are as follows: 

  

Encouraging cooperative business strategies. The College Hill Partnership has an 

understanding of the challenges the College Hill area faces. We work together with merchants, 

residents, landlords, the University of Northern Iowa, and the City of Cedar Falls to make 

physical improvements. We have also been at the forefront in facilitating growth through better 

communication and connecting relevant parties. We have helped business growth through 

assisting with the establishment of a College Hill TIF District, a College Hill Urban 

Revitalization Program (CHURP), and participation in the Façade Grant Program.  The CHP 

staff has developed a local business survey to be completed in the upcoming months to provide 

more statistics of the neighborhood businesses. In addition to this survey, we have been working 

on compiling information about residents within our district. Having knowledge about each 

segment of our organization will help ensure we are providing the necessary services to our 

community which we serve. This sort of data helps to inform our business decisions and support 

the local business environment. As mentioned before, several businesses are opening on the Hill 

this Summer and Fall, and we hope that more will follow. Consistent efforts and meetings with 

the local shops and an active Executive Director have helped us improve our communication 

with the overall business district. We have been able to conduct and facilitate several public 

forums that have addressed specific challenges that College Hill Businesses face including, 

safety and aesthetic care. 

  

Improving the physical appearance of College Hill. One of CHP’s charges is to create an 

inviting environment where people want to live, work, and visit. The College Hill district is a 

significant gateway to Cedar Falls through UNI. It is one of the first districts that create an 

impression; the local area shows to visitors, future students, and their parents. To that end, the 

CHP has overseen the maintenance of flower beds in Pettersen Plaza and along College and 23rd 

Streets. Over the past month the College Hill Partnership beds have been highlighted on several 

Master Gardner websites highlighting public garden spaces, and how to maintain them 

successfully. In the past six months, the College Hill Partnership has worked with the Black 

236

Item 15.



April 15th, 2020 UPDATE 

Hawk County Master Gardeners to aid our organization in the beatification of the area. Their 

volunteers have continued to donate countless hours to help put the plant beds to bed for the 

winter season. A collaboration between the College Hill Partnership, BHCo Master Gardeners, 

and Friends of Pettersen Plaza have also spent almost 150 hours working on providing an 

aesthetically pleasing, event-friendly space at the bottom of the Hill that reflects the Namesake 

of the Plaza, Hugh Pettersen. Without the support of the Parks and Rec Commission and the City 

Council, we would not be on our way to finalizing a plan for the small plaza at the bottom of the 

Hill. We are looking forward to implementing our spring program of beautification and 

welcoming our newest team member to help us care for the atheistic needs of the Hill. To date, 

we have raised over $10,000 in private donations to go towards the improvements of Pettersen 

Plaza. This effort has resulted in a beautiful aesthetically pleasing area drawing the attention of 

the local community. Many of the board members can be found spending free time picking up 

trash and debris left behind in highly used areas like the College Hill neighborhood. Another 

proud partnership we have is with UNI NOW and Community Main Street for UNI's Welcome 

Week. Through this partnership, we have facilitated a clean-up service day. This day featured an 

opportunity for UNI Students to help us clean up the Hill. Over a dozen people were on the Hill 

for just over an hour picking up trash and recyclables. We have already begun the planning for 

this year’s events and look forward to having new UNI students help us care for their and our 

neighborhood. The College Hill Partnership wants to also thank the City of Cedar Falls for the 

lengthy discussions about trash collection in the College Hill Business District and the 

Downtown District. We appreciate that the City wants to care for our districts and understand 

funding for that care can be costly. Our organization wants to thank City Staff and City Council 

Members for realizing that additional expenses required for caretaking would be an additional 

burden. This would mean our focus would shift away from other economic development 

activities. The financial support and human resources to care for trash and the College Hill 

Partnership much appreciates other unexpected repairs or maintenance, and the entire overlay. 

We have also been fortunate to partner with SAE on the Northern Iowa Campus to help us care 

for one of the more extensive beds along 23rd Street. This partnership has allowed us to build a 

new relationship with young members of our community and build on our link with the 

University of Northern Iowa. With our unique position close to campus, we believe it is our job 

to help encourage university students and community members to come together. We hope that 

by bringing these two groups together, we can work towards common goals to improve our 

community. With the support of the CHP, we had more business than student groups who 

wanted to be involved in this collaborative tradition. 

  

Usage of Economic Development Fund Monies. The College Hill Partnership was awarded 

$3,000 through the Economic Development Fund. $2,500 was allocated to aesthetic caretaking. 

These funds have allowed us to fill a position to help care for the College Hill Business District. 

This caretaker is a great addition to our staff and has kept the Hill clean and safer between 

planned volunteer clean-ups. With the high volume of traffic on College Hill, a consistent effort 

is required to keep it clean. The other $500 is going to be allocated to a study that will help the 

College Hill Partnership analyze the economic environment on College Hill.  

 

Survey Project: 

We have been working with a UNI Student Group to help us complete the study to evaluate the 

economic environment on the Hill.  Their efforts have generated over 200 student responses.   

237

Item 15.



April 15th, 2020 UPDATE 

This student group have donated over 20 hours to this project (average volunteer hour is worth  

$25.43 according to independentsector.org(April 2019)). During May and June we will be 

pushing out this survey to the general public.   

 

In-kind donations(Hours):  20x $25.43 = $508.60 

In-kind donations:   Approx. $300.00 

 Donuts/Cookies from Icon Donuts 

Advertising Dollars:   $100.00 

    Total Project Cost: $1,408.60 (See Spreadsheet Attached) 

 

Aesthetic Caretaking Project: 

This past year we have been able to employ a aesthetic caretaking professional to help us care for 

the Hill.  In addition to their employee we have been able to supply this person with much 

needed cleaning equipment to keep the Hill clean and cared for.  

 

In addition to her services we have been able to continue to care for the aesthetic quality on 

College Hill.  We were able to do this by supporting beautification efforts, supply plantings, such 

as flowers, trees, and the overall care for beds along College Street and West 23
rd

 Street.  

 

In-kind donations (Hours):   398.5x $25.43 = $10,133.86 

Salary:     $991.20 

Beautification:    $908.58 

    Total Project Cost: $12,033.64 

  

Usage of Facade Fund Monies. The CHP was awarded monies through the Facade Fund. 

Monies are being utilized to make improvements in our district. By allocating funds to 

businesses that are investing in improving their facades, the overall appearance of the Hill is 

greatly improved. We have approve three requests for funding however projects have not moved 

past their grant submission.  We are hopeful the funds will be utilized before the deadline of June 

30
th

.   

 

Grant Awards Include: 

1. Business 1:    LED Lighting $750.00 

2. Business 2:    LED Lighting $750.00 

3. Business 3:    New Windows $2,500.00 

    Total Grants Awarded:  $4000.00 

 

  
Promoting College Hill. The College Hill Partnership is promoting the Hill through regular 

face-to-face meetings, frequent email communication, a booth at the annual College Hill Arts 

Festival, our website (www.collegehillpartnership.org) and blog, 

- Facebook Page (1796, a .7% increase in the last 6 months),  

- Twitter account (2333, a 2.4% increase over the previous 6 months),  

- Instagram account (1390, a 10.5% increase in the last 6 months),  

- and newly added Linkedin account (356, a 7% increase in the last 6 months), 

- & Snapchat, YouTube, and Pinterest pages, 

238

Item 15.



April 15th, 2020 UPDATE 

 we help keep all of our members and interested groups connected and up-to-date with what’s 

happening on College Hill, and how we can assist in its improvement. We have also added in the 

last twelve months Snapchat, and Pinterest accounts, all growing in popularity and reach. One of 

the most popular posts on our Social Media channels was a project we have collaborated with 

UNI and Fortepan Iowa. We worked to capture the process of installing five wheat pasting 

murals on College Hill. The social reach was massive for us and a great highlight for College 

Hill and Cedar Falls. This social media exposure even reached the country of Fortepan's origin, 

Hungary. We have also connected with members via email and google groups in efforts to ensure 

we are communicating the CHP's activities. This past year we were excited to add a blog hosted 

on the CHP website. We have used our blog feature upcoming events, important College Hill 

news, and updates from the City. We have also featured several guest bloggers from our 

community writing about all things College Hill. One of our most viewed blogs is an article 

about the history of the trees along Seerley Blvd. Because of the vast nature of the College Hill 

Partnership, there are many exciting dimensions we can highlight, and many stakeholders' stories 

to tell and the Partnership felt a great way to showcase our diverse community was to increase 

our social reach through an online publication. This blog is an opportunity also to showcase 

issues relevant to our community. 

  

Sponsoring and Fostering Cultural Events. Since 2008, the CHP has sponsored many events 

that have become traditions. The CHP Annual Meeting (April), and the annual neighborhood 

picnic (August). The CHP also helped establish the College Hill Farmers Market, 22nd and 

College, co-sponsored with UNI’s CEEE (weekly, Thursdays, June- Oct). This year we have 

supported hosting the farmers market on College Street to encourage more vendors and 

customers to participate. These events helped to spur other activities, including Pear Fair – 

Mohair Pear (October, began 2011); the College Hill Music Festival (May; began 2013), and the 

College Hill Criterium Bicycle Race (April, began in 2013). 

Additionally, this year, we hosted the 4th Annual Oktoberfest event, which helped support and 

increases business activity and showcases what the College Hill area has to offer. We were 

honored to work side by side with the University of Northern Iowa and Community Main Street 

to create an excellent Fall Kickoff for New UNI students. This event helps to introduce students 

to both districts and help them become more familiar with Cedar Falls. The College Hill 

Partnership has noted our most successful events are when we can partner with community 

organizations. By having more organizations involved, we can cross-promote the event, develop 

stronger community bonds, and shoulder the burden of the cost events can create. Activities such 

as these are an essential way to appeal to a substantial, diverse demographic, which brings a 

significant amount of revenue to the College Hill and the City of Cedar Falls. Our events 

committee volunteers spent countless hours over the summer and Fall to make these events 

unique and successful. All activities mentioned above increase the vitality of College Hill, drive 

interest in spending time on the Hill, and aid economic development within our local district and 

the City of Cedar Falls.  

  
5. Do you have suggestions for improvement of this grant process? 
  

-          Our organization does would like to make the suggestion of, instead of submitting a 

biannual report maybe submitting monthly board packets.  Our board packet includes: 

 - Minutes from meetings  

 - Coordinators Report 

239

Item 15.



April 15th, 2020 UPDATE 

 - Committee Updates 

 - Financial Reports 

 - Other details which are included in this report. 

We believe this might be a better glimpse into the vast array of work that the College Hill 

Partnership undertakes.    

 

 

6. The Economic Development Fund Evaluation Reports (Bi-Annual) for the Fiscal Year 2020 

must be submitted by October 15, 2019, and April 15, 2020, to: 
  

  

  
Cedar Falls Economic Development Review Board 

c/o Director of Community Development 
220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

240

Item 15.



April 15th, 2020 UPDATE 

Supporting Documents 
  

College Hill Partnership 
2018-2019 

Board of Directors 
  

 

Resident: Chris Martin (2018-2020) - chris.martin@cfu.net 
Secretary - Resident: Becky Hawbaker (2018-2020) - becky.hawbaker@uni.edu 
President - Landlord: Dave Deibler (2018-2020) -Octopuscollegehill@gmail.com 
Landlord: Ryan Kreiner (2019-2021) - rkriener@msn.com 
Business: Andrea Geary (2019-2021) - andrea@milkboxbakery.com 
Business: Barb Schilf (2018-2020) - barb.mohairpear@gmail.com 
President - At Large: Kyle Dehmlow (2019-2021) - kyledehmlow1@gmail.com 
Treasurer - At Large: Doug Johnson (2017-2019) - djohnson@panthersupply.com 
At Large: Brent Dahlstrom (2019)  - brentdahlstrom@gmail.com 
At Large: Andy Fuchtman (2017-2019) - fuchtman@gmail.com 
At Large (Student): Jacob Levang (2019-2020) - nisg-president@uni.edu 
 

Non-Voting Board Members 
 
Past President: Kamyar Enshayan - kenshayan@gmail.com  
UNI Liaison: Andrew Morse – Andrew.morse@uni.edu 
City of Cedar Falls Liaison: Mike Hayes - mike.hayes@cedarfalls.com 
City of Cedar Falls Liaison: Karen Howard – Karen.howard@cedarfalls.com 
Master Gardner:  Vaughn Griffith – vjgriff@forbin.net 
College Hill Arts Festival Liaison: Mary-Sue Bartlett - mary-suebartlett@cfu.net 
Cedar Valley Alliance Liaison:  Cary Darrah - carydarrah@cfu.net 
Community Main Street Liaison: Carol Lilly - cmsdirector@cfu.net 
Executive Director: Kathryn Sogard - collegehillpartnership@gmail.com 
City Council Representative: Tom Blanford - Tom.Blanford@cedarfalls.com 
 

241

Item 15.



College Hill Partnership 2019-20 Budget Financial Statement

4/15/2020

Income  Budget  July  August  September  October  November  December  January  Febuary  March  Remaining Budget Total 
Memberships/Donations ($ 1,200.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 25.00)           ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 390.73)         ($ -  )               ($ 784.27)                 ($ 415.73)         
SSMID ($ 26,000.00)    ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 4,634.81)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 21,365.19)            ($ 4,634.81)      
Economic Development Grant: City of Cedar Falls ($ 3,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 1,500.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 1,500.00)              ($ 1,500.00)      
Interest ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                       ($ -  )               
Tree Fund ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                       ($ -  )               
Other ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                       ($ -  )               
Pettersen Plaza Fund ($ -  )               ($ 862.00)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 500.00)         ($ 250.00)         ($ 1,100.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                       ($ 2,712.00)      

Total Income ($ 30,200.00)    ($ 862.00)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 6,659.81)      ($ 250.00)         ($ 1,100.00)      ($ -  )               ($ 390.73)         ($ -  )               ($ 23,649.46)            ($ 9,262.54)      

Expenses
Advertising/Donations ($ 1,000.00)      ($ 150.00)         ($ 300.00)         ($ -  )               ($ 740.00)         ($ 2,150.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ (2,340.00)             ($ 3,340.00)      
Insurance ($ 3,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 568.00)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 2,432.00)              ($ 568.00)         
General Office Expenses ($ 3,000.00)      ($ 123.34)         ($ 314.71)         ($ 199.92)         ($ 135.80)         ($ -  )               ($ 117.98)         ($ 638.09)         ($ 282.82)         ($ 40.00)           ($ 1,147.34)              ($ 1,852.66)      
Salaries (Including Taxes) ($ 20,000.00)    ($ 1,799.52)      ($ 1,349.66)      ($ 1,336.50)      ($ 2,988.19)      ($ 1,922.63)      ($ 1,760.20)      ($ 1,907.94)      ($ 1,687.41)      ($ 1,002.17)      ($ 4,245.78)              ($ 15,754.22)    
Hill Cleaning Service ($ 2,000.00)      ($ 69.43)           ($ 38.69)           ($ 280.46)         ($ 150.09)         ($ 163.53)         ($ 180.40)         ($ 25.49)           ($ -  )               ($ 83.11)           ($ 1,008.80)              ($ 991.20)         
Facade Improvement Program ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                       ($ -  )               
Business Improvemnet Committee ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                       ($ -  )               
Organization Development Committee ($ 500.00)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 500.00)                 ($ -  )               
Neighborhood Services Committee ($ 1,500.00)      ($ -  )               ($ 22.00)           ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 1,478.00)              ($ 22.00)           
Beautification Committee ($ 1,000.00)      ($ 93.82)           ($ 279.34)         ($ 486.47)         ($ 23.31)           ($ -  )               ($ 25.64)           ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 91.42)                   ($ 908.58)         
Marketing/Promotions  Committee ($ 4,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ 470.90)         ($ 1,086.06)      ($ 1,227.44)      ($ 110.00)         ($ (134.44)        ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 1,240.04)              ($ 2,759.96)      
Farmers Market ($ 700.00)         ($ -  )               ($ 150.00)         ($ 100.00)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 450.00)                 ($ 250.00)         
Tree Fund ($ 1,625.90)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 1,625.90)              ($ -  )               
Pettersen Plaza ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                       ($ -  )               
Banners ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 269.64)         ($ -  )               ($ (269.64)                ($ 269.64)         
Total Expenses ($ 38,325.90)    ($ 2,236.11)      ($ 2,925.30)      ($ 4,327.05)      ($ 5,264.83)      ($ 4,346.16)      ($ 1,949.78)      ($ 2,571.52)      ($ 1,970.23)      ($ 1,125.28)      ($ 11,609.64)            ($ 26,716.26)    

Balance (Income vs. Expenses) ($ (8,125.90)     ($ (1,374.11)     ($ (2,925.30)     ($ (4,327.05)     ($ 1,394.98)      ($ (4,096.16)     ($ (849.78)        ($ (2,571.52)     ($ (1,579.50)     ($ (1,125.28)     ($ 12,039.82)            ($ (17,453.72)   

Check Accounts  Ending Balance ($ 58,196.01)    ($ 55,627.03)    ($ 52,419.52)    ($ 46,376.98)    ($ 49,358.73)    ($ 33,337.94)    ($ 32,234.53)    ($ 29,805.83)    ($ 28,165.51)    ($ -  )               
           Pettersen Plaza Fund balance ($ 10,620.00)    ($ 11,482.00)    ($ 11,482.00)    ($ 12,750.00)    ($ 12,750.00)    ($ 634.85)         ($ 1,734.85)      ($ 1,734.85)      ($ 1,734.85)      

Date of Balance 7/1/2019 8/12/2019 9/5/2019 10/11/2019 11/8/2019 12/6/2019 1/6/2020 2/8/2020 3/9/2020

242

Item 15.



Total Tender
Income

Economic Development Grant 2019-2020 $500.00
CHP Contribution

$100.00
Donations From Icon

$300.00 Donation Donuts & Cookies
Volunteer Hours $508.60 Donation 20+ Hours
Total $1,408.60

CHP Expenditures
Incentives encourage participation in survey (CH Gift Certs) $100.00 Check
Marketing encourage participation in survey $400.00

Total $500.00

243

Item 15.



244

Item 16.



245

Item 16.



246

Item 16.



247

Item 16.



248

Item 16.



249

Item 16.



250

Item 16.



251

Item 16.



252

Item 16.



253

Item 16.



254

Item 16.



255

Item 16.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 

Craig Berte, Assistant Police Chief 

Date:  April 30, 2020 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Tobacco Outlet Plus, 4116 University Avenue, Class C beer - renewal. 

b) Berk's Main Street Pub, 207 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

c) Suds & Suds Circle Pizza, 2223 1/2 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

d) Casey's General Store, 5226 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 

256

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS        

OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126     M E M O R A N D U M
Financial Services Division

                                                                         

 

 

 

 

 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 

FAX 319-268-5126 

  

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Paul Kockler, Accountant 

 DATE: April 28, 2020 
 

SUBJECT:  Cafeteria Plan Amendment:  Over-the-Counter                     

                     Medications & Selected Personal Care Products 
 

 
As a result of the Federal CARES Act stimulus bill recently passed, over-the-counter 
(OTC) medications and menstrual care products are now eligible as “qualified medical 
expenses” for Health Flexible Spending Accounts (FSAs) and Health Savings Accounts 
(HSAs).  The City’s cafeteria plan includes a health FSA that may now accept the above 
for pre-tax reimbursement for purchases made on or after January 1, 2020.  The 
attached simply formalizes the mandate for employee claim processing, and City 
employees have been informed of the above.   
 
If you have questions regarding the above or attached, please contact me at 268-5101 or 
Jennifer Rodenbeck at 268-5108. 
 

 
Attachment 

257

Item 18.



AMENDMENT TO IMPLEMENT THE
OVER-THE-COUNTER MEDICATIONS

PROVISIONS OF
THE CARES ACT

of 2020
for

IRC §125 Cafeteria Plans

Effective January 1, 2020

258

Item 18.



AMENDMENT TO IMPLEMENT THE OVER-THE-COUNTER

MEDICATION PROVISIONS OF THE CARES ACT OF 2020

These amendments amend the Cafeteria (IRC §125) Plan sponsored by the Plan Sponsor in order to implement the
provisions of the CARES Act of 2020 permitting pre-tax reimbursement of over-the-counter (non-prescription)
medications through the Health FSA Component of the Plan.

ARTICLE VII.  HEALTH FSA COMPONENT

Effective January 1, 2020, the Plan shall be amended by deletion of Section 7.3 and substituting the following:
  

7.3 Eligible Medical Care Expenses
Under the Health FSA Component, a Participant may receive reimbursement for Medical Care Expenses

incurred during the Period of Coverage for which an election is in force.
(a) Incurred.  A Medical Care Expense is incurred at the time the medical care or service giving rise to the

expense is furnished, and not when the Participant is formally billed for, is charged for, or pays for the
medical care.

(b) Medical Care Expenses. “Medical Care Expenses” means expenses incurred by a Participant or his or
her Spouse or Dependents for medical care, as defined in Code §213,

but excluding:
• expenses that are excluded under Appendix B to this Plan, and
• any medicine or drug (except insulin) that is purchased after December 31, 2010 and

before January 1, 2020 that is not "prescribed".
And including the following expenses incurred after December 31, 2019:
• expenses for menstrual care products (as defined in Code §223(f)(2)(D)
• expenses for medicines or drugs whether or not they are “prescribed”.

Such expenses shall be “Medical Care Expenses” only to the extent that the Participant or other person
incurring the expense is not reimbursed for the expense (nor is the expense reimbursable) through the
Insurance Plan(s), other insurance, or any other accident or health plan (other than a Health Savings
Account).  The Participant may elect to further limit the definition of Eligible Medical Care Expenses
as provided in Section 7.3(c) and/or (d) below.  If only a portion of a Medical Care Expense has been
reimbursed elsewhere (e.g., because the Insurance Plan(s) imposes co-payment or deductible
limitations), the Health FSA can reimburse the remaining portion of such Expense if it otherwise meets
the requirements of this Article VII.

(c) Participant Elected Limitations on the Definition of Medical Care Expenses.  At the election of the
Participant, “Medical Care Expenses” can be limited to mean only expenses incurred by a Participant
or his or her Spouse or Dependents for dental care, vision care or other Medical Care Expenses but
only to that extent that the Medical Care Expenses incurred (other than expenses incurred for dental
care or vision care) exceed the minimum annual deductible amount for that year for High Deductible
Health Plan coverage, as that term is defined in Code Section 223(c)(2).

(d) Participant Elected Limitations for Employee-only Coverage or Employee and Dependent Only
Coverage.  At the election of the Participant, “Medical Care Expenses” can be limited to exclude
expenses incurred by a Participant's spouse or by a Participant's spouse and Dependents.

These amendments have been executed this ______ day of _____________, 2020.

Name of Plan Sponsor:                                                                                                                

Signature of Authorized Individual:                                                                                     

Page Number 1

259

Item 18.



1 

   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  4600 S. MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Council  

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director 

Date:  April 28, 2020 

Re: FY21 Towing Contract 

The Public Safety Department has completed the bidding process for the FY21 towing 
contract. Two towing companies, L&M Transmission and Rasmussen Towing, Inc. both 
bid an identical amount of $50.00 for City paid tows. Tows requested by the City that are 
paid for by the vehicle owner for illegal parking, accidents or other tows are capped at 
$75 per tow to ensure a fair pricing structure for the citizen. There are also requirements 
and restrictions for storage fees and response times associated with towing. We have 
worked out a shared tow plan with dispatch for alternately calling the towing companies. 
Copies of the contracts are attached for your approval.  

We recommend approval of the contracts.  

260

Item 19.



261

Item 19.



262

Item 19.



263

Item 19.



264

Item 19.



265

Item 19.



266

Item 19.



267

Item 19.



268

Item 19.



269

Item 19.



270

Item 19.



271

Item 20.



272

Item 20.



273

Item 20.



274

Item 20.



275

Item 20.



276

Item 20.



277

Item 20.



278

Item 20.



279

Item 20.



280

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Inspection Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor and Council 

 FROM: Jamie Castle, AIA 
  Building Official  

 DATE: April 29, 2020 

SUBJECT: Recreation Center Locker Room Upgrades Bid Tab and Apparent Low 
Bidder 

 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to remodel the locker rooms at the Recreation 
Center.  This is project #63 in the Capital Improvement Plan, which has a project budget 
of $500,000.  On April 28, 2020 we received two bids for said project from Failor Hurley 
Construction and Don Gardner Construction. 
 
The apparent low bidder is Failor Hurley Construction of Waterloo, Iowa with a base bid 
of $194,900.  There were three alternates that were all lower than the other bidder.  
These alternates were as follows: 
 
Alternate 1 – Remove and retile the floor, walls, and ceiling of the steam room for an 
add of $12,200.  This provides a consistent look from new tile in locker room into the 
vestibule of the steam room. 
 
Alternate 2 – Replace sauna room heater for an add of $5,900.  This is a maintenance 
item. 
 
Alternate 3 – Upgrade locker room entry doors to fiberglass in lieu of painted hollow 
metal for an add of $2,700.  This would provide an integral material to reduce visible 
wear and tear that has been requiring repainting about twice per year.  
 
We recommend accepting the Failor Hurley’s low bid with Alternate 1 and 3 for a total 
construction cost of $209,800. 
 
Attached are the bid tab, bid forms, and bid security documents. 
  
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 

281

Item 21.



DATE

PROJECT

PROJECT #

PROJECT BUDGET

Bidding Company
Don Gardner 

Construction

Failor Hurley 

Construction

Location Waterloo, IA Waterloo, IA 

Bid Security (5%) X X X

Addendum No. 01 dated 

4.22.2020
X X X

Addendum No. 02 dated 

4.24.2020
X X X

Complete work by: 8/7/2020

BASE BID $ $196,800 $194,900

ALTERNATES
Selected

X
Column4

[Alternate #1 - Steam Room 

Floor Finishes]
X $13,125 $12,200

[Alternate #2 - Sauna Room 

Unit Heater]
X $6,750 $5,900

[Alternate #3 - Fiberglass 

Locker Room Doors]
X $2,800 $2,700

Total = Base Bid + 

Selected Alternates
$219,475 $215,700

BID TABULATION

April 28, 2020

Cedar Falls Recreation Center Locker Room Upgrades

20016

$175,000

1

282

Item 21.



283

Item 21.



284

Item 21.



285

Item 21.



286

Item 21.



287

Item 21.



288

Item 21.



289

Item 21.



290

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Inspection Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor and Council 

 FROM: Jamie Castle, AIA 
  Building Official  

 DATE: April 29, 2020 

SUBJECT: Recreation Center Locker Room Upgrades Construction Contract 
 
On April 28, 2020 a low bid was submitted by Failor Hurley Construction for the 
Recreation Center Locker Room Upgrades Project.  The total construction cost is 
$209,800.00 which includes a base bid of $194,900.00 and alternates 1 and 3 as 
represented in the attached AIA-2017 Standard Form of Agreement between Owner 
and Architect.  We are asking for approval to move forward with a fully executed 
contract. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 

291

Item 22.



������������	
�

�

�����
�
������������������������������ ����! ��������"�����#���$%&'('$)&'$*+,-,$./$
0+12'3)$-,$+$4)-056+)'7$452

89:;<

=

>8>?@ABCDE9;?>FGFH?I?JGFK<?LMNOPQRSTUVUWXWYZUWXW[ZUWX\YZUWX]̂ZUWXYWZUWXY[ZUWX_WZUWX_]ZUWX_̂ZUWX̂ Z̀UWX̂ ẐUWX[̂ZUWXXWZUWXX̂ZU\aâUbcdU\aŴUeOUfSgU
higPQjbcUkclTQTmTgUMnUhPjSQTgjTl<?>oo?p:qr;s?pEsEptEu<?v>wx8xyz?{r:s?>8>|??@ABCDE9;?:s?}pA;EB;Eu?~�?�<�<?�A}�p:qr;?���?�9u?89;Ep9�;:A9�o?{pE�;:Es<?
�9�C;rAp:�Eu?pE}pAuCB;:A9?Ap?u:s;p:~C;:A9?A�?;r:s?>8>|??@ABCDE9;�?Ap?�9�?}Ap;:A9?A�?:;�?D��?pEsCo;?:9?sEtEpE?B:t:o?�9u?Bp:D:9�o?}E9�o;:Es�?�9u?�:oo?~E?
}pAsEBC;Eu?;A?;rE?D��:DCD?E�;E9;?}Ass:~oE?C9uEp?;rE?o��<UfSQlUdMjmigcTU�blUNPMdmjgdUeOUhkhUlMnT�bPgUbTUWa�Y_�WaU�fUMcUà�]a�\a\aUmcdgPU�PdgPU
�M�\WX]\\]][̂U�SQjSUg�NQPglUMcUa_�\_�\a\aZUbcdUQlUcMTUnMPUPglb�g�
�sEp?xA;EszU �\a]_[̂\[W\�

F

fSQlUdMjmigcTUSblUQiNMPTbcTU

�gRb�UjMclg�mgcjgl�ULMclm�TbTQMcU

�QTSUbcUbTTMPcgOU

QlUgcjMmPbRgdU�QTSUPglNgjTUTMU

QTlUjMiN�gTQMcUMPUiMdQnQjbTQMc�

fSgUNbPTQglUlSMm�dUjMiN�gTgU

hWaW��\aŴZU��SQeQTUhZU

kclmPbcjgUbcdU�McdlZU

jMcTgiNMPbcgMml�OU�QTSUTSQlU

hRPggigcT�UhkhU�MjmigcTU

h\aW��\aŴZU�gcgPb�U

LMcdQTQMclUMnUTSgULMcTPbjTUnMPU

LMclTPmjTQMcZUQlUbdMNTgdUQcUTSQlU

dMjmigcTUeOUPgngPgcjg�U�MUcMTU

mlgU�QTSUMTSgPURgcgPb�UjMcdQTQMclU

mc�gllUTSQlUdMjmigcTUQlUiMdQnQgd�

	�������� ¡¢£�¡¤�¥¦�§̈£�©¥ª«§̈�¢¡¬�¥¦�¡¬�®̄�§̈£�¬£¡«�°±¥�°̈¥ª¤¡̄¢�°±£̄§¬
²³́µ¶·̧¹º»µ¼́¹¼½¾¿Àµ¹¾Á»µÂ·́¿Ãµ¾́¹µÁÀ¾̧ÄÅ

Æ��Ç����§̈£�È±̄£«É
²Ê¾ÂÀ»µËÀÌ¾Ëµº¿¾¿Íº»µ¾¹¹̧Àººµ¾́¹µ·¿ÃÀ̧µ¼́Î·̧Â¾¿¼·́Å

Ï®§¬�¥¦�Ï£¢¡«�©¡ÐÐ¤
ÑÑÒ�ÏÐ¡¬�Ó§«££§
Ï£¢¡«�©¡ÐÐ¤Ô�ÕÖ�×ÒØÙÚ
°£Ð£Û̈¥̄£�Üª Ý£«É�ÞÚÙßà�ÑáÚâãØÒÒ

¡̄¢�§̈£�Ï¥̄§«¡ä§¥«É
²Ê¾ÂÀ»µËÀÌ¾Ëµº¿¾¿Íº»µ¾¹¹̧Àººµ¾́¹µ·¿ÃÀ̧µ¼́Î·̧Â¾¿¼·́Å

©¡®Ð¥«�åª«Ð£¬�Ï¥̄¤§«ªä§®¥̄
ÚÚÚá�¡«̄®£�Öæ£
ç¡§£«Ð¥¥Ô�ÕÖ�×ÒáÒÙ

¦¥«�§̈£�¦¥ÐÐ¥±®̄è�é«¥ê£ä§É
²Ê¾ÂÀ»µË·½¾¿¼·́µ¾́¹µ¹À¿¾¼ËÀ¹µ¹Àº½̧¼ë¿¼·́Å

ÑÒÒÙØ�Ï£¢¡«�©¡ÐÐ¤�ì£ä«£¡§®¥̄�Ï£̄§£«�í¥äî£«�ì¥¥ �ïÛè«¡¢£¤
Ï£¢¡«�©¡ÐÐ¤�ì£ä«£¡§®¥̄�Ï£̄§£«
ÙÙÒ�ð¡¤§�ÙÚ§̈�Ó§«££§�
Ï£¢¡«�©¡ÐÐ¤Ô�ÕÖ�×ÒØÙÚ
��

°̈£�Ö«ä̈®§£ä§É
²Ê¾ÂÀ»µËÀÌ¾Ëµº¿¾¿Íº»µ¾¹¹̧Àººµ¾́¹µ·¿ÃÀ̧µ¼́Î·̧Â¾¿¼·́Å

ÕÜñÕÓÕÈÜ�Ö«ä̈®§£ä§ª«£Ô�í°ò
éÈ�ó¥ô�ÙãÒÒ
ç¡§£«Ð¥¥Ô�ÕÖ�×ÒáÒõâÙãÒÒ
°£Ð£Û̈¥̄£�Üª Ý£«É�ÚÙßöÑÚÚöãõÙß
©¡ô�Üª Ý£«É�ÚÙßöÑÚÚößááÑ

°̈£�È±̄£«�¡̄¢�Ï¥̄§«¡ä§¥«�¡è«££�¡¤�¦¥ÐÐ¥±¤ö

292

Item 22.



�����

�

�����	
�������������������������������� �!"�� �#"�� $!"�� %&"�� !�"�� !#"�� '�"�� '%"�� '&"�� &("�� &&"�� #&"��  �"��  &"�$))&�*+,�$)�&�-��.�/�
01/��2*+�3+4���5�/��6�0�2���/2�4���77�8�9:�;�8;8<=��>�?@�@AB�C:�;����D���	
������;�E8	�
�=�FG�H�I��J	EG8�9:��KLM�L�=����8�L��	�L7�C8L��;��
H�L��:	8�N=�8E8	=�
��	��	8�=�;�8�F���	��	O��:�;����D���	
����P�	8�L�G�E	8��	��	O���P��LG�8;�7�����;<8�
�<�7�L�=�
8����L7�E�L7��;P�L�=�M�77�F�
E8	;
��=��	��:��LQ�����Q����E	;;�F7���=8��:�7LM��.��4�,�251/+��R*4����,52/,�-��030�4�6�R*�/�*���)S!'S�)�T.��+�)(U%)U$)$)�5+,/��V�,/��
W�X$� %$$%%#&�R��2��/Y���/4��+�)'U$'U$)$)"�*+,��4�+���6����/4*Z/X
H;8�@	�;B� [$)%'#&$#�$\

�

]̂_̀abcdb̂e]fg̀ah

i ]jabgck]êg]blcgmnak]h

o ]jabpceqbcdb]jfhbgck]êg]

r l̂]abcdbgcnnakganak]b̂klbhm_h]̂k]f̂̀ bgcns̀a]fck

t gck]êg]bhmn

u ŝvnak]h

w lfhsm]abeahc̀m]fck

x ]aenfk̂]fckbcebhmhsakhfck

y nfhgà`̂kacmhbseczfhfckh

{ akmnaê]fckbcdbgck]êg]blcgmnak]h

a|jf_f]b̂bbbbfkhmêkgab̂klb_cklh

ê]fg̀abibbb]jabgck]êg]blcgmnak]h
}~���������������������������������~�����������������������������~������������������������������������������~���
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������~����������������~��������������������
����~�����������������������������������������������������������~����������������������~��~�������~��������������������
��������������������~����������������������~�������~�������������������������~�������}~�����������������������~���������
����������������������������������~����������~�������������������������������������������������������������������������
���~���������������������������������������~������������������������~����~����������������������������������������

ê]fg̀abobbb]jabpceqbcdb]jfhbgck]êg]
}~��������������~�������������������~����� ���������������~����������������������������������������������������������
�~����������������������������~����������������������~����

ê]fg̀abrbbbl̂]abcdbgcnnakganak]b̂klbhm_h]̂k]f̂̀ bgcns̀a]fck
¡br¢ib}~���������������������������~����� ��~������£
¤¥¦§̈©ª«¬§ª«ª®¦§ª«̄̄«°±¬²ª³«́§µ¶·

�̧bb�¹ }~�����������~�������������

�̧b|b�¹ ���������������~�����������������������������������~��º��������~������

�̧bb�¹ »�������~�������������£
¤¼¬µ§½®ª¾ª¿¾®§ª«½ª¾ªÀ§¾¬µª®«ª¿§®§½À±¬§ª®¦§ª¿¾®§ª«ª̈«ÀÀ§¬̈§À§¬®ª«ª®¦§ªÁ«½©¶·

��

Â�����������������������������~����� �������������������~����~������������������������~��������~�����������~���
����������

¡br¢ob}~�����������}�����~����������������������~���������������������������~����� �

¡br¢rbhÃÄÅÆÇÈÆÉÇÊbgËÌÍÊÎÆÉËÈ
¡br¢r¢ib���Ï���������Ï�������������~�����������}����������Ð���������~�����������������������~��������������~����
��~��Ð�����������������������������~������������ £
¤¥¦§̈©ª«¬§ª«ª®¦§ª«̄̄«°±¬²ª³«́§µª¾¬¿ª̈«ÀÑ̄§®§ª®¦§ª¬§̈§µµ¾½Òª±¬«½À¾®±«¬¶·

293

Item 22.



�����

�

�����	
�������������������������������� �!"�� �#"�� $!"�� %&"�� !�"�� !#"�� '�"�� '%"�� '&"�� &("�� &&"�� #&"��  �"��  &"�$))&�*+,�$)�&�-��.�/�
01/��2*+�3+4���5�/��6�0�2���/2�4���77�8�9:�;�8;8<=��>�?@�@AB�C:�;����D���	
������;�E8	�
�=�FG�H�I��J	EG8�9:��KLM�L�=����8�L��	�L7�C8L��;��
H�L��:	8�N=�8E8	=�
��	��	8�=�;�8�F���	��	O��:�;����D���	
����P�	8�L�G�E	8��	��	O���P��LG�8;�7�����;<8�
�<�7�L�=�
8����L7�E�L7��;P�L�=�M�77�F�
E8	;
��=��	��:��LQ�����Q����E	;;�F7���=8��:�7LM��.��4�,�251/+��R*4����,52/,�-��030�4�6�R*�/�*���)S!'S�)�T.��+�)(U%)U$)$)�5+,/��V�,/��
W�X$� %$$%%#&�R��2��/Y���/4��+�)'U$'U$)$)"�*+,��4�+���6����/4*Z/X
H;8�@	�;B� [$)%'#&$#�$\

]

�̂__�̀ abcdefcghdcifjddddkddddldmfegjnfhdnfopdqhbrdcigdnfcgdbqdmbrrgjmgrgjcdbqdcigdsbhtu

�̂_v_�̀ wodcigdqbeebxyjzdnfcg{d|}z}pcd~��d�~�~dd

�_�����_�}��gmcdcbdfn�}pcrgjcpdbqdcigd�bjchfmcd�yrgdfpd�hb�yngndyjdcigd�bjchfmcd�bm}rgjcp�dyqd�bhcybjpdbqdcigdsbhtd
fhgdcbd�gdmbr�egcgnd�hybhdcbd�}�pcfjcyfed�br�egcybjdbqdcigdgjcyhgdsbht�dcigd�bjchfmcbhdpifeedfmiyg�gd�}�pcfjcyfed
�br�egcybjdbqdp}mid�bhcybjpd�odcigdqbeebxyjzdnfcgp{

�������_��_���� �����������_����� ����_¡�� 
dd

�_�����_¢qdcigd�bjchfmcbhdqfyepdcbdfmiyg�gd�}�pcfjcyfed�br�egcybjdfpd�hb�yngndyjdciypd�gmcybjd£u£�dey¤}ynfcgndnfrfzgp�dyqd
fjo�dpifeed�gdfppgppgndfpdpgcdqbhcidyjd�gmcybjd¥u¦u

§̈©ª�«¬____�®̄ ©̈§�©_�°±
�_�²_�igd³xjghdpifeed�fodcigd�bjchfmcbhdcigd�bjchfmcd�}rdyjdm}hhgjcdq}jnpdqbhdcigd�bjchfmcbh́pd�ghqbhrfjmgdbqdcigd
�bjchfmcud�igd�bjchfmcd�}rdpifeed�gd�xbdµ}jnhgndayjgdd�ib}pfjnd¶yzicdµ}jnhgnd�beefhpdfjnd·ghbd�gjcpdķd
�~¹�º~~u~~dl�dp}��gmcdcbdfnnycybjpdfjndngn}mcybjpdfpd�hb�yngndyjdcigd�bjchfmcd�bm}rgjcpu

�_��_§�� ���� �
�_���²_|ecghjfcgp�dyqdfjo�dyjme}ngndyjdcigd�bjchfmcd�}r{

ª� � ���» 
|ecghjfcgdabud~¼d½d�cgfrd¾bbrd¿ebbhd
¿yjypigpdd

¼̧���~~

|ecghjfcgdabud~£d½d¿y�ghzefppdÀbmtghd
¾bbrd�bbhp

�̧��~~

�_����_�}��gmcdcbdcigdmbjnycybjpdjbcgnd�gebx�dcigdqbeebxyjzdfecghjfcgpdrfod�gdfmmg�cgnd�odcigd³xjghdqbeebxyjzd
gÁgm}cybjdbqdciypd|zhggrgjcudÂ�bjdfmmg�cfjmg�dcigd³xjghdpifeedypp}gdfdÃbnyqymfcybjdcbdciypd|zhggrgjcu
ÄÅÆÇÈÉÊËÌÈÍÎÏËÈÐÑÒËÐÍÊÈÉÆÐÊÈËÐÆÓËÊÒÈËÑÎÆÓÔÊÔÎÆÇËÊÒÐÊËÕÖÇÊËÌÈËÕÈÊË×ÎÉËÊÒÈËØÏÆÈÉËÊÎËÐÑÑÈÙÊËÊÒÈËÐÍÊÈÉÆÐÊÈÚÛ

ª� � ���»  ���Ü������_���_§»» ����» 

dd

�_��_|eebxfjmgp�dyqdfjo�dyjme}ngndyjdcigd�bjchfmcd�}r{
ÄÅÓÈÆÊÔ×ÝËÈÐÑÒËÐÍÍÎÏÐÆÑÈÚÛ

ª� � ���» 
aÞ|dd

�_�dÂjycd�hymgp�dyqdfjo{
ÄÅÓÈÆÊÔ×ÝËÊÒÈËÔÊÈÕËÐÆÓËÇÊÐÊÈËÊÒÈËÖÆÔÊËÙÉÔÑÈËÐÆÓËßÖÐÆÊÔÊÝËÍÔÕÔÊÐÊÔÎÆÇàËÔ×ËÐÆÝàËÊÎËÏÒÔÑÒËÊÒÈËÖÆÔÊËÙÉÔÑÈËÏÔÍÍËÌÈËÐÙÙÍÔÑÐÌÍÈÚÛ

ª� � °����_��Ü_«���������� ���» _� �_°���_áâã�ããä

aÞ|dd

�_�ådÀy¤}ynfcgndnfrfzgp�dyqdfjo{
ÄÅÆÇÈÉÊËÊÈÉÕÇËÐÆÓËÑÎÆÓÔÊÔÎÆÇË×ÎÉËÍÔßÖÔÓÐÊÈÓËÓÐÕÐæÈÇàËÔ×ËÐÆÝÚÛ

Ày¤}ynfcgndnfrfzgpdnbdjbcdf��eodd

�_�çd³cigh{
ÄÅÆÇÈÉÊËÙÉÎèÔÇÔÎÆÇË×ÎÉËÌÎÆÖÇËÎÉËÎÊÒÈÉËÔÆÑÈÆÊÔèÈÇàËÔ×ËÐÆÝàËÊÒÐÊËÕÔæÒÊËÉÈÇÖÍÊËÔÆËÐËÑÒÐÆæÈËÊÎËÊÒÈËéÎÆÊÉÐÑÊËêÖÕÚÛ

dd

294

Item 22.



�����

�

�����	
�������������������������������� �!"�� �#"�� $!"�� %&"�� !�"�� !#"�� '�"�� '%"�� '&"�� &("�� &&"�� #&"��  �"��  &"�$))&�*+,�$)�&�-��.�/�
01/��2*+�3+4���5�/��6�0�2���/2�4���77�8�9:�;�8;8<=��>�?@�@AB�C:�;����D���	
������;�E8	�
�=�FG�H�I��J	EG8�9:��KLM�L�=����8�L��	�L7�C8L��;��
H�L��:	8�N=�8E8	=�
��	��	8�=�;�8�F���	��	O��:�;����D���	
����P�	8�L�G�E	8��	��	O���P��LG�8;�7�����;<8�
�<�7�L�=�
8����L7�E�L7��;P�L�=�M�77�F�
E8	;
��=��	��:��LQ�����Q����E	;;�F7���=8��:�7LM��.��4�,�251/+��R*4����,52/,�-��030�4�6�R*�/�*���)S!'S�)�T.��+�)(U%)U$)$)�5+,/��V�,/��
W�X$� %$$%%#&�R��2��/Y���/4��+�)'U$'U$)$)"�*+,��4�+���6����/4*Z/X
H;8�@	�;B� [$)%'#&$#�$\

]

_̂̀abcdefeeeĝhidj̀k
lefmnegopqorssegtuvrwxs
lefmnmneyz{|}~����~������z����{~���~�z��|��~{������|}~��~��|~������|��~��~��|~�����z����~z�}~�|������z�|{~���~
�z��|��~�{{�|}~��~��|~������|���~��|~���|�~{�z��~�z�|~�����|{{~�z��|��{~��~z������~��~��|~�����z��~���~��~��|~
�����z����~z{~�����}|}~�|���~z�}~|�{|��|�|~��~��|~�����z��~�����|��{�

lefmnm�e��|~�|���}~���|�|}~��~|z��~������z����~���~�z��|��~{�z��~�|~��|~�z�|�}z�~�����~|�}���~��~��|~�z{�~}z�~��~��|~
������~��~z{~������{�

~~

lefmnm�e�����}|}~��z�~z�~������z����~���~�z��|��~�{~�|�|��|}~��~��|~������|��~���~�z�|�~��z�~��|~�z{�~~~}z�~��~z~������~
��|~���|�~{�z��~�z�|~�z��|��~��~��|~z�����~�|�����|}~��~��|~�����z����~���~�z�|�~��z�~��|~����~~~}z�~��~��|~���������~~~
������~��~z�~������z����~���~�z��|��~�{~�|�|��|}~��~��|~������|��~z��|�~��|~z�����z����~}z�|~�� |}~z���|�~�z��|��~��~
��|~z�����~�|�����|}~{�z��~�|~�z}|~��~��|~���|�~���~�z�|�~��z�~������~~~¡~~��~~¢~}z�{~z��|�~��|~������|��~�|�|��|{~��|~
������z����~���~�z��|���
£¤¥¦¥§̈©ª«¬̈¥«®§«©®̄ ©̈«©̈°¬«±̈²«§¥³́µ§¥«¶̈²±¥·«°µ̧µ·«̈«̄¥§̈µ·«¶¥§µ®¦«®¹«µ±¥º»

lefmnm¼e½z��~������z����~���~�z��|��~{�z��~�|~�z{|}~��~��|~��{�~�|�|��~{��|}��|~��~�z��|{~{������|}~��~��|~
�����z����~��~z����}z��|~����~��|~�����z��~�����|��{�~��|~{��|}��|~��~�z��|{~{�z��~z����z�|~��|~|����|~�����z��~���~
z����~��|~�z����{~�������{~��~��|~¾����~��|~{��|}��|~��~�z��|{~{�z��~�|~��|�z�|}~��~{���~�����~z�}~{������|}~��~{���~
}z�z~��~{��{�z���z�|~��{~z����z���~z{~��|~������|��~�z�~�|¿���|�~���{~{��|}��|~��~�z��|{~{�z��~�|~�{|}~z{~z~�z{�{~���~
�|��|����~��|~�����z����À{~������z����{~���~�z��|���

lefmnmfe������z����{~���~�z��|��~{�z��~{���~��|~�|��|��z�|~��~�����|����~��~|z��~�������~��~��|~¾���~z{~��~��|~|�}~��~
��|~�|���}~���|�|}~��~��|~������z����~���~�z��|���

lefmnmÁ~��~z����}z��|~����~���~�����|��~�Â�ÃÄÅÂ�ÃÆ�~Ç|�|�z�~���}�����{~��~��|~�����z��~���~���{���������~z�}~
{��È|��~��~���|�~�����{���{~��~��|~�����z��~�����|��{�~��|~z�����~��~|z��~�����|{{~�z��|��~{�z��~�|~������|}~z{~
������{�

lefmnmÁmn~��|~z�����~��~|z��~�����|{{~�z��|��~{�z��~���{�~�����}|�
mn ��z�~�������~��~��|~�����z��~���~����|���~z����z��|~��~�����|�|}~¾���É
m� ��z�~�������~��~��|~�����z��~���~����|���~z����z��|~��~�z�|��z�{~z�}~|¿����|��~}|���|�|}~z�}~{���z���~

{���|}~z�~��|~{��|~���~{��{|¿�|��~��������z����~��~��|~�����|�|}~���{���������~���~��~z�����|}~��~z}�z��|~
��~��|~���|��~{���z���~{���|}~���~��|~{��|~z�~z~���z����~z��||}~����~��~�������É~z�}

m� ��z�~�������~��~���{��������~��z��|~���|����|{~��z�~��|~������|��~}|�|����|{�~��~��|~������|��À{~
����|{{���z�~È�}��|���~��~�|~�|z{��z���~È�{����|}�

lefmnmÁm�~��|~z�����~��~|z��~�����|{{~�z��|��~{�z��~��|�~�|~�|}��|}~���
mn ��|~z���|�z�|~��~z��~z�����{~��|����{��~�z�}~��~��|~���|�É
m� ��|~z������~��~z���~���~¾���~��z�~�|�z��{~������|��|}~z�}~���~�����~��|~������|��~�z{~��|����{��~

�����|�}~z~�|������z�|~���~�z��|��~z{~�����}|}~��~������|~Ê~��~���~�����|��~�Â�ÃÅÂ�ÃÆÉ
m� ���~z�����~���~�����~��|~�����z����~}�|{~���~���|�}~��~�z�~z~��������z����~��~�z�|��z�~{�����|��~

���|{{~��|~¾���~�z{~�||�~�|�����|}~��~���|�{~��|~�����z����~���|�}{~��~�z�É
m¼ Ë��~¾���~�|�����|}~��~}|�|��{~}�{���|�|}~{���|~��|~�z{�~�z��|��~z�����z�����~z��~z�����~���~�����~

��|~������|��~�z�~�������}~�z��|���~��~�������~z~�|������z�|~��~�z��|��~��~����|~��~��~�z���~z{~�����}|}~
��~������|~Ê~��~���~�����|��~�Â�ÃÅÂ�ÃÆÉ~z�}

mf Ì|�z��z�|~�����|�}~���{�z��~��~�|�����~Í�Ã�Æ�

lefmnmÎe_rxtÏwtqr
lefmnmÎmn~Ë��~|z��~�����|{{~�z��|��~�z}|~�����~��~���{�z���z�~�����|����~��~��|~¾����~��|~���|�~�z�~�������}~��|~
���������~z������~z{~�|�z��z�|�~����~��|~�z��|��~���|���{|~}�|�
£Ð·¬¥§«̈«¶¥§̄¥·̈Ñ¥«®§«̈±®́·«®«Ò¥«°µ̧̧ ¥©¦«̈¬«§¥̈µ·̈Ñ¥«¹§®±«¥̈¯̧«Ó¶¶©µ̄̈µ®·«¹®§«Ô̈²±¥·º«Õ̧¥«̈±®́·«®¹«
§¥̈µ·̈Ñ¥«±̈²«Ò¥«©µ±µ¥¦«Ò²«Ñ®Ö¥§·µ·Ñ«©̈°º»

���|~¡Í¢~�|��|��~~

295

Item 22.



�����

�

�����	
�������������������������������� �!"�� �#"�� $!"�� %&"�� !�"�� !#"�� '�"�� '%"�� '&"�� &("�� &&"�� #&"��  �"��  &"�$))&�*+,�$)�&�-��.�/�
01/��2*+�3+4���5�/��6�0�2���/2�4���77�8�9:�;�8;8<=��>�?@�@AB�C:�;����D���	
������;�E8	�
�=�FG�H�I��J	EG8�9:��KLM�L�=����8�L��	�L7�C8L��;��
H�L��:	8�N=�8E8	=�
��	��	8�=�;�8�F���	��	O��:�;����D���	
����P�	8�L�G�E	8��	��	O���P��LG�8;�7�����;<8�
�<�7�L�=�
8����L7�E�L7��;P�L�=�M�77�F�
E8	;
��=��	��:��LQ�����Q����E	;;�F7���=8��:�7LM��.��4�,�251/+��R*4����,52/,�-��030�4�6�R*�/�*���)S!'S�)�T.��+�)(U%)U$)$)�5+,/��V�,/��
W�X$� %$$%%#&�R��2��/Y���/4��+�)'U$'U$)$)"�*+,��4�+���6����/4*Z/X
H;8�@	�;B� [$)%'#&$#�$\

]

_̂̀abacababdefgdhijjiklmndlogpqdrsgdmiodqtuvgwodoidsgorlmrngx
yz{|}~���{����}�|�{���|���}��������}����������{�����~}���{��}��|�����|��}{}~�����{�����{|���{|�~�{�}��}����

dd

_̂̀abaca�d�g�twolimdisdjlplorolimdihdsgorlmrng�dlhdrm��dqfrjjdugdrqdhijjikqx
yz����}�~}���{��}�}|�����|�}���{��}����{����������|�����}�������}���~��~�������|��{����������}���{������}�}{��~}���~���
�{�����{�������������{|���~����|��{����������}���{������~���{|������}���~���|��~� ��}���{��}����{�¡�¡�¢���{|}~��
�~� �|��{|���~�|���������������{|��

dd

_̂̀abaca£d¤¥wg¦odrqdqgodhisofdlmdoflqd§gwolimd̈©ª©«©¬�dt¦imd§tuqormolrjdip¦jgolimdihdofgd®is̄�dofgdimosrwoisdpr�d
qtuplodrmd°¦¦jlwrolimdhisd±r�pgmodofrodlmwjt�gqdofgdsgorlmrngdkloffgj�dhsipd¦slisd°¦¦jlwrolimqdhisd±r�pgmod¦tsqtrmod
oidoflqd§gwolimd̈©ª©«©defgd°¦¦jlwrolimdhisd±r�pgmodqtuploog�drod§tuqormolrjdip¦jgolimdqfrjjdmiodlmwjt�gdsgorlmrngdrqd
hijjikqx
yz{|}~���{�����}~���{�����{|���~�~}�}�|}����~}���{��}����{����|��{����������}���{��

dd

_̂̀aba²d³hdhlmrjdwip¦jgolimdihdofgd®is̄dlqdprogslrjj�d�gjr�g�dofsitnfdmidhrtjodihdofgdimosrwois�dofgd́kmgsdqfrjjd¦r�d
ofgdimosrwoisdrm�dr��lolimrjdrpitmoqdlmdrwwis�rmwgdklofd°solwjgdµdihd°³°d¶iwtpgmod°·̧ª¹·̧ª«©

_̂̀abaº_¤¥wg¦odklofdofgd́kmgs»qd¦slisdr¦¦si¼rj�dofgdimosrwoisdqfrjjdmiodpr̄gdr�¼rmwgd¦r�pgmoqdoidqt¦¦jlgsqdhisd
progslrjqdisdg½tl¦pgmodkflwfdfr¼gdmioduggmd�gjl¼gsg�drm�dqoisg�drodofgdqlog©

_̂̀a�_¾¿ÀÁÂ_ÃÁÄÅÆÀÇ
_̂̀a�ab_Èlmrjd¦r�pgmo�dwimqolotolmndofgdgmolsgdtm¦rl�durjrmwgdihdofgdimosrwod§tp�dqfrjjdugdpr�gdu�dofgd́kmgsdoidofgd
imosrwoisdkfgm

ab ofgdimosrwoisdfrqdhtjj�d¦gshispg�dofgdimosrwodg¥wg¦odhisdofgdimosrwois»qdsgq¦imqluljlo�doidwissgwod
®is̄drqd¦si¼l�g�dlmd°solwjgdª·dihd°³°d¶iwtpgmod°·̧ª¹·̧ª«�drm�doidqrolqh�diofgsdsg½tlsgpgmoq�dlhdrm��d
kflwfdg¥ogm�dug�im�dhlmrjd¦r�pgmoÉdrm�

a� rdhlmrjdgsolhlwrogdhisd±r�pgmodfrqduggmdlqqtg�du�dofgd°swflogwo©

_̂̀a�a�_efgd́kmgs»qdhlmrjd¦r�pgmodoidofgdimosrwoisdqfrjjdugdpr�gdmidjrogsdofrmd¬̧d�r�qdrhogsdofgdlqqtrmwgdihdofgd
°swflogwo»qdhlmrjdgsolhlwrogdhisd±r�pgmo�disdrqdhijjikqx

dd

_̂̀a£_ÊÀÇÆËÆÌÇ
±r�pgmoqd�tgdrm�dtm¦rl�dtm�gsdofgdimosrwodqfrjjdugrsdlmogsgqodhsipdofgd�rogd¦r�pgmodlqd�tgdrodofgdsrogdqorog�dugjik�d
isdlmdofgdruqgmwgdofgsgih�drodofgdjgnrjdsrogd¦sg¼rljlmndhsipdolpgdoidolpgdrodofgd¦jrwgdkfgsgdofgd±sivgwodlqdjiwrog�©
yz{|}~��~��}�����{�}~}|����~}}�����{������{���

ḑddÍdÎgsidd

ÏÐÑÊÒÓÔ_Õ___ÖÊ×ÃØÑÔ_ÐÔ×ÙÓØÑÊÙÚ
_̂Õab_ÊÀ¿Ç¿ÁÂ_ÖÆÛ¿Ì¿ÜÀ_ÝÁÞÆË
efgd°swflogwodkljjdqgs¼gdrqdofgd³mlolrjd¶gwlqlimdßr̄gsd¦tsqtrmodoid°solwjgdª̈dihd°³°d¶iwtpgmod°·̧ª¹·̧ª«�dtmjgqqdofgd
¦rsolgqdr¦¦ilmodugjikdrmiofgsdlm�l¼l�trj�dmiodrd¦rso�doidoflqd°nsggpgmo�doidqgs¼gdrqdofgd³mlolrjd¶gwlqlimdßr̄gs©
yz����}���~��}|������������~}}���{|}~����}�{��}�����~}||��{�����}~���{������{��~�����{������}�z{������à}��|��{�á��}~�����
���}~����{���}�â~����}����

dd
dd
dd

296

Item 22.



�����

�

�����	
�������������������������������� �!"�� �#"�� $!"�� %&"�� !�"�� !#"�� '�"�� '%"�� '&"�� &("�� &&"�� #&"��  �"��  &"�$))&�*+,�$)�&�-��.�/�
01/��2*+�3+4���5�/��6�0�2���/2�4���77�8�9:�;�8;8<=��>�?@�@AB�C:�;����D���	
������;�E8	�
�=�FG�H�I��J	EG8�9:��KLM�L�=����8�L��	�L7�C8L��;��
H�L��:	8�N=�8E8	=�
��	��	8�=�;�8�F���	��	O��:�;����D���	
����P�	8�L�G�E	8��	��	O���P��LG�8;�7�����;<8�
�<�7�L�=�
8����L7�E�L7��;P�L�=�M�77�F�
E8	;
��=��	��:��LQ�����Q����E	;;�F7���=8��:�7LM��.��4�,�251/+��R*4����,52/,�-��030�4�6�R*�/�*���)S!'S�)�T.��+�)(U%)U$)$)�5+,/��V�,/��
W�X$� %$$%%#&�R��2��/Y���/4��+�)'U$'U$)$)"�*+,��4�+���6����/4*Z/X
H;8�@	�;B� [$)%'#&$#�$\

]

^̂

_̀abc̀defgefh̀iejklmǹonjpqlmepf
rst̂uvŵxyuz{̂|}~����̂�s�̂~}�̂vs�̂t�|sy���̂~w�̂{��zu�zsv̂�}t|}uv�̂�ŝ�t�z�y�̂��̂s�̂���̂�s�}{�v�̂����������̂���̂
{���s�̂s�̂~zv�zv�̂�z|�}��̂t�|sy}�zsv̂|�uyŷ~�̂u|̂�syys�|�
��������������� ��¡����¢ £¤¥

¦�̀̀�§ �t~z�tu�zsv̂�}t|}uv�̂�ŝ̈ ���zsv̂��©ª̂s�̂���̂�s�}{�v�̂���������

¦�̀«̀�§ ¬z�z�u�zsv̂zv̂û�s}t�̂s�̂�s{����v�̂�}tz|�z��zsv

¦�̀̀�§ ���t̂�®���¡̄°¥

^̂

��̂���̂�v�t̂uv�̂xsv�tu��st̂�ŝvs�̂|�y���̂û{���s�̂s�̂~zv�zv�̂�z|�}��̂t�|sy}�zsv�̂st̂�ŝvs�̂|}~|�±}�v�yŵu�t��̂zv̂
�tz�zv�̂�ŝû~zv�zv�̂�z|�}��̂t�|sy}�zsv̂{���s�̂s���t̂��uv̂yz�z�u�zsv�̂xyuz{|̂�zyŷ~�̂t�|sy���̂~ŵyz�z�u�zsv̂zv̂û�s}t�̂s�̂
�s{����v�̂�}tz|�z��zsv©

²o³́µ¶·̀¸̀`̀³·o¹́º²³́»º̀»ò¼½¼¾·º¼́»º
_̀ b̧¿̂À��̂xsv�tu��̂{uŵ~�̂��t{zvu���̂~ŵ���̂�v�t̂st̂���̂xsv�tu��st̂u|̂�ts�z���̂zv̂�t�z�y�̂�ª̂s�̂���̂�s�}{�v�̂
���������©

_̀ b̧¿b¿̀��̂���̂xsv�tu��̂z|̂��t{zvu���̂�st̂���̂�v�tÁ|̂�sv��vz�v��̂zv̂u��st�uv��̂�z��̂�t�z�y�̂�ª̂s�̂���̂�s�}{�v�̂
����������̂���v̂���̂�v�t̂|�uyŷ�uŵ���̂xsv�tu��st̂û��t{zvu�zsv̂���̂u|̂�syys�|�
�ÂÃÄ���������Å ÆÃ�� ̄Ç� ��Å��� È�̄ ��È����Å¡Ã¡ÃÉÇ�����̄��Ç�¡̄��Ã°Ç���°�¢Ê��� ������ Ã����� ��̄ ÊÊ Ë¡ÃÉ������Å¡Ã��¡ Ã�̄ ��
����ÌËÃ��ÍÄ�� ÃÎ�Ã¡�Ã��¤¥

^̂

_̀ b̧ĉÀ��̂ÏstÐ̂{uŵ~�̂|}|��v���̂~ŵ���̂�v�t̂u|̂�ts�z���̂zv̂�t�z�y�̂�ª̂s�̂���̂�s�}{�v�̂���������©

²o³́µ¶·̀Ñ̀`̀¹́¼µ·¶¶²º·»½¼̀¾o»Ò́¼́»º¼
_̀Ñb¿̀Ï��t�̂t���t�v��̂z|̂{u��̂zv̂��z|̂��t��{�v�̂�ŝû�ts�z|zsv̂s�̂���̂�s�}{�v�̂���������̂st̂uvs���t̂xsv�tu��̂
�s�}{�v��̂���̂t���t�v��̂t���t|̂�ŝ��u�̂�ts�z|zsv̂u|̂u{�v���̂st̂|}��y�{�v���̂~ŵs���t̂�ts�z|zsv|̂s�̂���̂xsv�tu��̂
�s�}{�v�|©

_̀Ñbc̀À��̂�v�tÁ|̂t��t�|�v�u�z���
�Ó�Å�Ç��ÈÈ��ÄÄÇ��Å�¡Ê��ÈÈ��ÄÄÇ��ÃÈ� �����¡Ã̄ �Å��¡ Ã¥

Ôu{z�̂xu|�y��̂Õ}zy�zv�̂��z�zuy
xz�ŵs�̂x��ut̂ruyy|
���̂xyuŵ̈ �t���
x��ut̂ruyy|�̂�s�û��Ö�×
Ø×�ÙÚ̂�ÖÛÜ��ÛÙ
Ôu{z�©xu|�y�Ý���ut�uyy|©�s{̂

297

Item 22.



�����

�

�����	
�������������������������������� �!"�� �#"�� $!"�� %&"�� !�"�� !#"�� '�"�� '%"�� '&"�� &("�� &&"�� #&"��  �"��  &"�$))&�*+,�$)�&�-��.�/�
01/��2*+�3+4���5�/��6�0�2���/2�4���77�8�9:�;�8;8<=��>�?@�@AB�C:�;����D���	
������;�E8	�
�=�FG�H�I��J	EG8�9:��KLM�L�=����8�L��	�L7�C8L��;��
H�L��:	8�N=�8E8	=�
��	��	8�=�;�8�F���	��	O��:�;����D���	
����P�	8�L�G�E	8��	��	O���P��LG�8;�7�����;<8�
�<�7�L�=�
8����L7�E�L7��;P�L�=�M�77�F�
E8	;
��=��	��:��LQ�����Q����E	;;�F7���=8��:�7LM��.��4�,�251/+��R*4����,52/,�-��030�4�6�R*�/�*���)S!'S�)�T.��+�)(U%)U$)$)�5+,/��V�,/��
W�X$� %$$%%#&�R��2��/Y���/4��+�)'U$'U$)$)"�*+,��4�+���6����/4*Z/X
H;8�@	�;B� [$)%'#&$#�$\

�

]̂_̀âbcdefghijkligjmnejdojdndhikipqdr
stuvwxyuzz{w||xywvu}~yuzz{w||xyu�zy���w{y}���{vu�}���

��niphe�g�ick�n
�kp�gje��j�d�efghnij�lipgh
����e�kjhpde�qd
�kidj�gg�e��e�����
�cg�ick�n��kp�gjc�j�d��lg�
������������

]̂_̀�̂�dpicdjeicde ¡hdjmnehgjeicdefghijkligjmnejdojdndhikipqdenck��e¢delckh£d¤e¡picg�ieidhe¤k�nmeojpgjehgipldeigeicde
gicdjeokji��

]̂_̀¥̂¦§̈©ª«§¬̂«§®̂̄ °§®̈
]̂_̀¥̀±ebcde ¡hdjekh¤eicdefghijkligjenck��eo�jlckndekh¤e�kphikphephn�jkhldeknendie�gjicephe���e²gl��dhie
����³ µ́����e¶ikh¤kj¤e�gj�eg�e�£jdd�dhie·di¡ddhe ¡hdjekh¤efghijkligje¡cdjdeicde¢knpneg�eok��dhiepneke
¶ipo��kid¤e¶���ȩ¹cp¢pie��e�hn�jkhldekh¤e·gh¤n�ekh¤ed�nd¡cdjdepheicdefghijklie²gl��dhin�

]̂_̀¥̀ºebcdefghijkligjenck��eojgqp¤de¢gh¤neknendie�gjicephe���e²gl��dhie����³ µ́���ȩ¹cp¢pie��ekh¤ed�nd¡cdjdephe
icdefghijklie²gl��dhin�

]̂_̀»e�gipldephed�dlijghple�gj�ki�eo�jn�khieige�jipl�de�eg�e���e²gl��dhie�µ��́µ����e�k�e¢de£pqdhephekllgj¤khlde
¡pice���e²gl��dhiȩµ��³ µ́����e·�p�¤ph£e�h�gj�kipghe�g¤d�ph£ekh¤e²p£pik�e²kikȩ¹cp¢pi�ep�elg�o�did¤�egjekne
gicdj¡pndendie�gjice¢d�g¡r
s¼�y���w{y��u�y}�yu½½�{zu�½wy¾}��y¿¼¿yÀ�½Ávw��yÂÃÄÅÆÃÄÇÅxy}�|w{�y{wÈÁ}{wvw��|y��{yzw~}Éw{}�Êy���}½wy}�yw~w½�{��}½y
��{vu�y|Á½�yu|y�uvwxy�}�~wxyu�zywvu}~yuzz{w||y��y��wy{w½}Ë}w��yu�zy¾�w��w{yu�zy��¾y��wy|Ì|�wvy¾}~~yÍwy{wÈÁ}{wzy��y
Êw�w{u�wyuy{wuzy{w½w}Ë�y��{y��wy�{u�|v}||}��Î�

ee

]̂_̀Ï̂ icdjeojgqpnpghnr

�Ð�ee

ÑÒÓ¦ÔÕÖ̂×̂^̂ÖØÙÚÖÒÑÓ¦ÛØ̂ÛÜ̂ÔÛØÓÒÑÔÓ̂ÝÛÔÙÚÖØÓÞ
]̂×̀±̂bcpne�£jdd�dhiepnelg�ojpnd¤eg�eicde�g��g¡ph£e¤gl��dhinr

±̀ ���e²gl��dhie����³ µ́����e¶ikh¤kj¤e�gj�eg�e�£jdd�dhie·di¡ddhe ¡hdjekh¤efghijkligj
º̀ ���e²gl��dhie����³ µ́����ȩ¹cp¢pie��e�hn�jkhldekh¤e·gh¤ne
à ���e²gl��dhie�µ��³ µ́����eßdhdjk�efgh¤pipghneg�eicdefghijklie�gjefghnij�lipgh
�̀ ���e²gl��dhiȩµ��³ µ́����e·�p�¤ph£e�h�gj�kipghe�g¤d�ph£ekh¤e²p£pik�e²kikȩ¹cp¢pi�e¤kid¤ekne

ph¤plkid¤e¢d�g¡r
à�hndjieicde¤kideg�eicdȩµ���µ���ephlgjogjkid¤ephigeicpne�£jdd�dhi�á

ee

¥̀ ²jk¡ph£n

Ø©âãª Óäåæ Ý«å
¹̧cp¢pie·ee

»̀ ¶odlp�plkipghn

298

Item 22.



299

Item 22.



 

Exhibit B 
 

_______ (insert project name) 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number _______ 
 

  03-27-2019 
 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who 
perform work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this 
document shall be defined as the general contractor, artisan contractor, or design 
contractor that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under contract. 
 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer 
authorized by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be 
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the 
current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the 
Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement.  A copy of this endorsement is 
attached in Exhibit 1. 
 
3.  Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa for the coverage required in Exhibit 1.  Such Certificates shall 
include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See 

Exhibit 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Exhibit 1 

 
Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized 
representative from an Insurer duly licensed to transact business at the location 
of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first payment.    
 
Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for 
all subcontractors and sub-sub contractors who perform work or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 
 
4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 

300

Item 22.



 

insert project name 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 

 

5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of 
these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the 
required insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement.   
 
6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall 
constitute a default under this Contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to 
terminate this Contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Contractor’s 
expense. 
 
7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum 
coverage/limits or greater, if required by law or other legal agreement; as per 
Exhibit 1: 
 

➢ This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. 
Form CG 25 03 03 97 “Designated Construction Project(s) General 
Aggregate Limit” shall be included. All deviations or exclusions from the 
standard ISO commercial general liability form CG 001 shall be clearly 
identified and shall be subject to the review and approval of the City.  

 
➢ Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years 

following substantial completion of the Work to cover liability arising from 
the products-completed operations hazard and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.    

 
➢ Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to form 

attached. 
 

➢ Additional Insured Requirement – See Exhibit 1. 
The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or 
authorities and their board members, employees and volunteers shall be 
named as an additional insured on General Liability Policies for all classes 
of contractors. 
 
Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an 
additional insured including ongoing and completed operations coverage 
equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 37 07 04** 
 

*  ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors – Scheduled Person or Organization” 

  
 ** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 

Contractors – Completed Operations”  
 

301

Item 22.



 

insert project name 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 

 

9. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not 
contain the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially 
similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 
 
10. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not 
represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Contractor and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Contractor’s liability under the indemnities provided to City in this Contract.  The 
City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that 
otherwise specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums 
payable shall be added to the bid price. 
 
11. Performance and Payment Bonds: The City shall have the right to require 
the Contractor to furnish performance and payment bonds for the full amount of 
the Contract price.  The Contractor shall furnish, by a surety and in a form 
satisfactory to the City, such bonds to the City, prior to the start of Contractor’s 
Work, covering the performance of the Contractor and the payment of all 
obligations arising hereunder.  The Contractor, upon receipt of the bonds and 
invoice from the surety, shall pay for the cost of said bonds. Additional bond 
premium costs due to modifications to the Contract, shall be included in the 
modification amount submitted by Contractor, and paid by Contractor.  
 
12. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision:  To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, the Contractor agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including 
any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages which 
may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and 
volunteers working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not 
limited to, damages arising by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or 
death, and property damages, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent arising 
out of the errors, omissions or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, 
employees, subcontractors or others working on behalf of the Contractor.  It is 
the intention of the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on 
behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall not be liable or in any way 
responsible for the injury, damage, liability, loss or expense incurred by the 
Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the 
Contractor due to accidents, mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in 
person or property resulting from the work and/or services performed by the 

302

Item 22.



 

insert project name 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 

 

Contractor pursuant to the provisions of this contract, except for and to the extent 
caused by the negligence of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   
 
The Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for damages or injuries 
which may result to any person or property by reason of or in connection with the 
work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
pursuant to this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, omissions or 
negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others 
working on behalf of the Contractor, and agrees to pay the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa for all damages caused to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa premises resulting 
from the work and/or services of the Contractor, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor to the extent arising out 
of such errors, omissions or negligent acts. 
 
The Contractor represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this 
contract will be performed and supervised by adequately trained and qualified 
personnel, and the Contractor will observe, and cause its officers, employees, 
subcontractors and others affiliated with the Contractor to observe all applicable 
safety rules. 
 
13. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby 
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the 
Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of 
subrogation or otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or 
any other casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor’s 
employees. This provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with 
respect to loss or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out 
of the work performed under this contract. The Contractor’s policies of insurance 
shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that such release shall not 
adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the right of the Contractor to 
recover thereunder. 
 
 
Completion Checklist 
 

❑ Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
❑ Designated Construction Project(s) General Aggregate Limit CG 25 03 03 97 

(2 pages) 
❑ Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
❑ Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 
❑ Governmental Immunities Endorsement 

303

Item 22.



 

insert project name 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 

 

EXHIBIT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 
 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 
  

 

Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000                            
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned 
and hired vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if 
the Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 
 
 

 
   

304

Item 22.



 

insert project name 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

 

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and 
their board members, employees, and volunteers, are included as Additional 
Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and 
completed operations CG 2037 07 04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 

This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing 
with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, 
whether other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

 
 
 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

 

1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly 
agrees and states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of 
governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of 
Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so 
at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance 
carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from 
asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage 
under this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and 
benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of 
governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has 
ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall 
not otherwise change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 

305

Item 22.



 

insert project name 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 

 

CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 
 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 
Reduction in coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-
payment of premium shall be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar 
Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement 
supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of Insurance to 
which this endorsement is attached.  Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 
days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage 
and/or limits, and 10 days advance written notice of non-payment of premium. 
 
 
 
 

306

Item 22.



 

insert project name 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 

 

 

307

Item 22.



 

insert project name 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 

 

 

308

Item 22.



 

insert project name 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 

 

309

Item 22.



 

insert project name 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 

 

 

310

Item 22.



 

insert project name 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 

 

 

311

Item 22.



 

insert project name 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 

 

 

312

Item 22.



313

Item 22.



 

 

 1 

EXHIBIT B 

20016 CFRC Locker Room Upgrades Drawings 
 

SHEET NO. SHEET TITLE DRAWING DATE 

GENERAL   

G0.00 COVER SHEET 4.8.2020 

G0.01 TITLE SHEET 4.8.2020 

G0.02 STANDARD ADA CLEARANCE AND MOUNTING 
HEIGHTS 

4.8.2020 

ARCHITECTURAL   

A1.00 FLOOR AND DEMOLITION PLANS / DETAILS 4.8.2020 

A2.00 ENLARGED PLANS, INTERIOR ELEVATIONS, 3D 
VIEWS 

4.8.2020 

A3.00 REFLECTED CEILING AND DEMO RC PLANS, AND 
FINISH PLAN 

4.8.2020 

MECHANICAL   

ME0.00 COVER SHEET 4.8.2020 

P1.01 PLUMBING PLANS 4.8.2020 

M1.01 MECHANICAL PLAN 4.8.2020 

M2.01 MECHANICAL SCHEDULES AND DETAILS 4.8.2020 

E1.01 ELECTRICAL POWER AND LOW VOLTAGE PLAN 4.8.2020 

E2.01 ELECTRICAL LIGHTING PLAN 4.8.2020 

 

314

Item 22.



315

Item 22.



 

 

 1 

EXHIBIT C 

20016 CFRC Locker Room Upgrades Specifications dated 4.8.2020 
 

SPECIFICATION SECTIONS # OF PAGES 

Division 00 - Procurement and Contracting Requirements 74 

Division 01 - General Requirements 42 

Division 02 – Existing Conditions 2 

Division 03 – Concrete 2 

Division 05 – Metals 2 

Division 06 - Wood, Plastics and Composites 2 

Division 07 - Thermal and Moisture Protection 4 

Division 08 – Openings 14 

Division 09 – Finishes 22 

Division 10 – Specialties 6 

Division 12 – Furnishings 4 

 

316

Item 22.



317

Item 22.



318

Item 22.



319

Item 22.



320

Item 22.



321

Item 22.



322

Item 22.



323

Item 22.



324

Item 22.



325

Item 22.



326

Item 22.



327

Item 22.



328

Item 22.



329

Item 22.



330

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, PE, Principal Engineer 
 
 DATE: April 29, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Greenhill Rd and S Main Intersection Improvements 
  Application for Traffic Safety Improvement Program Funding 
  City Project Number: RC-173-3228 
 
Each year, the Iowa Department of Transportation (Iowa DOT) accepts applications for traffic 
safety improvements through the Traffic Safety Improvements Program (TSIP). TSIP’s are due 
to the DOT by August 15th, but the earlier submitted, the better. These are competitive grants 
and each year there are projects that are not considered for funding. 
 
The intersection of Greenhill Road and S Main Street was studied as a part of the Greenhill 
Road Corridor Traffic Study (completed December, 2018). That study recommended the 
intersection be converted into a roundabout in order to improve the safety and capacity of the 
intersection when S Main Street is reconstructed. The intersection of Greenhill Road and S Main 
St in Cedar Falls is currently signalized and lacks a left turn lane in the south direction and 
reduces westbound traffic to one lane just west of Coneflower. The existing Level of Service 
(LOS) for this intersection is a D with the southbound approach E. The proposed LOS on 
opening day is A and future 2045, B.  
 
The City’s consultant for the Greenhill Rd_S Main Street Intersection Improvements Project, 
Shive-Hattery, upon approval by Council will submit the application to the Iowa DOT for the 
funding request. The Greenhill Road and S Main Street Intersection Improvements application 
for Traffic Safety Improvement Program Funding is attached. The project could be awarded up 
to $500,000.00 in TSIP Funds upon approval by the Iowa DOT. Eligible project costs for 
construction would be reimbursed by the Iowa DOT and do not require a match.  
 
The Engineering Division recommends acceptance of the Application for the Traffic Safety 
Improvement Program Funding for the Greenhill Rd_S Main Street Intersection Improvements 
Project. We are asking for a resolution in support of the application. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

331

Item 23.



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION FOR 

TRAFFIC SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TSIP) FOR THE INTERSECTION 

OF GREENHILL RD AND S MAIN ST TO RECONSTRUCT THE SIGNAL 

CONTROLLED INTERSECTION TO A ROUNDABOUT. 

 

WHEREAS, the Iowa Department of Transportation has established the TSIP and provides 

funding for locations where vehicular safety is a concern and documented; and 

 

WHEREAS, said program allows for funding to be provided to local jurisdictions for eligible 

transportation projects or programs that will improve traffic safety at a specific site or corridor 

with a crash history; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls has determined that by reconstructing the intersection of 

Greenhill Road and S Main Street as a roundabout will help reduce crashes, thus improving 

safety and operations. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 

 

1. The City Council supports and approves the attached application for TSIP 

funding. 

2. The City Council hereby commits the additional City funds necessary for 

construction of the project beyond any TSIP funding. 

3. The City Council hereby commits to accepting and maintaining these 

improvements. 

4. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the application on behalf of the City. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this _____________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 ____________________________________ 

  Robert Green, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

____________________________________ 

 Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk 

332

Item 23.



Rev. 5/18 

 
Application for SITE-SPECIFIC 

TSIP FUNDS 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION DATE: April 28, 2020 

  

Location / Title of Project Greenhill Road / South Main Street Reconstruction 

Applicant City of Cedar Falls 

Contact Person Jon Fitch Title Principal Engineer 

Complete Mailing Address 220 Clay Street 

 Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

Phone (319) 268-5165 E-Mail Jon.Fitch@cedarfalls.com 
 (Area Code)  

 
 

If more than one highway authority is involved in this project, please indicate and 
fill in the information below (use additional sheets if necessary). 

Co-Applicant(s)       

Contact Person       Title       

Complete Mailing Address       

        

Phone       E-Mail       

 (Area Code)  
 
 

PLEASE COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING PROJECT INFORMATION: 
 

Funding Amount 
 

Total Safety Cost      $ 948,700 

 Total Project Cost $ 2,474,000 

 
 
Safety Funds Requested      $ 500,000 

 

 
Does this project appear on a Safety Improvement Candidate List or is there a safety 
study recommendation for this project?                 

Yes – Explain Project was identified in 2018 corridor traffic study as an immediate need.  
No

333

Item 23.



Rev. 5/18 

APPLICATION CERTIFICATION FOR PUBLIC AGENCY 
 
To the best of my knowledge and belief, all information included in this application is true and 
accurate, including the commitment of all physical and financial resources.  This application 
has been duly authorized by the participating public agency(ies).  I understand the attached 
resolution(s), where applicable, binds the participating public agency(ies) to assume 
responsibility for any additional funds, if required, to complete the project. In addition, the 
participating public agency(ies) agrees to maintain any new or improved public streets or 
roadways for a minimum of five years. 
 
I understand that, although this information is sufficient to secure a commitment of funds, a 
firm contract between the applicant and the Department of Transportation is required prior to 
the authorization of funds. 
 
 

Representing the City of Cedar Falls 

Signed: 
 Signature Date Signed 

 
Dave Wicke       

 Printed Name  

Attest: 

  

 Signature Date Signed 

 
Jacque Danielsen       

 Printed Name  

 

334

Item 23.



Traffic Safety Improvement Program 
Application

Greenhill Road Improvements
from S. Main to Coneflower Pkwy

Cedar Rapids, Iowa
April 28, 2020

Prepared by:

222 3rd Avenue, Suite 300
Cedar Rapids, Iowa 52406

(800) 798-0227 

335

Item 23.



B. Narrative

Background

Greenhill Road, a primary east/west corridor in Cedar Falls has been a focus of the City’s due to the 

development and increase in traffic demands. In 2017 the City of Cedar Falls commissioned a corridor 

study for Greenhill Road to evaluate the current and future traffic demands for all modes of transportation. 

The study concluded that over the next 25 years there is a potential for 60 – 80% growth in traffic 

volumes. Figure 1 and 2 below show the development that has occurred from 2010 through 2019. In 2017 

the Iowa DOT collected Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) within the project corridor of 10,200 

vehicles. See Exhibit H for existing conditions.

 
Figure 1 – 2010 Google Image - Cedar Falls Figure 2 – 2019 Iowa Geo Map - Cedar Falls

Greenhill Road currently has four lanes with a width of 52 feet from back-of-curb to back-of-curb and a 

posted speed limit of 45 mph. These are two factors that have led to many of the crashes. Other safety 

related factors between these two intersections include: 

- Traveling WB on Greenhill approaching S. Main Street the inside through lane is terminated 

to create a WB left turn lane with the second through lane re-established west of the 

intersection.

- The NB through lane on S Main Street is offset through the intersection with Greenhill Road.

This corridor serves as a major route for multi-modal transportation uses, connecting multiple trails on the 

south side of Cedar Falls. There is a 10’ shared use trail on both sides of Greenhill Road in this area.

Crash History
Crash history for this intersection was collected from the Iowa DOT Crash Analysis Tool (ICAT) software 

and was evaluated from 2015 to 2019 to identify trends and safety issues with the current intersection 

geometries. Over the last 5 years there has been an average of nearly 6 crashes per year with 5 minor 

injuries and 7 possible injuries. Further analysis of the data showed that there has been a steady increase 

in the number and severity of crashes year over year. From 2009 through 2014 there was one minor 

injury reported with an average of 1 to 2 crashes per year. Starting in 2015 that number has increased 

and in 2019 there were 8 crashes with three of them reporting minor injuries. This section of the corridor 

336

Item 23.



B. Narrative

needs improvements to mitigate this rising trend in crashes and severity. Refer to Exhibit I for crash 

history summaries.

Proposed Improvements
The City of Cedar Falls has begun implementing the improvements that were outlined in the 2018 corridor 

study in preparation for the growth and development that is forecasted for this area.  This year a dual-lane 

roundabout will be constructed at the intersection of Greenhill Road and Cedar Heights Drive, 

approximately two miles east of S. Main Street. As part of this safety application, the City is proposing to 

construct a dual-lane roundabout at the intersection of Greenhill Road and S Main Street, which also 

follows the recommendation of the 2018 corridor study. The roundabout will:

- Serve to reduce speeds and the number of crashes. 

- Provide safer pedestrian crossings of Greenhill Road. Additional street lighting will be 

included to illuminate the approaches and pedestrian crossings.

- Continue the similar intersection type along the corridor.

- Will aid in providing acceptable gaps in traffic.  

Refer to Exhibit G for the planned proposed improvements.

Public Support 
This corridor has been studied and analyzed over the last five years and the public has been involved 

throughout the entire process. Roundabouts were identified as the preferred method of intersection 

control for the corridor and approved by the city council. Throughout the remainder of the design process 

the public will continue to have input on the design and impacts through stakeholder meetings and public 

outreach meetings.

337

Item 23.



C. Cost Estimate

Item No Description Unit Unit Price

1 Excavation, Class 10 CY 5$               10,500 52,500$               52,500.00$       
2 Subgrade Preparation SY 3$               15,200 45,600$               45,600.00$       
3 Modified Subbase CY 7$               15,200 106,400$         106,400.00$     
4 Topsoil, Strip, Salvage and Respread CY 8$               3,500 28,000$               28,000.00$       
5 Remove Existing Intake EA 900$           6 5,400$                 5,400.00$         
6 Remove Existing Manhole EA 900$           1 900$                    900.00$            
7 Remove Storm Sewer LF 25$             540 13,500$               13,500.00$       

8 Storm Sewer RCP LF 90$             1,240 111,600$             111,600.00$     

9 Storm Sewer Intake, SW-510 EA 6,500$        8 52,000$               52,000.00$       

10 Storm Sewer Manhole, SW-501 EA 4,000$        2 8,000$                 8,000.00$         

11 Removal of Pavement SY 8$               9,600 76,800$               76,800.00$       

12 PCC Pavement, 10" SY 70$             10,300 721,000$         721,000.00$     

13 Concrete Median, Colored SY 90$             1,405 126,450$             126,450.00$     

14 Truck Apron, Colored SY 90$             570 51,300$           51,300.00$       

15 Pavement Markings LS 10,000$      1 10,000$           10,000.00$       

16 Removal of Sidewalk SY 10$             2,200 22,000$               22,000.00$       

17 PCC Sidewalk, 5" SY 45$             2,450 110,250$             110,250.00$     

18 Detectable Warnings SF 45$             340 15,300$               15,300.00$       

19 Removal and Replacement of Wood Fence LF 60$             1,200 72,000$               72,000.00$       

20 Retainig Wall LF 45$             2,000 90,000$               90,000.00$       

21 Mobilization 130,000$    1 130,000$             130,000.00$     

22 Traffic Control LS 50,000$      1 50,000$               50,000.00$       

23 Traffic Signal Removal LF 30,000$      1 30,000$               30,000.00$       

24 Lighting LS 60,000$      1 60,000$           60,000.00$       

25 Construction Survey LS 25,000$      1 25,000$               25,000.00$       

26 Landscaping / Restoration LS 45,000$      1 45,000$               45,000.00$       

27 Erosion Control LS 15,000$      1 15,000$               15,000.00$       

28 Utility Relocation LS 400,000$    1 400,000$             400,000.00$     

SubTotal 948,700.00$    1,525,300.00$     

Rough Order of Magnitude Construction Cost 2,474,000.00$  

Proposed Public Improvements -Greenhill Road Corridor

South Main Street to Coneflower Parkway
Cedar Falls, Iowa

Engineer's Rough Order Magnitude of Cost

Estimate of Quantities - April 24, 2020

Non-TSIP 

Eligible Quantity

TSIP Eligible 

Quantity Total Cost

TSIP Eligible 

Cost

Non-TSIP Eligible 

Cost

338

Item 23.



D. Timeline Schedule

Improvements to the intersection of E Greenhill Road and S Main Street, are to be funded 
through Traffic Safety Improvement Funds. The schedule proposed for the safety improvements 
is as follows:

 May 2020 – Submit for 2021 TSIP Funds

 April 2020 – December 2020 – Proceed with the design of improvements 

 December 2020 – TSIP funds are awarded

 February 2021 – Let corridor improvement project 

 April/May 2021 – Construction begins

 July 2021 – TSIP funds are available for the corridor improvements

 October 2021 – Construction complete

339

Item 23.



E. Project Location

Project Location

City of Cedar Falls

Hwy 146 Looking South

340

Item 23.



F. Site Photos

Looking West from South Main Street (EB Approach)*

Looking East from South Main Street (WB Approach)*

*Source: Google®

Hwy 146 Looking South

341

Item 23.



F. Site Photos

Looking South from East Greenhill Road (NB Approach)*

Looking North from East Greenhill Road (SB Approach)*

*Source: Google®

342

Item 23.



SCALE

EXHIBIT:  

GREENHILL ROAD IMPROVEMENTS

FROM S MAIN STREET TO CONEFLOWER PKWY

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

04/28/2020

CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENTS CONCEPT

S
.
 
M

A
I
N

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

GREENHILL ROAD

CEDAR PRAIRIE TRAIL

BALBOA AVENUE

SPRUCE HILLS DRIVE

G

EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY (TYP)

PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY

REALIGNED TRAIL

TWO LANE ROUNDABOUT

FAREWAY

KWIK

STAR

REPLACE FENCE

REPLACE FENCE

343

Item 23.



H. Aerial Photograph

Hwy 146 Looking South

Project Location

Greenhill Road

S.
 M

ai
n 

St
re

et

Es
ta

te
 R

oa
d

Co
ne

flo
w

er
 P

kw
y

344

Item 23.



Crash Severity

Fatal Crash 0

Suspected Serious Injury Crash 0

Suspected Minor Injury Crash 5

Possible/Unknown Injury Crash 6

Property Damage Only 12

23 Injury Status Summary

Fatalities 0

Suspected serious/incapacitating 0

Suspected minor/non-incapacitating 5

Possible (complaint of pain/injury) 7

Unknown 0

12

Property Damage Total (dollars): 108,500.00

Average (per crash dollars): 4,717.39

Total Vehicles: 48.00

Average (per crash): 2.09

Total Occupants: 63.00

Average (per crash): 2.74

Property/Vehicles/Occupants

Fatalities/Fatal Crash: 0.00

Fatalities/Crash: 0.00

Injuries/Crash: 0.52

Major Injuries/Crash: 0.00

Minor Injuries/Crash: 0.22

Possible/Unknown Injuries/Crash: 0.30

Average Severity

03/31/2020 1 of 7

Iowa Crash Analysis Tool
Quick Report

2015-2019

345

Item 23.



Major Cause

Animal 0

Ran stop sign 1

FTYROW:  At uncontrolled intersection 0

FTYROW:  From stop sign 0

FTYROW:  Making left turn 5

FTYROW:  From parked position 0

FTYROW:  Other 1

Disregarded RR Signal 0

Crossed median (divided) 0

Aggressive driving/road rage 0

Exceeded authorized speed 0

Operating vehicle in an reckless, erratic, ca... 0

Passing:  On wrong side 0

Passing:  With insufficient distance/inadequa... 0

Passing:  Other passing 0

Driver Distraction:  Manual operation of an e... 0

Driver Distraction:  Talking on a hands free ... 0

Driver Distraction:  Other electronic device ... 0

Driver Distraction:  Unrestrained animal 0

Driver Distraction:  Inattentive/lost in thou... 2

Driver Distraction:  Exterior distraction 0

Ran off road - straight 0

Lost control 1

Over correcting/over steering 0

Failure to signal intentions 0

Vehicle stopped on railroad tracks 0

Other:  Improper operation 0

Other:  Disregarded signs/road markings 0

Downhill runaway 0

Towing improperly 0

Equipment failure 0

Other:  Getting off/out of vehicle 0

Improper backing 0

Illegally parked/unattended 0

Operator inexperience 0

Unknown 1

Other:  No improper action 0

Ran traffic signal 1

Failed to yield to emergency vehicle 0

FTYROW:  Making right turn on red signal 0

FTYROW:  From yield sign 0

FTYROW:  From driveway 0

FTYROW:  To pedestrian 0

Drove around RR grade crossing gates 0

Crossed centerline (undivided) 0

Traveling wrong way or on wrong side of road 0

Driving too fast for conditions 0

Improper or erratic lane changing 0

Followed too close 4

Passing:  Where prohibited by signs/markings 0

Passing:  Through/around barrier 0

Made improper turn 1

Driver Distraction:  Talking on a hand-held d... 0

Driver Distraction:  Adjusting devices (radio... 0

Driver Distraction:  Passenger 1

Driver Distraction:  Reaching for object(s)/f... 0

Driver Distraction:  Other interior distracti... 0

Ran off road - right 0

Ran off road - left 0

Swerving/Evasive Action 0

Failed to keep in proper lane 0

Traveling on prohibited traffic way 0

Other:  Vision obstructed 1

Other:  Disregarded warning sign 0

Other:  Illegal off-road driving 0

Separation of units 0

Cargo/equipment loss or shift 0

Oversized load/vehicle 0

Failure to dim lights/have lights on 0

Improper starting 0

Driving less than the posted speed limit 0

Other 4

Not reported 0

23

03/31/2020 2 of 7

Iowa Crash Analysis Tool
Quick Report

2015-2019

346

Item 23.



Time of Day/Day of Week

Day of Week

 12 AM  
   to      

2 AM

 2 AM    
  to    4 

AM

 4 AM    
  to    6 

AM

 6 AM    
  to    8 

AM

 8 AM    
  to    

10 AM

10 AM 
to  

Noon

 Noon    
 to     2 

PM

 2 PM    
  to    4 

PM

 4 PM    
  to    6 

PM

 6 PM    
  to    8 

PM

 8 PM    
  to    

10 PM

 10 PM  
 to     

12 AM

Not 
reporte

d Total

Sunday 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 3

Monday 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 2 2 0 0 0 6

Tuesday 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Wednesday 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 3

Thursday 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 0 3

Friday 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 1 0 1 0 0 6

Saturday 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Total 0 0 0 0 0 4 5 6 4 3 1 0 0 23

Manner of Crash Collision

Non-collision (single vehicle) 1

Head-on (front to front) 1

Rear-end (front to rear) 12

Angle, oncoming left turn 5

Broadside (front to side) 3

Sideswipe, same direction 1

Sideswipe, opposite direction 0

Rear to rear 0

Rear to side 0

Not reported 0

Other 0

Unknown 0

23 Surface Conditions

Dry 20

Wet 2

Ice/frost 0

Snow 0

Slush 1

Mud, dirt 0

Water (standing or moving) 0

Sand 0

Oil 0

Gravel 0

Not reported 0

Other 0

Unknown 0

23

Fixed Object Struck

Bridge overhead structure 0

Bridge/bridge rail parapet 0

Ditch 0

Ground 0

Guardrail - face 0

Concrete traffic barrier (median or right sid... 0

Cable barrier 0

Utility pole/light support 0

Traffic signal support 0

Fire hydrant 0

Tree 0

Snow bank 0

Wall 0

Other fixed object 0

Bridge pier or support 0

Curb/island/raised median 0

Embankment 0

Culvert/pipe opening 0

Guardrail - end 0

Other traffic barrier 0

Impact attenuator/crash cushion 0

Traffic sign support 0

Other post/pole/support 0

Mailbox 0

Landscape/shrubbery 0

Fence 0

Building 0

None (no fixed object struck) 48

48

03/31/2020 3 of 7

Iowa Crash Analysis Tool
Quick Report

2015-2019

347

Item 23.



Driver Age/Driver Gender

Driver Age - 5 year 
Bins Female Male

Not 
reported Unknown Total

< 14 0 0 0 0 0

= 14 0 0 0 0 0

= 15 1 0 0 0 1

= 16 1 1 0 0 2

= 17 2 0 0 0 2

= 18 0 0 0 0 0

= 19 1 0 0 0 1

= 20 1 0 0 0 1

>= 21 and <= 24 5 0 0 0 5

>= 25 and <= 29 2 0 0 0 2

>= 30 and <= 34 3 1 0 0 4

>= 35 and <= 39 1 2 0 0 3

>= 40 and <= 44 1 5 0 0 6

>= 45 and <= 49 0 2 0 0 2

>= 50 and <= 54 2 1 0 0 3

>= 55 and <= 59 5 0 0 0 5

>= 60 and <= 64 2 2 0 0 4

>= 65 and <= 69 2 0 0 0 2

>= 70 and <= 74 0 2 0 0 2

>= 75 and <= 79 2 0 0 0 2

>= 80 and <= 84 1 0 0 0 1

>= 85 and <= 89 0 0 0 0 0

>= 90 and <= 94 0 0 0 0 0

>= 95 0 0 0 0 0

Not reported 0 0 0 0 0

Unknown 0 0 0 0 0

Total 32 16 0 0 48

Alcohol Test Given

None 48

Blood 0

Urine 0

Breath 0

Vitreous 0

Refused 0

Not reported 0

48

Drug Test Given

None 48

Blood 0

Urine 0

Breath 0

Vitreous 0

Refused 0

Not reported 0

48

Drug Test Result

Negative 0

Cannabis 0

Central Nervous System depressants 0

Central Nervous System stimulants 0

Hallucinogens 0

Inhalants 0

Narcotic Analgesics 0

Dissociative Anesthetic (PCP) 0

Prescription Drug 0

Not reported 48

Other 0

48

Drug/Alcohol Related

Drug 0

Alcohol (< Statutory) 0

Alcohol (Statutory) 0

Drug/Alcohol (< Statutory) 0

Drug/Alcohol (Statutory) 0

Refused 0

Under Influence of Alcohol/Drugs/Medications 0

None Indicated 23

23

03/31/2020 4 of 7

Iowa Crash Analysis Tool
Quick Report

2015-2019

348

Item 23.



Crash Severity - Annual

Crash Year Fatal Crash
Suspected Serious 

Injury Crash
Suspected Minor 

Injury Crash
Possible/Unknown 

Injury Crash
Property Damage 

Only Total
2009 0 0 0 0 0 0

2010 0 0 0 0 0 0

2011 0 0 0 0 0 0

2012 0 0 0 0 0 0

2013 0 0 0 0 0 0

2014 0 0 0 0 0 0

2015 0 0 0 1 1 2

2016 0 0 0 1 3 4

2017 0 0 1 1 2 4

2018 0 0 1 2 2 5

2019 0 0 3 1 4 8

2020 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 5 6 12 23

Severity/Year

03/31/2020 5 of 7

Iowa Crash Analysis Tool
Quick Report

2015-2019

349

Item 23.



Injury Status - Annual

Crash Year Fatalities

Suspected 
serious/incapac

itating

Suspected 
minor/non-

incapacitating

Possible 
(complaint of 

pain/injury) Unknown Total

2009 0 0 0 0 0 0

2010 0 0 0 0 0 0

2011 0 0 0 0 0 0

2012 0 0 0 0 0 0

2013 0 0 0 0 0 0

2014 0 0 0 0 0 0

2015 0 0 0 1 0 1

2016 0 0 0 1 0 1

2017 0 0 1 1 0 2

2018 0 0 1 2 0 3

2019 0 0 3 2 0 5

2020 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 5 7 0 12

Injury Status/Year

03/31/2020 6 of 7

Iowa Crash Analysis Tool
Quick Report

2015-2019

350

Item 23.



Jurisdiction: Statewide
Year: 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019
Map Selection: Yes
Filter: None

Meeting the following criteria

Analyst Information

03/31/2020 7 of 7

Iowa Crash Analysis Tool
Quick Report

2015-2019

351

Item 23.



J. Traffic Counts

2017 Iowa DOT Traffic Map

Road Name 2017 Iowa DOT ADT 2018 Traffic Study
Greenhill Road 10200 12157
S Main Street 8000 7750

Project Location

Hwy 146 Looking South

352

Item 23.



L. Benefit - Cost

Intersection or Spot Benefit / Cost Safety Analysis Rev. 5/18

Iowa DOT Office of Traffic & Safety

County: Prepared by: Date Prepared: Apr 20, 2020

Intersection:

Improvement

Proposed Improvement(s):

948,700$   Estimated Improvement Cost, EC 20       Estimated Service Life, years, Y

Other Annual Cost (after initial year), AC 81       Crash Reduction Factor (integer), CRF

-$           Present Value Other Annual Costs, OC 4.0% Discount Rate (time value of $), INT

Present Value Cost, COST = EC + OC

Traffic Volume Data

Source: 2018 Date of traffic count

Daily Entering Vehicles by Approach (or AADT / 2)

4,760 Current Annual Entering Veh., AEV = DEV * 365

6,079 5,721 veh / day, Final Year DEV, FDEV

2,163 MEV, Total Million Entering Veh. Over

   life of Project, TMEV

2.5% Projected Traffic Growth (0%-10%), G

18,723       Current Daily Entering Vehicles, DEV

Crash Data

2015 First full year --> 2019 Last full year 5.0 years, Time Period, T

0 Additional months

Fatal Crashes Fatalities @ $4,500,000 -$                 

Major Injuries @ $325,000 -$                 

11 Injury Crashes 5 Minor Injuries @ $65,000 325,000$         

6 Possible Injuries @ $35,000 210,000$         

12 Property Damage Only (assumed cost per crash) $7,400 170,200$         

-OR-   enter all Property Costs of all crashes:

23 Total Crashes, TA Total $ Loss, LOSS 705,200$         

4.60           Current Crashes / Year, AA = TA / T Crashes / MEV, Crash Rate, CR

30,661$     Cost per Crash, AVC = LOSS / TA   CR = TA x 10^6 / (DEV x 365 x T)

117.5         Total Expected Crashes, TECR = CR x TMEV Present Value of Avoided

3.73           Crashes Avoided First Year AAR = AA x CRF / 100   Crashes, BENEFIT

114,242$   Crash Costs Avoided in First Year, AAR x AVC

95.2           Total Avoided Crashes, TECR x CRF/ 100

Benefit / Cost Ratio

Benefit : Cost  = $1,920,467 : = 2.02  : 1

1,920,467$  

$948,700

0.67             

6,833,895      

174.57           

Blackhawk Shive-Hattery

948,700$         

Cedar Falls Traffic Study

30,680           

Conversion of existing traffic signal to a dual-lane roundabout

Greenhill Road and S Main Street

( ) 













+
−=

Y
INTINT

AC
OC

1

1
1

10
6

1

1
1





















 +−
−

=
Y

G

G

AEV
TMEV

( ) 





















+
+−

−
×=

Y

INT

G

GINT

AARAVC
BEN

1

1
1.

353

Item 23.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, Principal Engineer, PE 
 
 DATE: April 29, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: 2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project 
  Project No. SW-000-3223 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the 2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project. 
 
We recommend setting Monday, May 18, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for the public 
hearing on this project and Tuesday, May 26, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. as the date and time for 
receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders be published by May 5, 
2020. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for distribution to contractors on May 5, 2020 
allowing three (3) weeks of review before contract letting. 
 
This project shall consist of the construction of Portland Cement Concrete (PCC) sidewalks, 
minor grading, miscellaneous curb and gutter replacement, pedestrian ramps and site 
restoration.   
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $105,800.00. The project will be 
fully funded by a Community Development Block Grant funding source.  
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your review at 
the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Public Works Department. 
 
xc: David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

  

354

Item 24.



355

Item 24.



356

Item 24.



357

Item 24.



358

Item 24.



359

Item 24.



360

Item 24.



361

Item 24.



362

Item 24.



363

Item 24.



364

Item 24.



365

Item 24.



366

Item 24.



367

Item 24.



368

Item 24.



369

Item 24.



370

Item 24.



371

Item 24.



372

Item 24.



1 

 
 

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS 
FOR 

2020 CDBG SIDEWALK INFILL PROJECT 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDED 
Project SW-000-3223 

 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION 

 
 
 

 
I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by me or 
under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly licensed 
professional engineer under the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 
____________________________  Date: 5/5/2020 
Jonathan P. Fitch, P.E.      Iowa License No. 16920 
My license renewal date is December  31, 2021 
 
Pages or sheets covered by this seal: 1 thru 71. 

 

 

 
 

373

Item 24.



2 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
    Page Number 
 
TITLE SHEET  1 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 to 3 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 4 
 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 5 to 8 
 
DIVISION 1 – Instruction to Bidders 
 

01 Definition and Terms 9 
 02 Qualification of the Bidder 9 

03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 10 
04 Taxes  10 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder and Bid Security 10-11 
Form of Proposal 12-14 
Bid Bond  15 
Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 16 
Bidder Status Form                                                                                      17 
Worksheet: Authorization to Transact Business                                          18 
Performance, Payment & Maintenance Bond                                         19-22 
Notice to Proceed 23 
Form of Contract 24-25 

 
DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 
 

01 Award of Contract 26 
02 Availability of Site 26 
03 Protection of Line and Grade Stakes 26 
04 Borrow and Waste Sites 27 
05 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 27 
06 Contract Time 27 
07 Work Progress and Schedule 27 
08 Weekly record of Working Days 27-28 
09 Liquidated Damages 28 
10 Progress Payments 28 
11 Method of Measurement 28 
12 Basis of Payment 28-29 

 

374

Item 24.



3 

DIVISION 3 – Standard Specifications 
 

The City of Cedar Falls has adopted the 2020 Edition of the “URBAN 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC  IMPROVEMENTS MANUAL” 
(SUDAS) as the City’s Standard Specification. 
 
This Standard Specification is amended by the “City of Cedar Falls’ 2020 
Supplemental Specifications to the 2020 Edition of the URBAN STANDARD 
SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS MANUAL” 

 
Links to both documents can be found on the City’s website at: 
www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards   
 
DIVISION 4 – Supplemental Plans and Specifications 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS - BID ITEMS 30 
 
DIVISION 5 – CDBG Funding          21 - 71 
 

Wage Determination (8 pages) 
Required Federal Contract Language for CDBG Funded Contracts (9 pages) 
Payroll Form (2 pages) 
On-site Interview Forms/Online Employee Questionnaire/Complaint Intake (11 
pages) 
Section 3 (8 pages) 

 Project Sign (1 page) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

375

Item 24.



4 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, 
FORM OF CONTRACT, AND ESTIMATE OF COST FOR THE  

2020 CDBG SIDEWALK INFILL PROJECT IN THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 

TO ALL TAXPAYERS OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND OTHER PERSONS 
INTERESTED: 
 

Public notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

will conduct a Public Hearing on Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and Estimated 

total Cost for the construction of the 2020 CDBG SIDEWALK INFILL PROJECT, in said 

City at 7:00 p.m. on the 18th day of May, 2020, said meeting to be held in the Council 

Chambers in the City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Said Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract and estimated total cost are now on file 

in the office of the City Clerk in the City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa, and may be inspected by 

any persons interested. 

Any person interested may appear at said meeting of the City Council for the 

purpose of making objections to said Plans, Specifications, Contract, or the estimated total 

cost of making said improvement. 

This notice given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.            

   City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
    By: _______________________________ 
          Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
 
     City Clerk 
 

 
 
 

376

Item 24.



5 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
2020 CDBG SIDEWALK INFILL PROJECT  

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA 

 
Time and Place for Filing Sealed Proposals: Sealed proposals will be received at City Hall, located 
at 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa until 2:00 PM May 26, 2020 for the 2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill 
project.  All bids will be publicly opened and read aloud at that time and place. Bids received for the 
Project will be considered by the City Council at City Hall on June 1, 2020 at 7:00 PM. 
 
Time and Place Sealed Proposals will be Opened and Considered: Sealed proposals will be opened 
and read at 2:00 p.m. on the 26th day of May, 2020 in the Duke Young conference Room at City Hall, 
220 Clay Street Cedar Falls, Iowa, for consideration by the City of Cedar Falls City Council at its 
meeting at 7:00 p.m. on the  1st day of June, 2020 or at such later time and place as may be fixed. 
The City of Cedar Falls reserves the right to reject any and all proposals including without limitation, 
nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. 
  
Time for Commencement and Completion of Work: The work under the proposed contract shall 
commence within ten (10) calendar days after the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed and 
shall be performed regularly and diligently throughout the duration of the project. All work shall be 
completed within fifty (50) working days. Working days will be accumulated concurrently from the 
date of the Notice to Proceed. 
 
Bid Security: Each Form of Proposal shall be accompanied in a separate envelope by a proposal 
guaranty as defined in the Instructions to Bidders - Division 1, Section 05.  
 
Contract Documents: Plans, specifications, and proposal forms have been approved by the City 
Council and are now on file for public examination in the office of the City Clerk. Contractors are 
encouraged to download electronic contract documents. Electronic contract documents will become 
available Tuesday, May 5, 2020 at no cost by clicking on the “Bid Opportunities” link at 
www.cedarfalls.com and choosing the 2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill project from the list. Project 
information, Engineer’s cost opinion, and planholder information is also available at no cost at this 
website. Downloads require the user to register for a free membership at www.QuestCDN.com.  No 
hard copies will be provided by the City. 
 
Contact Darwin Bentley for any questions via phone: (319) 268-5165, fax: (319) 268-5197, or 
email: jon.fitch@cedarfalls.com. QuestCDN reference number 7017839. 
 
Preference for Iowa Products and Labor: The Contractor shall give preference to Iowa domestic 
labor in the construction or building of such public improvement or works in accordance with Section 
73 of the Code of Iowa. 
 
Sales Tax: Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 
Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment in the performance of this project. 
Products utilized in the construction of this project shall be exempt from tax as provided by Iowa 
Code Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 
 
Project Description: This work shall consist of the construction of Portland Cement Concrete 
(PCC) sidewalks, minor grading, miscellaneous curb and gutter replacement, pedestrian ramps 

377

Item 24.



6 

and site restoration according to the plans and these specifications.  
 
CDBG Funded: This project is being funded in part by Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) dollars originating from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD).  Therefore, this project is subject to federal labor standard requirements, including Davis 
Bacon-Act (federal prevailing wage requirements for laborers and mechanics on site) and HUD 
Section 3 Hiring (low-income persons employment) provisions.  Bidders should submit completed 
and signed “Intent to Comply with Section 3 Requirements” form as part of their bid documentation.  
The Intent to Comply form as well as details on other federal requirements, including prevailing 
wage rates, are included in the Specifications. 
 
Each BIDDER shall accompany its bid with a bid security as security that the successful 
BIDDER will enter into a contract for the work bid upon and will furnish after the award of 
CONTRACT a corporate surety bond, acceptable to the OWNER, for the faithful performance of 
the CONTRACT, in an amount equal to 100 percent of the amount of the CONTRACT.  The bid 
security shall be in the amount of five (5) percent of the amount of the CONTRACT and shall be 
in the form of a cashier’s check, or certified check drawn on a state chartered or federally 
charted bank, or a certified share draft drawn on a state-chartered or federally chartered credit 
union.  The Bid Bond shall contain no exceptions. 
 
By virtue of Statutory authority, a preference will be given to products and provisions grown and 
coal produced within the State of Iowa and to Iowa Domestic Labor, to the extent lawfully 
required under Iowa statutes. 
 
OWNER is designated a Tax-Exempt Entity.  As such, CONTRACTOR, and any subcontractors, 
under this contract, shall be provided a Tax-Exempt Certificate and authorization letter from the 
OWNER.  Tax Exempt certificate and authorization letter shall be used by CONTRACTOR to 
secure building materials or equipment intended for completion of this project without payment of 
sales tax.  CONTRACTOR is not mandated to complete Iowa Department of Revenue Form 
35002 – Iowa Contractor’s Statement upon execution of agreement.  CONTRACTOR agrees to 
this method of sales tax exemption and it shall not be modified during the course of construction. 
 
BIDDER shall satisfy themselves of the accuracy of the estimated quantities in the BID schedule 
by examination of the site and review of the contract documents; including ADDENDA.  After 
BIDS have been submitted, the BIDDER shall not assert that there was a misunderstanding 
concerning the quantities of WORK or nature of the WORK to be done. 
 
The successful BIDDER shall be required to furnish a performance BOND and a payment 
BOND, each in the amount of 100 percent of the CONTRACT PRICE, with a corporate surety 
approved by the OWNER, within ten (10) calendar days of the date when the NOTICE OF 
AWARD is delivered to the BIDDER.  The NOTICE OF AWARD shall be accompanied by the 
necessary AGREEMENT and BOND forms.  In case of failure of the BIDDER to execute the 
AGREEMENT, the OWNER may at his option consider the BIDDER in default, in which case the 
BID BOND shall become property of the OWNER. 
 
BIDDERS must indicate on the BID form the proposed equipment and subcontractors who will 
be performing the major portions of the work. 
 
No BID submitted by any BIDDER which contains a condition or qualification shall be recognized 
or accepted by the OWNER and any letter or communication accompanying the BID which 

378

Item 24.



7 

contains a condition or qualification upon the BID which has the effect of qualifying or modifying 
any provision of the contract documents in any manner will be construed as a qualifying BID and 
will be rejected by the OWNER as non-responsive. 
 
Section 3 language for procurement documents: 

  
A. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of section 3 of 

the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (section 
3). The purpose of section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities 
generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by section 3, shall, to the 
greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly 
persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing. 
 

B. The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135, 
which implement section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to 
this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment that would 
prevent them from complying with the part 135 regulations. 
 

C. The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with 
which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a 
notice advising the labor organization or workers' representative of the contractor's 
commitments under this section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous 
places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training and employment 
positions can see the notice. The notice shall describe the section 3 preference, shall set 
forth minimum number and job titles subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship and training 
positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking 
applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin. 
 

D. The contractor agrees to include this section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to 
compliance with regulations in 24 CFR part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, as 
provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this section 3 clause, upon a 
finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. The 
contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the contractor has notice or 
knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR 
part 135. 
 

E. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training positions, 
that are filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) 
with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR part 135 require 
employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor's 
obligations under 24 CFR part 135. 
 

F. Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions, 
termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD 
assisted contracts. 

 
G. With respect to work performed in connection with section 3 covered Indian housing 

assistance, section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 
U.S.C. 450e) also applies to the work to be performed under this contract. Section 7(b) 
requires that to the greatest extent feasible (i) preference and opportunities for training and 

379

Item 24.



8 

employment shall be given to Indians, and (ii) preference in the award of contracts and 
subcontracts shall be given to Indian organizations and Indian-owned Economic Enterprises. 
Parties to this contract that are subject to the provisions of section 3 and section 7(b) agree 
to comply with section 3 to the maximum extent feasible, but not in derogation of compliance 
with section 7(b). 

Section 3 Businesses are encouraged to respond to this proposal.  A Section 3 business is a 
business that is: 

51% owned by Section 3 residents* 

Whose permanent, full-time staff is comprised of at least 30% Section 3 residents* 

Has committed 25% of the dollar amount of its subcontracts to Section 3 businesses 

*A Section 3 resident is defined as a public housing resident or someone with a household income 
that is less than 80% of the area median income. 
Businesses that believe they meet the Section 3 criteria are encouraged to register as a Section 3 
Business through HUD’s website: 
https://portalapps.hud.gov/Sec3BusReg/BRegistry/RegisterBusiness 
 
No bidder may withdraw his bid within 60 days after the actual date of the opening thereof 
 
OWNER reserves the right to waive any informalities or to reject any or all bids. 
 
Published upon order of the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
      
     BY: __________________________ 
           Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 

                                        City Clerk 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

380

Item 24.



9 

DIVISION I – Instruction to Bidders 

 
The work comprising the 2020 Public Sidewalk and Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project 
shall be constructed in accordance with the 2020 Edition of the SUDAS and as further 
modified be the City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications and the special provision 
included in the contract documents. The terms used in the contract revision of the documents 
are defined in said Standard Specifications. 
 
Before submitting your bid, please review all requirements of DIVISION 5 related to CDBG 
funding of public improvement projects. 
 
Before submitting your bid, please review the requirements of “Division One, General 
Provisions and Covenants”, in particular the sections regarding proposal requirements, 
bonding, contract execution, and insurance requirements.  Please be certain that all 
documents have been completed properly; as failure to complete and sign all documents and 
to comply with the requirements listed below can cause your bid not to be read. 
 
01 Definition and Terms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1010 – 1.03: 
 
Code of Iowa: The latest edition of the Code of Iowa 
 
Engineer: The City Engineer of Cedar Falls, Iowa or an authorized representative. 
 
Owner: The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa acting through its City Council. 
 
Project: 2020 CDBG SIDEWALK INFILL PROJECT 

Project No. SW-000-3223 
 
02 Qualification of the Bidder 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.01: 
 
To demonstrate bidder’s qualifications to perform the work, within five days of the Owners 
request, bidder shall submit written evidence such as may be called for below: 
 
The address and description of the bidder’s place of business; The number of years 
engaged in the contracting business under the present firm name, and the name of the 
state where incorporated; A list of the property and equipment available to the bidder to 
evaluate if the bidder can complete the work in accordance with the bidding documents; A 
financial statement of the bidder showing that the bidder has the financial resources to 
meet all obligations incidental to the work; The bidder’s performance record giving the 
description, location, and telephone number of similar projects constructed in a satisfactory 
manner by the bidder; A list of projects presently under contract, the approximate contract 

381

Item 24.



10 

amount and the percent of completion of each; A list of contracts which resulted in 
lawsuits; A list of contracts defaulted; A statement of the bidder indicating whether or not 
the bidder has ever filed bankruptcy while performing work of a like nature or magnitude;  A 
list of officers of the firm who, while in the employ of the firm or the employ of previous 
firms, were associated with contracts which resulted in lawsuits, contracts defaulted or filed 
for bankruptcy; The technical experience of personnel guaranteed to be employed in 
responsible charge of the work stating whether the personnel have or have not performed 
satisfactorily on other contracts of like nature and magnitude or comparable difficulty at 
similar rate of progress; Such additional information as will assist the Owner in determining 
whether the bidder is adequately prepared to fulfill the contract. Owner’s decision as to 
qualifications of the bidder will be final. 
 
The Owner hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract 
entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be 
afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be 
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color or national origin in consideration for an 
award. 
 
03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.02: 
 
Plans, specifications, and proposal forms may be obtained from the office of the City 
Engineer. Plans, specifications, and proposal forms have been approved by the City 
Council and are now on file for public examination in the office of the City Clerk. Contract 
documents are also available electronically through the City’s website under “Bid 
Opportunities”. 
 
04 Taxes 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.08: 
 
Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 
Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment in the performance of 
this project. Products utilized in the construction of this project shall be exempt from tax as 
provided by Code of Iowa Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 
 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder and Bid Security 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.12: 
 
The bid security must be in the minimum amount of 10% of the total bid amount including 
all add alternates (do not deduct the amount of deduct alternates).  Bid security shall be 
in the form of a cashier’s check, a certified check, or a bank money order drawn on a 
FDIC insured bank in Iowa or drawn on a FDIC insured bank chartered under the laws of 

382

Item 24.



11 

the United States; or a certified share draft drawn on a credit union in Iowa or chartered 
under the laws of the United States; or a bid bond executed by a corporation authorized 
to contract as a surety in Iowa or satisfactory to the Jurisdiction.  The bid bond must be 
submitted on the enclosed Bid Bond form, as no other bid bond forms are acceptable.  All 
signatures on the bid bond must be original signatures in ink; facsimile (fax) of any 
signature on the bid bond is not acceptable.  Bid security other than said bid bond shall 
be made payable to City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls”. 
 
“Miscellaneous Bank checks”, as well as “Money Orders” and “Traveler’s Checks” issued by 
persons, firms or corporations licensed under Code of Iowa Chapter 533B are not acceptable 
bid security. 
 
The bid shall be submitted on the Form of Proposal included herewith or on a computer 
printed proposal. All entries on this proposal shall be filled in ink, typed or computer printed. 
The bidder shall not alter the quantity, unit price, or the extension that has been provided 
for items that have been predetermined by the contracting authority. 
 
If the proposal is computer generated, the bidder shall submit a form titled as “Form of 
Proposal,” followed by: the project name, project number, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and 
the bidder's name. The form shall then include the item numbers, item descriptions, and 
units and their quantities. The bidder shall specify a unit price in figures of dollars and 
cents for all pay items, the extensions for the respective unit prices and quantities in figures 
in a column provided for the purpose, and the total amount of the proposal obtained by 
adding the amounts of the several items. The form shall then conclude with the bidder's 
name, that of its representative and the representative's signature. 
 
The computer generated proposal then is to be attached to the Form of Proposal included 
herewith, which has the following entries completed: bid security sum and form, the name 
of the bidder and its official address, and the bidder's representative's name, signature and 
title. Also the total bid shall be completed with the entry of "see attached." 
 
The proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope separate from the bid security and 
non-collusion Affidavit. The envelope shall bear the return address of the bidder and shall 
be addressed as follows: 
 

To: City Clerk 
City of Cedar Falls 
City Hall 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 
Proposal for: 2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project 

Project No. SW-000-3223 
 

383

Item 24.



12 

FORM OF PROPOSAL 
2020 CDBG SIDEWALK INFILL PROJECT 

PROJECT NO. SW-000-3223 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
To the Mayor and City Council 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies that _________________________ have personally and 

carefully examined the specifications, general conditions, and form of contract annexed 

hereto.  Having made such examination, the undersigned hereby proposes to construct the 

improvements for the 2020 CDBG SIDEWALK INFILL PROJECT in accordance with the 

plans and specifications on file in the office of the City Clerk, the published Notice to 

Bidders and the Form of Contract, herewith, complying with all the laws of the State of 

Iowa, and the Rules, Regulations and Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, and to the 

satisfaction of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including the guaranteeing 

of this Project for a period of two (2) years from the date of final acceptance thereof at the 

following prices, to-wit: 

BID 
ITEM # 

DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE 
EXTENDED 

PRICE 

1 Removal of Sidewalk S.Y. 84.0   

2 Removal Curb & Gutter, 2.5 ft wide L.F. 168.0   

3 Sidewalk PCC Class “C”, 4 IN S.Y. 626.5   

4 Sidewalk PCC Class “C”, 6 IN S.Y. 134.5   

5 Detectable Warning Panels S.F. 160.0   

6 Curb & Gutter, 2.5 ft Wide, PCC Class “C” L.F. 168.0   

7 Class 10 Excavation, Roadway Waste C.Y. 340.5   

8 Topsoil, Furnish & Spread C.Y. 384.0   

9 Seeding, Fertilizing and Mulching S.F. 20,696.0   

384

Item 24.



13 

BID 
ITEM # 

DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE 
EXTENDED 

PRICE 

10 Surfacing, 1-Inch Roadstone TONS 20   

11 Clearing and Grubbing UNITS 51   

12 Intake, Sediment Filter L.F. 54.0   

13 Unstable Material, Overexcavation C.Y. 34.0   

14 Traffic Control L.S. 1.0   
 

Bid Total: $ _______________________________________

385

Item 24.



14 

Bidders may not independently bid on selective items of work. In this project, all items 
constitute one indivisible work that will be let to one bidder. Bids shall be submitted for all of 
the items. The successful bidder will be determined by evaluating the Total Bid shown 
above. Failure to submit a bid on any item shall be just cause for disqualification of the 
entire proposal. Unit bids must be filled in ink, typed or computer generated, or the bid will 
be rejected. The Owner reserves the right to delete any part or all of any item. 
 

The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, including without limitation, 
nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. The Owner further 
reserves the right to reject the bid of any bidder whom it finds, after reasonable inquiry and 
evaluation, to be non-responsible. The Owner may also reject the bid of any bidder if the 
Owner believes that it would not be in the best interest of the project to make an award to 
that bidder. The Owner also reserves the right to waive all informalities not involving price 
time or changes in the work 
 

If written notice of approval of award is mailed, telegraphed or delivered to the undersigned 
within thirty (30) calendar days after the opening thereof, or any time thereafter before this 
bid is withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute and deliver an agreement in the 
prescribed form and furnish the required bond within ten (10) calendar days after the 
Contract is presented to him for signature, and start work within ten (10) calendar days 
after "Notice to Proceed" is issued. 
 

Bid Security in the sum of _________________________________ in the form of 
__________________________________, is submitted herewith in accordance with the 
Instructions to Bidders. 
 

The bidder is prepared to submit a financial and experience statement upon request. 
 

The bidder has received the following Addendum or Addenda: 
 

Addendum No.  ______________     Date _____________ 
  ______________ _____________ 
 

The bidder has filled in all blanks on this Proposal. 
 

Note: The Penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.A., Section 
1001. 
Name of bidder 
________________________________  _____________________________ 

   By 
________________________________  _____________________________  
Official Address   Title  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

386

Item 24.



15 

BID BOND 
PROJECT NO. SW-000-3223 

 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, ___________________________________________ 
__________________________, as Principal, and ___________________________________________ 
as Surety are held and firmly bound unto the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as Obligee, hereinafter called 
"OBLIGEE," In the penal sum of______________________________________ Dollars ($______________) 
lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum will and truly be made, we bind ourselves, 
our heirs, executors, administrators, and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. Whereas 
the Principal has submitted the accompanying bid dated the _______ day of_______________________, 
20_____, for ______________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, 
 
(a) If said Bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate, 
 
(b) If said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the form 

specified and shall furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said contract, and for the payment of 
all persons performing labor or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in all other 
respects perform the agreement created by the acceptance of said Bid, 

 
Then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly 
understood and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, 
exceed the penal amount of this obligation as herein stated. 
 
By virtue of statutory authority, the full amount of this bid bond shall be forfeited to the Obligee in liquidation of 
damages sustained in the event that the Principal fails to execute the contract and provide the bond as 
provided in the specifications or by law. 
 
The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond 
shall be in no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which the Obligee may accept such 
Bid or execute such contract; and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety, have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of 
them as are corporations, have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be 
signed by their proper officers this ______ day of ____________________, A.D., 20_____. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Principal 

 
 
_______________________________________ By_______________________________ (Title) 
Witness 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Surety 

 
_______________________________________ By____________________________________ 
Witness                                  Attorney-in-fact 

                
  
 
 
 

387

Item 24.



16 

 NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER           
 PROJECT NO. SW-000-3223 

 
STATE OF _______________________  

                           ss 
COUNTY OF _____________________ 
 
 
__________________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that: 
 
(1)  We are _______________________________________________________ of ______________       
     (owner, partner, officer, representative, or agent) 
 
_____________________________, the Bidder that has submitted the attached bid: 
 
(2)  We are fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached bid and of all pertinent 
circumstances respecting such bid: 
 
(3)   Such bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid: 
 
(4)  Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or 
parties in interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or 
indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham bid in connection with the 
Contract for which the attached bid has been submitted or to refrain from bidding in connection with such 
Contract, or has in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or 
conference with any other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached bid or of any other 
Bidder, or, to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the bid price of any other Bidder, or to secure through 
any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, or any person interested in the proposed Contract; and 
 
(5)   The price or prices quoted in the attached bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by a collusion, 
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representatives, 
owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant. 
 
 
 
   __________________________________________ 

Signed      
  __________________________________________ 

    Title 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
 
this _______ day of ________________, 20_____ 
 
________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________ 
Title 
 
My Commission expires ______________________. 

388

Item 24.



17 

 
 

389

Item 24.



18 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

390

Item 24.



19 

Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond 
 

SURETY BOND NO.           
 

 
 KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 
  
 That we, __________________________, as Principal (hereinafter the “Contractor” or “Principal” and 
____________________________________________________ as Surety are held and firmly bound unto CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, as Obligee (hereinafter referred to as “the Owner”), and to all persons who may be 
injured by any breach of any of the conditions of this Bond in the penal sum of 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
($_______________), lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be 
made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, legal representatives and assigns, jointly or severally, firmly by these presents. 
  
 The conditions of the above obligations are such that whereas said Contractor entered into a contract with the 
Owner, bearing date the _______ day of __________, 2020, hereinafter the “Contract”) wherein said Contractor 
undertakes and agrees to construct the following described improvements: 
 

2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project 
Project SW-000-3223 

 
and to faithfully perform all the terms and requirements of said Contract within the time therein specified, in a 
good and workmanlike manner, and in accordance with the Contract Documents.   
 
It is expressly understood and agreed by the Contractor and Surety in this bond that the following provisions are a 
part of this Bond and are binding upon said Contractor and Surety, to-wit: 
 
1. PERFORMANCE:  The Contractor shall well and faithfully observe, perform, fulfill, and abide by   each 

and every covenant, condition, and part of said Contract and Contract Documents, by reference made a 
part hereof, for the above referenced improvements, and shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner 
from all outlay and expense incurred by the Owner by reason of the Contractor’s default or failure to 
perform as required.  The Contractor shall also be responsible for the default or failure to perform as 
required under the Contract and Contract Documents by all its subcontractors, suppliers, agents, or 
employees furnishing materials or providing labor in the performance of the Contract. 

     
 2. PAYMENT:  The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agreed to pay all just claims submitted 

by persons, firms, subcontractors, and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the 
performance of the Contract on account of which this Bond is given, including but not limited to claims 
for all amounts due for labor, materials, lubricants, oil, gasoline, repairs on machinery, equipment, and 
tools, consumed or used by the Contractor or any subcontractor, wherein the same are not satisfied out of 
the portion of the contract price the Owner is required to retain until completion of the improvement, but 
the Contractor and Surety shall not be liable to said persons, firms, or corporations unless the claims of 
said claimants against said portion of the contract price shall have been established as provided by law.  
The Contractor and Surety hereby bind themselves to the obligations and conditions set forth in Chapter 
573 of the Iowa Code, which by this reference is made a part hereof as though fully set out herein. 

     
    3. MAINTENANCE:  The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agree, at their own expense: 
 

A. To remedy any and all defects that may develop in or result from work to be performed under 
the Contract within the period of   2   year (s) from the date of acceptance of the work 

391

Item 24.



20 

under the Contract, by reason of defects in workmanship or materials used in construction of 
said work; 

 
   B. To keep all work in continuous good repair; and 
 
   C. To pay the Owner’s reasonable costs of monitoring and inspection to assure that any defects 

are remedied, and to repay the Owner all outlay and expense incurred as a result of 
Contractor’s and Surety’s failure to remedy any defect as required by this section. 

 
Contractor’s and Surety’s agreement herein made extends to defects in workmanship or 
materials not discovered or known to the Owner at the time such work was accepted. 
 
 4. GENERAL:  Every Surety on this Bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 
notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 
 
   A. To consent without notice to any extension of time to the Contractor in which to perform the 

Contract; 
 
   B.  To consent without notice to any change in the Contract or Contract Documents, which 

thereby increases the total contract price and the penal sum of this bond, provided that all 
such changes do not, in the aggregate, involve an increase of more than 20% of the total 
contract price, and that this bond shall then be released as to such excess increase; and  

 
    C. To consent without notice that this Bond shall remain in full force and effect until the 

Contract is completed, whether completed within the specified contract period, within an 
extension thereof, or within a period of time after the contract period has elapsed and the 
liquidated damage penalty is being charged against the Contractor. 

 
The Contractor and every Surety on the bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 
notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 
 
        D. That no provision of this Bond or of any other contract shall be valid that limits to     less 

than five years after the acceptance of the work under the Contract the right to sue on this 
Bond. 

     
        E. That as used herein, the phrase “all outlay and expense” is not to be limited in any way, but 

shall include the actual and reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Owner including 
interest, benefits, and overhead where applicable.  Accordingly, “all outlay and expense” 
would include but not be limited to all contract or employee expense, all equipment usage or 
rental, materials, testing, outside experts, attorney’s fees (including overhead expenses of the 
Owner’s staff attorneys), and all costs and expenses of litigation as they are incurred by the 
Owner.  It is intended the Contractor and Surety will defend and indemnify the Owner on all 
claims made against the Owner on account of Contractor’s failure to perform as required in 
the Contract and Contract Documents, that all agreements and promises set forth in the 
Contract and Contract Documents, in approved change orders, and in this Bond will be 
fulfilled, and that the Owner will be fully indemnified so that it will be put into the position it 
would have been in had the Contract been performed in the first instance as required. 

     
In the event the Owner incurs any “outlay and expense” in defending itself against any claim as to 
which the Contractor or Surety should have provided the defense, or in the enforcement of the 
promises given by the Contractor in the Contract, Contract Documents, or approved change orders, or 
in the enforcement of the promises given by the Contractor and Surety in this Bond, the Contractor and 

392

Item 24.



21 

Surety agree that they will make the Owner whole for all such outlay and expense, provided that the 
Surety’s obligation under this bond shall not exceed 125% of the penal sum of this bond. 

  
In the event that any actions or proceedings are initiated regarding this Bond, the parties agree that the venue 
thereof shall be in the Iowa District Court for Polk County, State of Iowa.  If legal action is required by the Owner 
to enforce the provisions of this Bond or to collect the monetary obligation incurring to the benefit of the Owner, 
the Contractor and the Surety agree, jointly, and severally, to pay the Owner all outlay and expense incurred 
therefor by the Owner.  All rights, powers, and remedies of the Owner hereunder shall be cumulative and not 
alternative and shall be in addition to all rights, powers, and remedies given to the Owner, by law.  The Owner 
may proceed against surety for any amount guaranteed hereunder whether action is brought against the Contractor 
or whether Contractor is joined in any such action(s) or not. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if said Principal shall faithfully perform all the 
promises of the Principal, as set forth and provided in the Contract, in the Contract Documents, and in this Bond, 
then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
When a work, term, or phrase is used in this Bond, it shall be interpreted or construed first as defined in this Bond, 
the Contract, or the Contract Documents; second, if not defined in the Bond, Contract, or Contract Documents, it 
shall be interpreted or construed as defined in applicable provisions of the Iowa Code; third, if not defined in the 
Iowa Code, it shall be interpreted or construed according to its generally accepted meaning in the construction 
industry; and fourth, if it has no generally accepted meaning in the construction industry, it shall be interpreted or 
construed according to its common or customary usage. 
 
Failure to specify or particularize shall not exclude terms or provisions not mentioned and shall not limit liability 
hereunder.  The Contract and Contract Documents are hereby made a part of this Bond. 
 
 

393

Item 24.



22 

         Project No. SW-000-3223 
 

Witness our hands, in triplicate, this _______ day of ____________, 2020. 
 
  Surety Countersigned By:                                PRINCIPAL: 
 
     ___________________________________                   _________________________________ 
      Signature of Agent                 Contractor 
  
 
 By:    _________________________________  
                                      Signature 
     ___________________________________                   _________________________________          
                  Printed Name of Agent                       Title 
 
 ___________________________________  SURETY: 
                          Company Name           
 
 ___________________________________                   _________________________________ 
                        Company Address                                       Surety Company 
 
 ___________________________________   By:    _________________________________ 
                        City, State, Zip Code                                             Signature Attorney-in-Fact Officer 
 
 ______________________________________    ____________________________________ 
                  Company Telephone Number                               Printed Name of Attorney-in-Fact Officer 
 
                                                                                            _________________________________ 
                            Company Name 
 
                                                                                         _________________________________ 
                                                Company Address 

  FORM APPROVED BY: 
                                                                                                             _________________________________ 
                     City, State, Zip Code 
 
 ________________________________________________    _____________________________________________ 
                         Attorney for Owner                                                              Company Telephone Number 
 
 

 
NOTE: 
  
 1. All signatures on this performance, payment, and maintenance bond must be original signatures in 

ink; copies, facsimile, or electronic signatures will not be accepted. 
 2.  This bond must be sealed with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 
 3. The Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond must be valid on its face and sealed 

with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 
 4. The name and signature of the Surety’s Attorney-in-Fact/Officer entered on this bond must be 

exactly as listed on the Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond. 
 
 
 
 
 

394

Item 24.



23 

NOTICE TO PROCEED 
TO: ______________________________ DATE: _________________________________ 
 
       ______________________________ PROJECT: 2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill 
               SW-000-3223 
       ______________________________               Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
You are hereby notified to commence WORK in accordance with the Agreement dated 
___________________, 2020, within ten (10) calendar days of _____________________, 
2020 and you are to complete the WORK as follows: furnish all labor, material and 
equipment necessary for construction of the 2020 CDBG SIDEWALK INFILL PROJECT. 
 
The work under the proposed contract shall commence within ten (10) calendar days after 
the date set forth in this written Notice to Proceed and shall be performed regularly and 
diligently through the duration of the project.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa______________ 
(OWNER) 

 
 

By_______________________________ 
 
Title______________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

395

Item 24.



24 

FORM OF CONTRACT 
 

This Contract entered into in quadruplicate at Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ____ day of 

_________, 2020, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the 

Owner, and_____________ of ___________________, hereinafter called the Contractor. 

WITNESSETH: 

The Contractor hereby agrees to furnish all labor, tools, materials and equipment 

and construct the public improvement consisting of:  2020 CDBG SIDEWALK INFILL 

PROJECT, Project No.SW-000-3223 all in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, ordered to be 

constructed by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by Resolution duly passed 

on the Xth day of <Month>, 2020, and shown and described in the Plans and Specifications 

therefore now on file with the City Clerk of said City. 

Said improvement shall be constructed strictly in accordance with said Plans and 

Specifications. 

The following parts of the Plans and Specifications for said Project No. SW-000-

3223 attached hereto shall be made a part of this contract as fully as though set out herein 

verbatim: 

a. Resolution of Necessity 
b. Resolution ordering construction of the improvement 
c. Plans 
d. Notice of Public Hearing on Plans and Specifications 
e. Notice to Bidders 
f. Instructions to Bidders 
g. Supplemental Conditions 
h. General Conditions 
i. Project Specifications 
j. Form of Proposal 
k. Performance Bond 
l. Maintenance Bond 
m. Form of Contract 
n. Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 
o.  Bidder Status Form and Worksheet 
 

396

Item 24.



25 

On completion of the said improvement, the Owner agrees to pay to the Contractor the 

prices set out in the Form of Proposal of the Contractor, said payment to be made in the 

manner stated in the published Notice to Bidders. 

In Witness whereof, this Contract has been executed in quadruplicate on the date first 

herein written.   

 
 __________________________ 
 Contractor 

 
 
    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
    By____________________________ 

    Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
 City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

397

Item 24.



26 

DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 
 

 
Special Provisions are intended to amend or supplement the General Provisions and 
Covenants of the SUDAS Standard Specifications. All sections that are not amended or 
supplemented remain in full force and effect. 
 
01 Award of Contract 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1030 – 1.03: 
 
The lowest responsive bidder shall be required to furnish a performance, payment and 
maintenance bond in the sum equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the total bid. The 
maintenance bond shall guarantee the maintenance of the improvements for a period of 
two (2) years from and after its completion and acceptance by the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
02 Availability of Site 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.04: 
 
During construction of this project, the Contractor shall be required to coordinate their 
operations with those of other Contractors working within the same area of the following 
project: 
 
1. Cedar Falls Utilities Gas Main and Water Main Replacement Projects 
2. Cedar Falls Utilities overhead to underground electric conversion. 
3. UNI Spring Classes End – May 8, 2020 
4. Last Day of Cedar Falls Public Schools (Tentative) – June 1, 2020 
5. Sturgis Falls Celebration – June 26-28, 2020 
6. UNI Fall Classes Resume – August 24, 2020 
7. Cedar Falls Public Schools Resume (Tentative)– August 24, 2020 
8. UNI Homecoming – October 17, 2020 

 
03 Protection of Line and Grade Stakes 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.10: 
 
The Contractor shall notify the Engineer at least 48 hours prior to the need for survey 
stakes. The Contractor shall be responsible for preserving survey stakes and marks and if 
any survey stakes or marks are destroyed or disturbed by the Contractor, Contractor shall 
be charged for the cost of replacing them. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

398

Item 24.



27 

 
04 Borrow and Waste Sites 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1070 – 2.13: 
 
It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to provide waste areas or disposal sites for excess 
material which is not desirable to be incorporated in the work involved on this project 
(excavation or broken concrete). No payment for overhaul will be allowed for material 
hauled to these sites. The Engineer shall review all disposal sites. Overhaul will not be 
measured or paid for but will be considered incidental to pavement removal or roadway 
excavation on this project. 
 
05 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.01: 
 
The Contractor's own organization shall perform work amounting to not less than fifty 
percent (50%) of the total contract cost unless otherwise specified. Item designated as a 
specialty item may be performed by subcontract, and the cost of any such specialty item as 
performed by subcontract may be deducted from the total cost before computing the 
amount of work required by the Contractor's organization. 
 
06 Contract Time 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.02: 
 
The work under the proposed contract shall commence within ten (10) calendar weeks 
after the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed and shall be performed regularly 
and diligently throughout the duration of the project. There is no specified number of 
allotted working days for this contract; however, much of this work is in conjunction with 
street reconstruction or resurfacing. To minimize conflicts, and avoid encountering a 
situation that may require a possible spot repair under a newly laid street, Contractor 
should plan to finish by Friday, October 2, 2020.  
 
07 Work Progress and Schedule 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.03: 
 
The progress of the work shall be such that at the expiration of one-fourth of the working 
days, one-eighth of the work shall be completed; at the expiration of one-half of the 
working days, three-eights of the work shall be completed; at the expiration of three-fourths 
of the working days, the work shall be three-fourths completed, and the whole work shall 
be completed at the expiration of the calendar weeks. 
 
08 Weekly Record of Working Days 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.06: 

399

Item 24.



28 

 
Work shall not begin before 7:00 a.m. and shall stop at sunset.  
 
09 Liquidated Damages 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.12: 
 
Liquidated damages in the amount of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) per working day 
will be assessed for each working day that the work remains uncompleted after the 
expiration of the contract time. 
 
10 Progress Payments 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1090 – 1.01: 
 
Pay estimates will be submitted to the City Council for approval on the first (1st) and third 
(3rd) Mondays of each month. 
 
Payment for the work may be made in three parts, if requested by the Contractor.  The 
Contractor may request from the Owner a progress payment when the job is 33% complete 
and another when the job is 66% complete. Final payment will be made upon satisfactory 
completion of this contract.  Payment will be in accordance with the prices set forth in the 
proposal for the quantity of work performed.  This shall include any additional expenses 
preapproved by the Owner. 
 
Before final payment is made, the Contractor shall furnish vouchers showing that all 
subcontractors and all persons furnishing labor and materials have been fully paid for such 
materials and labor and that the City may retain ten (10) percent of the project cost from 
the last payment for a period of ninety (90) calendar days following such completion and 
approval, unless satisfied that material and laborers have been paid for in full. 
 
11 Method of Measurement 
 
The Engineer shall measure the items of work that have been acceptably constructed as 
specified in the contract documents for the 2020 CDBG SIDEWALK INFILL PROJECT in 
accordance with the 2020 edition of the Urban Standard Specifications for Public 
Improvements and as further modified by the City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental 
Specifications, except as amended or supplemented as follows: 
 
See Plans, Sheet C.02 for Estimated Project Quantities and measurement of payment 
 
12 Basis of Payment 
 
Payment for the items listed in the Method of Measurement shall be determined by 
multiplying the item quantity (as determined in the Method of Measurement) by the unit 
price as bid on the proposal form in accordance with the 2020 Edition of the “URBAN 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS MANUAL” (SUDAS) as 
amended by the City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications to the 2020 Edition of the 

400

Item 24.



29 

URBAN STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS MANUAL, 
except as amended or supplemented as follows: 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

401

Item 24.



30 

DIVISION 4 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
All work shall be constructed as specified in the Contract documents for the 2020 CDBG 
Sidewalk Infill project in accordance with the 2020 Edition of the “URBAN STANDARD 
SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS MANUAL” (SUDAS) as amended by 
the City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications to the 2020 Edition of the URBAN 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS MANUAL, except as 
amended or supplemented as follows: 
 
 
Item No. 16 - Traffic Control 
 
Traffic control shall be measured on a lump sum basis as per I.D.O.T. Specification 
Section 2528.12A1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

402

Item 24.



31 

DIVISION 5 
 
CDBG FUNDING REQUIRED PROVISIONS 
 
See Following Pages: 
 

Prevailing Wage Determination (8 pages) 
Required Federal Contract Language for CDBG Funded Contracts (9 pages) 
Payroll Form (2 pages) 
On-site Interview Forms/Online Employee Questionnaire/Complaint Intake (11 

pages) 
Section 3 (8 pages) 

  Project Sign (1 page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

403

Item 24.



32 

 
 
"General Decision Number: IA20200081 01/03/2020 
 
Superseded General Decision Number: IA20190081 
 
State: Iowa 
 
Construction Types: Heavy and Highway 
 
Counties: Adair, Adams, Allamakee, Appanoose, Audubon,  
Benton, Black Hawk, Boone, Bremer, Buchanan, Buena Vista,  
Butler, Calhoun, Carroll, Cass, Cedar, Cerro Gordo, Cherokee,  
Chickasaw, Clarke, Clay, Clayton, Clinton, Crawford, Dallas,  
Davis, Decatur, Delaware, Des Moines, Dickinson, Dubuque,  
Emmet, Fayette, Floyd, Franklin, Fremont, Greene, Grundy,  
Guthrie, Hamilton, Hancock, Hardin, Harrison, Henry, Howard,  
Humboldt, Ida, Iowa, Jackson, Jasper, Jefferson, Johnson,  
Jones, Keokuk, Kossuth, Lee, Linn, Louisa, Lucas, Lyon,  
Madison, Mahaska, Marion, Marshall, Mills, Mitchell, Monona,  
Monroe, Montgomery, Muscatine, O'Brien, Osceola, Page, Palo  
Alto, Plymouth, Pocahontas, Polk, Pottawattamie, Poweshiek,  
Ringgold, Sac, Shelby, Sioux, Story, Tama, Taylor, Union, Van  
Buren, Wapello, Warren, Washington, Wayne, Webster, Winnebago,  
Winneshiek, Woodbury, Worth and Wright Counties in Iowa. 
 
 
EXCLUDES SCOTT COUNTY 
 
HEAVY AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
 
Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage 
of $10.80 for calendar year 2020 applies to all contracts 
subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is 
awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 
1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor 
must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage 
determination at least $10.80 per hour (or the applicable wage 
rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for 
all hours spent performing on the contract in calendar year 
2020. If this contract is covered by the EO and a 
classification considered necessary for performance of work on 
the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the 
contractor must pay workers in that classification at least the 
wage rate determined through the conformance process set forth 
in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) (or the EO minimum wage rate,if it is 
higher than the conformed wage rate). The EO minimum wage rate 
will be adjusted annually. Please note that this EO applies to 
the above-mentioned types of contracts entered into by the 
federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act 
itself, but it does not apply to contracts subject only to the 
Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 

404

Item 24.



33 

5.1(a)(2)-(60). Additional information on contractor 
requirements and worker protections under the EO is available 
at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts. 
 
 
Modification Number     Publication Date 
          0              01/03/2020 
 
  SUIA2019-001 10/18/2017 
 
                                  Rates          Fringes 
 
Carpenter & Piledrivermen   
     ZONE 1......................$ 27.92            13.28 
     ZONE 2......................$ 26.03            13.38 
     ZONE 3......................$ 26.03            13.38 
     ZONE 4......................$ 25.55            10.80 
     ZONE 5**....................$ 24.45             9.20 
   
CONCRETE FINISHER   
     ZONE 1......................$ 27.50             7.10 
     ZONE 2......................$ 27.50             7.10 
     ZONE 3......................$ 27.50             7.10 
     ZONE 4......................$ 24.85             6.10 
     ZONE 5......................$ 23.80             6.10 
   
ELECTRICIAN (STREET AND    
HIGHWAY LIGHTING AND TRAFFIC    
SIGNALS)   
     ZONE 1, 2, AND 3.........$ 24.45             6.50 
     ZONE 4......................$ 23.15             6.50 
     ZONE 5......................$ 21.00             6.50 
   
IRONWORKER (SETTING OF    
STRUCTURAL STEEL)   
     ZONE 1......................$ 30.50            10.70 
     ZONE 2......................$ 28.41            10.70 
     ZONE 3......................$ 28.41            11.00 
     ZONE 4......................$ 26.35             9.50 
     ZONE 5**....................$ 24.50             9.05 
   
LABORER   
     ZONE 1, 2  AND 3 
      GROUP A....................$ 23.15             9.18 
      GROUP AA...................$ 25.53             9.18 
      GROUP B....................$ 21.30             9.18 
      GROUP C....................$ 18.22             9.18 
     ZONE 4 
      GROUP A....................$ 20.82             8.63 
      GROUP B....................$ 19.50             8.63 
      GROUP C....................$ 16.62             8.63 
     ZONE 5 

405

Item 24.



34 

      GROUP A....................$ 21.32             7.18 
      GROUP B....................$ 18.82             7.18 
      GROUP C....................$ 17.97             7.18 
   
POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATOR   
     ZONE 1 
      GROUP A....................$ 31.75            14.55 
      GROUP B....................$ 30.20            14.55 
      GROUP C....................$ 27.70            14.55 
      GROUP D....................$ 27.70            14.55 
     ZONE 2 
      GROUP A....................$ 31.05            14.55 
      GROUP B....................$ 29.45            14.55 
      GROUP C....................$ 26.90            14.55 
      GROUP D....................$ 26.90            14.55 
     ZONE 3 
      GROUP A....................$ 29.05            23.30 
      GROUP B....................$ 27.25            23.30 
      GROUP C....................$ 26.25            23.30 
      GROUP D....................$ 26.25            23.30 
     ZONE 4 
      GROUP A....................$ 30.55            11.65 
      GROUP B....................$ 29.41            11.65 
      GROUP C....................$ 27.33            11.65 
      GROUP D....................$ 27.33            11.65 
     ZONE 5 
      GROUP A....................$ 27.37             9.60 
      GROUP B....................$ 26.33             9.60 
      GROUP C....................$ 24.60             9.60 
      GROUP D....................$ 23.60             9.60 
   
TRUCK DRIVER (AND PAVEMENT    
MARKING DRIVER/SWITCHPERSON)   
     ZONE 1......................$ 23.85            10.85 
     ZONE 2 
...................................$ 23.85            10.85 
     ZONE 3......................$ 23.85            10.85 
     ZONE 4......................$ 23.85             6.65 
     ZONE 5 
...................................$ 21.90             6.65 
 
ZONE DEFINITIONS 
  ZONE 1 The Counties of Polk, Warren, and Dallas for all 
  Crafts, and Linn County Carpenters only. 
  ZONE 2 The Counties of Dubuque for all Crafts and Linn County 
  for all Crafts except Carpenters. 
  ZONE 3 The Cities of Burlington, Clinton, Fort Madison, 
  Keokuk, and Muscatine (and abutting municipalities of any 
  such cities). 
  ZONE 4 Story, Black Hawk, Cedar, Jasper, Jones, Jackson, 
  Louisa, Madison, and Marion Counties; Clinton County 
  (except the City of Clinton), Johnson County, Muscatine 

406

Item 24.



35 

  County (except the City of Muscatine), the City of Council 
  Bluffs, Lee County and Des Moines County. 
ZONE 5 All areas of the state not listed above. 
 
LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS - ALL ZONES 
  GROUP AA - {Skilled pipelayer (sewer, water and conduits) and 
  tunnel laborers; asbestos abatement worker} (Zones 1, 2 and 
  3). 
 
  GROUP A - Carpenter tender on bridges and box culverts; curb 
  machine (without a seat); deck hand; diamond & core drills; 
  drill operator on air tracs, wagon drills and similar 
  drills; form setter/stringman on paving work; gunnite 
  nozzleman; joint sealer kettleman; laser operator; 
  powderman tender; powderman/blaster; saw operator; 
  {pipelayer (sewer, water, and conduits); sign erector*; 
  tunnel laborer; asbestos abatement worker (Zones 4 and 5)}, 
  sign erector. 
 
  GROUP B - Air, gas, electric tool operator; barco hammer; 
  carpenter tender; caulker; chain sawman; compressor (under 
  400 cfm); concrete finisher tender; concrete processing 
  materials and monitors; cutting torch on demolition; drill 
  tender; dumpmen; electric drills; fence erectors; form line 
  expansion joint assembler; form tamper; general laborer; 
  grade checker; handling and placing metal mesh, dowel bars, 
  reinforcing bars and chairs; hot asphalt laborer; 
  installing temporary traffic control devices; 
  jackhammerman; mechanical grouter; painter (all except 
  stripers); paving breaker; planting trees, shrubs and 
  flowers; power broom (not self-propelled); power buggyman; 
  rakers; rodman (tying reinforcing steel); sandblaster; 
  seeding and mulching; sewer utility topman/bottom man; 
  spaders; stressor or stretcherman on pre or post tensioned 
  concrete; stringman on re/surfacing/no grade control; 
  swinging stage, tagline, or block and tackle; tampers; 
  timberman; tool room men and checkers; tree climber; tree 
  groundman; underpinning and shoring caissons over twelve 
  feet deep; vibrators; walk behind trencher; walk behind 
  paint stripers; walk behind vibrating compactor; water 
  pumps (under three inch); work from bosun chair. 
 
  GROUP C - Scale weigh person; traffic control/flagger, 
  surveillance or monitor; water carrier. 
 
POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATOR CLASSIFICATIONS - ALL ZONES 
  GROUP A -  All terrain (off road) forklift; asphalt breakdown 
  roller (vibratory); asphalt laydown machine; asphalt plant; 
  asphalt screed; bulldozer (finish); central mix plant; 
  concrete pump; crane; crawler tractor pulling scraper; 
  directional drill (60,000 (lbs) pullback and above); 
  dragline and power shovel; dredge engineer; excavator (over 

407

Item 24.



36 

  ½ cu. yd.); front end loader (4 cy and over); horizontal 
  boring machine; master mechanic; milling machine (over 350 
  hp); motor grader (finish); push cat; rubber tired backhoe 
  (over ½ cu. yd.); scraper (12 cu. yd. and over or finish); 
  Self-propelled rotary mixer/road reclaimer; sidebroom 
  tractor; slipform portland concrete paver; tow or push 
  boat; trenching machine (Cleveland 80 or similar) 
. 
  GROUP B - Articulated off road hauler, asphalt heater/planer; 
  asphalt material transfer vehicle; asphalt roller; belt 
  loader or similar loader; bulldozer (rough); churn or 
  rotary drill; concrete curb machine; crawler tractor 
  pulling ripper, disk or roller; deck hand/oiler; 
  directional drill (less than 60,000 (lbs) pullback); 
  distributor; excavator (1/2 cu. yd. and under); form riding 
  concrete paver; front end loader (2 to less than 4 cu. 
  yd.); group equipment greaser; mechanic; milling machine 
  (350 hp. and less); paving breaker; portland concrete dry 
  batch plant; rubber tired backhoe (1/2 cu. yd. and under); 
  scraper (under 12 cu. yd.); screening, washing and crushing 
  plant (mobile, portable or stationary); shoulder machine; 
  skid loader (l cu. yd. and over); subgrader or trimmer; 
  trenching machine; water wagon on compaction. 
 
  GROUP C - Boom & winch truck; concrete spreader/belt placer; 
  deep wells for dewatering; farm type tractor (over 75 hp.) 
  pulling disc or roller; forklift; front end loader (under 2 
  cu. yd.); motor grader (rough); pile hammer power unit; 
  pump (greater than three inch diameter); pumps on well 
  points; safety boat; self-propelled roller (other than 
  asphalt); self-propelled sand blaster or shot blaster, 
  water blaster or striping grinder/remover; skid loader 
  (under 1 cu. yd.); truck mounted post driver. 
 
  GROUP D - Boiler; compressor; cure and texture machine; dow 
  box; farm type or utility tractor (under 75 hp.) pulling 
  disk, roller or other attachments; group greaser tender; 
  light plants; mechanic tender; mechanical broom; mechanical 
  heaters; oiler; pumps (under three inch diameter); tree 
  chipping machine; truck crane driver/oiler. 
 
** CARPENTERS AND PILEDRIVERMEN, or IRONWORKERS (ZONE 5) 
  Setting of structural steel; any welding incidental to bridge 
  or culvert construction; setting concrete beams. 
 
* ADDED CRAFT - SIGN ERECTOR 
 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing 
operation to which welding is incidental. 
 

408

Item 24.



37 

================================================================ 
  
Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave 
for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the 
Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any 
solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017.  If this 
contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide 
employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours 
they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. 
Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their 
own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including 
preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is 
like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other 
health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons 
resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is 
like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  Additional information 
on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO 
is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts. 
 
Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within 
the scope of the classifications listed may be added after 
award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses 
(29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)). 
 
 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
  
 
The body of each wage determination lists the classification 
and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the 
cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage 
determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical 
order of ""identifiers"" that indicate whether the particular 
rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), 
a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate 
(weighted union average rate). 
 
Union Rate Identifiers 
 
A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed 
in dotted lines beginning with characters other than ""SU"" or 
""UAVG"" denotes that the union classification and rate were 
prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: 
PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of 
the union which prevailed in the survey for this 
classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 
indicates the local union number or district council number 
where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 
005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing 
the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the 
most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 

409

Item 24.



38 

2014. 
 
Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate 
changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing 
this classification and rate. 
 
Survey Rate Identifiers 
 
Classifications listed under the ""SU"" identifier indicate that 
no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and 
the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average 
rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that 
classification.  As this weighted average rate includes all 
rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and 
non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates 
the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average 
calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates 
the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which 
these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 
in the example, is an internal number used in producing the 
wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion 
date for the classifications and rates under that identifier. 
 
Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a 
new survey is conducted. 
 
Union Average Rate Identifiers 
 
Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate 
that no single majority rate prevailed for those 
classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the 
classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 
08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union 
average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in 
the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage 
determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date 
for the classifications and rates under that identifier. 
 
A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of 
each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current 
negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is 
based. 
 
  
 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
                   WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS 
 
1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can 
be: 
 

410

Item 24.



39 

*  an existing published wage determination 
*  a survey underlying a wage determination 
*  a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on 
   a wage determination matter 
*  a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling 
 
On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests 
for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour 
Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted 
because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the 
Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial 
contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) 
and 3.) should be followed. 
 
With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal 
process described here, initial contact should be with the 
Branch of Construction Wage Determinations.  Write to: 
 
            Branch of Construction Wage Determinations 
            Wage and Hour Division 
            U.S. Department of Labor 
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. 
            Washington, DC 20210 
 
2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an 
interested party (those affected by the action) can request 
review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator 
(See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to: 
 
            Wage and Hour Administrator 
            U.S. Department of Labor 
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. 
            Washington, DC 20210 
 
The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the 
interested party's position and by any information (wage 
payment data, project description, area practice material, 
etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue. 
 
3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an 
interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative 
Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board).  Write to: 
 
            Administrative Review Board 
            U.S. Department of Labor 
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. 
            Washington, DC 20210 
 
4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final. 
 
================================================================ 
          END OF GENERAL DECISION" 

411

Item 24.



40 

Required Federal Contract Language 
For 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funded Contracts 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

412

Item 24.



41 

Federal Labor Standards Provisions    

 
 
Applicability 
The Project or Program to which the construction work covered by this contract pertains is being assisted by the United 
States of America and the following Federal Labor Standards Provisions are included in this Contract pursuant to the 
provisions applicable to such Federal assistance. 
 
A.1. (i) Minimum Wages. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work, will be paid 
unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except 
such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 
CFR Part 3), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment 
computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the 
contractor and such laborers and mechanics. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe 
benefits under Section l(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to 
such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs 
incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs, which cover 
the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period.  Such laborers 
and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the 
classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or 
mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each 
classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, that the employer’s payroll records accurately set forth the 
time spent in each classification in which work is performed.  The wage determination (including any additional 
classification and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be 
posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible, place 
where it can be easily seen by the workers. 
 
(ii)(a) Any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed 
under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination.  HUD shall approve an additional 
classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefor only when the following criteria have been met: 
(1)The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage 
determination; and 
 
(2)The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and 
 
(3)The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates 
contained in the wage determination. 
 
(b)If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their 
representatives, and HUD or its designee agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for 
fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by HUD or its designee to the Administrator 
of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, D.C. 
20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional 
classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within 
the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB 
control number 1215-0140.) 
 
(c)In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and 
HUD or its designee do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for 
fringe benefits, where appropriate), HUD or its designee shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested 
parties and the recommendation of HUD or its designee, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an 
authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will 
notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.  (Approved by the Office of 
Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.) 
 
(d)The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (1)(ii)(b) or (c) of 
this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on 
which work is performed in the classification. 
 
(iii)Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe 
benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage 
determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof. 

413

Item 24.



42 

 
(iv)If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the 
wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits 
under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that 
the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set 
aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program. (Approved by the Office of 
Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)  
 
2. Withholding. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of 
the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal 
contract with the same prime contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage 
requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be 
considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees and helpers, employed by the 
contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract In the event of failure to pay any laborer 
or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the 
wages required by the contract, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or 
owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of 
funds until such violations have ceased. HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, disburse such 
amounts withheld for and on account of the contractor or subcontractor to the respective employees to whom they are 
due. The Comptroller General shall make such disbursements in the case of direct Davis-Bacon Act contracts.  
 
3. (i) Payrolls and basic records.  Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor 
during the course of the work preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at 
the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his 
or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide 
fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in Section l(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-bacon Act), daily and 
weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid.  Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found 
under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably 
anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in Section l(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the 
contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan 
or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or 
mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits.  
Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the 
registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and 
trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs. (Approved by the Office of Management 
and Budget under OMB Control Numbers 1215-0140 and 1215-0017.)  
 
(ii) (a) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to 
HUD or its designee if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will 
submit the payrolls to the applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee. The 
payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 
5.5(a)(3)(i) except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. 
Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four 
digits of the employee’s social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form 
desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at 
http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the 
submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social 
security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to HUD or its 
designee if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the 
payrolls to the applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee, the contractor, 
or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with 
prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this subparagraph for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to 
provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to 
HUD or its designee. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0149.)  
 
(b) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a “Statement of Compliance,” signed by the contractor or 
subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and 
shall certify the following:  
 
(1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(3)(ii), the 
appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), and that such information is  
correct and complete; 
 

414

Item 24.



43 

(2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the 
payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no 
deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as 
set forth in 29 CFR Part 3;  
 
(3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash 
equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into 
the contract.  
 
(c) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 
shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the “Statement of Compliance” required by subparagraph A.3.(ii)(b).  
 
(d) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal 
prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the United States Code.  
 
(iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under subparagraph A.3.(i) available for inspection, 
copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of HUD or its designee or the Department of Labor, and shall 
permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor 
fails to submit the required records or to make them available, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the 
contractor, sponsor, applicant or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further 
payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make 
such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.  
 
4. Apprentices and Trainees.  
(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed 
when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the 
U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and 
Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her 
first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually 
registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor 
Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an 
apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater 
than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under  
 
 
the registered program.  Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise 
employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the 
classification of work actually performed.  In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio 
permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination 
for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in 
which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman’s hourly rate) 
specified in the contractor’s or subcontractor’s registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at 
not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice’s level of progress, expressed as a 
percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe 
benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify 
fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the 
applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice 
classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Office of Apprenticeship 
Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval 
of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable 
predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.  
 
(ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined 
rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant ‘,to and individually registered in a program which has 
received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training 
Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan 
approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified 
in the approved program for the trainee’s level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate 
specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of 
the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of 
fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that 
there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination 
which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is 
not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid 

415

Item 24.



44 

not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed.  In addition, any 
trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not 
less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the 
Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be 
permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable 
program is approved.  
 
(iii) Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under 29 CFR Part 5 shall 
be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 
CFR Part 30.  
 
5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 
which are incorporated by reference in this contract  
 
6. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor will insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in subparagraphs 
1 through 11 in this paragraph A and such other clauses as HUD or its designee may by appropriate instructions require, 
and a copy of the applicable prevailing wage decision, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these 
clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor 
or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in this paragraph.  
 
7. Contract termination; debarment. A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of 
the contract and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.  
 
8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon 
and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract  
 
9. Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not 
be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the 
procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause 
include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and HUD or its designee, the U.S. Department of 
Labor, or the employees or their representatives.  
 
10. (i) Certification of Eligibility.  By entering into this contract the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor 
any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor’s firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government 
contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded HUD contracts or 
participate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.  
(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by 
virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD 
programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.  
(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001. Additionally, U.S. 
Criminal Code, Section 1 01 0, Title 18, U.S.C., “Federal Housing Administration transactions”, provides in part: 
“Whoever, for the purpose of... influencing in any way the action of such Administration... makes, utters or publishes any 
statement knowing the same to be false... shall be fined not more than $5,000 or imprisoned not more than two years, or 
both.”  
 
11. Complaints, Proceedings, or Testimony by Employees. No laborer or mechanic to whom the wage, salary, or 
other labor standards provisions of this Contract are applicable shall be discharged or in any other manner discriminated 
against by the Contractor or any subcontractor because such employee has filed any complaint or instituted or caused to 
be instituted any proceeding or has testified or is about to testify in any proceeding under or relating to the labor 
standards applicable under this Contract to his employer.  
 
B. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. The provisions of this paragraph B are applicable where the 
amount of the prime contract exceeds $100,000. As used in this paragraph, the terms “laborers” and “mechanics” include 
watchmen and guards.  
 
(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may 
require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any 
workweek in which the individual is employed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such workweek unless such 
laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all 
hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such workweek.  
 
(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in 
subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the 
unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work 

416

Item 24.



45 

done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. 
Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen 
and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, in the sum of $10 for 
each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of 40 
hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in sub paragraph (1) of this paragraph. 
 
(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon 
written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any 
moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other 
Federal contract with the same prime contract, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act which is held by the same prime contractor such sums as may be determined to be 
necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as 
provided in the clause set forth in subparagraph (2) of this paragraph.  
 
(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in subparagraph 
(1) through (4) of this paragraph and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier 
subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor 
with the clauses set forth in subparagraphs (1) through (4) of this paragraph.  
 
C. Health and Safety. The provisions of this paragraph C are applicable where the amount of the prime contract exceeds 
$100,000. 
 
(1) No laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, 
hazardous, or dangerous to his health and safety as determined under construction safety and health standards 
promulgated by the Secretary of Labor by regulation. 
 
(2) The Contractor shall comply with all regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Title 29 Part 1926 and 
failure to comply may result in imposition of sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 
(Public Law 91-54, 83 Stat 96). 40 USC 3701 et seq.  
 
(3) The contractor shall include the provisions of this paragraph in every subcontract so that such provisions will be 
binding on each subcontractor. The contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontractor as the Secretary 
of Housing and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such provisions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

417

Item 24.



46 

REQUIRED CONTRACT LANGUAGE 
All project contracts shall contain at a minimum the following provisions, as appropriate. 

 

ALL CONTRACTS 

1. Access and Maintenance of Records 

The contractor must maintain all required records for five years after final payments are made and all other 
pending matters are closed. 

At any time during normal business hours and as frequently as is deemed necessary, the contractor shall 
make available to the Iowa Economic Development Authority, the State Auditor, the General Accounting 
Office, and the Department of Housing and Urban Development, for their examination, all of its records 
pertaining to all matters covered by this contract and permit these agencies to audit, examine, make excerpts 
or transcripts from such records, contract, invoices, payrolls, personnel records, conditions of employment, 
and all other matters covered by this contract. 

2. Civil Rights 

The Contractor must comply with the following laws and regulations: 
 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352).  

States that no person may be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance on the basis of 
race, color, or national origin. 
 

 Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Fair Housing Act), as amended. 
 

 Iowa Civil Rights Act of 1965. 
 This Act mirrors the Federal Civil Rights Act. 
 

 Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (42 
U.S.C. 5309). 

Provides that no person shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or 
subjected to discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or handicap under 
any program or activity funded in part or in whole under Title I of the Act. 
 

 The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 1601 et seq.) 
Provides that no person on the basis of age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the 
benefits of or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal 
financial assistance. 
 

 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-112, 29 U.S.C. 794). 
Provides that no otherwise qualified individual shall solely by reason of his/her handicap be 
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be discriminated against under any 
program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 
 

 Americans with Disabilities Act (P.L. 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) 
Provides comprehensive civil rights to individuals with disabilities in the areas of employment, 
public accommodations, state and local government services, and telecommunications. 

 Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended (12 U.S.C. 1701u). 
Provides to the greatest extent feasible, that training and employment opportunities be made 
available to lower-income residents of project areas and that contracts be awarded to small 
businesses located within the project area or owned in substantial part by project area residents. 
 

418

Item 24.



47 

 Federal Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Order 11375. 
 Provides that no one be discriminated in employment. 
 

 Federal Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259. 
 

3. Termination Clause 

All contracts utilizing CDBG funds must contain a termination clause that specifies the following: 
 Under what conditions the clause may be imposed. 
 The form the termination notice must take (e.g., certified letter). 
 The time frame required between the notice of termination and its effective date. 
 The method used to compute the final payment(s) to the contractor. 

 
4. Certification regarding government-wide restriction on lobbying. 

All contracts utilizing CDBG funds must contain the following certification concerning restriction of lobbying: 

"The Recipient certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 
i.  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 

Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member 
of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal 
grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the 
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, 
or cooperative agreement. 

ii.  If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee, or an employee of a Member of congress in connection with 
this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Recipient shall complete and 
submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Federal Lobbying" in accordance with its 
instruction. 

iii. The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under 
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose 
accordingly. 
 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code.  Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for 
each such failure." 

5. Lead-Safe Housing Regulations (As applicable) 

24 CFR Part 35 et. al. 

Requirements for Notification, Evaluation and Reduction of Lead-Based Paint Hazards in Federally Owned 
Residential Properties and Housing Receiving Federal Assistance, Final Rule 

6. Standards and Policies Relating to Energy Efficiency 

Pub. L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871 

Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy 
conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act. 

7. Notice of Awarding Agency Requirements and Regulations Pertaining to Reporting 

The Contractor must provide information as necessary and as requested by the Iowa Economic 

419

Item 24.



48 

Development Authority for the purpose of fulfilling all reporting requirements related to the CDBG program. 

 

 

 

ALL CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $10,000 

In addition to the preceding provisions, all contracts in excess of $10,000 must include the following 
language, pursuant to Federal Executive Orders 11246 and 11375: 

"During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 
(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 

race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard 
to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to 
the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for 
training, including apprenticeship.  The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available 
to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer 
setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

(2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of 
the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without 
regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

(3) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a 
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be provided by the 
agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's 
commitments under Section 202 of the Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and 
shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for 
employment. 

(4) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 
1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

(5) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order No. 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or 
pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the contracting 
agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such 
rules, regulations, and orders. 

(6) In the event of the contractor's non-compliance with the nondiscrimination clause of this contract 
or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated or 
suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further 
Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order No. 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as 
provided in Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of 
the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

(7) The contractor will include the provisions of Paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or 
purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued 
pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such 
provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.  The contractor will take such action 
with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the contracting agency may direct as a 
means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, 
that in the event the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a 
subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the contracting agency, the contractor may 
request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 
 

420

Item 24.



49 

 
ALL CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $100,000 
In addition to the preceding provisions, contracts in excess of $100,000 shall require compliance with the 
following laws and regulations: 
  Section 306 of the Clean Air Acts (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)). 
  Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368). 
  Executive Order 11738. 
   EPA Regulations - 40 CFR, Part 15. 

Clean Air and Water Acts - required clauses: 

This clause is required in all third party contracts involving projects subject to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 
1857 et seq.), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.), and the regulations of the 
Environmental Protection Agency with respect to 40 CFR Part 15, as amended.  It should also be 
mentioned in the bid document. 

During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR agrees as follows: 
(1) The CONTRACTOR will certify that any facility to be utilized in the performance of any nonexempt 

contract or subcontract is not listed on the Excluded Party Listing System pursuant to 40 CFR 32. 
(2) The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all the requirements of Section 114 of the Clean Air 

Act, as amended, (42 U.S.C. 1857c-8) and Section 308 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 
as amended (33 U.S.C. 1318) relating to inspection, monitoring, entry, reports, and information, as 
well as all other requirements specified in said Section 114 and Section 308, and all regulations 
and guidelines issued thereunder. 

(3) The CONTRACTOR agrees that as a condition for the award of the contract, prompt notice will be 
given of any notification received from the Director, Office of Federal Activities, Environmental 
Protection Agency, indicating that a facility utilized or to be utilized for the contract is under 
consideration to be listed on the Excluded Party Listing System. 

(4) The CONTRACTOR agrees that it will include or cause to be included the criteria and 
requirements in Paragraph (1) through (4) of this section in every nonexempt subcontract and 
require every subcontractor to take such action as the Government may direct as a means of 
enforcing such provisions. 

 

 

ALL CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $2,000 

In addition to the preceding provisions, all construction contracts in excess of $2,000 must include the 
Federal Labor Standards Provisions (verbatim) found in Appendix 2 under Required Contract Provisions.  
(Housing rehabilitation contracts of less than 8 units are excluded from this requirement.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

421

Item 24.



 
(8)      

DEDUCTIONS 

(7) (6) (5) (4) DAY AND DATE (3) (2) 

 
O 

 
O 

 
S 

 
S 

 
S 

 
S 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Wage and Hour Division 

PAYROLL 
(For Contractor’s Optional Use; See Instructions at www.dol.gov/esa//whd/forms/wh347instr.htm) 

Persons are not required to respond to the collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number. Rev. Dec. 2008 

 
 

NAME OF CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR ADDRESS OMB No.: 1235-0008 
Expires: 02/28/2018 

PAYROLL NO. FOR WEEK ENDING PROJECT AND LOCATION PROJECT OR CONTRACT NO. 

 
 

(1) (9) 

 
 
 

 
NAME AND INDIVIDUAL IDENTIFYING NUMBER 
(e.g., LAST FOUR DIGITS OF SOCIAL SECURITY 

NUMBER) OF WORKER 

 

 
NET 

WAGES 
PAID FOR 

WEEK 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

While completion of Form WH-347 is optional, it is mandatory for covered contractors and subcontractors performing work on Federally financed or assisted construction contracts to respond to the information collection contained in 29 C.F.R. §§ 3.3, 5.5(a). The Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145) contractors and subcontractors performing work on 
Federally financed or assisted construction contracts to “furnish a weekly statement with respect to the wages paid each employee during the preceding week.” U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) regulations at 29 C.F.R. § 5.5 (a)(3)(ii) require contractors to submit weekly a copy of all payrolls to the Federal agency contracting for or financing the 

construction project, accompanied by a signed “Statement of Compliance” indicating that the payrolls are correct and complete and that each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the proper Davis-Bacon prevailing wage rate for the work performed. DOL and federal contracting agencies receiving this information review the information to 
determine that the employees have received legally required wages and fringe benefits. 

 
Public Burden Statement 

 
We estimate that is will take an average of 55 minutes to complete this collection, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  If you have any comments regarding these estimates or any other aspect of this collection, 

including suggestions for reducing this burden, send them to the Administrator, Wage and Hour Division, ESA, U.S. Department of Labor, Room S3502, 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210 

(over) 

 
O 

 
S 

 
O 

 
O 

 
O 

 
O 

 
O 

 
S 

 
S 

 
S 

 
HOURS WORKED EACH DAY 

 
 
 

TOTAL 
DEDUCTIONS 

 
 
 

OTHER 

 
 

WITH- 
HOLDING 

TAX 

 
 
 

FICA 

GROSS 
AMOUNT 
EARNED 

RATE 
OF PAY 

TOTAL 
HOURS 

WORK 
CLASSIFICATION 

N
O

. 
O

F
 

W
IT

H
H

O
L

D
IN

G
 

E
X

E
M

P
T

IO
N

S
 

O
T

. 
O

R
 S

T
. 

422

Item 24.



Date    
 

I,   ,   
(Name of Signatory Party)  (Title) 

 
do hereby state: 

 
(1) That I pay or supervise the payment of persons employed by 

 
    on the 

(Contractor or Subcontractor) 
 

   ; that during the period commencing on the 
(Building or Work) 

 
   day of  ,  , and ending the  day of  ,  
all persons employed on said project have been paid the full weekly wages earned, that no 
rebates have been made or will be made either directly or indirectly on behalf of said 

 
    from the full 

(Contractor or Subcontractor) 
 

weekly wages earned by any person and that no deductions have been made either directly or 
indirectly from the full wages earned by any person, other than permissible deductions as defined  
in Regulations, Part 3 (29 C.F.R. Subtitle A), issued by the Secretary of Labor  under the   
Copeland Act, as amended (48 Stat. 948 63 Start. 108, 72 Stat. 967; 76 Stat. 357; 40 U.S.C. § 
3145), and described below: 

 
 

 

 
 

(2) That any payrolls otherwise under this contract required to be submitted for the above period  
are correct and complete; that the  wage rates for laborers and mechanics contained therein   
are not less than the applicable wage rates contained in any wage determination incorporated 
into the contract; that the classifications set forth therein for each laborer or mechanic conform 
with the work performed. 

 
(3) That any apprentices employed in the above period are duly registered in a bona fide 

Apprenticeship program registered with a State apprenticeship agency recognized by the  
Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, United States Department of Labor, or if  no  such 
agency exists in a State, are registered with the Bureau of  Apprenticeship  and  Training,  
United States Department of Labor. 

 
(4) That: 

(a) WHERE FRINGE BENEFITS ARE PAID TO APPROVED PLANS, FUNDS, OR PROGRAMS 

 
_ in addition to the  basic  hourly wage  rates paid to each laborer or mechanic listed  

in the above referenced payroll, payments of fringe benefits  as  listed  in  the contract 
have been or will be made to appropriate programs for the benefit of such employees, 
except as noted in section 4(c) below. 

(b) WHERE FRINGE BENEFITS ARE PAID IN CASH 
 

_ Each laborer or mechanic listed in the above referenced payroll has been paid, 
as indicated on the payroll, an amount not less than the sum of the applicable basic 
hourly wage rate plus the amount of the required fringe benefits as listed in the 
contract, except as noted in section 4 (c) below. 

 
(c) EXCEPTIONS 

 
 

EXCEPTION (CRAFT) 
 

EXPLANATION 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

REMARKS 

 
NAME AND TITLE SIGNATURE 

 
THE WILLFUL FALSIFICATION OF ANY OF THE ABOVE STATEMENTS MAY SUBJECT THE CONTRACTOR OR 
SUBCONTRACTOR TO CIVIL OR CRIMINAL PROSECUTION. SEE SECTION 1001 OF TITLE 18 AND SECTION 231 
OF TITLE 31 OF THE UNITED STATES CODE. 

 

423

Item 24.



 
We are conducting a review of federal labor standards compliance on the project named below.  We are asking 
for certain information regarding your employment on this project.  Sending this questionnaire to you does not 
imply that your employer has violated any law.  

Please respond to all of the questions listed below.  Your responses will be considered confidential and will not be 
released to anyone without your permission.  Your answers should refer only to the time during which you worked on this 
project.  Please return the completed form as soon as possible, using the envelope provided, which needs no postage.  

If you have any questions, please call:  

 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT  
Office of Labor Relations  

FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS QUESTIONNAIRE  

HUD FORM 4730  
OMB Approval Number 2501-0018 

(Exp. 09/30/2018)  

424

Item 24.



17. Identify other employees (name, address, phone) who worked with you and who could confirm the type of work you 
performed 

18. Identify employees (name, address, phone) you supervised 

I affirm that the information provided herein is accurate to the best of my knowledge.  
Employee Name (Please print clearly)  Home Phone Number (including area code)  

Current address (Include apartment number, if any) (Street/City/State/Zip 
Code)   

Alternate Phone Number(s) (including area 
code)  

Permanent/Alternate Address (if current address is temporary)  Email address  

Signature  Date  

 
Disclosure Authorization  

 
I authorize the HUD representative to disclose my name and the information I have submitted to the extent necessary to 
enforce my rights under the Acts administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  

Signature:  Date:  

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for 
reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining data needed, and completing and reviewing the 
collection of information. The information is considered sensitive and will not be released without your approval.  Provision of this is 
voluntary. This agency may not collect this information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently 
valid Office of Management and Budget (OMB) control number.  

HUD and local agencies administering HUD-assisted programs must enforce Federal wage and reporting requirements on covered 
HUD-assisted construction and maintenance work.  Enforcement activities include contacting laborers and mechanics and requesting 
information about their employment on covered projects.   

 
HUD-4730 (06/2004) PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT  
Office of Labor Relations  

FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS QUESTIONNAIRE  

HUD FORM 4730  
OMB Approval Number 2501-0018 

(Exp. 09/30/2018)  

425

Item 24.



DEPARTAMENTO DE VIVIENDA Y DESARROLLO URBANO DE LOS EE.UU. 
Oficina de Relaciones Laborales 

CUESTIONARIO DE ESTÁNDARES FEDERALES DE TRABAJO 

FORMULARIO 
HUD 4730SP 

Número de Aprobación 
OMB 2501-0018 
Exp. 11/30/2016 

 
 

Estamos llevando a cabo una revisión del cumplimiento con los estándares federales de trabajo en el proyecto 
mencionado a continuación. Estamos solicitando cierta información concerniente a su empleo en este proyecto. 
El envío de este cuestionario no implica que su empleador haya violado alguna ley. 

 
Por favor responda a todas las preguntas mencionadas abajo. Sus respuestas se considerarán confidenciales y 
no se revelarán a nadie sin su permiso. Sus respuestas se deben referir únicamente al tiempo durante el cuál 
usted trabajó en este proyecto. Por favor devuelva el formulario debidamente llenado lo más pronto posible, 
usando el sobre proporcionado con franqueo pagado. 

 
Si tiene preguntas, por favor llame: 

 

Empleador Nombre del proyecto, número y ubicación 

1. Su nombre 2. El título de su trabajo 

3. ¿Cuándo trabajó en este proyecto? 
 
Desde: Hasta: 

4. ¿Dónde trabajó usted (lugar del trabajo, taller, etc.)? 

5. ¿Qué tareas desempeñó en este proyecto? 

6. ¿Qué herramientas usó (si usó alguna) para desempeñar sus tareas en el proyecto? 

7. ¿Cómo se le pagó? (salario por hora, sueldo, trabajo 
a destajo, etc.) 

8. Si su salario era en base a trabajo a destajo, ¿cómo se 
determinó su pago (esto es, por tabla, por unidad, etc.)? 

9. ¿Cuál era su salario por hora en 
este proyecto? 
$ 

10a. Recibió usted beneficios 
adicionales? 

 
Sí No 

10b. Si la respuesta es sí, ¿Cuáles 
beneficios adicionales recibió? 
Vacaciones 
Seguro médico 
Jubilación 
Otra Especifique 

11. En promedio, 
¿cuántas horas 
trabajó usted 
cada semana? 

12. ¿Trabajó 
usted más de 40 
horas en una sola 
semana? 

 
Sí No 

13.  Si usted trabajó más de 40 
horas por semana, ¿recibió pago por 
horas extra (por lo menos 1½ veces 
su tarifa de pago regular)? 

 
Sí No 

14. Si usted no recibió pago de sobre 
tiempo por las horas extra de trabajo, 
identifique el número de semanas que 
trabajó horas extra y/o las horas extra 

15. Adjunte copias de los talones de 
cheques o planillas de sus horas y 
del pago recibido 

 
 

MARQUE SI ESTÁN INCLUIDOS 

16. Incluya cualquier otro comentario o declaración en una hoja separada 
 
 
 

MARQUE SI ESTÁN INCLUIDOS 
HUD-4730 SPANISH (06/2004) PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE 426

Item 24.



DEPARTAMENTO DE VIVIENDA Y DESARROLLO URBANO DE LOS EE.UU. 
Oficina de Relaciones Laborales 

CUESTIONARIO DE ESTÁNDARES FEDERALES DE TRABAJO 

FORMULARIO 
HUD 4730SP 

Número de Aprobación 
OMB 2501-0018 
Exp. 11/30/2016 

17. Identifique a otros empleados (nombre, dirección, teléfono) que trabajaron con usted y que podrían confirmar el trabajo 
que usted desempeñó 

18. Identifique a los empleados (nombre, dirección, teléfono) que usted supervisó 

 
 
 

Afirmo que la información proporcionada aquí es exacta a mi mejor conocimiento. 
Nombre del empleado (Por favor escriba claramente 
en letra de molde) 

Número de teléfono de su domicilio (incluya el código de 
área) 

Dirección actual (Incluya el número de apartamento, 
si se aplica (Calle/Ciudad/Estado/Código Postal) 

Número(s) de teléfono alternativos(s) (incluya el código 
de área) 

Dirección permanente/alternativa (si la dirección 
actual es temporal) 

Dirección de correo electrónico 

Firma Fecha 

 
 

Autorización de Revelación 
 

Autorizo al representante de HUD revelar mi nombre y la información que he presentado, en la medida necesaria 
para hacer valer mis derechos bajo las Leyes administradas por el Departamento de Vivienda y Desarrollo 
Urbano de los EE.UU. 

 
 

Firma: Fecha: 

 

La responsabilidad de informar al público para esta recopilación de información se estima a un promedio de 30 minutos por respuesta, 
incluyendo el tiempo para revisar las instrucciones, buscar las fuentes de datos existentes, recopilar y mantener los datos necesarios, así 
como completar y revisar la información recopilada. La información se considera confidencial y no se revelará sin su aprobación. El 
proporcionarla es voluntario. Esta agencia no puede recopilar información y usted no está obligado a llenar este formulario, a menos que 
se muestre un número de control actual válido de la Oficina de Administración y Presupuesto (OMB). 

 
HUD y las agencias locales que administran los programas asistidos por HUD deben hacer cumplir los requisitos federales de información 
y salario en los trabajos de construcción y mantenimiento cubiertos, asistidos por HUD. Las actividades de cumplimiento incluyen contratar 
obreros y mecánicos y solicitar información sobre sus empleos en proyectos cubiertos. 

 

HUD-4730 SPANISH (06/2004) PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE 

427

Item 24.



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT  

Office of Labor Relations  

ON-LINE EMPLOYEE QUESTIONNAIRE  

HUD FORM 4730E  
OMB Approval No. 2501-0018 

(Exp. 09/30/2018)  

 
Many construction projects assisted by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) are covered by federal 
labor standards.  These standards include the payment of prevailing wage rates as determined by the Secretary of Labor, 
otherwise known as Davis-Bacon wage rates.  In addition, many projects are covered by overtime rules that require the 
payment of one and one-half times the regular rate of pay for hours worked over 40 in a workweek.  Construction workers 
who are paid less than prevailing wages for the work they perform or who do not receive time and one-half for overtime hours 
worked may be entitled to wage restitution (back wages).  Also, maintenance workers employed at many public and Indian 
housing projects are covered by prevailing wage rates determined by HUD.  Maintenance workers that do not receive 
prevailing wages or, in some cases, overtime pay, may also be entitled to wage restitution.  
If you think that you may not have been paid correctly for construction or maintenance work that you performed on a 
HUDassisted project, you can complete this questionnaire and submit it to HUD electronically by clicking on the “Submit” 
button at the end of the form.  Or you can print your completed form and mail it to HUD at the following address:  

U.S. Department of HUD  

Office of Labor Relations  

451 7th Street, SW, Room 2102 Washington, 

DC   20410  

We will review the information you provide and will let you know if you have been underpaid and, if so, we will work to ensure 
that you receive any additional wages that you may have earned.  Please note that if we believe you have been underpaid, 
we will probably need to contact you for more information.  
Please respond to all of the questions listed below.  Your responses will be considered confidential and will not be released 
to anyone without your permission.  Your answers should refer only to the time during which you worked on the HUD 
assisted project.   

If you have any questions, please contact a HUD Labor Relations Specialist.  A list of contact names, addresses, 
telephone numbers, email addresses and the geographic areas they cover can be found at:  www.hud.gov/offices/olr  

Employer  Project name, number and location  

1. Your Name 2. Your Job title 

3. When did you work on this project? 

From:                  To: 

4. Where did you work (job site, shop, etc.)? 

5. What duties did you perform on this project? 

6. What tools (if any) did you use to perform your duties on the project? 

7. How was your wage determined? (hourly wage, salary, 
piece work, etc.) 

8. If your wage was based on piece work, describe how 
pay was determined (i.e., $ per board, per unit, etc.)? 

  

428

Item 24.



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT  
  

Office of Labor Relations  

ON-LINE EMPLOYEE QUESTIONNAIRE 

HUD FORM 4730E  
OMB Approval No. 2501-0018 

(Exp. 09/30/2018)  

9a. What was your hourly wage rate on 
the project?  

$  

10a. Did you receive fringe 
benefits?  

Yes          No    

10b. If yes, which fringe benefits?  

Vacation  
Medical  
Pension   Specify:   
Other  

9b. If you know, what was the required 
prevailing wage for this project?  

$  

11. On average, 
how many hours 
did you work 
each week? 

12. Did you ever 
work over 40 
hours in a single 
week? 

13. If you worked over 40 hours 
per week, did you receive 
overtime pay (1½ times your 
regular rate of pay)? 

14. If you did not receive overtime pay for 
overtime hours worked, identify the 
number of weeks in which overtime was 
worked and/or total overtime hours 

Yes     No     Yes             No      

15. Identify other employees (name, address, phone) who worked with you and who could confirm the type of work you 
performed 

16. Identify employees (name, address, phone) you supervised 

How may we contact you?  

Current address (Include apartment number, if any) (Street/City/State/Zip Code)  Home Phone Number (including area 
code)  

Permanent/Alternate Address (if current address is temporary)  Alternate Phone Number(s) (including 
area code)  

Cell Phone   
Email address  Date  

 
Disclosure Authorization  

 

I authorize the HUD representative to disclose my name and the information I have submitted to the extent necessary to 
enforce my rights under the Acts administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  

 
Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing 
instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of 
information. The information is considered sensitive and will not be released without your approval.  Provision of this information is voluntary. 
This agency may not collect this information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) control number.  
HUD and local agencies administering HUD-assisted programs must enforce Federal wage and reporting requirements on covered HUD-assisted 
construction and maintenance work.  Enforcement activities include contacting laborers and mechanics and requesting information about their 
employment on covered projects.   

 

Yes       No     

SUBMIT             PRINT    

HUD - 4730 E 
  (6/2004) 

  PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE 
429

Item 24.



Record of 
Employee Interview 

U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
Office of Labor Relations 

OMB Approval No. 2501-0009 
(exp. 09/30/2017) 

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. This agency may not collect this information, and you are not 
required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number. The information is collected to ensure compliance with the Federal labor standards by 
recording interviews with construction workers. The information collected will assist HUD in the conduct of compliance monitoring; the information will be used to test the veracity of 
certified payroll reports submitted by the employer. Sensitive Information. The information collected on this form is considered sensitive and is protected by the Privacy Act. The 
Privacy Act requires that these records be maintained with appropriate administrative, technical, and physical safeguards to ensure their security and confidentiality. In addition, 
these records should be protected against any anticipated threats or hazards to their security or integrity that could result in substantial harm, embarrassment, inconvenience, or 
unfairness to any individual on whom the information is maintained. The information collected herein is voluntary, and any information provided shall be kept confidential. 

 
1a. Project Name 2a. Employee Name 

1b. Project Number 2b. Employee Phone Number (including area code) 

1c. Contractor or Subcontractor (Employer) 2c. Employee Home Address & Zip Code 

2d. Verification of identification? 

Yes No 

3a. How long on this 
job? 

3b. Last date on this 
job before today? 

3c. No. of hours last 
day on this job? 

4a. Hourly rate of pay? 4b. Fringe Benefits?  4c. Pay stub? 

Vacation Yes No Yes No 

Medical Yes No   

Pension Yes No   

5. Your job classification(s) (list all) --- continue on a separate sheet if necessary 

 
6. Your duties 

 
7. Tools or equipment used 

 
 

Y N Y N 

8. Are you an apprentice or trainee? 10. Are you paid at least time and ½ for all hours worked in excess of 40 in a week? 

9. Are you paid for all hours worked? 11. Have you ever been threatened or coerced into giving up any part of your pay? 
 

12a. Employee Signature 12b. Date 

13. Duties observed by the Interviewer (Please be specific.) 
 
 

14. Remarks 
 

 
15a. Interviewer name (please print) 15b. Signature of Interviewer 15c. Date of interview 

 

Payroll Examination 
16. Remarks  

17a. Signature of Payroll Examiner 17b. Date 

Previous editions are obsolete Form HUD-11 (08/2004) 

 430

Item 24.



Historial de Entrevista del 
Empleado 

Departamento de Vivienda y 
Desarrollo Urbano de EE.UU. 
Oficina de Relaciones Laborales 

Aprobación de OMB No. 2501-0009 
(exp. 09/30/2017) 

Se estima que la tarea de recolección de esta información pública es de aproximadamente 15 minutos por respuesta, incluso el tiempo para examinar instrucciones, buscar 
fuentes de datos existentes, recopilar y mantener datos necesarios, y completar y examinar la recopilación de la información. Esta agencia no puede recopilar esta información y 
no se requiere que usted llene este formulario, a menos que éste exhiba un número de control válido de la Oficina de Administración y Presupuesto (OMB, por sus siglas en 
inglés. La información que se recopila tiene la finalidad de garantizar la conformidad a las normas laborales Federales mediante entrevistas con obreros de construcción. La 
información recopilada asistirá a HUD a conducir el monitoreo de conformidad; la información se usará para examinar la veracidad de los informes de nómina certificados 
presentados por el patrón. Información confidencial. La información recopilada en este formulario es considerada confidencial y está protegida por la Ley de Privacidad.  La 
Ley de Privacidad requiere que estos archivos se mantengan con salvaguardas administrativos, técnicos, y físicos apropiados para garantizar su seguridad y confidencialidad. 
Además, estos archivos deberán ser protegidos contra cualquier amenaza anticipada o riesgos a su seguridad o integridad, que podría causar daño sustancial, vergüenza, 
inconveniencias, o injusticias a cualquier individuo de quien se mantiene la información. La información recopilada aquí es voluntaria y cualquier información proporcionada 
será mantenida como confidencial. 

 
1a. Nombre del proyecto 2a. Nombre del empleado 

1b. Número del proyecto 2b. Número de teléfono del empleado (incluso prefijo local) 

1c. Contratista o subcontratista (Patrón) 2c. Dirección residencial del empleado y código postal 

2d. ¿Verificación de identificación? 

Sí No 

3a. ¿Cuánto tiempo 
en este trabajo? 

3b. ¿Último día en 
este trabajo antes de 
hoy? 

3c. ¿No. de horas en 
su ultimo día en este 
trabajo? 

4a. ¿Salario por hora? 4b. ¿Beneficios complementarios? 4c. ¿Talonario de 
paga? 

Vacaciones Sí No Sí No 

Médicos Sí No   

Pensión Sí No   

5. Clasificación(es) de su trabajo(s) (enumere todas) --- continúe en una página separada si es necesario 

 
6. Sus deberes 

 
7. Herramientas o equipo usado 

 
 

S N S N 

8. ¿Es aprendiz? 10. ¿Le pagan al menos tiempo y medio por todas las horas trabajadas superior a 40 
horas semanales? 

9. ¿Le pagan todas las horas 
trabajadas? 

11. ¿Alguna vez ha sido amenazado o coercionado a entregar parte de su paga? 

12a. Firma del empleado 12b. Fecha 

13. Deberes observados por el entrevistador (Por favor sea específico.) 
 
 

14. Comentarios 
 

 
15a. Nombre del entrevistador (use letra de imprenta) 15b. Firma del entrevistador 15c. Fecha de la entrevista 

 

Examinación de Nómina 
16. Comentarios  

17a. Firma del examinador de nómina 17b. Fecha 

 431

Item 24.



Name of complainant  Social Security Number  

Current address of complainant (Street/City/State/Zip Code)  Permanent address, if different from current address  

Telephone (including area code)  (Home/Cell/Other)  E-Mail address  

Project name, location and contract/project number  Prime contractor company name  

Employer (company) name  Employer:  name of owner/responsible party  

Employer address  Employer:  contact information (Telephone/Cell/Other)  

Check one:  Current 

employee  

Former 

employee  

 Other (specify)  

Period employed on the project  

From:  To:  

Occupation/job title:  

 
Duties performed (be specific)  

 
Tools used and/or equipment operated  

 

Hours usually worked on the project  

Sunday  Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday  Saturday  

       

Usual start and stop times  Start work time:   End work time:    

 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT  

Office of Labor Relations  

FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS COMPLAINT INTAKE FORM  

HUD FORM  
4731  

OMB Approval No. 2501-0018  
(Exp.  08/31/2010) 

Wage Rate:    $   per  Hour  Day  Week  Piece  Other (specify):   

432

Item 24.



W

e

r

e

 

m

e

a

l

 

b

r

e

aks taken?   Did the employer keep time  If yes, how long were the breaks?  records?  

_____________________________  

 

If fringe benefits were paid, check all that apply:  

 Cash in lieu of fringe benefits  

 Health insurance  

Identify other fringe benefits paid  

Names of others affected by the alleged violation(s)  

Names of others who can verify/attest to the complainant’s allegations  

 

Complaint taken by:  
Name (print clearly)  Phone number (including area code) and E-mail address  

Title  Agency, office  

Signature  Date  

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, 

searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. The information is 

considered sensitive and will not be released without your approval.  Provision of this information is voluntary. This agency may not collect this 

information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid Office of Management and Budget (OMB) control 

number.  HUD and local agencies administering HUD-assisted programs must enforce Federal wage and reporting requirements on covered HUD-

assisted construction and maintenance work.  Enforcement activities include collecting information from laborers and mechanics and other interested 

parties regarding information about their employment on covered projects.  

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT  

Office of Labor Relations  

FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS COMPLAINT INTAKE FORM  

HUD FORM  
4731  

OMB Approval No. 2501-0018  
(Exp.  08/31/2010) 

Name of complainant    Social Security Number   

 Yes  No  Yes  No  

Paid Overtime (time and ½) after 40 hours?  Did the complainant keep time  
records?   

Paid for all hours worked?  Does complainant have other  
personal records (pay stubs, log  
books, etc.) he/she can provide?   

Was/is the complainant an Apprentice?  Were fringe benefits paid?   

  Continuation sheets attached  
 Complainant’s personal interview attached 

  Life insurance     Pension   

 Dental insurance   Holiday/Sick/Vacation  

433

Item 24.



  PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE  form HUD-4731 (6/2004)   

434

Item 24.



63 
 

HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 1968 

SECTION 3 CLAUSE 

 

A. The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a program providing direct Federal 
financial assistance from the Department of Housing and Urban Development and is subject to the requirements of 
Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701 u.  Section 3 requires that 
to the greatest extent feasible opportunities for training and employment be given lower income residents of the project 
area and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business concerns which are located in, or 
owned in substantial part by persons residing in the area of the project. 

 

B. The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and the regulations issued pursuant 
thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development set forth in 24 CFR Section 3, and all applicable rules and 
orders of the Department issued there under prior to the execution of this contract.  The parties to this contract certify 
and agree that they are under no contractual or other disability that would prevent them from complying with these 
requirements. 

 

C. The contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which he has a collective 
bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding if any, a notice advising said labor organization or workers’ 
representative of his commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous 
places available to employees and applicants for employment or training. 

 

D. The contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract; for work in connection with the project 
and will, at the direction of the applicant for or recipient of Federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant 
to the Subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of regulations issued by the Secretary of Housing 
and Urban Development, 24 CFR Section 3.  The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has 
notice or knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 CFR Section 3 and will not let 
any subcontract unless the subcontractor has first provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the 
requirements of these regulations. 

 

E. Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR Section 3, and all applicable 
rules and orders of the Department issued there under prior to the execution of the contract, shall be a condition of the 
Federal financial assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such assistance, its 
successors, and assigns.  Failure to fulfill these requirements shall subject the applicant or recipient, its contractors and 
subcontractors, its successors, and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant or loan agreement or contract 
through Federal assistance is provided, and to such sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR Section 135.135. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

435

Item 24.



64 
 

INTENT TO COMPLY WITH SECTION 3 REQUIREMENTS 
(To be provided with procurement documents and returned with all submitted bids) 

 
Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 [12 U.S.C. 1701u and 24 CFR Part 135] is HUD’s 
legislative directive for providing preference to low-income residents of the local community (regardless of race or 
gender), and the businesses that substantially employ these persons, for new employment, training and contracting 
opportunities resulting from HUD-funded projects. The regulations seek to ensure that low- and very low- income 
persons, and the businesses that employ these individuals, are notified about the expenditure of HUD funds in their 
community and encouraged to seek opportunities, if created. 

 
A Section 3 resident is defined as a public housing resident or someone with a household income that is less than 
80% of the area median income. 

 
A Section 3 business is defined as a business that is: 

51% owned by Section 3 residents 

Whose permanent, full-time staff is comprised of at least 30% Section 3 residents** 

Has committed 25% of the dollar amount of its subcontracts to Section 3 businesses 

Note: If your business meets the definition of a Section 3 business, you may register as a Section 3 Business through 
HUD’s website here: https://portalapps.hud.gov/Sec3BusReg/BRegistry/RegisterBusiness 
Businesses who self-certify that they meet one of the regulatory definitions of a Section 3 business will be included 
in a searchable online database. The database can be used by agencies that receive HUD funds, developers, 
contractors, and others to facilitate the award of covered construction and non-construction contracts to Section 3 
businesses. 

 
Please complete the following: 

1. If awarded a contract for this CDBG funded project, do you anticipate hiring new employees to 
complete the project? (Hiring would be specific to this project) 

 
Yes No   If yes, please estimate the number of employees to be hired:   

 
2. Is your business a Section 3 Business? Yes No 

 
3. Is the bidder willing to consider hiring Section 3 residents for future employment opportunities that are 

a direct result of this CDBG funded project? 
 

Yes No 
 

4. Is the bidder willing to consider subcontracting with Section 3 Businesses for this project? 

Yes No 

 

 

436

Item 24.



SECTION 3 
NEW HIRE COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 

65 
 

 

 

I understand that this contracting opportunity is subject to HUD Section 3 requirements (24 CFR Part 135). I have 
read and understand the Section 3 requirements as generally described above and presented in the Section 3 
contract language included in the procurement documents for this project. If awarded a contract, the business 
commits to following Section 3 requirements, as they apply to this project. If awarded a contract for this project, 
the business agrees to provide reports to (insert City/County) on Section 3 efforts and accomplishments. 

 
 
 

Name of Contractor/Subcontractor Address 
 

Print Name Title 
 

Signature Date 

 

437

Item 24.



SECTION 3 
NEW HIRE COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 

66 
 

Sample Format for Section 3 Employee Interviews  

Date:  
Dear Employee:  
Please provide the information requested on this form that we can verify to the Iowa  
Economic Development Authority that your employment here is achieving the goals of Section 3 of 
the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968.  This information will be placed in your 
confidential personnel file and will be available only to a limited number of authorized persons.  For 
assistance or further information, please see ______________________________.  Thank you.  
(Company Official) 

 Sincerely, ________________________________  
(Company Official)  

NOTE:  Median Income Limits Table is on the reverse side of this form. (use limits from 
IEDA website)   
Step 1:  Are you a resident of public housing?   
 _________Yes  ________ No  
*If the answer to Step 1 is “Yes,” you have completed the form. No further information is needed. 
*If the answer to Step 1 is “No,” please refer to Steps 2 and 3. 

Step 2:  On the Median Income Limits Table, find the county in which you live and the 
size of your family (count yourself and all family members living at home).   
Use this information to arrive at the corresponding income level.    

Step 3:  Answer this question:  
Is your family’s total income above or below the amount listed for your county and family 
size?  (Check one)   

 _____ABOVE   _____BELOW  

 
  

438

Item 24.



SECTION 3 
NEW HIRE COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 

67 
 

The US Department of Housing & Urban Development (“HUD”) requires the recipient to 
collect information on every person hired in connection with Section 3 projects to ensure 
compliance with Federal regulations. 

 
As part of (enter your community here)’s Section 3 program your firm is required to report the number of 
employees hired in connection with a Section 3 Project who are Section 3 Eligible. Complete this form by entering 
the names and addresses of all new hires and by indicating whether they are Section 3 eligible. A Section 3 
resident is: 

 
1. A public housing resident; OR 
2. An individual who lives within the  and whose income falls within the guidelines for low 

or very low income. See attached table. 
 
This form must be completed by all subcontractors working on a Section 3 project, 
defined as a contract that exceeds $100,000, even if the subcontractor is not a “Section 3 
Business.” 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR EMPLOYERS: 
 

1. Enter the name and address of every new employee hired in connection with the Section 3 Project on 
the following list. (Add additional sheets if necessary). 

 
2. For new employees hired, determine whether each new hire is Section 3 eligible by asking the 

employee the following questions upon hiring: 
 

a. Are you a resident of public housing? 
YES 
NO 

 
If the answer is “YES,” please skip questions “b” and “c”. 
If the answer is “NO,” please follow up by asking question “b”. 

 
b. Are you a resident of    

YES 
NO 

 
If the answer is “NO,” this person is not a Section 3-eligible resident. Therefore, there is not a 
need to ask question “c”. 

c. In the last 12 months, was your household income (meaning the total for everyone 
in your family earning income) NOT GREATER THAN the amount listed based on 
your household size? 

YES NO 
 

If YES, have the employee complete the certification form (Exhibit 1) and attach this to your 
submission. 

439

Item 24.



SECTION 3 
NEW HIRE COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 

68 
 

 

3. Indicate whether each new hire is Section 3 eligible by checking the appropriate box next to 
their name and address on Section 3 New Hire Report. Indicate “Y” for Yes and “N” for No 

4. Indicate the Job Category using the following codes: 

 Professionals P 
 Technicians T 
 Office and Clerical OC 
 Sales S 
 Trades T 
 Labor L 
 Service Workers SW 
 Other Other 

5. An authorized representative of the firm must certify the accuracy and completeness of the 
information provided by signing this form where indicated. 

6. Subcontractors who have direct agreements with  regarding a Section 3 covered 
project are responsible for collecting the Section 3 New Hire Report from all applicable 
contractors and sub-contractors performing on a Section 3 covered project. 

7. If there were NO new hires for the report period, please document by checking the box and 
providing an authorized signature for your company. 

440

Item 24.



SECTION 3 
NEW HIRE COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 

69 
 

 
 

Project Name:    
 

Project Address:   
 

Developer Name (if applicable):    
 

General Contractor Name:   
 

Name of Firm Completing This Form:    
 

This Firm is a (check one):    
 

 Subcontractor 
Contract Amount: $    

 
 

 Professional Services Consultant 
Contract Amount: $    

 
 
 
 
 
 

Contracts and subcontracts made with vendors to solely provide supplies and/or materials are not subject to 
the HUD Section 3 requirements. However, where such vendors also install such supplies and materials, said 
contracts and subcontracts above $100,000 shall be subject to the HUD Section 3 requirements. 

441

Item 24.



 

70 
 

                 SECTION 3 
NEW HIRE COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 
  

 
NAME OF NEW 

HIRE 

 
 

ADDRESS 
(include Suite/Apt #) 

 
Section 3 
Eligible? 

 
Labor Category 

 
YES OR NO 

See 
Instructions 

1     

2     

3     

4     

5     

6     

7     

8     

9     

10     

11     

12     

13     

If there were NO new hires for the report period, please document 
by checking the box and providing an authorized signature for 
your company. 

 
 I certify that there were no new hires during the reporting period 

  /  /  to  /  /    
mm / dd / yyyy mm / dd / yyyy 

 
 
Name: __________________________________________ Date:  ____________________ 
                                       (please print)  
 
Title:  ____________________________________________________________ 
                                       (please print) 
  
Signature:  ________________________________________________________ 
 
 
I affirm that the above statements are true, complete, and correct to the best of my 
knowledge and belief.  

442

Item 24.



443

Item 24.



ITEM UNIT TOTAL
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY PRICE COST

1 REMOVE SIDEWALK, P.C.C. S.Y. 84.0 $15.00 $1,300.00
2 REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER, 2.5 FT. WIDTH L.F. 168.0 $10.00 $1,700.00
3 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH S.Y. 626.5 $45.00 $28,200.00
4 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.Y. 134.5 $60.00 $8,100.00
5 PLACE DETECTABLE WARNING PANELS S.F. 160.0 $50.00 $8,000.00
6 PLACE CURB & GUTTER, 2.5 FT. WIDE, P.C.C., CLASS "C" L.F. 168 $35.00 $5,900.00
7 CLASS 10 EXCAVATION C.Y. 340.5 $15.00 $5,200.00
8 TOPSOIL, FURNISH AND SPREAD C.Y. 384.00 $30.00 $11,600.00
9 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING S.F. 20696.0 $0.75 $15,600.00
10 SURFACING, 1 INCH ROADSTONE TONS 20.0 $30.00 $600.00
11 CLEARING AND GRUBBING UNITS 51.0 $58.00 $3,000.00
12 INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER L.F. 54.0 $20.00 $1,100.00
13 UNSTABLE MATERIAL, OVER EXCAVATION C.Y. 40.0 $20.00 $800.00
14 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1.0 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
15 MOBILIZATION L.S. 1.0 $6,800.00 $6,800.00

$96,100.00
CDBG cost inflator $9,700.00
Totall Project Cost $105,800.00

Project Estimate

AND QUANTITIES
APRIL 27, 2020

2020 CDBG SIDEWALK INFILL PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NO. SW - 000 - 3223

FINAL ESTIMATE OF COSTS

444

Item 24.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: April 27, 2020 

 SUBJECT:  2020 Bond Sales 

 
 
On June 15th, the City is scheduled to sell General Obligation Capital Loan Notes for 
various purposes and projects at outlined on the City’s Capital Improvements Program 
(CIP).  Prior to that sale, the City must hold a public hearing authorizing the maximum 
amount of the bond sale.   We are requesting that the public hearing be held on May 18, 
2020.  You will note that the resolutions for the hearings and sales are separated into 
various pieces on the Council agenda.  This is due to the requirement of disclosing 
amounts for general corporate purpose and essential corporate purpose.     
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 

445

Item 25.



 

 

ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

Not to exceed $700,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (GCP) 

 

  Resolution fixing date for a meeting on the proposition to authorize a Loan Agreement 

and the issuance of Notes to evidence the obligations of the City thereunder. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 

CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE CITY. 

 

 

 

 

446

Item 25.



 

- 1 - 

May 4, 2020 

 

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 

session, in the Council Chambers*, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at __________ 

_____.M., on the above date.  There were present Mayor _______________, in the chair, and the 

following named Council Members: 

 

__________________________________________________ 

 

 

Absent: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 

* * * * * * *  

 

*Due to the State Public Health Emergency Declaration regarding COVID-19, this 

meeting was conducted electronically pursuant to Iowa Code 21.8 and the Proclamation 

of Governor Kim Reynolds dated March 19, 2020. Participation was available via the 

internet or telephonically, as follows: 

 

Internet access:  ______________ 

Meeting ID: _____________ 

Telephone access:  ______________ 

  

447

Item 25.



 

- 2 - 

Council Member _________________________ introduced the following Resolution 

entitled "RESOLUTION FIXING DATE FOR A MEETING ON THE AUTHORIZATION OF 

A LOAN AGREEMENT AND THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED $700,000 GENERAL 

OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF 

IOWA (FOR GENERAL CORPORATE PURPOSES), AND PROVIDING FOR 

PUBLICATION OF NOTICE THEREOF", and moved that the same be adopted.  Council 

Member _________________________ seconded the motion to adopt.  The roll was called and 

the vote was, 

 

AYES: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 

 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted as follows: 

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE FOR A MEETING ON THE 

AUTHORIZATION OF A LOAN AGREEMENT AND THE 

ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED $700,000 GENERAL 

OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA (FOR GENERAL 

CORPORATE PURPOSES), AND PROVIDING FOR 

PUBLICATION OF NOTICE THEREOF 

WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and advisable that the City of Cedar Falls, State of 

Iowa, should provide for the authorization of a Loan Agreement and issuance of General 

Obligation Capital Loan Notes, to the amount of not to exceed $700,000, as authorized by 

Sections 384.24A and 384.26, of the Code of Iowa, for the purpose of providing funds to pay 

costs of carrying out general corporate purpose project(s) as hereinafter described; and 

WHEREAS, the Loan Agreement and Notes shall be payable from the Debt Service 

Fund; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has a population of more than 5,000 but not more than 75,000, 

and the Notes for these purposes do not exceed $700,000; and 

WHEREAS, before a Loan Agreement may be authorized and General Obligation Capital 

Loan Notes, issued to evidence the obligation of the City thereunder, it is necessary to comply 

with the provisions of the Code of Iowa, as amended, and to publish a notice of the proposal and 

of the time and place of the meeting at which the Council proposes to take action for the 

authorization of the Loan Agreement and Notes and to receive oral and/or written objections 

from any resident or property owner of the City to such action; and 

448

Item 25.



 

- 3 - 

WHEREAS, before the Notes may be issued, it is necessary to comply with the 

provisions of Chapter 384 of the Code of Iowa, and to publish a notice of the proposal to issue 

such Notes and the right to petition for an election. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA: 

Section 1. That this Council meet in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, at __________ _____.M., on the 18th day of May, 2020, for the purpose of 

taking action on the matter of the authorization of a Loan Agreement and issuance of not to 

exceed $700,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, for general corporate purposes, the 

proceeds of which notes will be used to provide funds to pay the costs of City capital projects, 

including acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement, and equipping of 

recreational trails, expanded public infrastructure and related amenities and site improvements; 

and acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement, and equipping of City 

facilities, including the South Main parking lot and shall bear interest at a rate not exceeding the 

maximum specified in the attached notice. 

Section 2. The Clerk is authorized and directed to proceed on behalf of the City with the 

negotiation of terms of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of General Obligation Capital Loan 

Notes, evidencing the City's obligations to a principal amount of not to exceed $700,000, to 

select a date for the final approval thereof, to cause to be prepared such notice and sale 

information as may appear appropriate, to publish and distribute the same on behalf of the City 

and this Council and otherwise to take all action necessary to permit the completion of a loan on 

a basis favorable to the City and acceptable to the Council. 

Section 3. That the Clerk is hereby directed to cause at least one publication to be made 

of a notice of the meeting, in a legal newspaper, printed wholly in the English language, 

published at least once weekly, and having general circulation in the City.  The publication to be 

not less than ten clear days nor more than twenty days before the date of the public meeting on 

the issuance of the Notes. 

Section 4. The notice of the proposed action to issue notes shall be in substantially the 

following form: 

  

449

Item 25.



 

- 4 - 

(To be published on or before: May 6, 2020) 

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA, ON THE 

MATTER OF THE PROPOSED AUTHORIZATION OF A 

LOAN AGREEMENT AND THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO 

EXCEED $700,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN 

NOTES OF THE CITY (FOR GENERAL CORPORATE 

PURPOSES), AND THE HEARING ON THE ISSUANCE 

THEREOF 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State 

of Iowa, will hold a public hearing on the 18th day of May, 2020, at __________ _____.M., in 

the Council Chambers, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at which meeting the 

Council proposes to take additional action for the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the 

issuance of not to exceed $700,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, for general corporate 

purposes, bearing interest at a rate of not to exceed nine (9) per centum per annum, the Notes to 

be issued to provide funds to pay the costs of City capital projects, including acquisition, 

construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement, and equipping of recreational trails, 

expanded public infrastructure and related amenities and site improvements; and acquisition, 

construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement, and equipping of City facilities, 

including the South Main parking lot.  Principal and interest on the proposed Loan Agreement 

will be payable from the Debt Service Fund. 

At any time before the date of the meeting, a petition, asking that the question of issuing 

such Notes be submitted to the legal voters of the City, may be filed with the Clerk of the City, in 

the manner provided by Section 362.4 of the Code of Iowa, pursuant to the provisions of 

Sections 384.24A and 384.26 of the Code of Iowa. 

At the above meeting the Council shall receive oral or written objections from any 

resident or property owner of the City to the above action.  After all objections have been 

received and considered, the Council will at the meeting or at any adjournment thereof, take 

additional action for the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of the Notes to 

evidence the obligation of the City thereunder or will abandon the proposal to issue said Notes. 

This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, 

as provided by Sections 384.24A and 384.26 of the Code of Iowa. 

Dated this 4th day of May, 2020. 

  

 

  

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

(End of Notice)  

450

Item 25.



 

- 5 - 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 4th day of May, 2020. 

  

 

 

  

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

City Clerk 

 

 

 

451

Item 25.



 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the City showing 

proceedings of the Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 

Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 

which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 

any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 

notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 

the Council and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the 

public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council pursuant to 

the local rules of the Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable 

advance notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of 

the meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 

certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 

their respective City offices as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may 

be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 

threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the 

right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this __________ day of 

_______________, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

  

452

Item 25.



 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am now and was at the times hereinafter 

mentioned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, in the County of Black 

Hawk, State of Iowa, and that as such Clerk and by full authority from the Council of the City, I 

have caused a 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

(Not To Exceed $700,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes) 

 

of which the clipping annexed to the publisher's affidavit hereto attached is in words and figures 

a correct and complete copy, to be published as required by law in the "Waterloo-Cedar Falls 

Courier", a legal newspaper published at least once weekly, printed wholly in the English 

language, published regularly and mailed through the post office of current entry for more than 

two years and which has had for more than two years a bona fide paid circulation recognized by 

the postal laws of the United States, and has a general circulation in the City, and that the Notice 

was published in all of the issues thereof published and circulated on the following date: 

 

____________________, 2020. 

 

WITNESS my official signature this __________ day of _______________, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

 

 

 
01709451-1\10283-178 

453

Item 25.



 

 

ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

Not to exceed $2,800,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (ECP) 

 

  Resolution fixing date for a meeting on the proposition to authorize a Loan Agreement 

and the issuance of Notes to evidence the obligations of the City thereunder. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 

CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE CITY. 

 

 

 

 

454

Item 26.



 

- 1 - 

May 4, 2020 

 

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 

session, in the Council Chambers*, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at __________ 

_____.M., on the above date.  There were present Mayor _______________, in the chair, and the 

following named Council Members: 

 

__________________________________________________ 

 

 

Absent: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 

* * * * * * *  

 

*Due to the State Public Health Emergency Declaration regarding COVID-19, this 

meeting was conducted electronically pursuant to Iowa Code 21.8 and the 

Proclamation of Governor Kim Reynolds dated March 19, 2020. Participation was 

available via the internet or telephonically, as follows: 

 

Internet access:  ______________ 

Meeting ID: _____________ 

Telephone access:  ______________ 

 

 

 

 

  

455

Item 26.



 

- 2 - 

Council Member _________________________ introduced the following Resolution 

entitled "RESOLUTION FIXING DATE FOR A MEETING ON THE AUTHORIZATION OF 

A LOAN AGREEMENT AND THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED $2,800,000 

GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

STATE OF IOWA (FOR ESSENTIAL CORPORATE PURPOSES), AND PROVIDING FOR 

PUBLICATION OF NOTICE THEREOF", and moved that the same be adopted.  Council 

Member _________________________ seconded the motion to adopt.  The roll was called and 

the vote was, 

 

AYES: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 

 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted as follows: 

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE FOR A MEETING ON THE 

AUTHORIZATION OF A LOAN AGREEMENT AND THE 

ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED $2,800,000 GENERAL 

OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA (FOR ESSENTIAL 

CORPORATE PURPOSES), AND PROVIDING FOR 

PUBLICATION OF NOTICE THEREOF 

WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and advisable that the City of Cedar Falls, State of 

Iowa, should provide for the authorization of a Loan Agreement and issuance of General 

Obligation Capital Loan Notes, to the amount of not to exceed $2,800,000, as authorized by 

Sections 384.24A and 384.25, of the Code of Iowa, for the purpose of providing funds to pay 

costs of carrying out essential corporate purpose project(s) as hereinafter described; and 

WHEREAS, the Loan Agreement and Notes shall be payable from the Debt Service 

Fund; and 

WHEREAS, before a Loan Agreement may be authorized and General Obligation Capital 

Loan Notes, issued to evidence the obligation of the City thereunder, it is necessary to comply 

with the provisions of the Code of Iowa, as amended, and to publish a notice of the proposal and 

of the time and place of the meeting at which the Council proposes to take action for the 

authorization of the Loan Agreement and Notes and to receive oral and/or written objections 

from any resident or property owner of the City to such action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA: 

456

Item 26.



 

- 3 - 

Section 1. That this Council meet in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, at __________ _____.M., on the 18th day of May, 2020, for the purpose of 

taking action on the matter of the authorization of a Loan Agreement and issuance of not to 

exceed $2,800,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, for essential corporate purposes, the 

proceeds of which notes will be used to provide funds to pay the costs of City capital projects, 

including opening, widening, extending, grading, and draining of the right-of-way of streets, 

highways, avenues, alleys and public grounds, and market places, and the removal and 

replacement of dead or diseased trees thereon; the construction, reconstruction, and repairing of 

any street improvements, bridges, grade crossing separations and approaches; the acquisition, 

installation, and repair of sidewalks, culverts, retaining walls, storm sewers, sanitary sewers, 

water service lines, street lighting, and traffic control devices, and the acquisition of any real 

estate needed for any of the foregoing purposes; equipping the police, fire, and streets 

departments. 

Section 2. To the extent any of the projects or activities described in this resolution may 

be reasonably construed to be included in more than one classification under Division III of 

Chapter 384 of the Code of Iowa, the Council hereby elects the "essential corporate purpose" 

classification and procedure with respect to each such project or activity, pursuant to Section 

384.28 of the Code of Iowa. 

Section 3. The Clerk is authorized and directed to proceed on behalf of the City with the 

negotiation of terms of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of General Obligation Capital Loan 

Notes, evidencing the City's obligations to a principal amount of not to exceed $2,800,000, to 

select a date for the final approval thereof, to cause to be prepared such notice and sale 

information as may appear appropriate, to publish and distribute the same on behalf of the City 

and this Council and otherwise to take all action necessary to permit the completion of a loan on 

a basis favorable to the City and acceptable to the Council. 

Section 4. That the Clerk is hereby directed to cause at least one publication to be made 

of a notice of the meeting, in a legal newspaper, printed wholly in the English language, 

published at least once weekly, and having general circulation in the City.  The publication to be 

not less than four clear days nor more than twenty days before the date of the public meeting on 

the issuance of the Notes. 

Section 5. The notice of the proposed action to issue notes shall be in substantially the 

following form: 

  

457

Item 26.



 

- 4 - 

 

(To be published on or before: May 6, 2020) 

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA, ON THE 

MATTER OF THE PROPOSED AUTHORIZATION OF A 

LOAN AGREEMENT AND THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO 

EXCEED $2,800,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL 

LOAN NOTES OF THE CITY (FOR ESSENTIAL CORPORATE 

PURPOSES), AND THE HEARING ON THE ISSUANCE 

THEREOF 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State 

of Iowa, will hold a public hearing on the 18th day of May, 2020, at __________ _____.M., in 

the Council Chambers, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at which meeting the 

Council proposes to take additional action for the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the 

issuance of not to exceed $2,800,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, for essential 

corporate purposes, to provide funds to pay the costs of City capital projects, including opening, 

widening, extending, grading, and draining of the right-of-way of streets, highways, avenues, 

alleys and public grounds, and market places, and the removal and replacement of dead or 

diseased trees thereon; the construction, reconstruction, and repairing of any street 

improvements, bridges, grade crossing separations and approaches; the acquisition, installation, 

and repair of sidewalks, culverts, retaining walls, storm sewers, sanitary sewers, water service 

lines, street lighting, and traffic control devices, and the acquisition of any real estate needed for 

any of the foregoing purposes; equipping the police, fire, and streets departments.  Principal and 

interest on the proposed Loan Agreement will be payable from the Debt Service Fund. 

At the above meeting the Council shall receive oral or written objections from any 

resident or property owner of the City to the above action.  After all objections have been 

received and considered, the Council will at the meeting or at any adjournment thereof, take 

additional action for the authorization of a Loan Agreement and the issuance of the Notes to 

evidence the obligation of the City thereunder or will abandon the proposal to issue said Notes. 

This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, 

as provided by Sections 384.24A and 384.25 of the Code of Iowa. 

Dated this 4th day of May, 2020. 

  

 

 

  

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

(End of Notice) 

  

458

Item 26.



 

- 5 - 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 4th day of May, 2020. 

  

 

 

  

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

City Clerk 

 

 

 

459

Item 26.



 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the City showing 

proceedings of the Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 

Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 

which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 

any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 

notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 

the Council and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the 

public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council pursuant to 

the local rules of the Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable 

advance notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of 

the meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 

certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 

their respective City offices as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may 

be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 

threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the 

right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this __________ day of 

_______________, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

  

460

Item 26.



 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am now and was at the times hereinafter 

mentioned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, in the County of Black 

Hawk, State of Iowa, and that as such Clerk and by full authority from the Council of the City, I 

have caused a 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

(Not To Exceed $2,800,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes) 

 

of which the clipping annexed to the publisher's affidavit hereto attached is in words and figures 

a correct and complete copy, to be published as required by law in the "Waterloo-Cedar Falls 

Courier", a legal newspaper published at least once weekly, printed wholly in the English 

language, published regularly and mailed through the post office of current entry for more than 

two years and which has had for more than two years a bona fide paid circulation recognized by 

the postal laws of the United States, and has a general circulation in the City, and that the Notice 

was published in all of the issues thereof published and circulated on the following date: 

 

____________________, 2020. 

 

WITNESS my official signature this __________ day of _______________, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

 

 

 
01709443-1\10283-178 

461

Item 26.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Rob Green and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: April 28, 2020 

 SUBJECT: 2020 Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan for Black Hawk County, 
Iowa  

 

The City of Cedar Falls has been part of a Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan for 
Black Hawk County since 2010.  Plans are required to be updated every five years.  
During the period in between, all the plan participants monitor implementation and hold 
several meetings to discuss progress and topics related to planning for hazards. 
 
The plan follows a set standard of identifying local community policies, actions, and 

tools for ongoing, short‐, mid‐, and long‐term implementation aimed at reducing the risk 
and potential future losses from natural disasters. In short, the plan encourages 
proactive measures to make the entire county less susceptible to natural hazards. 
 
The plan has been a collaborative effort led by INRCOG and Black Hawk County 
Emergency Management.  Communities involved include Dunkerton, Elk Run Heights, 
Evansdale, Gilbertville, Hudson, LaPorte City, Raymond, Waterloo and Black Hawk 
County.  In addition the University of Northern Iowa and Cedar Falls Community School 
District have been involved in review/development of the plan.  Staff from each agency 
have attended meetings, provided input for their respective organization, and reviewed 
the draft documents.  Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors Adopted the Plan April 
14, 2020, now all the municipalities are asked to consider the plan. 
 
Following is a link to the draft plan: http://www.inrcog.org/pdf/BHC-HMP-4.14.20-
FINAL_for_State_Review.pdf.  It is over 450 pages long.  Appendix A is a section 
specific to the City of Cedar Falls.     
 
City staff has reviewed the document and updates requested during the process.  We  
 
XC: Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 Stephanie Sheetz, Interim Director of Community Development 

462

Item 27.



 Mark Ripplinger, Director of Municipal Operations and Programs 
 Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 

Jeff Olson, Director of Public Safety Services 
Bob Seymour, Interim Planning & Community Services Manager 

 
 
 
 
 

463

Item 27.


	Top
	1. Regular Meeting of April 20, 2020
	200420MINUTES

	2. PH Rezoning of Property from A-1 to R-1
	1_City Council Staff Report for Ind. Park Rezoning 05-04-20
	2_ZoningLocationMap
	3_Rezoning2020 plat map
	4_Concept Plan 8.5x11
	Ord-Rezoning-Ind Park

	3. Ord-Rezoning A-1 to R-1 etc
	4. Res-Future Land Use Map Amendment
	1_CC Memo on Ind Park Exp. Land Use Map Amendment 05-04-20
	2_Land Use Location Map

	5. PH-FY2020 Budget Amendment #1
	CedarFalls_Budget_Bmend_1_FY2020 PH

	6. Res-FY20 Budget Amendments
	7. Ord 2963-Amend Boundaries
	2963-Amend Wards Precincts

	8. Ord 2964-Loitering
	2964-Loitering

	9. Ord 2965-Noxious Weeds
	2965-Noxious Weeds

	10. Proclamation-Bike Month
	2248_001

	11. Proclamation-Neurofibromatosis Month
	2253_001

	12. HRC Appointment
	2020-04-27_HRC_Thomas_Appointment
	HRC - Thomas 2-7-19

	13. Monthly Report - March 2020
	Monthly Report - March 2020

	14. FY20 Report by Community Main Street
	1_Memo to Council for CMS 2nd Half Payment 05-04-20
	2_CMS Bi-Annual Report April 2020

	15. FY20 Report by College Hill Partnership
	1_Memo to Council for CHP 2nd Half Payment 05-04-20
	2_CHP Biannual Report April 2020

	16. Tobacco Permits 5/4/20
	05042020 Tobacco Applications

	17. Liquor Beer 5-4-20
	Liquor Beer 5-4-20

	18. Cafeteria Plan CARES Act Amendment
	CafeAmend -CARES Act Council Memo 4-2020
	CafeAmend -CARES Act Cafe Amend 4-2020

	19. Towing contract-L&M
	FY21 Towing Contract Memo
	L&amp;M Contract

	20. Towing contract-Rasmusson
	Rasmussen Contract

	21. Low Bid: Rec Center Locker Room Remodel
	1 Acceptance of low bid locker room upgrade
	2 - Locker room bid tab
	3 bid forms bid security

	22. Rec Center Locker Remodel Contract
	1 Locker room contract
	A101-2017 - Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor_FH s...

	23. TSIP Application-Greenhill and S Main
	1. Memo - Greenhill Rd_S Main Intersection TSIP
	2. TSIP_Greenhill Rd_S Main_Item-A_Resolution
	3. TSIP _S Main-Greenhill_AppForm
	4. TSIP_S Main-Greenhill_Draft

	24. Set PH-PSE-2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project
	1.Memo
	2. Plans_2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill FINAL
	3. PM_2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill
	4. EOPC_2020.05.05_2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill

	25. Set PH-Bond Sale-GCP
	bond sale council PH.mem
	Cedar Falls (178) - Fix date GCP 2020 CLN (01709451x7F7E1)

	26. Set PH-Bond Sale-ECP
	Cedar Falls (178) - Fix date ECP 2020 CLN (01709443x7F7E1)

	27. Set PH-Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan for Black Hawk County
	1. Council - Hazard mitigation plan memo 5-4-20

	28. Executive Session-CB
	Bottom

